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This Annual Repoart includes “forwarHooking statements” that express or imply
expectations of future events or results ForwardHooking statements are statements that
are not histoncal facts These statements include, without limitation, financial projections
and estimates and thew underlying assumptions, statements regarding plans objectives
and expectations with respect to future production operations costs, projects, and
statements regarding future performance ForwardHooking statements are generally
dentified by the words “plans “expects “antiipates” "believes “intends "
“estimates” and other similar expressions All forwardHooking statements invotve a
number of nsks uncertainties and other factors, many of which are beyond the control of
ABG, which could cause actual results and developments to differ matenally from those
expressed In or implied by the éorwardHooking statements contained in this Annual
Report Factors that could cause or contnbute to differences between the actual resuits,
performance and achievements of ABG include, but are not imited to changes or
developments in politcal economic or business conditions or national or local legistation
or regutlation in countries in which ABG conducts — or may in the future conduct —
busingss mdustry trends competition fluctuations in the spot and forward price of gold
or certaiy other commodity pnces {such as copper and diesel) currency fluctuations
(including the US dollar South Afncan rand Kenyan shiling and Tanzanian shilling
exchange rates), ABG s ability to successiully integrate acquistions ABG s ability to
recover Its reserves or develop new reserves, inctuding its ability to convert ts resources
nto reserves and its mineral potential Into resources or reserves and 1o process os
mineral reserves successfully and in a timely manner, ABG s abihity to complete land
acouisihions required t& support 1S MIning actaties, operauonal or technical difficutties
which may occur in the context of mining actvites, delays and technical challenges
associated with the completion of projects, nsk of trespass theft and vandalism
changes in ABG s business strategy including ABG 5 further implementation of the
COperational Review and related ¢ost control and strategic measures as well as nsks and
hazards associated with the business of mineral exploration development mining and
production and nsks and factors affectng the gold mining industry in general Atthough
ABG s management believes that the expectations reflected in such farwardHooking
statements are reasonable ABG cannot give assurances that such statements will prove
to be correct Accordingly investors should not place reliance on forwardHookarg
statements contained in this Annual Report Any forwargkloobung staterments in this
Annual Report only reflect information avalable at the time of preparation Subject to the
requirements of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules and the Listing Rules or
applicable law, ABG explicitly disclaims any obligation or undertaking publicly to update or
revise any forwardHooking statements in this Annual Report whether as a result of new
information, future events or othermse Nothing in this Annual Report should be
construed as a profit forecast or estimate and no statement made should be interpreted
to mean that ABG s profits or earnings per share for any future period will necessarily
match or exceed the histoncal published profits or eamings per share of ABG

MORE INFORMATION AVAILABLE AT
WWW.AFRICANBARRICKGOLD.COM




GROUP AT A GLANCE

Who we are

African Barrick Gold ("ABG”) 1s Tanzania’s largest gold producer and
one of the largest gold producers in Africa. We have three operating
mines, all located in Northwest Tanzania, and several exploration
projects at various stages of development in Tanzania and Kenya.

ABG is a UK public company with its corporate
headquarters in London In addition to our corporate
headquarters, we also have offices in Dar es Salaam,
Tanzania and Johannesburg, South Africa to provide
Incountry and regional support for our operations

OUR PRODUCING MINES

We have been operating in Tanzania for over a decade and during that time have produced over 7 million ounces of gold
from our combination of open pit and underground mines All of our mines are located in the Lake Victorla Greenstone

African Barnck Gold is listed on the Main Market of
the London Stock Exchange under the symbol ABG
and has a secondary lIsting on the Dar es Salaam
Stock Exchange

For further informaton please visit our
corporate website al www alnicanbarnckgold.com

Belt, one of the most prospective areas for gold mining in Africa

Bulyanhulu
A high-grade underground mine with shaft access, which

1S transitioning o long-hole and dnft and fill as its principal

mining methods

Life of mine 1s estimated to be over 25 years, based on
proven and probable gold reserves of 9 4 millon ounces

Buzwag]
A low-grade bulk deposit with a single large open pit

Life of mine 1s estimated to be 5 years, based on proven
and probable gold reserves of 1 1 million ounces

North Mara

A high-grade open pit ming, with future underground potential,

consisting of three open pit deposits, Nyabirama, Gokona
and Nyabigena

Life of mine 1s estimated to be 10 years based on proven and

probable gold reserves of 2 2 million ounces

For further information on our operating rnnes
please turn to pages 16-21
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

A continued focus:

Driving operational excellence

Kelvin Dushnisky,
Chairman of the Board

Dear Shareholders,

2013 was a challenging year for the gold
industry, in which we experienced an annual
decline in the gold price for the first time n
thirteen years African Barrick Gold was
ahead of many of its peers in adapting to this
situation, having mitiated a comprehensive
Operational Review n January, before

the sigmficant fall in the gold price Asa
result, we were able to respond quickly and
decisively to reshape the business and ensure
ABG 1s well positioned to thrive in any gold
price environment

When | became Chairman in February 2013, | accepted the
position with great enthusiasm { was well aware of the
challenges facing the business, but also of the guality

of the asset base and the potential for the Company to
improve Qur Gperational Revtew was central to our
activities 1n 2013 and re-examined every aspect of our
business Our objectives were to improve operating
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efficiency, cost control and drive sustainable returns for

our investors With this in mind, the Board established

the following pniorities for the year meeting cost

reduction targets established in the Operational Review,
strengthening our Board and management team, and driving
focus on operational excellence | am pleased to report we
have made solid progress in all of these areas

Improvements in operational performance

We exceeded the top of our 2013 production guidance range
of 600,000 ounces of gold, producing 641,931 ounces, and
accomphshed this at a cash cost of US$827 per ounce,
12% below the bottom of our cost guidance range

As part of an Industry wide initiative driven by the World
Gold Council, we began reporting our Allin Sustaining Costs
(“AISC™) In 2013 This provides a standardised metnc and a
mofe robust measure of the true cost of producing an
ounce of gold We are pleased to report a 14% year on year
decrease in our per ounce AISC | am also pleased to note
that our AISC declined In each successive quarter of 2013,
with fourth quarter AISC being US$1,171 per ounce In
addition, we exceeded our cost savings target by delivering
US$129 miltion of savings by the end of 2013, with a
further US$56 million of savings due in 2014




| fully anticipate that the operational improvement
measures being implemented by the ABG management
team will make a significant contribution to rmproved
performance throughout 2014 and beyond

Corporate governance

In 2013 we welcomed four new independent Directors to
the Board Peter Tomsett, Graham Clow, Rachel English and
Steve Lucas joined as independent Non Executive Directors,
with Peter assuming the role of Semtor Independent Director
Peter and Graham are seasoned mining executrves with
wide-ranging expenence in technical and operational mining
matters across all aspects of the industry Rachel and
Steve are experienced finance executives who both have
held a vanety of senior posttions in the extractves sector
Steve and Rachel have also served as Board members of a
number of promtnent UK listed companies, with operations
In Africa and around the world We are delighted that Peter,
Graham, Rachel and Steve have joined us Indwdually and
collectively, they bring significant expenence and knowledge
10 our business

Acting Chairman Derek Pannell departed in 2013 to
concentrate on other interests He helped shape ABG as

an independently isted company and, on behalf of the
Board, | would jike to thank Derek for his contnbutions In
August, Greg Hawkins stepped down as the Company's CEQ
Greg managed the Company through the isting process and
during its formative stages as a public company, for which we
thank mm and wish him well in his future endeavours More
recently, Dawid Hodgson has decided to not stand for
re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting We
would like to thank Dawd for his contnibution to the Company
and wish lum well for the future

Management renewal

Dunng the year, we recalibrated the Company’s senior
management team to further drive the business in the
context of our revised strategic prionties in August
following a comprehensive global search, we appointed
Bradley Gorden as the Companys CEQ Brad 1s a seasoned
operator, with deep technical and executive experience
across diverse mining environments and a proven track
record of delwenng the full petential from operations under
his direction Immediately after joimng the Company Brad
assumed dwect responsitihity for the operations as COQ0,

In addition to his role as CEQ

In Apnil, former CFO Kevin Jennings departed to pursue
other interests and we appginted Andrew Wray to the
position of CFO Andrew has been an integral member

of the senior management team frem the Company's
inception and led the Operational Review His skills and
expenence will continue to add significant value in fus new
role, which he has assumed seamlessly

Final dlvidend for 2013

While our operational performance in 2013 was stronger
than the previous year, the decline in the gold price has
placed some pressure on ABG’s financial perfermance We
continue 1o believe 1t 15 important to reward the ongoing
support of our shareholder base, white being mindful of the
importance of maintaining our strong balance sheet

Q, KEY PRIORITIES FOR 2013

Ensure Delivery on the
Operational Review

L4043y D1D3LVHLS

Strengthen the Leadership of the Company

Drive Focus on
Operatlonal Excellence

Therefore the Board has recommended the payment
of a final dvidend for 2013 of US2 O cents per share,
representing two thirds of the total dwidend payable In
respect of 2013 of US3 0 cents per share

Outlook

We made significant progress in 2013 In reshaping the
business As a result, we are welkpositoned for success
even in a lower gold price environment  As an independently
listed company with Barnck as a majonty shareholder, we
maintain the full support and resources of the world’s
largest gold mining company, while having a strong mandate
to cperate as an independent, nimble and efficient Afncan
gold producer

Looking forward to 2014 we expect to see further
Improvements In our business as we continue to drive
efficiencies and streamline our actvities | am confident
that the Company has the team and resources In place to
continue on a path of operational excellence

On behalf of the Board, | sincerely thank all ABG
employeges for ther hard work and dedication over the
past year | would also like t¢ thank our shareholders who
have shown tremendous support and patience as we have
reshaped the Company

Kelvin Dushnisky,
Chairman of the Board

Annual Report and Accounts 2013 3




Y,

My mandate is to drive operational
excellence at ABG. Together, with the senior
leaders of this business, we have a clear vision
with focused priorities to take our operational
optimisation further and faster.

[ will use my knowledge, skills & experience
to drive sustainable shareholder returns.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

STRATEGY AND BUSINESS MODEL

A single focus:
To be a leading African gold producer

We are focused on maintaining and strengthening our position

as a leading African gold producer in order to develop our business
for the long term For this reason we have adopted a consistent
strategy of optimise, expand and grow, and have structured our
business model on the premise of responsible mining and other
foundations that we believe reflect sound business practices in
order to achieve our immediate goal of attaining and maintaining
operational excellence.

We believe that satisfying this immediate goal is fundamental to the
achievement of our primary objective. generating free cash flow to
provide sustainable returns for all of our stakeholders in the form
of shareholder returns and ongoing economic contributions and

investment 1n our host countries. \___//

Managing principal business risks

Our principal business nisks fall within four broad categones strategic nsks, financial nsks, external nsks and operational risks, as follows

Single country risk Costs and capital expendlture Political, legal and Utilitles supply
All of aur production s logated In Increased cost pressures particularly regulatory developments Power stoppages and disruptions
Tanzamta, therefore major incountry as regards tabour, capital equipment Our ability to conduct business to electncal supply and other utilitres
developments could have a significant and energy costs may affect our ability Is dependent on the consistent impact our ability to operate continucusly
etfect on our operations and business to manage operating casts and Interpretation and application of laws and can also result in increased costs
capital expenditures and regulaons particularly in Tanzania  parucularly power supply costs
Reserves and resources estimates  Commodity prices Taxation reviews Environmental hazards
Qur reserves and resources estmates Qur financial performance 1s highly Our financial position could be adversely  and rehabllitation
are based on a range of assumptions dependent on the price of gold and, 1o affected f Tanzarian tax regmes were Our operations use pocesses ankd
and factors therefore no assurances a lesser extent, the pnce of copper and  revised beyond the fiscal stability methods which require the use of
can be given that anticipated tonnages  siver Fluctuations in the pncing of these  agreements contained in our Mineral chemicats and other hazardous
or grades will be achweved commedities particularty rapid pnce Develcpment Agreements and/or substances and as such, we may be
fluctuations may have a carresponding  upon unsuceesshid discussions with liable for losses and ¢osts associated
impact on aur financial pasition taxation regulators on outstanding with ervironmental hazamts should
tax assessments they oocur

6 wwwafrcanbarrickgold com




Application of strong cost
and capital disciphne

in practice this means

enhancing supply cham and
inventory management
maintaining appropnate
operatlonal cost levels
adopung stringent

caprial allocation and
expendilure pracuces

using robust financial
management procedures

Further information on capital
discipline 1s provided in the
following pages of the
Strategic report

Sustainable
stakeholder returns

Which creates

Operational excellence

Our foundations drive

Commutment
to responsible minmg

In practice this means

developing community and
government relabionships
protecting the emaronment
safeguarding health and
safety In the workplace
creating development and
traiming oppertunities for
our employees

respecting human nghts

Further wnformation on our
commitment to responsible muung
15 provided in the Corporate
responsibility section of this report

Continued development of
our quality asset base

In practice this means

enhancing life of mine
planmng methods

drving mining and
processing efficiencies
through improved practices
optimisIng mining,
development and
processing rates

Ivesting in the nght
exploration opportunities

Further information on the
development of our asset base (s
provided in the following pages of
the Strategic report

14043 21931vHlS

Mamntenance of effective
governance and risk
management praCfICCS

in practice thls means

fostenng strong effective and
expenenced leadership
previding for diversity
developing sound govemance
structures and practices
progressing and maintaining
internal controls and nsk
miigalion strategies

Further enformatuon on etfective
go° e and risk ir
provided in the Governance report
and the Risk management eview

ent 15

Community relations

Fallure 10 engage or manage relations
with local commumties and stakeholders
affects our social icence to operate and
can have a direct impact on operations

Land acquisitions

Progression of mining actvities at
some of our operations 1S dependent
upon our abiity to complete land
acquisitons 1o support ife of mine
plans timely and successfully

Loss of critical processes

Failures or unavailability of operational
infrastructure, such as equpment failure
or deficiencies in supply chain availability
could adversely affect production
output or impact exploration and
development actvities

Employer, contractor

and industral relatlons

Cur business depends on attracting
and retaimng skilled employees A loss
in skilted employees and/or a
breakdown in employee refations could
result In a decrease i production levels
increased costs and/or disruptions

o operations

Security, trespass and vandalism
We face nsks when dealing with fraud
cormuption and wider security matters,
e g trespass, theft vandahsm or
unauthorised smalkscale mining near
or on our gperations all of which
could affect our mine Sites and
financial condition

Qrganisational restructuring

QOur organisaticnal restructunng
(including the transfer of certain support
funcbions from South Afnca o Tanzania)
and related transitional penods may
negatwvely impact the delivery of key
operationa! support services and could
also result in detenorations In certam
financial and operational contrals

Further information on our

risk management and rmiigation
strategies 1s provided in detail
the Risk managemnent review

Annual Report and Accoums 2013 7




CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

YEAR IN REVIEW

[joined ABG in August 2013 on the
basis of the significant opportunity that
the Company has within the African

gold mining industry

Brad Gordon, CEQ at the Buzwagl open pit with Rachel English, independent Non-Executive Director

Exciting opportunity

Looking at ABG from the outside, | believed that the
Company had great assets, tatented people and that
Tanzania was a stable place to operate Since joining,

| have immersed myself in the business and now believe
| underestimated how big an opporturity we have within
the Company

We have a portfolio of exceptional assets, with Bulyanhulu
being a truly world class deposit North Mara continues
to provide positive resuits and 1s a high-grade open pit
mine with excellent potential to go underground Buzwag),
which histonically has had a number of challenges, has
been rescheduled and will generate cash flow for us
going forward

| have also been impressed by the knowledge and
experience we have within the organisation and the pool of
skilled labour avallable in Tanzanta As a result, dunng the
year we have been able to further increase the proportion of

8 www africanbarrickgold com

Tanzanians in our workforce to over 93% We have also
enhanced the leadership group with additional operational
expertise to drive continued operational efficiencies while
increasing our production base

I have operated In a number of jJunsdictions across the
world and believe that Tanzania compares well to many of
them In this regard, | have enjoyed fruitful Initial dialogues
with the Government, something which 1 will continue to
progress throughout 2014, as | seek to ensure that ABG
recerves the recogniion and support it requires given our
position as the largest investor and private sector employer
in the country

Through focused initiatives
we will realise the true

potential of our assets




Year in review

2013 was a year of significant change within ABG as

we undertook a major Operational Review to ensure

the business was set up to thnve 1n a lower gold price
environment Under the leadership of our now Chief
Financtal Qfficer Andrew Wray, we identfied over

US$185 million of cost savings across the business
ranging from reductions in capital spend exploration,
corporate overheads and organisational structures The
Operational Review has been a great success and we had
removed US$129 million of cost from the business by the
end of 2013 This enabled us to deliver a year on year
reduction In alHn sustaining costs (“AlSCT) of 14%, with
fourth quarter AISC representing a 30% reduction on the
same penod 12 months ago Our traditional measure of
cash costs per ounce sold reduced by 12% to US$827 per
ounce for the full year and our exit rate was 19% lower
than the previous year at US$774 per ounce

On the production front, 2013 marked a tuming point as

we saw production Increase year on year by 3% 1o

641,931 ounces, 7% ahead of the top of our initial gudance
range 1f we exclude Tulawaka which stopped operating early
in the year, our three core rmnes increased preduction by 7%,
when compared to 2012 Thts was driven by strong
performances at North Mara and Buzwagl, up 33% and 10%
respectively year on year, as a result of improved grade at
North Mara and increased throughput at Buzwagl This more
than offset the weaker first half performance from
Bulyanhulu as a result of both labour shortages and
equipment availabilittes

The dramatic drop in the gold price over the year rmeant that
the stronger production and cost performance aganst 2012
did not fully translate into improved financial performance,
with our average realised gold price of US$1,379 per ounce
being 17% lower than the 2012 average of US$1,668 per
ounce As a result, revenue for the year dropped by 8% to
US$929 million, with EBITDA amounting to US$240 million
Earmings for the year were further impacted by total
noncash impairment charges of US$1,061 million as a
result of the impact of a lower gold price assumption and
significant changes to life of mine plans the details of
which are descnbed below, which led to a loss of

US190 4 cents per share On an adjusted basis,

earmings for the year were US25 9 cents per share

We have a range of .
talented people _//

Operational Review

We achieved total Operational Review cost savings of
US$129 milhon against a target of over US$100 million

by the end of 2013 The delivery on the cost savings 1S
highlighted by the consistent reduction in cur AISC over the
year and improved cash flow generation from our sustaining
operations quarter on quarter supported by delvering a
strong production profile throughout the year We remain
commuitted and on track to deliver against the US$185 mulion
target set out earher in 2013 as our guidance reflects We
are simultaneously intensifying the ongong review in our
care mining areas, which were largely outside the scope of
the Operational Review, and we are confident that this will
delver further efficiencies and cost savings threughout
2014 and beyond

Q BUILDING OUR FUTURE LEADERS

ABG operates an Intermediate Management Development
Programime {"IMDP") which aims to equip jumior management
employees with management and leaderstup skalls 10 help

them further their careers Margareth Omary — Learming and
Development Supenntendent at our North Mara Mine — 1S one of
the beneficianes of the programme She graduated in December
2013 with a postgraduate diploma in management

The IMDP programme focuses on providing challenging
leadership and management development for indraduals we
believe have the potential to become future leaders within

our business The pmgramme s run in partnership with the
Unversaty of Cape Town, Graduate School of Business in
South Afnca The programme builds a strong learming culture
that encourages collaboratve leaming whilst maintaining the
stmutus of competion The programme 15 run over 14 months
and provides a practical and challenging educational
ermarenment where students are evaluated on therr ablity to
mtegrate theoretical leamang into peactical work actnvities This
programme has helped ABG to wentfy a number of tatented
indmduals within our business Margareth 15 just one of a
number of success stones from the programme

For further information on our employee initiatives
see the Corporate responsibility secuon of this report

Annual Report and Accounts 2013 9
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Reshaping the Company:
returning to positive cash flows

We achieved US$129 million of savings as a result of the Operational Review 1 2013,
ahead of target. In 2014 we expect to achieve the balance of the US$185 million of savings
originally outhned as the focus switches to driving efficiencies out of the miming cycle.

OPERATING
COST REDUCTIONS

We achleved US$28 million of savings on an annuallsed,

Iike for like basls Major savings to date have been In camp
services, consumables and security, as well as In the reduction
of our overall workforce which, excluding Tulawaka, has
reduced by 12% This Includes a 28% reduction of intermmational
workers from 411 to 290 employees, as part of our efforts to
Increase locallsation In Tanzanla 2014 will see an Increased
focus on maintenance and external services while delivering
Increased labour savings on the back of our existing
restructuring plans As & result, we expect our savings over
2014 to ba in line with our previous guldance of US$95 milllon

US$

28 million

SAVING

CAPITAL DISCIPLINE

We achlaved US$58 milllon of sustalning capital expenditure
savings In 2013 Inclusive of land purchases We contlnue to
assess all future capital expenditure to identHy further
opportunities to deploy our caphal more effectively and Improve
the capital Intensity of the business We have planned for a
further US$10-15 million of savings in 2014 In respect of
sustaining capital

uss$

58 million

SAVING

10 www atricanbarrickgold com

CORPORATE OVERHEAD
COST REDUCTIONS

We have made excellent progress In simplilying the corporate
structure and reducing the size of our support offices as
conflrmed by savings of US$18 milllon being achleved In 2013
Headcount in our corporate offices has already been reduced
hy 39%, which has then driven lower travel and assoclated
costs We are in the process of transiticning specific support
functions from our Johannesburg office to Tanzania In order to
schieve improved operational efficiencies and further
locallsation in our main country of operation A further
reduction of US$3 milllon is expected to be achleved in 2014

US$

18 million

SAVING

EXPLORATION

We achleved a total saving of US$25 milllon in 2013

We have focused our exploration budget on potential highreturmn
programmes at Bulyanhulu and on two targets In the North Mara
region while we undertook extensive low-cost sampling and
anomaly testing In Kenya In order to prepare for future
programmes In 2014 our main focus areas will be at Bulyanhulu
and In Kenya We expect 2014 expenditure to be In (ne with 2013

USS

25 million

SAVING




Mine planning

Key to the improvements made over the year were the
decisions we took regarding mune planning at each of the
assets We have reviewed each of our life of mine plans in
light of a reduced reserve price of US$1 300 per ounce and
re-designed the plans to ensure that each of the mines 1s
able to generate positive cash flows

At Buzwag), in July 2013 we re-engineered the life of mine
plan to substantially reduce the amount of waste movement
required and optimise the grade of the mine This resulted
in @ reduction of reserve life, together with a reduction in
carrying value to US$253 million as at 31 December 2013,
but which also dnves a significant improvement in AISC and
has posittoned the mine to deliver positive cash flows for
the next five years

At North Mara during the year we made several changes to
the life of mine plan which will substantially reduce the strtp
ratio, volume of matenal to be moved and ulhmate footprint
of the asset Part of this was the dectsion in October to
defer Gokona Cut 3, which contains around 600 Koz of
North Mara s reserve base, while we finalise a feasibity
study into the alternative of mining out this reserve by
underground methods This deferral, together with our final
reserve calculations, has resulted in a year-end non-cash
post tax impairment of US$96 milion which, together with
the midyear impairment of US$128 million, leaves North
Mara with a carrying value of US$367 million We are
confident that the outcome of the underground study will

be positive and, together with the other changes made, will
ensure strong free cash flow generatign together with an
optimised land footprint to alleviate some of the social
pressures and land access 1ssues expenenced at the mine

At Bulyanhulu, we reviewed the mining methods for the
future Iife of mine plan and believe that greater efficiencies
and value will be generated by moving o a much higher
proportion of mechanised mining  Specifically, this involves
changing the predominant stoping method from “cut and fill”
to “long-hole™ This change, together with the revised gold
pnce assumptions, has resulted In a reduction In reserve
ounces and overall grade whilst improving both the cost and
the safety profile of the mine Notwithstanding the reduction
In reserve base, Bulyanhulu remains a long-iife, highgrade
asset, as demonstrated by recently released exploration
results, and we are confident it will deliver an increasing
production profile at lower costs The pnonty at Bulyanhulu
15 to turn what 1s undoubtedly a worldclass deposit into a
truly world-class rmine The carrmng value of the asset
remains at US$1 1 billion

TN

-

Re-designed the plans to ensure
that each of the mines are able to
generate positive cash flows

1403 JIDALVHIS

Transfer of Tulawaka

We took the decision to close the Tulawaka mine in early
2013 and as part of this process we commenced
discussions with STAMICO, the Tanzaman State Mining
Corporation, regarding the uttimate use of the site In
Novernber, we reached agreement wath STAMICO whereby 1t
would acquire Tulawaka and certain exploration licences
surrounding the mine for consideration of US$4 5 million
and the grant of a 2% net smelter royalty on future
production in excess ef 500,000 ounces, capped at
US$500,000 In addition, as part of the terms of sale,
STAMICQ has agreed to assume the remaining closure fund
and all remaining past and future closure and rehabilitation
habilies for Tulawaka The transaction completed in
February 2014 resulting n a one-off cash payment of
US$11 6 million by ABG to STAMICO, this being equal to the
amount of the remaining closure fund, less the transaction
consideration payable

Responsible mining

Maintaiming our social licence to operate remains critical to
the bustness, and we made good progress on this in 2013
At North Mara the impact of the infrastructure projects for
the provision of clean water, medical care, schools and
roads are being felt across the communities and our
positive iImpact 1s being recognised both locally and
natwonally The ABG Maendeleo Fund continues to support
projects around each of our mines and has been especially
active 1n 2013 tn providing support to more than 40 key
projects Overall we made an investment of US$15 5 million
in corporate responsibility projects dunng the year (2012
US$14 4 million) From a safety perspective we achieved
an ABG Group-wide Total Reportable Injury Frequency Rate
(“TRIFR") of O 68 for 2013, an 18% improvement on 2012
Additronally, 2013 was completed with no employee
fatatittes Whilst both achievements are encouraging, we
are determined to continue to reduce Injuries to zero and
ensure each of our employees goes home safe and healthy
every day
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

SENIOR LEADERSHIP

Enhancing the team:
embedding skills for progress

During 2013 there were a number of changes to the Sentor Leadership Team,
aimed at enhancing operational expertise to drive the business forward

Brad Gordon,

Chief Executive Officer/Chief Operating Officer

| joined as Chief Executive Officer in August and, with my
primary focus to ensure that the mines deliver consistent
and improved operational performance, | decided to take
on direct responsibiiity for cperations in September | have
30 years of expenence In the mimng industry, having held
a number of executive, management and operational roles
within mining companies and have operated in varnous
Junisdictions across the world

Q LOCALISATION

93% We continued to progress our
commitment 1o the localisaiton of our
g;;f;ﬁléss workforce throughout 2013 with
national employment levels amounting
to 93 2% of our operations workforce,
a 2 2% tmprovement on 2012

12 www atricanbarrickgold com

Andrew Wray,

Chief Financtal Officer

Andrew Wray was appointed Chief Financial Officer in
September, having previously been Head of Corporate
Development and Investor Relatons at ABG and been
instrumental in transiioning ABG to a public company
More recently, he led the company-wide Operational Review,
and with his skills and experience he will add significant
value as CFO at what 1s a cntical time for us as we continue
to focus on cost containrnent

Michelle Ash,

Executive General Manager Planning

and Business Improvement

n December, Michelle Ash joined as Executive General
Manager Planning and Business Improvement from BHP
Mitsubishi Michelle wilf utilise her 20 years of expenence
in the minsng and manufacturning sectors to identify and
drive business improvement projects across the Company
She will take direct responsibility for leading the next phase
of the Operational Review and co-ordinating integrated
business planning across alt functions and sites




OUTLOOK

ABG tomorrow:
A leading African gold miner

Outlook

ABG enters 2014 with a single focus — operational delivery
We have a portfolio of high quality assets and our plan is to
deliver a continued and sustainable reduction in costs
together with production growth Our balance sheet remains
strong and we wiill continue to take the steps required to
ensure we are able to deliver free cash flow from the
operations, which ¢an then be appropnately applied between
exploration, capital projects and returns to shareholders

For 2014 we expect to see increased produchon of between
650,000 and 690,000 ounces of gold At the mine level,
our expectation 1s for increased preducton at Bulyanhulu
guarter on guarter as we move through the year due o
increased throughput and grade, together with the
additional ounces from the Bulyanhulu CIL Expansion in the
second half of the year At Buzwagl, production will also
ingrease due to improved grades as a result of the mine
planning changes North Mara will see higher throughput,
although with the planned head grade returning to levels
close to the reserve grade of the mine, we expect to see a
corresponding reduction in production

As a result of the Operational Review and further ongoing
improvements to the business, we are targeting further
reductions to our unit costs and we estimate tha cash cost
per ounce for 2014, including royalties, will be between
US$740 US$720 per ounce sold, a reduction of up to
10% on 2013

The single focus for 2014 1s
operational delivery.

For 2014 we have further reduced the sustaining capital
budget with sustaiming capital expected to be down by up to
20% on 2013 at US$90-US$100 millon and capital
development inclusive of deferred stripping down by up to
47% to US$90-US$100 milion The reduction in capital
expendrture, together with reduced corporate overheads,
means that we estimate AISC per ounce for the year will be
between US$1,100-U5%$1,175 per ounce sold, a reduction
of up to 19% on 2013

o

OUR KEY OBJECTIVES FOR 2014

Achteving Group production of between 650,000-690,000 ounces

Reducing total cash costs, including royalties, to between
U5$740-US$790 per ounce sold

Reducing AISC to between US$1,100-US$1,175 per ounce sold
Reducing total caprtal expenditure to US$230-US$250 mitlion,
comprising US$90-US$100 million of sustaining capital including
land, US$90-US $100 million of capital development inclusive of
deferred stnpping and US$50 million of expansion capital

Reducing total inventory levels

Delivening on and expanding the stated objectives and targets of
the Operational Review

Commissioning the Bulyanhulu CIL Expansion

Completing posHive feasibility studies at Gokona Underground
and Bulyanhulu Upper East

Optimising Group throughput and recovernes

Further improving our safety record

Continuing the development of our sustainabibity practices
Attracting and retaiming the best people In Africa

Expansionary capital will consist of US$50 million of
remaining spend to complete construction of the Bulyanhulu
CIL Expansion project, which will all be wncurred in the first
half of 2014 In addition, as noted above, the completion of
the transfer of Tulawaka to STAMICO in Q1 2014 has
resulted i an up-front one-off payment of US$11 6 million

Finally, | would like to thank all of my colleagues for their
commitment, enthusiasm and hard work throughout what
has been a year of considerable change | am excited by
what | have seen at ABG and believe we have a great
opportunity to make this company a leader in Africa | would
also like to thank our Board for ther support, guidance and
commitment through the year and | am very much looking
forward to 2014 and beyond

-

Brad Gordon,
Chief Executive Officer

Annual Report ang Accounts 2013
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Measuring performance:

to assess progress

We assess our performance against the following key performance indicators,

each of which 1s inked to our long-term strategy

OPTIMISING

our operating efficiencies to leverage the highest retums from our existing assets

Performance

EBITDA for the year was

LIS$240 milion, a 29% decrease
on 2012 mainly as a result of the
drop In the gald price dnving
lower revenue

Cash cost per ounce sold for the

year was US$827 per ounce, a

12% reduction on 2012 as a result of
achieving cost savings In our operating
environment, notably as a result of the
Operational Review

Cash cost per tonne milled for the
year was US$ET per tonne mitled a
9% reduction on 2012, as a result of
achieving cast savings In our aperating
environment, notably as a result of the
Operational Review

AISC for the year was US$1 362 per
ounce sold a decrease of 14% on
2012, as a result of achieving cost
Savings In our operating enviranment
notably as a result of the Operational
Rewview, combined with lower corporate
administration costs and sustaining
capital expenditure

KPI and relevance to strategy

EBITDA 15 the net profit or loss for the penod excluding income tax expense
finance expense finance income, depreciatien and amortisation, and impairmeny
charges of goodwill and other long-lived assets [t1s a valuable indicator of our
ablity to generate operating cash flow to fund working capital and capital
expenditures and to serwce debt obligations

Cash cost per punce sold IS calcutated by dividing the aggregate of cash costs by
gold ounces sold 1t IS one of the key indicators that we use to monitor and
manage those factors that impact produchion costs on a menthly basis

EXPANDING

Cash cost per tonne millled s calculated by dviding the aggregate of cash costs by
ore tonnes milled We use it to track cash costs against productivity

AlHn sustalning cost {“AISC") per ounce sold Is calculated by taking the
aggregate of cash costs and adding corporate administration costs, reclamation
and remediation costs for operating mines, cerporate social responsibility

expenses mine expleration and study costs capitalised stnpping and underground
development costs and sustaining capital expendrture This 1s then dmaded by the
total ounces scid It is intended to provide additicnal information on the total
sustaining cost for each ounce sold in order to provide addiional clanty as to the
full cost of production

through near mine expansion and development of advanced-stage projects

Performance

Adjusted net earmings per share was
US25 9 cents per share down from
US26 5 cents in 2012 largely due to
the impact of the decline in gold pnce
on our revenues

Performance

Attnbutable gold production was
641 931 ounces, 3% higher than
2012 as a result of the range of
improvements made within

our operations

KPI and relevance to strategy

Adjusted net earnings per share S calculated by dmding adjusted net eamuings
by the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in 1ssue It serves as an
indicator of our profitablity and 1s often used 1o determine share price and value

Attributable gold production 15 the aggregate of the Group s equrty Interest n gold
ounces produced from our mines and one of the key measures used to track
progress made 1n increasing our production levels

1 EBITDA cash cost per ounce sald cash cost per tonne milled, alln sustaining cost per ounce sold, adusted net earnings per share and operating cash fiow per
share are norFRS financial performance measures with no standard meaning under IFRS Refer to non-IFRS measures provided as part of the glossary for the full

definition of each measure
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GROWING

through organic greenfleld exploration and acquisitions In Africa

Performance

Total shareholder return in 2013 was
57 6%, pnmanty due {0 the decrease
in ABG s share pnice as a result of the
uming of the end of a previous Offer
Peniod and the fall In the gold pnce

Operating ¢ash flow per share was
US45 6 cents per share, down from
US65 5 cents largely due to the
impact of the decline \n gold price
£ OUr revenues

Total reserves and resources for the year amounted to 29 millien cunces of gold
a decrease on 2012 (32 milkon ounces) as a result of revisions to the gold pnce
used to calculate reserves together with revised mune plans focused on

cash flow generation

KPI and relevance to strategy

Operating cash flow per share 15 the cash generated from or utilised n, operating
activities, divided by the weighted average of the number of Ordinary Shares in
1ssue It helps to measure our ability to generate cash from our business

Total shareholder return 1s the retum on investment a shareholder receives over
a specified ime frame based on ocur share prce appreciation/depreciation and
dividends receved it s used to compare our performance aganst industry peers

RESPONSIBLE MINING

Total reserves and resources 1S calculated as the total of proven and probable
reserves plus measured, indicated and inferred resources expressed in contained
ounces It measures our ability to discaver and develop new ore bodies and to
replace and extend the life of our operating mines

maintaining our licence to operate through acting responsibly in relation to our people,
the environment and the communities In which we operate Is central to achleving our abjectives

Performance

Total commurity investment was
US$15 5 million for the year an
increase on 2012 (US$14 4 mithoen)
as a result of continued progression of
our corporate responsibility inuatives

TRIFR was O 68 for the year an 18%
improvement on 2012 as a result of
continued enhancements 10 our health
and safety practices

Total CO, emissions for 2013 amounted
to 369 319 tonnes an 8 6% increase
on 2012 {340,138 €0O,) The increase
1S due 10 a change in TANESCO 5
sources used for energy generation and
a shightly higher consumption due to

CO, emassions for the year was

{0 046 per tonne of ore milled

this being a marginal Increase on
2012 (0 044} Further information as
regands our GHG emissions reporting
for 2013 1s prowded on page 84

the increase tn tonnes milled Further
information as regards our GHG
ermssons reporung for 201315
prowided on page B4

KPI and relevance to strategy

Total community investment represents the amount of money that we Invest
across our corporate social responsibility programmes inchuding mvestments
made under varous mine site and regional initiatives specific projects sponsored
by the ABG Maendeleo Fund and investments under Village Benefit Implementation
Agreements/Village Benefit Agreements (“VBIAs/VBAs™) It helps us to track
progress made as regards our objective to support socio-economic developenent in
our operating emronment

Total reportable Infury frequency rate (TRIFR) tracks all employee and contractor
reported workplace injunes that require medical treatment Including lost bme and

restncted duty We use it to measure progress towards our heatth and safety goal
of ensuring that every employee goes home safe and healthy every day It is
calculated as total reportable imjunes multuphed by 200 000 then dmided by total
number of hours worked

GHG emlssions are measured on the basis of tatal tonnes of CO, produced by our
operabions as a way of assessing our carbon foatprint

GHG emisslons ratlo ts montored on the basis of CO, produced per tonne of ore
milled, this being an appropnate ratio for use when assessing CO, resutung from
our mining actmties

2 Production reflects equrty ounces which exclude 30% of Tulawaka s producuon base
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OPERATING REVIEW

Bulyanhulu

A high-grade underground mine with a mine life in excess of 25 years

During the year, we reviewed the mining methods for
the future hife of mine plan, and as a result are moving
to a much higher proportion of mechanised mining In
order to realise greater efficlencies and value.
Specifically, we are changing the predominant stoping
method from “cut and fill* to “long-hole” This change,
together with the revised gold price assumptions, has
resulted in a reduction in reserve ounces and overall
grade whilst improving both the cost and safety profile
of the mine

Priorities for 2014
Accelerate development and improve access to higher-
grade stopes

Reduce amount of equipment in operation in order to
Improve productivity

Commussion CIL Expansion to add low-cost production

Highlights
0
31% 1.02 15.6
[ ] u
CONTRIBUTION TO TRIFR TOTAL RESERVES
GROUP QUNCES AND RESOURCES
IN 2013 (Moz}
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Key mine statistics

Year ended 31 December

2013 2012
Underground ore tonnes hoisted (Kt) 872 959
Qre rilled (K1) 871 1,012
Head grade (g/t) 78 80
Mill recovery (%) 90 9% 90 6%
CQunces produced (0z) 198,286 236,183
Ounces sold (Oz) 195,304 235,410
AISC per ounce sold {(US$/0z) 1,344 1,245
Cash cost per ounce sold (US$/0z) 890 803
Cash cost per tonne milled {US$/1) 200 187
Copper production (Kibs) '4,855 6102
Copper sold (Klbs) 4,508 5895
Breakdown of Capital expenditure
-~ Sustaining capttal (US$ 000) 25,193 35,193
- Capitalised development (US$ 000) 45,428 45,605
- Expansignary capital (US$ 000} 114,912 36,814
185,533 117,612
-~ Norrcash reclamation asset adjustments {16,044) (43)
Capital expenditure {US$'000) 175,489 117,569

The statistical informatton presented includes non-IFRS measures

An explanauon of norHFRS measures 15 included as part of the glossary




Operating performance

Gold production for the year of 198,286 ounces at
Bulyanhulu was 16% lower than that of the prior year
(2012 236,183 ounces), mainly due to lower tonnes
mined as a result of reduced equipment availabtity and
staff shortages in the first half of the year This was further
impacted by a 3% decrease n grade due to paste fill delays
in H1 2013, impacting on the availability of high grade
stopes This has since been addressed and paste filling
has recovered to expected levels Gold ounces sold for the
year of 195,304 ounces were 17% below that of the pnor
year (2012 235 410 ounces sold), primarnly due to the
lower production base

Copper production of 4 9 mullion pounds for the year was
20% lower than the pnor year (2012 & 1 million pounds)
due to the reduced throughput and grade profile

Cash cost per ounce sold for the year of US$890 was 11%
higher than the prior year (2012 US$803 per ounce) Cash
costs were negatively impacted by lower production levels
and the resultant lower co-product revenue This was
partially offset by lower maintenance, consumable usage
and labour costs and lower sales-related costs due to lower
sales volumes and a lower realised gold price Cash costs
per tonne milled for the year increased to US$200 (US$187
In 2012) as a result of the lower throughput and costs
outlined above

AISC per ounce sold for the year of US$1,344 was 8%
higher than the prior year (2012 US$1,245 per ounce)
This was driven by the higher cash cost base and
Increased capital expenditures per ounce as a result of
reduced production, which more than offset the 28%
reduction In sustaining capital expenditure

Capital expenditure for the year, excluding reclamation
asset adjustments, of US$185 5 million was 58% higher
than the pnor year (2012 U5%$117 & million), mainly

driven by the expansionary capital spend on the CiL
Expansion project (US$104 9 million), investment in
equipment (US$5 2 mellion) and capitalised evaluation
costs (US$2 3 million) refating to the Upper East project
Key capital expenditure for the year also included
capitalised underground development (US$45 4 million),
miming aquipmeant related to cntical underground equipment
(US$10 2 million) and investments In tailings sterage
facilities and infrastructure (US$10 7 million) Total capital
expenditure for the year of US$175 5 mullion was positively
impacted by a negative non-cash reclamation adjustment
of US$10 O million, due to the increase in risk-free

Interest rates

The CIL Expansion project, which 1S expected to add
approximately 40,000 ounces of gold per annum for the
first six years of operation, remains on track for completion
at the end of Q1 2014 with commissioning continuing
through Q2 2014 There 15 approximately US$50 million

of remaning capital expenditure to be incurred in 2014

and approximatety US$15 million of payments to be made
in H1 2014, which were accrued dunng the year In addition,
the revised feasibity study for the Upper East Zone will

be completed shortly and presented to the Beard

Following the changes to the life of mine plan as a resul of
moving to a kigher proportion of mechanised mining and a
revised gold price assumption, the undergraund reserve
base at Bulyanhulu now stands at 9 1 million ounces at a
grade of 9 5 grams per tonne, with another O 3 million
ounces at a grade of 1 23 grams per tonne attnbutable to
surface tailings

DEVELOPING OCCUPATIONAL
HEALTH AND SAFETY

To date, the pool of occupational health and safety
(“OHS") specialists in Tanzamia has been imited as a
result of a lack of relevant postgraduate courses
Given the importance of OHS to ABG, in 2010 we
entered into a memorandum of understanding with
the Muhimbili University College of Health Sciences,
Dar es Salaam, to develop an ABG-sponsored OHS
programme  ABG subsequently sponsored two doctors
from government hospitals under this programme who
were provided with the opportunity to study
occupational medicine at the University of Cape Town
The first graduate completed the programme n 2013
The intention 1s for all graduates of this programme to
take therr expertise back to Tanzama and establish an
occupational medicine department at the Muhimbili
University College of Health Sciences, which would be
the first ef its kind in Tanzaniz This will ensure that, in
the long term, expertise critical to ABG's operating
environment 1s cultivated within Tanzania and the pool
of OHS specialists increases accordingly

Eer further anformation on our CSR initiatives see
the Corporate responsibility sectron of this report
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OPERATING REVIEW CONTINUED

Buzwagi

A single open pit bulk tonnage operation with a mine life of 5 years

During the year we re-engineered the life of mine plan Key mine statistics Year ended 31 December
to substantally reduce the amount of waste movement 2013 20121
required and optimise the grade of the mine Whilst this  Tonnes mined (Kt) 32,177 28,563
resulted In a reduction of reserve life and a reductlon In Ore tonnes mined (Kt) 3,753 4,993
Buzwagi's carrying value, the changes drive a significant g nlted (K1) 4,400 3,715
Improvement in AISC and have positioned the mine to Head grade (g/1) 15 16
deliver positive cash flows for the next five years Mill recovery (%) 88 9% 87 3%
Priorities for 2014 Ounces produced {0z) 181984 165,770
Qptimise crusher and mill performance 1o exceed Ounces sold (0z) 187,348 155,322
nameplate capacity AISC per ounce sold (US$/02) 1,506 1,798
Reduce levels of inventory and improve inventory Cash cost per ounce sold (US$/OZ) 945 1.066
plannlng pProcesses '
Cash cost per tonne milled (US$/t) 40 45
Improve power mix of the mine to continue to reduce
rehance on diesel generated power Copper production (Kibs) 7115 6,773
Copper sold {KIbs) 7,062 5,628
Highlights Breakdown of Capital expenditure
— Sustamning caprtal (US$°000) 31,589 56,441
28% 0 5 7 3 4 - Capitalised development (US$'000) 60,136 39 455
» » — Expansionary capital {US$°000) - 62
CONTRIBUTION TO TRIFR TOTAL RESERVES
GROUP OUNCES AND RESOURCES 91,725 95,958
IN 2013 (Moz) — Noncash reclamation asset adjustments (9,230) 10,494
Capitat expenditure (US$'000) 82,495 106,452
1 Restated for the impact of capitalised strnpping due to the adoption
of IFRIC 20

The statistical information presented includes nonIFRS measures
An explanation of norHFRS measures 1s included as part of the glossary
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Operating performance

Gold production for the year of 181 984 ounces was 10%
higher than the pnior year (2012 165 770 ounces) dnven
by increased throughput as a result of iImproved plant
reliability as 1t operated at nameplate capacity dunng 2013
Gold sold for the year amounted to 187,348 ounces 21%
above that of the pnor year (2012 155 322 ounces sold)
due to the increased production base and the sale of
concentrate on hand from Q4 2012

Copper production for the year of 7 1 milhon pounds was
5% higher than the pnor year (2012 6 7 million pounds),
dnven by the increased throughput, shightly offset by lower
copper grades

Cash cost per ounce sold for the year of US$945 was 11%
lower than the pror year (2012 US$$1,066 per ounce sold)
Cash costs were positively impacted by increased
production levels and resultant co-product revenue, lower
labour costs, due to a significant reduction in the
International workforce, and increased capitalised stripping
costs in H1 2013 This was partially offset by higher
consumables, energy and fuel costs and contracted
sarvices due to increased mining activity and throughput in
H1 2013 and higher cost overheads as a result of
warehouse-related costs dnven by inventory drawdown
Cash cost per tonne milled decreased to US$40 in 2013
(2012 US$45) as a result of the factors outhned above

AISC per ounce sold for the year of US$1 506 was 16%
lower than the prior year (2012 US$1,798 per ounce) This
was driven by the lower cash cost base, lower sustaining
capital expenditure and lower corporate administration
costs, partly offset by higher captalised development costs

Capital expenditure for the year, before reclamation asset
adjustments, of US$91 7 million was 4% lower than the
prior year (2012 US$95 9 mullon), with increased
capitatised stnpping in H1 2013 more than offset by lower
sustaming capital expenditure over the year The significant
change to the life of mine plan reduced the levels of waste
movement and therefore capitalised stnpping in the second
half of the year Key capital expenditure for the year
included capitalised stnpping costs (US$60 1 million),
Investments in talings storage facilities and infrastructure
{US$15 7 million) and mining equipment driven by
component change outs (US$13 9 mitlion) Total capital
expenditure for the year of US$82 5 million was positively
impacted by a negative hon-cash reclamation adjustment of
US$9 2 millton, due to the increase in nsk free interest
rates combined with a reduction In closure costs estimates

Following the changes to the Iife of mine ptan made in July
2013 at Buzwag the reserve base of the asset now stands
at 1 1 million ounces at a grade of 1 45 grams per tonne

ENHANCING CYANIDE
MANAGEMENT ACCREDITATION

Geo-metallurgical analysis of the ore body at Buzwag)
revealed that high concentrations of cyanide would be
required dunng the gold extraction process, especially
when associated high grade copper ore was
processed This would place additional demands on
the specific equipment within the process plant which
1s designed to destroy the ¢cyanide contained In
process plant talings pnor to those tallings being
placed tn a contained storage facility

In 2011, ABG authorised a number of upgrades to the
plant which were subsequently implemented durnng
2012 and 2013 The plant upgrades were successfully
commussioned during the latter half of 2013 and,
following commissioning, Buzwagi has receved partial
certification under the Internatichal Cyanide Code, for
the first time This demonstrates the improved
treatment of cyanide in the process plant Furthermore,
in 2014 managemeant intend to seek full certification
under the Intermational Cyanide Code for Buzwag)

This would bnng Buzwag) (nto line with North Mara
which achieved re-certification dunng 2043 following a
plant upgrade in 2012 and Bulyanhulu which 1s fully
certified under the code

For further information on our CSR initiatives see
the Corporate responstbility section of this report
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QPERATING REVIEW CONTINUED

North Mara

A high-grade open pit operation, with underground potential

and a mine life of 10 years

During the year we made several changes to the Iife of
mine plan to reduce the strip ratio, volume of material to
be moved and ultimate footprint of the asset In addrtion,
we are reviewing the optlon of mining a proportion of the
reserve base through an underground operation, which will
drive future cash flow generation and allevlate sccial
pressures and land access issues experienced at the mine

Priorities for 2014
Complete study into mining Gokona Cut 3 via an
underground operation

Reduce number of high-cost international employees on site

Improve maintenance practices to reduce costs and improve
avallablities

Highlights

40% 0.71 4.9

CONTRIBUTION TO TOTAL RESERVES
GROUP OUNCES AND RESOURCES
IN 2013 {Moz)
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Key mine statlstics

Year ended 31 December

2013 20122
Tonnes mined {Kt) 21,027 18,391
Ore tonnes mined (Kt) 2,601 1,711
Ore milted (Kt) 2,643 2,786
Head grade {g/1) 36 25
Milt recovery (%) 86 8% 85 4%
Ounces produced (0z) 256,732 193,231
Ounces sold (0z) 260,945 186,600
AISC per ounce soid (US$/02) 1,227 1,693
Cash cost per ounce sold {U$$/0z2) 659 953
Cash cost per tonne mitled (US$/1t) 65 64
Breakdown of Capital expenditure
- Sustamning capital (US$'000) 38,386 47,759
- Capitalised development (US$ 000) 65,594 28,139
- Expansionary capital {US$ 000) 949 10,091
104,929 85,989
- Noncash reclamation asset adjustments (11,271} 7.540
Caprtal expenditure (US$ 000) 93,658 93,529

1 Restated for the impact of capitalised stnpping due to the adoption

of IFRIC 20

The statistical infermation presented includes non-IFRS measures

An exptanation of nonIFRS measures is included as part of the glassary




Operating performance

Gold production for the year of 256,732 ounces was 33%
higher than that of the prior year (2012 193,231 ounces)
Head grade and mill recovery were positively impacted by an
increase (n ore tonnes mined and grade predominantly
driven by rmining from the Gokona pit due to a change in the
Iife of mine plan

Gold ounces sold for the full year of 260,945 ounces were
2% higher than production due to the sale of ounces on
hand from Q4 2012, and 40% higher than that of the prior
year (2012 186,600 ounces sold), due 1o the increased
production base

Cash cost per ounce sold for the year of US$659 was 31%
lower than the pnor year (2012 US$953 per ounce) Cash
costs were positively impacted by increased proguction
levels and increased capitalised stnpping costs This was
partially offset by higher contracted services and
maintenance costs due to planned equipment and plant
maintenance Cash costs per tonne milled for the year of
US$65 were in ne with the prior year (2012 US$64)

AISC per ounce sold for the year of US$1 227 was 28%
lower than the prior year (2012 US$1,693 per ounce) due
10 the reasons outined above, combined with a reduction In
corporate administration costs and capital expenditure per
ounce due to the increased production base

Capital expenditure for the year before reclamation asset
adjustments, of US$104 9@ milllon was 22% higher than the
prior year {2012 US$86 0 milhon), due to increased
capitalised development offset by lower sustaining capital
expenditure and lower expansionary expenditure (2012
included capitalised dnlling costs related to the Gokona and
Nyabirama underground projects) The deferral of Cut 3 at
Gokona in Q4 2013 led to a reduction in tornes moved and
an associated regduction in capitahsed development for the
fourth quarter Key capital expenditure for the year Included
capitalised stnpping costs (US$65 6 million), Investments in
tailings and infrastructure (US$14 7 million) and investment
In mining equipment driven by compenent change outs
(US$13 6 million) Total capital expenditure for the year of
US$93 7 million was positively impacted by a negative
non-cash reclamation adjustment of US$11 3 mullion, due

to the increase In nsk-{ree interest rates

Durning the year we also completed all the conditions
required for the lifung of the Environmental Protection Order
at North Mara and have received a formal discharge permit
from the Lake Victona Water Board The removal of the EPO
allows ABG to discharge clean water once it has been
treated in the water treatment plant at the mine

Following the changes to the life of mine plan made n July
2013 at North Mara, the reserve base of the asset now
stands at 2 2 million ounces at a grade of 3 17 grams
per tonne

Q, NYAKEGEMA YOUTH GROUP

A key focus of ABG's community awareness campaigns
is to enhance awareness of the inherent dangers that
llegal mining can pose to Indmduals and communities,
partcutarly in the Mara region In connection with this,
In May 2013 a group of youths within the communities
surrounding the North Mara mine formed the
Nyakegema Youth Group This group comprised of
individuals from all seven local villages around the
mine, seeks to encourage youths to pursue alternative
livelihoods to illegal mining, such as farming (livestock,
darry, poultry, crops), bee keeping street cleaning, and
housing construction ABG 1s supportive of this group
and has helped it form a co-operative in order to
progress Its socral and economic aspirations Formal
rufes apply to membership of the co-operative, one of
which 15 the requirement to make personal
commitments to stop illegal mining and to pursue
alternative livelthoods To date, the co-operative has
over 700 members and has offices in each of the
seven local villages with the objectives of Increasing
membership and initatives ABG 1s assisting the
co-operative n 1ts review of opportunities to expand
existing alternative livehhood projects and to develop
relationships with the local chamber of commerce in
order to increase 1ts standing within the region from a
soclal and trading perspective

For further informatton on our CSR initiatives see

the Corporate responsibility section of this report

In addition, developments as regards our

security environment are provided as part of the
Corporate responsibility and Risk management reviews
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EXPLORATION REVIEW

Focusing on core projects

Overall, 2013 was a successful year of execution and delivery across our
greenfield and brownfield exploration projects

Overview of 2013 actlvitles

Durnng the year, US$16 S milhon of
exploration activities were expensed, with a
further US$4 0 million relating to exploration
and evaluation activities being capitalised

Key highlights include the successful dnlling
results from brownfield exploration projects at
Bulyanhulu from both surface and underground
drilling and from greenfield exploration
programmes at our joint venture properties

in western Kenya

At the Bulyanhulu mine, we commenced surface and
underground brownfield exploration drilhng programmes
during the year Surface drilling is targeting resource
extensions of the Bulyanhulu system between 400 metres
and 1,200 metres west of the mine, white underground
drilling 1s targeting resource expansion of the East Zone on
the Reef 2 system By year end the dniling programmes on
the targets at Bulyanhulu had already delivered positive
results from both surface and underground dnll holes

The focus for 2014 will be to complete the surface and
underground dnit programmes according to plan and budget
by Q3 2014 and assess the success of the programimes
and any requirement for further drilling

In Kenya, throughout the year we have continued extensive
regional mapping, soll sampling and reconnaissance Aircore
geochemical dnlling across our two joint venture projects,
the Advance Gold JV Properties and the West Kenya JV
Properties These programmes will continue into 2014
and seek 10 identfy and advance the best targets within
our large land package, 5o as to be positioned to
commence drill testing of the best generated targets in
2015 Soil sampling to date has delineated and expanded
more than 50 existing and new kilometre-scale gold-n-soil
anomales On the Advance Gold JV Properties we have
completed drilling of Aircore holes with over 20% of the
holes assayed to date returning anomalous gold Iintercepts
of greater than O 1g/t gold

Additionally, in recognition of the increasing matunty of
some of our exploration properties, reduced exploration
budgets, and regulatory requirements, we have embarked
on a process of rationalising our exploration portfolio in
both Tanzania and Kenya During the year, we reduced the
land holdings we manage in Tanzania from 2,534km? to
1,808km?, and handed over management of several joint
ventures to our partners In Kenya, we expect to reduce our
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current land hotding on completion of the current regional
soll sampling programmes We believe that through this
process we will continue to focus on the best projects
within our portfolio, white at the same time freeing up
exploration funds to diversify our portfolio outside our
current operating areas

(), COMMUNITY RELATIONS IN KENYA

ABG has partnered with Little Sports Organisation
(“LSO"), a sport for development NGO, whose
programmes aim to promote social and hfe-skills
development in primary school chifdren through sport
As well as promoting positive behavioural change in
children and thus enriching the child, the family and the
community, the programmes also result in employment
of local youths as sports coaches

Through the ABG Maendeleo Fund, ABG committed
US%75,000 to LSO in 2013 The programme has been
rolled out across s primary schools in the Kakamega
area, and 1s attended by over 4,000 children weekly
20 local youths are currently employed as

community coaches

By partnenng with LSO, ABG has been able to achieve
continuous engagement on a weekly basis, reaching all
levels of the community It provides ABG with a direct
two-way communication platform into the community,
establishing the foundations for a strong long-term
relationship The programme has resulted in an
increased awareness and posttive attitude toward ABG
in the community, and a greater understanding that ABG
IS curently in the exploration stage of the mining cycle
Furthermore, the project enhanced schoot attendance
rates for pupiis




Brownfleld exploration

Near-mme brownfield exploration programmes conducted
dunng the year successfully identified extensions to known
resources These programmes were entirely focused on the
Bulyanhulu cre body, where initial surface and underground
diamond core drilling has returned encouraging results from
step-out resource drilling on both the Reef 1 and Reef 2
mineralised systems

In the last quarter we commenced dnlling on two of three
planned deep diamond core holes west of the Bulyanhulu
mine, targeting the extension of Reef 1 gold mineralisation
The ongoing programme 1S comprised of approximately
18,000 metres of diamond core from three parent holes
with up to 18 daughter holes utiising directional wedging
and navigational drilling The holes are predominantly
testing the extensions of the Reef 1 structure from

400 metres to 1,200 metres west of the current
Bulyanhulu resource where hestoric drilhng has shown
indications of further gold mineralisation The dnllingis
targeting a potential new economic zone and plunge
extensions of the Main Zone of Reef 1 at depths of
between 1,000 metres and 2,500 metres vertical

The East Deeps diamond core dnlling programme 1s
targeting down dip mineralisation of the Bulyanhulue Reef 2
system which 1s outside the current resource model The
programme 1 being drilled from several underground dnll
platforms and 1s aimed at adding high grade gold resources
on the East Zone Drilling commenced in the third quarter
with positive results returned from two intersections from
the initial step out holes

Visit our websate to find more detail on all our
exploration projects wwwalnicanbarrickgold com

OUR EXPLORATION PORTFOLIO

Greenfleld exploration

Throughout the year, we have continued our focus on
identifying new greenfield exploration opportunities 1o
complement our existing exploration portfolio Collectively,
the greenfield exploration programmes we have undertaken
have further strengthened our portfolio of exploration
prajects, with the potential for new discovenes in the short
to medium term At the same time, we continue to look
throughout Afnica for opportunities to further enhance and
diversify our exploration portfolio through low-cost joint
ventures or option agreements

In Tanzania, during the year, we continued to intersect wide
zones of low grade gold mineralisation, including several
zones of higher grade mineralisation {>2g/t Au) at the
Ochuna prospect (formerly the Dett prospect) approximately
45 kilometres west of the North Mara mine Scout drilling
at the Tagota prospect approximately 30 kilometres
northwest of the North Mara mine also intersected
signifigant gold anomalism

We have made good progress on our Kenyan joint venture
projects (Advance Gold JV and West Kenya JV} throughout the
year with mere than 50 goldin-soll anomalies generated from
an extensive soil sampling progrannme In addrtion, intial
Axrcore dnlling across several goldin-sol anomalies on the
Advance Gold JV properties has returned significant gold
mineralisation, requinng infill and follow-up dnlling Advanced
dntling on several historic prospects intersected mineralisation
but deterrmined they were not of the economic size and grade
targeted by ABG In 2014, we wili continue our focus on
advancing the best early stage prospects and targets on the
Kenyan joint venture properties ready for drill testing
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EXPLORATION REVIEW CONTINUED

CORE GROWTH PROJECTS

NEAR-MINE/BROWNFIELD

Bulvanhulu Deep West Extenslons

Dnlting of three deep surface holes between 400 metres and
1,200 metres west of the Bulyanhulu Reef 1 resource to target
extensions to the Reef 1 system outside the current resource
The dnlling 15 targeting a potential new economic zone and plunge

Bulyanhulu Deep East Extensions

High-grade Reef 2 mmneralisation remains open below the currently
delineated resource Underground drifiing ts targeting depth
extensions and has been successful to date in identifying high-grade
gold mineralisation and widths consistent with Reef 2 We intend to

extensions of the Main Zone of Reef 1 at depths of between

1,000 metres and 2,500 metres vertical

the current resource

progress addrticnal dniling to add resources on Reef 2 to the west of

Progress In 2013

Drilling commenced on two of the parent holes and several

daughter holes by year end

Results to date from holes that have Intersected Reef 1 show
grades and widths consistent with Reef 1 mineralisation in the

current resource area

Commenced underground dniling to test extensions of East Zone

Reef 2 mineralisation

intersected high grade gold and typical Reef 2 widths In
step-out holes completed by year end

Prioritles for 2014

Complete the imibal phase of deep diamond core dnlling

testing extensions to Reef 1

{dentify economic grades and widths amenable to

underground mimmng

Update the geological and resource models

GREENFIELD

West Kenya Joint Ventures

The project 1s an early stage exploration play
in western Kenya Key highlights during the
year include the wdentification of more than
50 gold-in-soil angmalies and the
confirmation of significant gold anomalism

in Arcore dnll holes which were testing

a number of the goldHn soill anomalies We
plan to continue first pass testing of the soll
anomalies In 2014

Complete inthial stepout programmse in 1 2014

Update geological and resource models

Plan additienal underground resource expanston drilling in key

areas for life of mine

Nyanzaga

The Nyanzaga deposit 1s a large undeveloped
gold resource located approxumately 35km
northeast of Bulyanhulu gold mine Regiona!
work during 2013, within 15km of the Nyanzaga
deposit, was focused on explonng for satellite
gold deposits that could improve the overall
economics of Nyanzaga Several new gold and
multelement soill anomalies were identified
dunng the latter part of the year and have been
prientised for initial dnlting dunng 2014

Tagota

At the Tagota project, inihal scout dniling
retumed positive dnll results from dnll holes
that targeted gold mineralisation in basement
rocks beneath a varying thickness of younger
volcanic cover rocks (phonolite) Given the
“blind” nature of this target beneath up to

40 meires of cover rocks, this outcome

15 encouraging and warrants additional

drill testing

Progress In 2013

15,656 sciIl samples collected for gold
and mult-element analysis

325 Aircore holes were drilled to test
gold-in-so1l anomalies across the
Kakamega Dome area

Extensive mapping and prospecting

across the joint venture properties to
validate targets

Commenced a review of the Nyanzaga
resource with the aim of re-modelling more

selective higher-grade domains n the deposit

Identified several new gold and mult-element
soil anomalies in satellite areas within 15km
of the Nyanzaga deposit

Successfully negptiated land access
agreements to dnll throughout the Tagota
and Keryamanon areas

Ten reverse circulation and diamond core
holes were completed across structural
targets as interpreted from

regional geophysics

Gold rmineralisation was intersected th four
of ten dnll holes in the Tagota Syenite
beneath young cover rocks

Priortties for 2014

Compiete mapping, soil sampling and
Aircore drilling programmes throughout the
Joint venture properties, then rank targets
for reverse circulation and diamond core
drill testing
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Update the resource mode! for Nyanzaga
and review development options

Follow up gold and multi-element soil
anomalies with drill testing

Continue desktop study to review potentral

options to develop the resource in the
current gold price enviranment

Re-interpretation of regional geophysics
and structural targets utiising new
dnll information

Completion of a phased step-out drill
programme to locate broad zones of
high-grade gold mineralisatton amenable
to open pit or underground mining




FINANCIAL REVIEW

Continued focus on cost control

Overview of 2013 financial performance

The positive impact of the Operational Review and the challenging gold
price environment in 2013 are reflected in the ABG Group s financial
results for the year, which are also restated to exclude Tulawaka as it 15
now a discontinued operation Revenue of US$929 O million was 8%
lower than in 2012, dniven by an 18% decrease In the average realised
gold pnce, which more than offset the 11% increase we achieved in
sales volumes Cash cost per ounce sold was 12% lower than in 2012,
with alkin sustaining costs being 14% lower than the prior year, due to
cost savings achieved dunng the year as a result of the implementation
of our Operational Review Nevertheless, as a result of the decline n the
gold price generally, we saw a 29% decrease in EBITDA as a result of the
lower revenue base and other charges along with reductions in our
adjusted net earmings {2013 US$106 3 million), adjusted net eamings
per share (2013 US25 9 cents) and operational cash flow levels

(2013 US$187 1 mikion)

The following review provides a detailed analysis of our consolidated
2013 results and the main factors affecting financtal performance

It should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes on pages 94 to 145, which have
been prepared 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted for use in the European Union (*IFRS") Pnor year
comparative financial information has been restated for the impact of
capitahsed stripping due to the adoption of IFRIC 20, ‘Stripping costs
In the production phase of a surface mune and the classification of
Tulewaka as a discontinued operation Refer to Notes 3 and 4 of the
consolidated financial statements for further details

Andrew Wray,
Chief Financial Officer

Year ended 31 December

2013 2012
Attributable gold production (Oz)* 641,931 626,212
Attnbutable gold sold (Oz) 649,742 609,252
Cash costs per ounce sold (US$/0z)? 827 941
Average realised gold price (US$/0z)2 1,379 1,668
Alkn sustaiming cost (US$/0z)? 1,362 1,585
Revenue (US$'000) 929,004 1,011,738
EBITDA {US$ 000)? 240,407 336,282
Net (loss)/eamings (US$'000) (781,101) 62,780
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (US cents) {190 4) 153
Adjusted net earmings (US$'000)? 106,277 108,793
Adjusted net earnings per share (US cents)? 259 265
Dwidend per share (US cents)® 30 163
Cash generated from operating actvities
{US$°000) 187115 268,733
Operating cash flow per share (US cents)? 456 655

1 Atnbutable preduction and scld cunces reflects equity ounces which excludes
30% of Tulawaka's production and sales base

2 Cash cost per ounce sold cash margin average realised gold pnce, alHn
sustaiming cost EBITDA operating cash flow per share adjusted net earnings
per share and adjusted net earnings are non-lFRS financial performance
measures with no standard meaning under IFRS Refer to nonlFRS measures
pravided as part of the glossary for the definiions of each measure

3 includes final recommended dvidend 1o be paid in 2014
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

MARKET OVERVIEW

Our financial results are impacted by external dnivers in
the form of commodity prices, exchange rates and the
cost of energy Their impact in 2013 and our positioning
gomg into 2014 are set out below

Gold

The market price of gold has a significant impact on ABG's operating
earnings and its ability to generate cash flows Gold price volatility was
elevated dunng 2013 with gold declining from a high of US$1,694

per ounce on 2™ fanuary to a low of US$1,192 per ounce on 28" June
and closing the year at US$1,205 Market gold pnces averaged
US$1,411 per ounce in 2013, a 15% decline from the prior year
(2012 average of US$1,669)
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The price of gold has been influenced by low Interest rates worldwide,
investment demand and the monetary policies impiemented by major
world central banks, in particular the United States Signiticant Exchange
Traded Fung (“ETF") outflows were the key directional driver in 2013 with
circa 28 Moz sold out of ETFs, representing around 30% of annual mine
supply This was In part met by strong physical demand in Asia with
jewellery demand in China contnibuting to one third of the world market
Gold 1s still viewed as a portfolic diversifier by central banks, which now
hold approximately 11% of global bullion reserves

As the US economy improved during 2013, bond yields chmbed, equities
performed well and the dollar apprectated which, together with short-
term speculation on how the US Federal Reserve will adjust its monetary
policy, caused gold prices 1o be extremely volatile dunng 2013 This
culminated in the decision of the US Federal Reserve to taper its bond
purchase programme by US$10 billion per month from January 2014

We continued our policy of no gold hedging durning 2013




Copper

ABG also produces copper as a co-product which 1s recognised as a
part of revenue Copper traded between US$3 01 and US$3 74

per pound in 2013 The average market copper price for 2013 was
US$3 32 compared with US$3 61 per pound in 2012 Key external
dnvers of the copper price include consumption by China, the world's
largest consumer, the US growth outlook existing stock levels and
supply growth, which is expected to peak in 2014

Dunng 2013 we utlised a forward strategy whereby 75% of

our estimated copper production was hedged at an average of

US$3 72 per pound, resufting in a realtsed mark to-market gain of
US%3 3 million for the year Utiising option collar strategles, we have
put in place floor protection on 75% of our expected copper production
for 2014 at an average floor price of US$3 12 per pound and an
average celling price of US$3 41 per pound

Fuel

Brent Crude o1l traded between US$98 and US$119 per barrel

and averaged US$109 per barrel {2012 US$112 per barrel) We
consumed approximately 610,000 barrels of diesel in 2013

(2012 625,000) Diesel fuel 1s refined from crude o and 1s
therefore subject to the same price volatility affecting crude o1l prices
and has a significant impact on our production costs Crude ol has
been impacted by political instabity which has resulted in supply
outages, mast notably in tran and Northern Africa, which was in part
offset by increased US production and OPEC's ability to balance
supply through Saudi Arabia Our overall ol exposure 15 heavily
impacted by gnd power reliability across ail three operations and
mining activity at our open pit mines Durning 2013, we utilised an
option collar strategy to hedge 75% of our estimated dieset
consumption at an average floor pnce of US$89 per barrel and
average capped price of US$109 per barre! th 2014, we have
continued this strategy and put in place protection on approximately
33% of our expected 2014 consumption with an average floor and
capped price of US$88 and US$105 per barrel respectively

Currency exchange rates

A portion of ABG's expenditure 1s incurred in currencies other than
US dollars The exposure relating to other currencies |s approximately
28% of the Company s total expenditure, of which the main contnbuting
currencies are the Tanzantan shilling and the South Afncan rand In
2013, the rand declined significantly against the US dollar as the

US doltar strengthened, domestic factors persisted and investors
shunned nskier rand-denominated assets The Tanzanian shilling
remained relatively unchanged on a year on year basis as the

Bank of Tanzania imposed exchange controls throughout the year

We have put in place floor protection on approximately 75% and 20%
of our expected rand operating expenditures for 2014 and 2015
respectively, with average floors of ZARS9 60 and ZAR10 43 In hght of
potential rand weakness we have average cellings of ZAR11 03 and
ZAR12 80 for 2014 and 2015 respectively Hedges in relation to the
Bulyanhulu CIL Expansion project for 2014 have an average floor
protection of ZAR8 90 and ceiling protection of ZAR9 80 These
hetges are \n place until April 2014

LHOd3Y J1DALVYLS

Financial performance

Discontinued operation - Tulawaka

0On 15 November 2013, ABG announced that 1t had reached an
agreement with STAMICO, the Tanzaruan State Mining Corporation
whereby STAMICO agreed to acquire ABG’s Tulawaka operation and
certain exploration licences surrounding Tulawaka for a consideration
of US$4 5 milhon and the grant of a 2% net smelter royalty on future
production In excess of 500 000 ounces, capped at US$500,000
As part of the agreement, STAMICO has agreed to take ownership
and management of the rehabilitation fund established as part of
the closure plan for the mine, In return for the assumption of all
remaining past and future closure and rehatlitation liabilities for
Tulawaka As part of this arrangement, ABG was required to make a
one-off cash payment to STAMICO, equal to the balance of the
rehabilitation fund less the transaction conskieration on completion
{US%$11 6 million) The transaction completed postyear end in
February 2014 Whilst Tulawaka s 100% owned by ABG, via a
Tanzantan subsidiary, it 15 subject Lo an economic joint venture
arrangement in which ABG holds 70% of the economic interest,
with MDN Inc holding the remaining 30% of the economic interest

in the mune Production at Tulawaka ceased in Q2 2013

The financial results of Tulawaka have been presented as
discontinued operations in the consolidated financial statements
The comparative results In the consolidated income statement have
been presented as If Tulawaka had been discontinued from the start
of the comparative period, effectively exctuding the net result relating
to Tulawaka from individual income statement lines and aggregating
it 1n one hine called “Loss from discontinued operation”™ The assets
and habilities that were sold to STAMICO post penod end have been
presented as held for sale Below Is a reconciliation showing Group
financial performance on a line by line basis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Financlal performance table

Year ended 31 December 2013 Year ended 31 Decermber 2012t

Continuing  Discontinued Conunuing  Oiscontinued

operations operations Total operauons operations Total
Revenue 929,004 13514 942518 1,011,738 75601 1,087,339
Cost of sales {713,806) (30,368) (744,174) {720,036) {(77.823) (797,859)
Gross profit/{loss) 215198 (16,854) 198,344 291702 (2,222) 289 480
Corporate admunistration {32,157) (1,311) {33,468) {47.640) (3.928) (51,568)
Exptoration and evaluation costs {16,927) - (16,927) (26,752) (2,208) {28,960)
Corporate social responsibility expenses {12.237) (3,259 (15,496) (13,051) {1,394) {14,445)
Impairment charges {1,044,310) {16,701) (1,061,011) - {44 536) (44,538)
Other charges (30,424) {19,442) (49,866) (17,071) (600) {17,671}
(Loss)/profit before net finance expense and taxation {920,857) (57.567) (978,424) 187,188 {54,888) 132,300
Finance income 1,670 30 1,700 2,056 46 2,102
Finance expense (9,552) (116} {9,668) (10,079) {226) {10,305)
{Loss)/ profit before taxation (928,739) (57,653) (986,392) 179,165 {55,068) 124,097
Tax credit/(expense) 187,959 - 187,959 {78,693) 6,089 (72,604}
Net {loss)/profit for the year (740,780} (57,653) (798,433) 100,472 (48,979) 51,493

1 Restated for the impact of capitalised stnpping due to the adoption of [FRIC 20 and the classification of Tulawaka as a discontinued operation

The financial performance below is stated for
continuing operations

Revenue for the year of US$929 0 million was 8% lower than the prigr
year (2012 US$1,011 7 million) The decrease in revenue prnimarily
relates to the 18% reducticn in the averaged realised gold price, when
compared to the prior year (2012 average realised gold price per ounce
sold US$1,669), which more than offset the 11% increase achieved in
gold sales for the year The increase in sales ounces was primarily due
to the higher production base and sale of opeming stock on hand from
2012 Included in total revenue was coproduct revenue of US$43 0
million for the year which decreased by 10% from the pnor year (2012
US$48 O million), due to the reduction in the average realised

copper price dunng the year, when compared to the pnor year (2012
WS$3 57 per pound), which In turn resulted from wider market factors

Cost of sales was US$713 B mtllion for the year representing a
decrease of 1% on the prior year (2012 US$720 0 milion)

The table below prowides a breakdown of cost of sales

Year ended 31 December
(US$ 000) 2013 2012
Cost of Sales
Direct mining costs 508,166 521,338
Third party smelting and refining fees 16,790 18 005
Rovalty expense 40,871 41,078
Depreciation and amortisation 147,979 139,615
Total 713,806 720 036

1 Restated for the impact of capitalised stnpping due te the adoptron of IFRIC 20
and the classification of Tulawaka as a discontinued operation
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Corporate administration expenses for the year totalled US$32 2 million
This equated to a 33% decrease from the pnor year (2012 of

US$47 6 million) The decrease 1s predominantly due to the impact

of the Operaticnal Review which led to lower corporate office expenses
and lower share based payment expenses grven ABG's overall lower
share price performance durnng the year

Exploration and evaluation costs for the year were US$16 9 million, a
37% reduction on the prior year (2012 US$26 8 million) The decrease
reflects an overall reduction in exploration spend and a focus on key
projects The key focus areas for the year were exploration programmes
at the West Kenya Joint Venture project (US$4 4 million), dnlling at
North Mara focusing on the Ochuna project (US$2 7 million), drilling

at Bulyanhulu (US$3 O million), Nyanzaga (US$0 8 million) and project
feasibility study costs (US$1 3 million) In addition, exploration and
evaluation costs of US$4 O million have been capitalised in 2013
(2012 US$13 7 million)

Corporate social responsibility expenses were US$15 5 million for the
year, compared to US$14 4 million for the prior year This amount has
been adjusted to reflect corporate social responsibility expenses relating
to Tulawaka (US$3 3 million) which have been included as part of the
amounts forming part of the loss from discontinued operations
Following the adjustment corporate social responsibility expenses for
the year amounted to US$12 2 million compared to US$13 1 million
for the prior year Duning the year we saw Increased investment in site
focused projects specifically related te Village Benefit Implementation
Agreements (“VBIAs") at North Mara and larger contnbutions to general
community projects funded from the ABG Maendeleo Fund Of the total
spend for 2013, US$8 & million was spent on ABG Maendeleo Fund
projects (US$3 6 million 1n 2012) and US$4 3 million was spent on
VBIAs at North Mara (US$3 5 miltion in 2012)




Other charges for the year amounted to US$30 4 million a 78%
Increase on the prior year (2012 US$17 1 milion) The main
contnbutors to the charges were (1) costs relating to the Operational
Review ncluding external services and retrenchment costs of

US$13 3 millien, (n) residual expenses Incurred as a part of the CNG
offer process totalling US$3 2 million the bulk of which were incurred In
H1 2013, (m) disallowed indirect tax claims and other indirect tax related
expenses of US$1 5 million as part of the continued reconciliation
process with the TRA and retrospective legislation changes, (Iv) ABG s
entry into zero-cost collar contracts as part of a programme to protect it
against copper, silver, rand and fuel cost market volatility and, due to the
fact that these do not qualify for hedge accounting, resulting in a
combined mark-to-market revatuation loss of US$7 2 million, mainly due
1o the devaluation of the rand, {v) legal costs of US$3 1 million,

and (v} discounting adjustments of long-term inderect taxes of

US$1 4 mition The impact of the hedge loss above was partially offset
by cost savings on certain rand denominated cost elements due to the
weakening of the rand Included in the loss from disconunued operations
are other charges of US$19 4 mullion refating mainly to non-operational
costs of US$15 1 millien and retrenchment costs of US$3 O mullion,
baoth relating to Tulawaka Refer to Note 11 of the consolidated

financial statemerits

Finance expense for the year of US$9 6 million was 5% lower than the
prior year (2012 US$10 1 million) due to lower volumes of discounted
concentrate shipments The key drivers for finance expense dunng the
year were US$3 1 million (2012 US$3 0 million) relating to the
servicing of the US$150 million undrawn revolving credit facility, and
accretion expenses relating to the discounting of the environmental
rectamation liability (US$4 5 million} Other costs clude bank charges
and interest on finance leases Interest costs relating to the project
financing on the Butyanhulu CIL Expansion project are capitalised to the
cost of the asset due to the facllity being directly attnbutable to the
asset During 2013 US$2 4 million of borrowing costs have been
capitalised to the project

Finance income relates predominantly to interest charged on noncurrent
receivables and tnterest received on money market funds Refer to
Note 11 of the consolidated financial statements for details

Impairment charges as a result of the substantial decrease in the gold
pnce dunng 2013 the gold price used to calculate the carrying value

of our assets as well as the reserves and resources estimations was
reduced to US$1,300 per ounce {2012 US$1,500) In addition,

we also made changes to the mine plans at each of our assets,
resulung in reduced mine lives at both Buzwag) and North Mara This
required us to review each of our Cash Generating Units {*CGUs") for
any impairment triggers and to reassess the operating performance of
each CGU in order to ensure optinused returns and cash flows in the
lower gold pnce emvironment Each of the operating mines and the
exploration business Is classified as a separate CGUs The impairment
review resulted in a post-tax impairment to the long-lived assets at
Buzwagt of US$529 7 miliion and supphies inventory of US$13 O million
{2012 no imparment charge) and at North Mara in a post-tax
impairment 1o goodwill of US$21 O milhon, longlived assets of
US$193 4 million and supplies of US$10 0 million (2012

no rmpairment charge) In addiion, the goodwill and acquired
exploration potential Intangible asset that arose on the acquisition of
Tusker Gold Ltd, and subsequent investment in the asset (Nyanzaga),
have been impaired by US$22 O million and US$24 6 million respectively

On a gross basis, and before taking into account the impact of
deferred tax the total impairment charge for the year amounted to
US$690 5 million at Buzwag), US$307 3 million at North Mara and
US$46 6 million relating to Nyanzaga Refer to Note 8 of the
conscldated financial statements for details

Taxation credit increased to US$188 O midlion for the year, compared
to a charge of US$78 7 million in 2012 The 2013 credit consists
predominantly of deferred tax The Increased tax credit was dniven by
the tax impact of US$238 O million relating to impairment charges as
discussed above This was partially offset by net deferred tax charges
of US$50 O milion The effective tax rate for the year amounted to 20%
compared to 44% In 2012 The decrease IS mainly driven by temporary
differences (including tax losses) of US$84 9 million for which no
deferred income tax assets were recognised, pnmanly relating to
Buzwag), ABG Exploration Ltd and ABG Plc stand-alone

assessed losses
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Net loss from continung operations, as a result of the factors discussed
above, for the year was US$740 B million, against the priar year profit
of US$100 5 millicn Decreased revenue and increased impairment and
other charges as explained above contrnbuted to the vanance This was
offset by lower corporate administration and exploration and evaluation
costs Adjusted earnings for the year, after excluding impairment and
other one-off type charges, amounted to US$106 3 millton, in ine with
the prior year The net loss from discontinued operations for the year
amounted to US$57 7 milhon (US$17 3 million relating to non-
controlling interests), against the pnor year net loss of US$49 0 million
{US$11 3 million relating to non<controling interests) This resulted In a
total net loss for the Group of US$781 1 miliion for the year

{US$62 8 mullion profit In 2012)

Loss per share for the year from continuing operations amounted to
US180 6 cents, a decrease of US205 1 cents from the prior year

(2012 earmings US24 5 cents) The decrease was driven by an
increased net loss with no change in the underiying 1ssued shares
Adjusted net earnings of US25 9 cents per share for the year, after
excluding impairment and other one-off type charges, was 2% lower than
the prior year (2012 US$26 5 cents per share)

Financial position

ABG had year-end cash and cash eguivalents of US$282 4 million
(US$402 3 mithion in 2012) Net cash amounted to US$140 4 million
after deducting the CIL finance facihty The Group's cash and cash
equivalents are with counterparties whom the Group considers to have
an appropnate credit rating Location of credit nsk IS determined by
physical location of the bank branch or counterparty Investments are
held mainly in United States dollars and cash and cash equivatents in
other foreign currencies are mamntained for operationat requirements

In January 2013 we concluded negotiations with a group of commercial
banks (Standard Bank Standard Chartered and ABSA) for the provision
of an export credit backed term loan faciity (“Facility™) for an amount of
US$142 milhlon The Facility has been put in place to fund a substantial
portion of the construction costs of the new Bulyanhulu CIL Expansion
project (*Project™) The Facility 1s cellateralised by the Project, has a term
of seven years and the spread over LIBOR s 250 basis points The
Faclility 1s repayable in equal instalments over the term of the Facility
after a two year repayment holiday penod The interest rate has been
fixed at an effective rate of 3 6% through the use of an interest rate
swap The interest charged on the facility 1s capitalised to the Project
until the Project has been substantially commissioned The full value

of the Facility has been drawn as at year end

The above complements the existing undrawn revolving credit facility of
US$150 milhon which runs until November 2016

Goodwill and intangible assets decreased by US$67 6 million from
December 2012 due to impairment charges relating to Nyanzaga
and North Mara




The net book value of property, plant and equipment decreased

from US$2 O billion at 31 December 2012 to US$1 3 billion at

31 December 2013 The main capital expenditure drivers have been
explained in the cash flow used in the Investing actmties section befow,
and have been offset by depreciation charges of US$141 2 milon and
pre-tax tmpairment charges of US$906 8 mitlion at Buzwag), North Mara
and Tulawaka Refer to Notes 8 and 21 1o the consolidated finangial
statements for detall

Dunng 2013 we saw a buildup in the indirect tax receivable driven by
the abolition of VAT Relief in Q4 2012 in contravention of our Mineral
Development Agreements Following positive discussions an escrow
arrangement for VAT on imports was agreed i Q3 2013 to ensure
guicker and more regular refunds to us We saw the first paymenits
from this account dunng Q4 2013 as well as an increase in the level
of outstanding refunds, which meant that overall refunds to us in the
quarter totalled US$26 7 milhon, which exceeded VAT incurred in the
same perod by US$3 4 million In addition, we are continuing
discussions with respect to implementing a similar mechamism for VAT
on domestic goods This Is a key pnonty for us as are our efforts 1o
recover outstanding amounts owing to ensure that we do not see further
outfiows in 2014 while starting to recover the balance outstanding

At year end, total indirect tax receivables, net of a discount provision
applied to the non-current portion, increased from US$98 8 million at
31 December 2012 to US$159 8 mullion at 31 December 2013 with
current recenvables portion amounting of US$95 O million of the total

The net deferred tax position decreased from a liability of US$172 7
million as at 31 December 2012 to an asset of US$14 9 milion This
was mainly driven by the reduction in deferred tax liabilities as a result
of the impairments at North Mara, Buzwap) and Tusker/Nyanzaga which
decreased the net asset base The tax effect on the tax losses camned
forward s an increase from US$319 5 million as at 31 December 2012
to US$355 8 million Deferred tax assets of US$84 9 million were not
recoghised as at 31 December 2013 of which US$59 4 million relates
to Buzwagh as a result of the change in the life of mine plan which
reduced taxable income

Net assets attnbutable to owners of the parent decreased from

US$2 8 billion in December 2012 to US$1 9 bilion in December 2013
The decrease reflects the current vear 10ss attnbutable to owners of the
parent of US$781 1 million and the payment of the final 2012 and 2013
interim dmdends of US$54 5 million to shareholders dunng 2013

Cash flow generation and capital management
Cash flow - continuing and discontinued operations

Year ended 21 December
{US$ 000) 2013 2012t
Cash flow from operating actmties 187,115 268,733
(386,850) (371,485)

Cash used in Investing activities

Cash provwided by/{used in) inancing activities 82,322 (79,4309}
Decrease In cash {(117,413) (182,191)
Foreign exchange difference on cash {1,5286) (615}
Opening cash balance 401,348 584,154
Closing cash balance 282,409 401,348

1 Restated for the impact of capitatised stnpping due to the adoption of
IFRIC 20

Cash flow from operating actwities was US$187 1 mullion for the year,

a decrease of US$81 6 milhion, when compared to the prior year

{2012 US$268 7 milion) The decrease pnmarily related to decreased
EBITDA combined with an outflow associated with working capital of
US$41 2 million  The working capital movement related to an increase
in other current assets of US$34 5 million mainly driven by higher VAT
receivables owed from the Tanzanian government and a decrease in
trade payables of US$32 1 miullion due to the lower overall cost base
and the payment of Tulawaka-related payables This was offset by a
decrease 1n gold inventory on hand of US$23 7 million excluding the
non-cash imparrment, mainly due to the lower sverage cost valuation as
a result of lower direct mining costs. a decrease In trade recevables of
US$20 0 million mainly due to the lower gold price and the timing of
concentrate shipments, and a drawdown on supples of US$10 8 million
driven by the inventory optimisation process

Cash flow used in investing actvities was US$386 9 million for the year
Total cash caprtal expenditure for the year of US$373 1 million
increased by 15% from the prior year (2012 US$$323 5 milhon}, driven
by both increased expansion capital expenditure refated to the
Butyanhulu CIL Expansion project and increased capitalised development
expenditure, slightly offset by lower sustaining capital expenditure

A breakdown of total capital and other investing capital activities for the
year 15 provided below

Year ended 31 December

{US$ 000}

2013 20124
Susta:ning capital 84,474 153,158
Expansionary capital 117,469 49,889
Capitalised development 171,158 120,458
Total cash capital 373101 323,505

Non-cash rehabilitation asset adjustment (30,740) 19242
Non-cash sustaining capital® 11,967 8,380

Total capital expenditure 354,328 351,127
Other investing capital

- AMKL acquisition® - 22,039
- Non-current asset movement? 13,749 25,941

1 The Kerya jont venture acquistion refates to the acquisimon of the
subsidiary net of cash for US$22 O milhon @nclusive of exploration funding
US$1 3 million)

2 Noncurrent asset movements refales to the iwestrnent in the land acquisiions
reflected as prepaid operating leases and Tanzania government retewables

3 Total noncash sustaining capital relates to the capital finance leases at
Buzwagh for drill ngs and alse includes capital accruats excluded from cash
sustaining capital

4 Restated for the impact of capitalised stnpping due ta the adoption of
IFRIC 20
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Sustaining captial expenditure included the investment in mine
equipment of US$37 7 milion, which mainly related to component
change outs at North Mara and Buzwag), critical underground equipment
at Bulyanhulu, and investment In tailings and other infrastructure at
Bulvanhulu (US$10 7 mullion), North Mara (US$14 7 million) and
Buzwagh (US$15 7 mullion)

Expansicnary caprtal expenditure conststed of the Bulanhulu CIL
Expansion project of (US$104 9 million), investment In equipment
for the Bulyanhulu Upper East project (US$5 2 million) and
caputalised exploration and evaluation costs (US$4 2 millton)
mainly relating to Bulvanhulu

Capitalised devetopment capital includes capitalised stripping for
North Mara (S$65 6 million) and Buzwagh (US$60 1 million) and
Bulyanhulu capitalised underground development of US$45 4 million

Non-cash capital for the year was a credit of US$18 8 million and
consisted of negative reclamation asset adjustments (US$30 7 million),
offset by the year-onyear increase In capital accruals (US$10 O million)
and capital finance {eases related to dnll ngs at Buzwag! (US$1 9 million)
The reclamation adjustments were driven by lower US nisk free rates
driving lower discount rates and lower closure cost estimates, and

were slightly offset by addiwonal habilities as a result of miming activity
during the year

Other investing capital dunng the year represents North Mara land
purchases totalling US$15 5 million and Bulyanhulu land purchases of
US$1 O million This was offset by a reduction In other long term assets
of US$2 B million

Cash flow from financing activities for the year was US$82 3 milion, an
increase of US$161 7 million on the pnar year (2012 US$79 4 millton
outfiow) The inflow pnmanly relates to the drawdown on the Bulyanhulu
CIL Expansion project debt facility of US$142 O milhon, offset by

the payment of the 2012 final and 2013 intenim dwidends of

US$54 5 million and finance lease payments of US$5 1 million

Dividend

An intenm dividend of US1 0 cent per share was paid to shareholders on
23 September 2013 The Directors recommend the payment of a final
dridend of US2 O cents per share subject to the shareholders
approving this recommendation at the forthceming AGM

Significant judgements in applylng accounting policies

and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Many of the amounts included In the consolidated financial statements
require management to make judgements and/or estimates These
Judgements and estimates are continuously evaluated and are based on
management s experience and best knowledge of the relevant facts and
cwrgumstances but actual results may differ from the amounts included in
the consolidated financial statements included I1n this report Information
about such Judgernents and estimation Is included In the accounting
policies and/or notes to the consolidated financial statements




Areas of judgement and key sources of estimation uncertainty that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements include

Estimates of the quantities of proven and probable gold reserves,
The capstalisation of production stnpping costs,
The capitalisation of expleration and evaluation expenditures,

Rewview of goodwill, tangible and intangible assets carrying value, the
determination of whether these assels are impaired and the
measurement of impairment charges or reversals

The estimated fair values of cash generating uruts for impairment
tests, including estimates of future costs to produce proven and
probable reserves, future commodity prices foreign exchange rates
and discount rates,

The estimated useful ives of tangible and long{ived assets and the
measurement of depreciation expense,

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases,

Recognition of a provision for environmental rehabilitation and the
estimatton of the rehabilitation costs and timing of expenditure,

Whether to recognise a liab(ity for loss contingencies and the amount
of any such provision

Whether to recognise a provision for accounts receivable and the
impact of discounting the noncurrent element,

Recognibon of deferred income tax assets, amounts recorded for
uncertain tax positions, the measurement of income tax expense and
indirect taxes,

Determination of the cost incurred in the productive process of ore
stockpiles, gold in process, gold doré/bulhon and concentrate, as well
as the associated net realisable value and the split between the long
term and short term portions,

Determination of fair value of denvative instruments, and

Determination of fair value of stock options and cash-settled share
based payments

Golng concem statement

The ABG Group s business actvities, together with factors likely to affect
1ts future development, performance and position are set out in this
Strategic report and the Risk management section of this Annual Report
The financial postion of the ABG Group, its cash flows, iquidity posstion
and borrowing faciites are described 1n the preceding paragraphs of this
financial review

At 31 December 20132, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
US$282 million with a further US$150 million avallable under the
undrawn revolving credit facility, which has been further extended until
MNovember 2016 Total borrowings at the end of the year amounted to
US$142 million, of which the first repayment is only repayable from 2015

Included in other recewables are amounts due to the Group relating to
indirect taxes of US$95 million which are expected to be received within
12 months, but these will be offset to an extent by new claims
submittad for mput taxes incurred dunng 2014 The refunds remain
dependent on processing and payment by the Government of Tanzama

We expect that the above, in combmation with the expected operational
cash flow generated dunng the year, will be sufficient to cover the capital
requirements and other commitments for the foreseeable future

In assessing the ABG Group s going concem status the Directors have
taken intc account the above factors, including the financial position of the
ABSG Group and in particular ts significant cash position, the current gold
and copper price and market expectations for the same (in the medium
tem, and the ABG Group s capital expenditure and financing plans After
making appropnate enguiries, the Directors consider that ABG and the
ABG Group as a whole has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that it 55 appropnate to adopt the
going concern basis in prepanng the financial statements

Andrew Wray,
Chief Financial Officer
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Responsible mining
Investing in Tanzania

We contribute to the economic growth of our host commumties, regions and
countries to assist the progression of sustainable socto-economic development

ABG s direct economic contnbution 1s made up of the economic value we  The distnbution of ABG taxes includes royalties, indirect taxes (VAT and

add by paying our employees, governments suppliers shareholders fuel levies), payroli taxes (Inclusive of soclal security payments and other
contractors and communities However, our true economtc contribution taxes such as withholding taxes), stamp duties and environmental
1s far greater once the wider effects of our presence are considered levies Geographically, the majority of our taxes are paid in Tanzaria,
These include indirect effects of people spending their wages, being the location of gur operating mines, followed by South Afnca,
governments distnbuting tax and royalty revenues, and neighbouring where certain administrative, financial and technical funchons are
communities using the infrastructure developed for our operations Qur located, followed by the UK, being the location of our corporate
direct economic contnbution in 2013 was US$959 million, compared to headguarters Our net taxation contribution was US$203 million 1n 2013,
US$1,073 million in 2012 compared to US$159 mullion in 2012

OVER

of ABG employees In
Tanzania are Tanzanians

*  Source ABG Total Economic Contnbution and Tax Contnbution Report November 2013
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ABG MAENDELEO FUND

We established the ABG Maendeleo Fund
in 2011 as part of our commitment to
promoting sustainable development in
Tanzama We use the fund to support all

of our community Investment programmes
Funding priorty 15 gven to rmvestments

that support community development and
capacity bulding, access to health, education,
water and ervironmental projects within
communities surrounding our operations
Since 1ts inception the ABG Maendeleo Fund
has invested US$18 9 muthon in community
development iniiatwves and invested

US$11 & mullion in 2013, across a range of
areas Including educaticn health, water,
infrastructure and livehhoods

Go online to find all the projects
www africanbarrickgold.com

EDUCATION

22

HEY PROJECTS
SUPPORTED IN 2013

HEALTH

12

KEY PROJECTS
SUPPORTED IN 2013

ussgd.4m

AMOUNT INVESTED
IN 2013

US$1_0m

AMOUNT INVESTED
IN 2013

WATER AND SANITATION

15

KEY PROJECTS
SUPPORTED N 2013

US$2,6m

AMOUNT INVESTED
IN 2013

INFRASTRUCTURE

7

KEY PROJECTS
SUPPORTED IN 2013

LIVELIHOODS

5

KEY PROJECTS
SUPPORTED IN 2013

OTHER

5

KEY PROJECTS
SUPPQRTED IN 2013

ussq.4m

AMOUNT INVESTED
IN 2013

uss1 . 5m

AMOUNT INVESTED
IN2013

uss(Q.Bm

AMOUNT INVESTED
IN 2013

LH0d3Y J1DALVHLS



CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY CONTINUED

Our areas of focus

Our sustainability practices are focused on those areas that are material to our
business and operations, these being commumty relations, employees, environment,
health and safety, and security and human rights. Details of activities as regards each
of these areas and our performance for the year are further described below.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS

This year we continued our focus on the devetopment of social
management plans at our operations, implementing the plans
developed for Buzwagl and North Mara (n 2012 and developing a
social management plan for Bulyanhulu In addition, and in light of
our dwestment of the Tulawaka mine to STAMICO, a key focus of the
year was the closing out of all existing social obligations in
connection with the closure planning for this operatron This effort
saw the implementation and handover of 28 community projects In
the areas of health education, water, sanitation and infrastructure
At North Mara, we continued to focus on the implementation of
VBAs and VBIAs, spendmng approximately US$4 2 milhon on
projects this year, compared to US$3 5 million in 2012 We also
progressed intiatives as regards the development of an artisanal
and small scale mining (“ASM™) project, with the execution of a
multi stakeholder partnership agreement between ABG,

AngloGold Ashanti, the Tanzaman Government and the World Bank
This will serve as the framework for the development of a pilot ASM
programme in 2014, something we will use In conjunction wrth our
wider efforts to promote alternative Iivelhoods across our operations

Dunng the year ABG also receved various accolades for excellence
in community relations and social developrment, including exght
awards under the Tanzanian Preswdential CSR and Empowerment
Awards and an award for exemplary efforts in community Malana
Control Activities

A total of 269 gnievances were lodged under the ABG community
gnevance management and resolution procedure in 2013,
compared to 443 grievances In 2012 The majority of new
gnevances continue to relate to histonc land compensation
matters at North Mara
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EMPLOYEES

Turnover rates for our operations excluding the impact of the
divestment of Tutawaka and redundancies made in connection with
the Company’s ongoing crgamsational restructuring increased to
20% n 2013, compared to 14% i 2012 This turnover 1s slightly
higher than 2012 but remains in line with current market turnover
rates We continued to progress our commitment to the localisation
of our workforce throughout 2013, with national employment levels
amounting to 93 2% of our operations workforce, a 2 2%
improvement on 2012

We continued to invest in traiming and development programmes
throughout the year, with two employees having graduated from
our IMDP programme and 37 graduates from our Integrated Mining
Technical Traiing (“IMTT") programme being employed by us
Overall, 61% of Company wide employees participated in technical
traning courses dunng the year, compared to 59% i 2012

Approximately 7% of our warkforce 1s compnsed of women,
something which 1s reflective of gender diversity within the
mining industry generally Of this, female representation across
our management structures equalled approximately 11%, 20%
at SLT level and 8% at Board levet




ENVIRONMENT

We made good progress this year with our environmental compliance programmes
and permit management Key achievements mclude the hfting of the environmental

protection order at North Mara, the approval of the ermironmental and social
impact assessment for the extension of Bulyanhulu s tailing storage facility; and
the approval of the closure plan for Tulawaka prior to its divestment to STAMICO

In addition, all ABG operations new hold certification under the International
Cyanide Code, with Buzwag obtaining partial certsfication during the year,

something which we aim to progress to full certrfication in 2014

ABG s GHG emissions continued to be impacted by interruptions 1o electneity

supply in Tanzania and our reliance on self-generation of power Overall,
GHG emissions In 2013 represented an 8 6% increase compared to 2012

However, as a result of energy conservation projects during the year our energy
usage, assessed on the basis of megajoules of energy used per tonne of ore

milled, decreased by 4% on 2012 levels Further information regarding

GHG emissions 1s provided on pages 15 and 84 We improved efficiencies in
water usage generally In 2013, using 486 Iitres of water per tonne of ore milled,

a decrease of 15% on 2012 levels

HEALTH AND SAFETY

We achieved an ABG Groupwide Total Reportable Injury Frequency
Rate (“TRIFR") of 0 68 for 2013, an 18% improvement on 2012
Additionally, 2013 was completed with no employee fatalities
Whilst both achievements are encouraging, ABG s ultimate aim s
to reduce tnjunes to zero, reflecting our commitment to ensure
each of our employees returns home safe and healthy every day

During the year we continued to progress our Visible Felt
Leadership (“VFL") programme, something we believe has had a
direct impact in 1mproving our safety environment, and progressed
the implementation of our cntical nsk standards for the following
areas mobile equipment, cranes and lifting, working at height and
hazardous energy 1solation Implementation of these standards will
continue Into 2014 In terms of wider health and safety
assessments, we conducted statutory occupational medical
exaninations and comprehensive health nisk assessments at ali of
our operations throughout the year, resulting in the development of
industnal hygiene sampling plans for each of our mines

SECURITY AND HUMAN RIGHTS

We continued to enhance secunty and safety infrastructure dunng
the year, particularly perimeter fencing and survelllance equipment
We also continued to progress traiming and development as regards
our security practices, providing assistance in the training of
approximately 5,252 indwiduals on the Veluntary Principles on
Security and Human Rights, 8,234 indmviduals on use of force
pracuces and 5,200 indmduals on the detection and prevention
of sexual harassment Participants in ABG training programmes
included members of the Tanzanian Policing Unit assigned to
provide secunty to our operations, ABG secunty employees and
contractors, and community watchmen

From a governance perspective, we maintained consistent levels
of improvement across a number of areas relevant to operational
secunty nsk assessments and audits, including comphance with
our Gold Secunty Standards, the Voluntary Principles on Security
and Human Rights, use of force protocols, investigations and use
of personal protective equipment For the year, the secunty related
TRIFR was 0 03, a noticeable smprovement on 2012 In this regard,
the majonty of secunty incidents continue to occur at North Mara,
In connection with illegal mining and related intruders As part of
strategic reviews we are looking to enhance and progress our
security management procedures for improved alignment with
operational requirements Where appropriate, we also work In
collaboration with local 1aw enforcement to address secuntyrelated
threats and concerns

In the context of human rghts and In addition to Voluntary
Principles training we continued to progress wider elements of
human rights awareness and training campaigns, in furtherance of
the commitment we have made to respect human rights generally
and the principles enshrined in ABG's Human Rights policy which
applies across all operations
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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Dear Shareholders

As a result of the comprehensive Operational Review
undertaken in 2013, we took a number of positive steps
that improved operating efficiency and reduced costs Put
simply, these actions changed the way we run the business
and will delver long-term benefits to shareholders This
unrelenting focus on excellence was further reflected in
changes made over the course of the year to the Board's
composition and fecus, along with enhancements to certamn
core governance committees

One of my pnmary objectives since becoming Chairman
has been to identify opportunities to build on the diversity,
strength and calibre of the Board We collectively view this
as vital to maintaining the Board's ability to support and
guide management

In Apnit, we appointed Peter Tomsett and Graham Clow as
independent Non-Executive Directors They are both highly
experienced industry veterans, with Peter having previously
heen CEQ of Placer Dome, and Graham currently bemng
Chairman of Roscoe Postle Associates Peter was also
appointed Semior Independent Director a position which
had previously been vacant In October we strengthened
our commercial firancial and cost-contro! capacities with
the appointment of Steve Lucas and Rachel English as
addittonal independent Non-Executive Directors Our new
Directors have made immediate contributions to the Board
and | am pleased to welcome them 1o ABG

2013 key activitles

During 2013 the Board also reviewed the composition of all
Board committees and their respective responsibilities, in
line with developments In UK Corporate Governance
practices Qur review resulted in enhanced responsibilities
for the Audit committee and the Compensation committee,
which respectively reflect the additional requirements
placed on audit committees under the most recent edition
of the UK Corporate Governance Code and new
requirements relating to remuneration policies
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Additionally, we expanded the mandate of our Nomination
committee Going forward, this committee will serve as the
Nomination and Governance committee and will support
and guide the Board in the formulation and adoption of
Campany corporate governance policies and procedures
The responsibibities for both the Environment, Health, Safety
and Secunty committee and the Technical committee
reman unchanged Both of these commitiees play
important roles in the oversight and review of key
environmental social, safety, development and techrucal
areas relevant to our business

All members of the Board and its committees completed
an annual performance and effectiveness evaluation for the
reporting period to satisfy the annual performance
evaluation requirements of the UK Corporate Governance
Code All evaluations were concluded positively, showing
that the Board and its committees are performing efficiently
and effectvely The Company aiso completed and achieved
a satisfactory conclusion to its annual nsk management
and internal controls assessment, further details of which
are provided on page 46

Looking forward

In 2014, the Board will seek to build upon the progress
made in ABG 5 governance and controls environment,
notably through implementing further measures and
procedures to support business reviews and (initiatives

Kelvin Dushnisky,
Chairman of the Board

Board of Directors

1. Rachel Enghish, Kelvin Dushnisky

2 David Hodgson Graham Clow

3 Peter Tomsett

4 Andre Falzon

§ Ambassador Juma ¥V Mwapachu
Stephen Galbraith Steve Lucas

6 Rick McCreary

7 Michael Kenyon

8 Brad Gordon




BOARD OF DIRECTORS BIOGRAPHIES

Effective governance

The mayority of our Directors have considerable knowledge and

experience of the mining industry and bring other relevant experience
to the Board to assist ABG mn achieving its strategic goals

Kelvin Dushnisky, age 50
Chairman of the Board

Skills and Expenence Mr Dushnisky 15 the
Chairman of the Board He 1s Senior Exgcutive
Vice President of Barrick and has more than

25 years of experience in broadranging roles
across the mining industry Mr Dushnisky joined
Bamck in Aprl 2002 and has global responsibility
for the Government Relations, Permitting and
Approvals, Corporate Responsibility and
Communications functions Prior to joining Barrick,
Mr Dushrisky was a Managing Birector at

Altara Secunties Inc and has also served as
vice President of Sutton Resources Limited and
Vice Charr, General Counsel and a founding
Director of EurpZine Mining Corporation

Mr Dushnisky holds a BSc (Hon ) degree from the
University of Manitoba and MS¢ and JD degrees
from the University of Bntish Columbia He
represents Bamck, along with its CEQ at the
World Gold Council and the International Council
on Mining and Metals {"ICMM"} Mr Dushmisky
also serves on the boards of the Mining
Assaciation of Canada, the Institute of the
Amencas the Canadian Council of the Amencas,
the Canadian Chamber of Commerce and 15 a
member of the Law Society of British Columbia
and the Canadian Bar Association

Brad Gordon, age 51
Chief Executive Officer

Skills and Expenence Mr Gordon was appointed
as ABG's Chief Executive Officer in August 2013
He was previousty the CEO of Intrepid Mines, a
Canadian and Australian listed precigus metals
exploration and development company with
pnmary operations in Indonesia Pror to his time
at Intreptd, Mr Gordon was the CEQ of Emperor
Mines the Australasian subsiciary of DRDGold
before it merged with Intrepid Before that, he
held a series of progressively senior posttions
with Placer Dome Mr Gordon has a proven atlity
to deliver the maximum potential from the
operations he has managed, from reducing costs
and increasing production 1o achieving cperational
efficencies and extending mine lves Mr Gordon
holds a Mining Engineenng degree from the
Western Australia S¢hool of Mines and an
Executive MBA from INSEAD, France
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Peter Tomsett, age 56
Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

Skils and Expenence Mr Tomsett, is ABG's
Senior Independent NonExecutive Director

Mr Tomsett has a wide range of technical,
operational and senior management expenence in
the mining industry He spent 20 years with Placer
Dome Inc 1n a number of senior roles, culminating
In serving as President and Chief Executive Officer
until its acquisition 1n 2008 He has been a
Director of tha Minerals Council of Australia, the
World Gold Council and the Intemational Council
for Mining & Metals Mr Tomsett has considerable
boarcHeve! expenence in the resources sector

He served as NonExecutive Chairman of Equinox
Minerals until its acquisition in 2011 Heis
currently Non-Executive Chairman of Silver
Standard Resources inc and he 15 also a
Non-Executive Director of North Amencan

Enengy Partners Inc and Talisman Energy Inc

Ambassador Juma V Mwapachu, age 71
Independent Non-Executive Director

Skills and Expenence Ambassador Mwapachu is
an independent Non-Executive Director of ABG
Ambassador Mwapachu has held a number of
senior positions In both the public and private
sector of Tanzanla and was appointed as
Tanzania's Ambassador to France from 2002

to 2006 He was the founding Secretary General
of the Chamber of Commerce Industry and
Agnculture and has served as Chairman of

the Confederation of Tanzania Industries and
Chatrman of the East Afncan Business Counel
He has played a leading role i the regional
ntegration of East Afnca. holding the position of
Secretary General of the East African Community
prior to his appointment to the Beoard and currently
holds the positron of Global President of the
Soclety for International Development
Ambassador Mwapachu holds a Bachetor of Laws
Degree with Honours from the Unversity of East
Africa, a postgraduate Degree In Intemational Law
from the Indian Academy, Doctorates in Literature
[Honons Causa) from the University of Dar es
Sataam, and Political Sciences {Honons Causa)
from the National University of Rwanda

Andre Falzon, age 59
Independent Non-Executive Director

Skills and Expenence Mr Falzon 1s an

independent Non-Executive Director of ABG He is

a senior financial executive with over 25 years of

financial and management expenence within the |
mining industry, including a period as Vice ‘
President and Controller at Bamck between 1994 ‘
and 2006 He I1s a Director of Detour Gold

Corporation and was previously a director and

audit committee chair of a number of publicly

I:sted gold mining companies He holds a

Bachelor of Commerce Degree from the University

of Teronto, Canada and 15 a CGA (Canada) and a

CPA, CA (Canada}

David Hodgson, age 66
Independent Non-Executive Director

Shills and Experlence Mr Hodgson 1s an
Independent Non-Executive Director of ABG He
was previously employed by the Anglo Amencan
and De Beers group of companies for over 30 years
and from November 2001 through to his retirement
In April 2005, he served as the Chief Operating
Officer of AngloGold Ashanti He has also held a
number of provious nonexecutive public company
directorships at Auryx Gold Mines, Montero Miring,
Moto Gold Mines Limited, Uranium One Inc and
Goliath Gold Mining Limted  Mr Hodgson holds a
BSc in Civil Engineenng from the University of
Witwatersrand in Johannesburg, South Afnica, a BSC
Mining {Honours} from the Royal School of Mines in
London, and a BComm {majors In Economics and
Business Economics) from UNISA in South Afnca
He also attended an Advanced Management,
Program at Harvard University In the LISA

Michael Kenyon, age 64
Independent Non-Executive Director

Skills and Expenience Mr Kenyon (5 an

ndependent Non-Executive Director of ABG

Mr Kenyon has more than 35 years of expenence

in the muning industry and Is a geologist by

training He s Executive Chalrman of the Board

of Directors at Detour Gold Corporation He has

previously been Chairman of the Board of

Directors of Troon Ventures Ltd, President and

Chief Executive Officer at both Canico Resource |
Corp and Sutton Resources Ltd, and a Director of {
Curnberland Resources Ltd He holds a MSc

Geology from the University of Atberta in Canada

He was also the recipient of the 2005 Developer

of the Year award from the Prospector and

Developers Assoclation of Canada in recognition

of his accomplishments




Graham Clow, age 63
Independent Non-Executive Director

Skills and Expenence Mr Clow 1s an independent
Non-Executive Director of ABG Mr Clow is
currently Chairman and Pnincipal Mining Engineer
of RPA Inc He 15 a senior mining executive with
40 years” expenence in all aspects of
acquisitions, exploration, feasibility, finance
development, construction, operations, and
closure Prior to joining RPA, he spent more than
20 years in sentor executive and operating
positions with publicly isted mining companies
and 1§ currently NornExecutwe Director of
Domunion Diamond Corporatian Mr Clow 15 a
former Chalrman of the Metal Mining Divisicn of
the Canadian institute of Mining, Metallurgy, and
Petroleurn (“CIM™), and was a Member of the
Committee on Ore Reserve Definitions that
established the requirements for Canadian
Regulatory Standard NI43-101 for mining
companies He s atso a Fellow of CIM and has
been awarded the Metal Mining Award for
centnbutions to the industey

Steve Lucas, age 59
Independent Non-Executive Director

Skills and Expenence Mr Lucas I1s an independent
Non-Executive Director of ABG Mr Lucas is a
Chartered Accountant with executive expenence

In the extractives sector, particularly il and gas,
and the power sector He has worked
Internationally, including Tanzania, and has
expertise in (nfrastructure finance and treasury

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2013, the Board compnsed a Non Executive Chairman, one Executive Director

Mir Lucas was Finance Directar at National Gnd ple
from 2002 to 2010 and pnor to this he worked for
11 years in progressively more semor positions

at Royal Dutch Shell and for six years at BG Group
{formerly British Gas) He 1s currently a Non-
Executive Director of Tullow Ol pic, Transocean Ltd
and Essar Energy pic From 2004 until 2011 he
was & NonExecutive Director of Compass Group
plc Mr Lucas holds a BA in Geology from

Oxford University

Rache! English, age 51
Independent Non-Executive Director

Skilis and Expenence Ms English IS an
Independent NonExecutive Director of ABG

Ms English is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants and previously held senior positions
in BG Group and Royal Dutch Shell, with
responsilities spanning finance, corporate
strategy, mergers and acquisitions and business
development Ms English is a NonExecutive
Oirector of Kuwait Energy pic and the Global
Carbon Capture and Storage Institute and was
previously a NonExecutive Director of
Petraopaviovsk plc until 2013 She 1s also a
member of the Audit Committee of the UK's
Department for International Development

and 15 a NonExecutive Director of Helios Social
Enterprise, which she co-founded to develop
renewable energy access projects in rural
sub-Saharan Afnica Ms Engitsh holds an MA

In Poliucs, Philosophy & Economics from

Oxford University

and ten Non-Executive Directors, of whom eight were independent

Skills and expenence

We review Board composition regularly to
ensure the range and breadth of skills provided
as a resuft of Director appointments rematns
appropriate for our business

Diversity

Board appointments are made on a ment

basis and measured against objective critena
Generally, we strive to attract a broad mwx of
Indmduals in order to create a diverse workgroup
to support ABG s cufture It 1s our policy to hire
the best candidates for all positions at all levels,
imespective of gender, iIncluding candidates for
Board appointments That said dunng the year,
we were pleased to appoint Rachel English to the
Board, being ABG s first fernale Director

Rick McCreary, age 51,
Non-Executive Director

Skills and Expenence Mr McCreary 1s a
NorrExesutive Director of ABG and Serior Vice
President, Corporate Development of Barnck

He joined Barmck (n Apnt 2011 and has overall
responsibility for Barmnck's global Corporate
Development activities, including Corporate
Development, Evaluations and Special Projects
Prior to joining Barnick, Mr McCreary worked in
mining investment banking for over 14 years
culminating as Head of CIBC World Markets’
Global Mining irvestrnent banking group  Preor to
his career in mining investment banking, he
worked in the Noranda/Falconbndge organisation
for eight years in various areas, ncluding metals
marketing, geophysics geological engineenng and
technology development Mr McCreary holds an
MBA in Finance and Strategy from MeGill
University, and an MSc and BScEng {Hons) in
Geological Engineering from Queen’s University

Stephen Galbralth, age 42
Non-Executive Director

Skills and Expenence Mr Galbraith is a Non-
Executive Director of ABG He has been employed
by Bamck since August 2000 1n treasury and
finance functtons, and (s currantly Managing,
Director of Barrick International {Barbades)
Corporation  Mr Galbraith previously held the role
of Audit Manager for PnicewaterhouseCoopers
He ho!ds a BA in Accountancy from Strathclyde
University, 15 a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Scotland and I1s a
Chartered Financial Analyst Charterholder

Boards balance

The Board believes that its current composttion
and Its size 1s appropnate for the requirements
of the Company s business and that the
current balance between Executrve and
Nor-Executve, In particular the balance
between independent and nomindependent
Drirectors, I1s appropnate for the Compary for
the time being
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT BIOGRAPHIES

Driving performance

Our management team have a wide range of experience across mining
and operational environments in order to drive the Company forward.

Andrew Wray, age 50
Chief Financial Officer

Skills and Experience Mr Wray was appointed
as CFQ in September 2013, having spent three
years as Head of Corporate Development and
Investor Refations at ABG Previously he was
employed by JP Morgan Cazenove where he
was a Director in the Corporate Finance team
Mr Wray has over 14 years of expernience In
advising a range of mining and other
companies In their capitalraising activities and
In other strategic objectives Prior to joining

JP Morgan, Mr Wray worked for the Kuwait
Investment Office 1n London, dealing with their
portfolio of iInvestments in Spain Mr Wray
holds a BA (Hons) in Modern Languages from
University College London

Katrina White, age 38
General Counsel and Company Secretary

Skills and Experience Ms White joined ABG in
December 2010, having previously been
employed by Barnck, where she served as
Regional General Counsel and Company
Secretary for Barnck Australia Africa,
subsequently Barnck Australia Pacific from
2005 to 2010 Prior to joining Barnck, Ms
White was employed as a senor associate at
Hunt & Humphry in Australia Ms White has an
LLB (Hens} from the University of Western
Australia She 1s agmitted to practice as a
barnster and solicitor In Western Australia and
the High Court of Austratia and the Federal
Court of Australia
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Peter Spora, age 44
Vice President, Exploration

Skills and Expenence Mr Spora joined ABG in
March 2010 having previously been employed
by Barrick, where he served as Pnncipal
Geologist, Afnica, from 2006 to 2008 and
Exploration Manager Africa from 2008 to
2010 Mr Spora has over 18 years of
expenence as a geologist in Austraha and
Africa He holds a BSc in Geology from the
University of Technology, Sydney, Australia

He 1s @ member of the Australian Instiiute of
Mining and Metallurgy (“AusiMM”}, @ member
of the Tanzaman Chamber of Minerals and
Energy, and 15 a member of the Society of
Economic Geologists

Deodatus Mwanylka, age 51
Vice President, Corporate Affairs

Skills and Expenence Mr Mwanyka joined
ABG In March 2010, having previously been
employed by Barnck which he joned in 1999
and where he occupled vanous managenal
positions over 12 years, culminating in his
appointment in 2008 as Executive General
Manager Tanzania Mr Mwanyika holds an LLB
{Hons) from the University of Dar es Salaam
and an LLM from the University of Cambridge
Mr Mwanyka 1s a member of the Tanganyika
Law Society and the East African Law Soclety

Jaco Maritz, age 38
Vice President, Finance

Skills and experience Mr Maniz has been the
Vice President Finance of the ABG since
February 2013, having spent three years as
Group Treasurer He has more than 16 years
experience In the mining Industry and has held
a number of financial roles, including Director,
Planning & Corporate Finance at Barnck and
Audit Manager at PricewaterhouseCoopers
Mr Mantz holds a BComm 1n Accounting
Science and a Bachelor of Computations
{Hons) in the Theory of Accounting Science
from the University of Pretoria Mr Maritz 1s a
Chartered Accountant

Peter Gelota, age 50
Executive General Manager,
Organisational Effectiveness

Skills and Expenence Mr Geleta Joined ABG tn
May 2012 and has extensive experience on
the African continent having worked across a
number of African countnes in various
operational and corporate roles Prior to joining
ABG, he held a number of roles at Barnck,
including Organisational Effectiveness Director
for Barrick Africa, Human Resources Director
for the Australia Pacrfic Region and General
Manager for Bamck s Cowal Gold Mine in New
South Wales Before joining Barrick, Mr Geleta
worked for AngloGold Ashant for 25 years,
where he held a number of roles including
Head of Human Resources and Sustainability
for AngloGold Ashanti's Africa Operations and
General Manager of the Navachab Mtne «n
Namibia Mr Geleta holds an Executive MBA
gualification from the University of Cape Town

Michelle Ash, age 41
Executive General Manager,
Planning and Business Improvement

Skills and Experience Ms Ash joined ABG in
December 2013 and has more than 20 years
experience In the mining and manufacturing
industries in executive, managenal, advisory
and consultancy roles Pror to joining ABG,
Ms Ash was Head of Allance Planning and
Co-ordination for the BHP Mitsubishi Alliance
Prior to this she was General Manager Strategy
for MMG where her focys was to develop
business and growth strategies She has also
held General Manager Gperations, Strategy
Development and Projects roles in a number
of global mining companies Michelle holds a
BA {Hons) in Civil Engineenng from Melbourne
University, a Graduate Diploma of Business
from Curtin University, a BA {Hons) In
Psychology from Deakin University and

an Executive MBA from Melbourne

Business School




GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

Responsibilities across our corporate governance framework
are allocated between the Board, its committees, the Sentor
Leadership Team and other members of senior management
to ensure that our business operates as 1f should on a

day to day basis

GENERAL
MANAGERS AND
FUNCTIONAL HEADS
work with the Senmior
Leadership Team 1o
manage our operations
and business and
to progress
business goals

AANAGEMENT COMMrr,

e goard and Seng, Leage
rs,;’

“\OR LEADERSHp T,
ot busmess and operah 4’
W0 ormance of gy Ory
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Responsibte for the overall
management of our crganisation
and our business

Audit committee
reviews and monitors
financial statements

Technical committee
reviews and oversees
minée planmng, capital
allocation and
exploration programmes

s, & S e
Dec;f;g ARD COMM\T‘?{&\G\‘C’O
SView ang overstE
oversees relatonships
with internal and
external auditors

oversees external
audit process

! reviews intemal
| audit plans

COMPENSATION

EHS&S committee
oversees the development
of strategy and policy on
CSR ervironmental

Nomination and

Governance committee
makes recommendations
to the Board on its

health and safety and
secunty matters

reviews the effectiveness
of CSR emdronmental,
health and safety and
secunty management
programmes and systems

Compensation committee
sets reviews and recommends
ovesall remuneration polcy and
strategy

reviews and approves
remuneration arrangements for
Executive Directors and

sernor management

comgpasiticn and that of
its committees

reviews and oversees the
formulation and adoption
of ABG corporate
governance policies

and procedures
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board changes during 2013

As previously noted, Mr Tomsett Mr Clow Ms English and Mr Lucas
were appointed dunng the year as additional iIndependent Non-Executive
Directors, along with Mr Gordon as the Company’'s new CEO and sole
Executive Director In addition, and as noted in the 2012 Annual Report,
Mr lenmings the Company’s former CFO, and Mr Pannell, the Company's
former Acting Chairman, decided not to stand for re-election at the 2013
AGM n order to pursue other interests, and therefore left the Company
in Apnl 2013 Mr Hawkins, the Company s former CEQ, also left the
Company in August 2013

Retirement and re-election

Directors appointed by the Board since the 2013 AGM are required to
offer themselves for re-election by the shareholders at the 2014 AGM
under the Company’s Articles of Association and we are mindful of
requirements for annual re-election under the UK Corporate Govermance
Code Save for David Hodgson who has recently decided to step down
from the Board, all remaining Directors will offer themselves for
re-electron at the forthcoming AGM The Board determines that all

of these Directors are eligible for reelection

Board leadership

Chalrman and Chief Executive Officer

In line with best practice, the roles of Chief Executive Officer and
Chatrman, and their related responsibifities are separated The dwsions
of responsibilities have been sot out In wnting and agreed by the Board
and the specifications as regards each role are defined in accordance
with this ABG's Chairman s pnncipally responsible for the leadership of
the Board and ensunng that the Board plays a full and constructive part

in the development and determination of the Company's strategy and
overall commercial objectives ABG s Chief Executive Officer 1s pnmanly
responsible for all executive management matters affecting ABG and 1s
principally respons:ble for runming the Company's business All members
of executive management report directly to him

Senior Independent Director

As noted betow, Mr Tomsett assumed the position of Sentor Independent
Director (“SID™) in Apnl 2013 in accordance with UK Corporate
Governance Code requirements The responsibilittes and duties of the
SID are determined 1n accordance with the requirements of the UK
Corporate Governance Code In particular the SID 1s required to

act as a sounding board for the Chairman,
act as an intermediary for other directors, when necessary,

ensure that an annual appraisal of the Chairman 1s conducted by the
Non-Executive Directors without the Chairman present,

be available to shareholders for discussion purposes, In cases where
contact between such shareholders and the Chairman and/or CEQ
has been ineffective or i1s otherwise inappropriate

Board effectiveness

Board meetings and attendance

Board decisions are predominantly made by achieving a consensus at
Board meetings [n exceptional circumstances, decisions may be taken
by the majority of Board members Questions ansing at any meeting are
determined by a majonity of votes In the case of an eguality of votes,
ABG s Articles of Association do not provide the Chairman with a
second or casting vote

ABG BUSINESS MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

ABG's Business Management Framework forms an
integral part of our global compliance programme

It sets out the key corporate policies, procedures,
standards and practices that apply to the ABG Group
and 1ts business for the management of economic
social political, environmental, legal and governance
factors affecting our operations

All members of the ABG Group, our matenal
operations, support functions and every ABG Director,
officer and employee are required to comply with the
ABG Business Management Framework and all other
guidance and standards that apply to their respective
roles and positions Specific obligations also extend
to ABG contractors, other associated parties and
members of ABG supply chains
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All Directors are required to take decisions objectively and Iin the best
interests of the Company

As part of their duties as Directors ABG s Non-Executive Directors
are expected to apply independent judgement to contnbute to 1Ssues
of strategy and performance and 10 scrutinise the performance

of management

The Board i1s scheduled to meet at least four imes a year, and at such
other imes as are necessary to discharge its duties The Board met a
total of eight times in 2013 Five meetings were held in person at the
Company's London offices, and three meetings were held by
teleconference Detalls of indmvidual attendance are provided below
Meetings included a formal strategy review with senior management
From time to time, the Board schedules meetings so as to allow for a
meeting to be held in Tanzanta if appropriate, in order to provide for
further access to the wider ABG workforce

Board briefings and development

The Board receves monthly management reparts and quarterly reports
outhining all matenal operational, financial and strategic developments
These ensure that Board members remain properly briefed on the
performance and financial position of the ABG Group Board and
committee papers are circutated pnor to all meetings to allow Directors
to be bnefed in advance of discussions All Board meetings include a
quarterly business and financial review to ensure that, in addition to
specific scheduled matters and any other business, core operational
matters are reviewed on a continuous basis In addition to scheduled
Board meetings all Directors have access to members of the Senior

Board and committee attendance

Board Audit
meetings committee

Compensation

Leadership Team and to whatever further information they need to
perform their duties and to satisfy thewr responsibiities ABG's
Independent Non-Executive Directors and committee chairmen meet
with members of the Senior Leadership Team 1o recetve more in-depth
briefings on Board and committee matters whenever required or
requested In addition, all Directors continue to have free access to
visit operations outside scheduled Board arrangements

Board traiming and development needs are reviewed on an ongoing
basis Ordinarily, training standards and requirements form part of
Board evaluation critena

Directors may take independent professional advice, as necessary, at
ABG s expense In the furtherance of ther duties In addition to this, each
Board committee 1s entitled to seek independent professional advice at
ABG s expense, where necessary, to assist or guide the committee In
the performance of its functions

Nomination and
Governance
commritee

EHS&S
committee

Techrical

committee committee

Number Maxmum  Number Maxmum
attended possible atiended possible

Number Maximum
attended possible attended possible attended possible attended possible

Number Mawmum  Number Maximum  Number Maximum

Current directors

Ketvin Dushmishky

Brad Gordon*

Peter Tomsett*

Ambassadoer Juma V Mwapachu

I
Wk
Wk
S
'S

i

1

Andre Falzon

1
L]
1
3

Dawvtd Hodgson

Michael Kenyon

Graham Clow*

Steve Lucas*

Rachel English*

Rick McCreary

W~ ||| |w|w
(oo ijjto|o||(®|t|w|m
|
|

Stephen Galbraith

Former directors * *

Derek Pannell

N
N
Y
N

Greg Hawkins

IS
n
|
¥

Kevin Jennings 3 3 - -

*  Appointed dunng the year

** Resigned/retired dunng the year Appointment and resignation dates are prowvided on page 84
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT CONTINUED

Summary of the Board's work in 2013
The Board focused on the following areas in 2013

Reviewing and monitoring the implementation of the
Operational Review

Operational and financial performance reviews
Corporate governance structures and compliance review
Capital project and exploration project reviews
Corporate organisational structure review

Mine planning reviews

As part of strategy and growth reviews, the Board commenced a further
evaluation process of all of the Company’s growth projects 1o ensure a
priontisatian of projects that wall drive profitable returns and production
levels As regards asset optimisation and cost control reviews the
Board continued to montor and review management plans as regards
Iife of mine planming for all of ABG's operations All of the above will
continue to be focus areas in 2014 in addition to providing oversight

to management’s plans for the implementation of further cost and
capital discipline controls and matters relevant to the ongoing
orgamisational restructunng

Intemal control

The Board Is responsible for the ABG Group s syster of intemal control
and nsk management and for reviewing its effectiveness In line with this
responsibility, the Board has established ongoing processes and systems
for identifying, evaluating and managing significant nsks that the Group
faces ABG's system of internal controls and nsk management takes into
account the recommendations contained in the Tumbull Guidance on
Internal Systems and Controls published by the Financral Reporting
Council in Qctober 2005 (the “Tumbull Guidance™) The system is
designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the nsk of falure to achieve
ABG's business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against matenal misstatement or loss

The Board principally bases its monitoring of intarnal controls on its
review of management reports and assessments and on the quarterly
reports 1t recerves on the status of ABG s intemal control environment
This 15 supported by the nisk profile reviews that ABG s internal audit
function carnes out to help the Board Identify and manage the most
significant nsks and events that could affect the Company s cperations,
financials and performance Where necessary, the Board 1s assisted by
its committees In reviewing internal systems and controls, particutarly
the Audit committee, which is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness
of the Group $ internal control and finanaial nsk management systems
An overview of the govemance structure used for ABG's approach to nsk
management and the processes and procedures used in the context

of ngk management 1s provided as part of the Risk management review
of this Annual Report

In comphance with its obligations, the Board conducted an annual
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company's nsk management and
internal contrel systems for the reporung penod The review covered alt
matenal controls, including financsal, operatienal and comphance
controls In comyunction with ABG s internat audrt function and members
of the Senror Leadership Team, the Board conducted a specific
assessment of intemal controls which considered all significant aspects
of intemnal control for the reporting penod Dunng the course of 1ts review
of the systern of internal control, the Board did not identfy or hear of any
failings or weaknesses that it determined to be matenal Therefore a
confirmation of any necessary actions undertaken |5 not required
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Relationship with sharehoiders

Dialogue with the investment community

ABG has a designated wwvestor relations team which acts as the pnmary
point of contact with the Investment communtity and 1s responsible for
maintaining ABG s ongoing retations with investors and shareholders
Generally, ABG ams to meet with investors and analysts at least twice a
year to discuss Group performance and respond to quenes ABG also
conducts penodic telephone calls and meetings with the investment
community to discuss results, and participates In mining conferences

to meet with current and prospective investers In addition to its annual
and half year reports, ABG pubhishes quarterly reports to the market,
which provide further information on production and financial results,
and updates on its business and operations ABG s investor relations
team also arrange ABG operational site tours for members of the
analyst community, as and when appropriate

Majority shareholder

Barnick 1s the Group majonty shareholder, holding approximately 74% of

ABG ABG's relationship with Barnck Is governed by the terms of a

Relationship Agreement, the pnncipal purpose of which 1S to ensure that

ABG 15 capable of carrying on 1ts business independently of the Barnck

Group and that transactions and relatonships with the Barnick Group are |
conducted at arm's length and on normal commercial terms The

Relationship Agreement will continue for so tong as ABG 1s listed on the

London Stock Exchange and Barnck owns or controls at least 15% of

ABG's 1ssued share capital or voting rights

The Relationship Agreement provides Bamck with certain Director
appotntment nghts in kine with a sliding scale, structured as follows

Barnck Percentage Shareholding  Barnck Director Appaintment Rights

40% or more The higher of three Non-Executive
Directors and the maximum that may
be appointed under the UK Corporate
Governance Code

The higher of twe Non-Executive
Directors and one less than the
maximum number of Non-Executive
Directors that may be appointed under
the UK Corporate Governance Code

The higher of one Non-Executive Director
and two less than the maximum number
of Non€Executive Directors

25% up to 40%

15% up to 25%

In addition to Director appointment nghts, and subject to certain
exceptions as part of the terms of the Relattonship Agreement, Barrick
has undertaken that members of the Barrick Group will not carry on the
exploration of gold or silver in Afnica or acquire, whether through an
asset purchase or the purchase of secunties a gold or silver mining
business in Africa that competes with ABG without first gving ABG the
option to exercise certain rights of first refusal for so long as Barnck
hotds 30% or more of the 1ssued share capital or voting nghts of ABG
ABG has given a reciprocal noncompete commitment to Bamck

in this regard




AGM

ABG's 2014 AGM will be held on 24 Apnl 2014 at 2 00 pm (UK time)
The business of the meeting will be conducted In accordance with
Companies Act 2006 reguirements ang standards promoted by the
UK Corporate Governance Code The Chairman and the chairmen of
the Audrt, Compensation, EHS&S and Nomination and Governance
committees will be availlable to answer questions put to them by
shareholders at the meeting The AGM Notice 1s included in the
documentation that has been provided with this Annual Report and
Is also available on the Company's website In accordance with best
practice, the notice has been sent to shareholders at least 20 business
days prior to the date of the meeting

Confltcts of interest

Mr Dushnisky, Mr Galbraith and Mr McCreary are nominee Directors
appointed by Barrick These indwduals hold a number of cross-
directorships with members of the Barnick Group, which give rnise to
situations in which these Directors could have a direct or indirect
interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict, with those of ABG In
addition, as a result of theirr employment withen the Barnck Group these
individuals also hold interests under Barrick's restnicted stock unit plan
and other employee incentive plans

Certan cther members of ABG s senior management team hold
interests under Barrick’s restncted stock unit plan as a result of prior
employment within the Barnck Group These Interests were acquired
prior 1o Joining ABG and are not deemed to be matenal interests

The Companies Act 2006 requires Directors to avoid situations where
they have, or can have, a direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or may
possibly conflict, with Company interests However, the Act does allow
Directors of public companies to authonse conflicts and potential
conflicts of interest where a company s articles of association contain a
provision to that effect ABG's Articles of Association contain such
provision and a procedure for this In accordance with this procedure,
the conflicts outlined above were declared and authonised by the Board

The monitonng and, If appropriate, authonsation of any actuat or
potential conflict of Interest 1s an ongoing process Directors are
required to notify the Company of any matenal changes in positions or
situations that have already been considered and any new situations
In addition, Directors are required to declare interests in potential or
actual transactions and are reguired to abstain from voting on such
transactions, subject to permitted exceptions If a question arises as
to whether any interest of a Director prevents him or her from voting or
being counted in a guorum n the context of a potential or actual
transaction, the matter s referred te the Chairman, whose findings are
final and concluswe In the context of questions relating to any such
confiict of the Chairman, the question may ultimately be decided by a
resolution of the other Directors

The Board reviews conflicts of interest on a penodic basis and maintains
a record of all declared conflicts

Specifically as regards nominee Directors appointed by Barnick, the
Relationship Agreement provides that if any transaction or arrangement
arises directly between a member of the Barnck Group and a member
of the ABG Group and does or could, In the opinion of a majonty of
Directors (excluding any Director(s) appointed by Barrick), give nise to a
conflict of interest between ABG and any Director appointed by Barrick,
any such matter must be approved and authonsed at a duly convened
Board meeting or in writing by a majornity of Directors (excluding any

Director(s) appointed by Barnick) prior to the Company taking further
action in relation to such matter

Save for the matters set out above, no other conflicts of interest were
disclosed to the Board durtng the reporting perod

Corporate governance compliance

For the year under rewiew, as a UK company with a premium listing on
the Main Market of the London Stock Exchange, ABG 1s required to
make certain statements regarding the way it 1s governed, as required
by the UK Corporate Governance Code Accordingly, this repart explains
how ABG has applied and complied with the Main Principles of the UK
Corporate Governance Code dunng 2013

Generally, ABG seeks to apply the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code wherever possible and for the reporting year it Is the
Board's view that ABG has applied and complied with the Main Principtes
of the UK Corporate Governance Code and its detailed principles, save
that the position of SID was vacant until Mr Tomsett s assumption of this
role in April 2013, Mr Dushnisky was not independent on appointment
as Chairman and that an external search consultancy was not used In
connection with this appointment Given Mr Dushnisky's expenience
within the mining sector, tus skill set and his familianty with the
operating and geographical environment in which the Company's assets
are located, the Board believes his appointment to be in the best
interests of the Company and, furthermore, did not view the need to use
any external search consultant in the circumstances In addition, the
balance of independent and non-ndependent Directors required under
the UK Corporate Governance Code apphes from Apnl 2013 onwards,
following the appointment of Mr Tomsett and Mr Clow

Lastly, the latest edition of the UK Corporate Governance Code requires
that the Board provides a fair, balanced and understandable assessment
of ABG's position and prospects In 1ts external reporting The 2013
Annual Report and Accounts is the first Annual Report and Accounts
prepared under this obligation Accordingly, the Directors were
responsible for 1ts preparation and approval and consider the Annual
Report and Accounts for 2013, taken as a whole, to be farr, balanced
and understandable and believe that this provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the ABG s performance, business
model and strategy

ABG's external auditors have reviewed those parts of this statement,
which they are required to review under the Listing Rules of the
United Kingdom Listing Authorty In addrbion to compliance with the
UK Corporate Governance Code, as part of commitments given in
connection with ABG's secondary listing on the Dar es Salaam Stock
Exchange, the Board has undertaken to comply with the Corporate
Governance Guidelines 1ssued by the Tanzanian Capital Markets and
Securities Authority to the extent that these requirements are equivalent
1o applicable UK corporate governance standards In the case of any
conflict between the two the requirements of the UK Corporate
Governance Code prevail
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT CONTINUED

Performance evaluation

The annual performance evaluation of the Board and its committees was conducted under the guldance
of the Company Secretary, by way of anoenymous questionnaires The questionnaire focused on a range of
key topics, the findings of which will be used to help formulate key targets and actions for 2014.

BOARD EVALUATION FOCUS COMMITTEE EVALUATION FOCUS

Leadership
Procedures and intemal cantrols

Leadership Roles and responsibiliies

Compensation appointments Strategic aims and objectives
shills, expenence and trairng Risk management

Attendance at meetngs =1 p Anendance at mesungs,
rocedures and intemal controls
contnbution intemal u contnbution, internal
relationships Communication with refationships
shareholders and others

Establishment and role

Compaosition appointments,
skills expenence and traming

ASSESSMENT FOR THE BOARD ASSESSMENT FOR THE COMMITTEES

Board evaluation results were used to produce a performance
report for presentation to the Board, for purposes of discussion
and debate, in order to agree work plans and actions for 2014

KEY PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND ACTIONS FOR 2014
Progression of strategic aims and development of further
strategic goals and objectives

Progression of organisational restructunng
Further enhancement of cost and capital discipline controls

Review of requiremerts for ABG s compliance, risk and
govemance emaronment
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The evaluation results were used to produce a performance report
for discussion and debate, in order to agree work plans and
actiens for 2014

KEY PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND ACTIONS FOR 2014
Assessment of terms of reference, effectiveness of members'
skilts, expenence and quahfications
Work plans and actions for 2014 individually set by
each committee




COMMITTEE REPORTS

Audit committee

Andre Falzon,
Committee chairman

Membership
Percentage of
Meetings meetings
attended attended
Andre Falzon (Chair) 5 100%
Peter Tomsett 3 60%
Rachel English 1 20%
Introduction

| am the chair of the committee and have over 25 years of
financial and management expenence within the minthg
industry 1 am a CGA (Canada) and CPA, CA (Canada), which
together provides me with the relevant financial expenence
required for my pasition under applicable corporate governance
standards As part of overall committee reviews during the year,
Michael Kenyon and Derek Pannell retired from the committee
and were replaced by Rachel English and Peter Tomsett
Details of members’ experlence and qualifications are provided
on pages 40 and 41 of the Governance report Our terms of
reference require us to meet at least four times a year, and in
2013 we met five times The Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Qfficer, the Head of Risk and Internal Audit, members
of the Company’s finance and treasury function and the
external auditors also attend committee meetings on a regular
basis We also hold individual meetings with ABG's external
auditors and the Head of Risk and Internal Audit without
management present to discuss matters within our

remit of responsibillties

* Ms English was appointed at the end of the year and Mr Tomsett was
appointed midyear therefore, therr respectve attendance reflects thewr
ume of appointment

Further details regarding the commuttee and its terms
of reference are available for inspection on ABGs website

Key responsibilities

Our key responsibilities include oversight of financial reporting
and internal controls over financial reporting, overseeng the
Group's relauonship with ts external auditors and ABG's
internal audit function overseeing the external and internal
audit processes generalty and reviewing the effectiveness of
the ABG Groups systems of internal control and financea!
reporting nisk management

Activities in 2013 and plans for 2014

Our activities during the year were wide ranging, compnsing in

particular the following

+ Reviewing committee composition based on succession
planning, skill set and qualification requirements

» Reviewing our terms of reference and our remit of
responsibilities in light of changes ntroduced by the most
recent edition of the UK Corporate Governance Code
Reviewing the external auditors terms of engagement,
plans, scope of work, compensation, and the findings
ansing from all external audit work
Reviewing ABG's pencd:c financial reporting
Rewiewing key accounting policies and developments in the
finangial reporting and regulatory environment
Rewviewing the internal audit plan together with internal audit
reperts, findings and monitoning related action plans
Reviewing and recommending the appomntrnent of
Andrew Wray as Chief Financial Officer
Review succession planning for direct reports 10 the
Chief Financial Officer and the Head of Internal Audit
Reviewing enterprise nsk registers, tax disputes and
other Intigation
Reviewing whistleblowing arrangements to support reporting

requirements under ABG s Code of Conduct and Ant+-Fraud
and Ant-Corruption pohcies

In 2014, the committee will continue to focus on all of the
above matters, these being core 1o 1ts remit of responsibilities
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COMMITTEE REPORTS CONTINUED

AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTINUED

Significant 1ssues considered by the committee in 2013

In addition to carrying out the activities referred to above, we reviewed
and considered the following in the context of significant 1ssues relating
to ABG s financial statements

+ Impalrment calculations and assessments as a result of the
significant movements in the gold price across the year and the
related sensitivities of the carrying value of ABG's Cash Generating
Units {“CGUs") to gold pnce movements, particularly in the context of
Buzwagi and North Mara, management has been required to consider
impairment testing of all Company assets throughout the year,
particularly at the time of the Company's 2013 half-year report, and for
purposes of the annual impairment review conducted at yearend On a
gross basis, and before taking into account the impact of deferred tax,
the total impairment charge for 2013 amounted to US$690 5 million
at Buzwag), US$307 3 million at North Mara, US$46 & milion relating
to Nyanzaga and US$16 7 million at Tulawaka The commiitee has
reviewed and examined key assumptions used by management for
Impairment testing, in particular the long term average gold pnce used,
and the factors relevant to this selection, such as the Company's
operating cash cost levels, the basis on which these assumphions
were made and related factors underpinning relevant mine planning,
budgets and forecasts Views and contrnibutions of the externat
auditors as regards the impairment testing procedures and key
assumptions used formed part of the committee's review of all
Impalrment test caiculations The committee also relied on reviews
undertaken by the Technical committee as regards matters falling
within its remit of responsibilities Following these reviews, the
committee satisfied itself that key assumptions used to ascertain
the carrying value of the Company s CGUs had been approprately
reviewed and challenged and were therefore sufficiently robust for
use The committee also reviewed the disclosure contained in this
Annual Report and, in particular, the disclosure contained in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements as regards impairment
In order to satisfy tself of the accuracy and suitability of the
disclosures so made

+ Indirect tax recoverabllity as part of ongoing monitoring and review
of taxation matters, we have reviewed the status recoverability and
classification of the Company s indirect tax recevables relating to VAT
charged on imports and the domestic supply of goods and services
In this regard, we have recerved reports from management on the
status of discussions and negotiations of such matters between
management and the Tanzanian Revenue Authonty (*TRA"), we have
reviewed management s ongoing calculations of amounts so
outstanding, the procedure established to recover refunds and
amounts due under the escrow account established to fund refunds
due in respect of portions of the recevable, the audit process
followed to cenfirm such refunds, and the gverall time frame for the
receipt of such refunds against amounts outstanding under the
recevable from ime to time The commiitee has also taken into
account the views and contributions of the external auditors as
regards recoverability and classification of relevant indirect tax
receivables Based on the foregoing, the committee has satisfied
itself that the Company's indirect tax recevables are recoverable and
appropnately classified in the circumstances and 1s satisfied with the
suitability of the related disclosures contained in this Annual Report
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Deferred tax a number of tax assessments have been raised by the
TRA in prior years which have been challenged by members of the
ABG Group We have reviewed the basis of these assessments and
discussed with management thewr views as to why the assessments
are incorrect, along with the status of appeals and recent
correspondence with the TRA We also discussed these matters with
the external auditors Based on this review the committee concluded
that the Company had sufficiently prowided for any uncertain tax
positions and that any matenal contingent liabilites had been
adequately disclosed In addition, the committee reviewed the amount
of deferred tax recognised with respect to losses Incurred In previous
periods and was comfortable with the amounts recognised

Inventory level assessmonts as part of ongoing cost control and
Inventory management raviews the committee has reviewed and
scrutinised management s inventory level maintenance processes
ex1sting inventory carrylng values and the approach taken to ascertam
write-downs, particularly as regards inventory at Tulawaka and

Buzwagl Management reported to the committee on the procedures
undertaken to determine and moritor inventory levels across the
Group and overall supply chain procedures required to achieve optimal
inventory levels In addition, management reported to the committee
on all adjustments required to be made to inventory calculations,
something which was further expanded through discussions with the
external auditors as regards their analysis and treatment of these
1ssues Based on this process the committee 1s satisfied that
management’s position and presentation of the Company s inventory
and retated costs are suitable in the circumstances

Golng concem review 1n addition to the matters stated above, all

of which are relevant to the Board s assessment of ABG s position

as a going concern — the statement relating to which 1s provided at
page 33 - the committee also reviewed other matters relevant to
ABG s liquidity, namely the ongoing availability of net cash balances,
ABG s hedging strategy and policy, and the availability of funds under
existing credit facilities Management reported to the committee on
each of these matters and was questioned accordingly In this regard,
the cammittee has also taken into account the views of the external
auditors in order to sattsfy itself of the position taken by the Board as
regards to the appropnateness of the going concern assumption
contained Iin this Annual Report

Falr, balanced and understandable review at the request of the
Board the committee has also reviewed the namratve content of the
Annual Report in order to make a recommendation that the report
salisfies rewised narrative reporting requirements in that the Annual
Report, when taken as a whole 1s farr, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for shareholders 1o assess
the Company s performance, business model and strategy In this
regard the cormnmittee has taken advice from the company secretarnat
and the Company’'s legal function to satisfy itself of the relevant legal
and regulatory framework underpinring this disclosure standard




Internal and extemal audit reviews

As regards intemal audit throughout the year the committee receved
regutar reports on matters under review by the internal audit function
and has reviewed such matters and raised questions with the Head of
Risk and Internal Audit accordingly We also reviewed the intemal audit
charter, mandate and performance in order to assess ongoing
effectveness, following which the committee concluded that the internal
audit function remains effectve and performs in accordance with
requirements of the business

As regards external audit, we have assessed the effectiveness of the
external audit process via responses to surveys received from the
Chief Financial Officer, members of the finance and treasury functicn,
and in particular members of the Company’s financial reporting team
and the company secretariat The survey compnsed a range of factors
including the following

Progress achieved against the agreed external audit plan

Competence with which the external auditors handled key accounting
and audst jJudgements and commenication of the same between
management, the committee and the external audsit team

Compliance with relevant regulatory, ethical and professional guidance
on rotation of lead audit partners

Qualifications, expertise, resources and the external auditor s own
assessment of ther quality control procedures

The stability and continuity provided to the business as a result of the
continued appointment of PricewaterthouseCoopers LLP (“PwCT™) as
external auditors

Based on this assessment, the committee concluded that the external
auditors remain effective and we will be recommending the re-
appointment of the external auditors at the forthcoming AGM in hght of
this assessment As regards external audit tender considerations, PwC
have acted as external auditors for the ABG Group since its histing on
the London Stock Exchange in March 2010 We continue to monitor
developments and best practice in this area and are mindful of guidance
published dunng the year by the Financial Reporting Councill, the findings
contained in the Competition Commission’s final report on 1ts market
Investigation into the supply of statutory audit services to large
companies in the UK, and ongoing developments in a wider European
context as regards audit tendering requirements Going forward the
committee intends to put the audit services out to tender at least once
every 10 years, to enable the commttee to compare the qualty of
effectiveness of the services provided by the incumbent auditor with
those of cther audit firms In respect of such tender, the committee will
oversee the selection process and ensure that all tendenng firms have
such access to information and individuals as 1s necessary for the
duration ¢f the tendenng process As regards non-audit services
provided by the external auditors, the committee reviews the status

of all non audrt senaces on a quarterly basis and 1s required to consider,
and where appropnate provide pnor approval for, the provision of all

non audrt work by the external auditors to ensure that any such work

can be conducted without adversely affecting auditor independence
Generally, any such non-audsit work 15 lirmited to matters relating to
taxation, this being directly relevant to the financial assessment and
external audit of the Company Norraudit servwces will not be approved
in instances where the related fee would have a materal beanng on the
level of work required to be undertaken for the external audit itself,

In order to ensure that auditor objectivity and independence 15
safeguarded In addition to this, sentor members of the external audit
team and the lead audit partner rotate periodically and at least every
five years tin ine with PwC s internal policies on independence As a
company we also maintain a stnct discipline on the recruitment of any
former employees of the external auditors to ensure independence 1S
not undermined in this regard
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COMMITTEE REPORTS CONTINUED

EHS&S committee

Ambassador Mwapachu,
Committee chairman

Membership
Percentage of
Meetings meetings
attended attended
Ambassador Mwapachu (Chair) 4 100%
Dawid Hodgson 4 100%
Graham Clow 2 50%
Rachel English 4] 0%
Introductlon

| assumed the role of chairman of the committee this year
following the Board's review of the composition of all of its
committees, in light of my wide-ranging experience within
Africa generally and David Hodgson's assumption of the role
of chatrman of the Technical committee David Hodgson,
Graham Clow and Rachel English act as the other members
of the committee following the retirement of Kelvin Dushnisky,
Rick McCreary and Derek Pannell from the committee during
the year Details of members' experience and qualifications
are provided on pages 40 and 41 of the Governance report
Our terms of reference require us to meet at least twice a
year, and in 2013 we met four times The Chief Executive
Officer and those Involved in the Company’s environmental,
health, safety and security (“EHS&S") and corporate social
responsibility (“CSR™) functions also attend committee
meetings on a regular basis to discuss matters within our
remit of responsibilities
* Ms Enghsh was appointed at the end of the year and Mr Clow was
appointed midyear therefore, thew respective attendance refiects

their time of appomtment In this regard no meetings of the committee
were held following Ms English s appointment

Further details regarding the commttee and 1ts terms
of reference are available for inspection on ABG's website

52 www africanbarmickgald.com

Key responsibilities

Our key responsibilities focus on the oversight and review

of ABG activities that are of core importance to ABG's social
licence to operate, and responsible miming practices

These include ABG's strategy and policy on environmental,
occupationzl health and safety, CSR and secunty matters,
reviewing the effectiveness of Group EHS&S systems and
controls and generally overseeing management’s monitoring
and evaluation of emerging CSR 1ssues to assess the potential
impact on ABG's business and uperations

Activities in 2013 and plans for 2014
Our activities dunng the year were wide ranging, and comprnsed
the following in particular

Reviewing committee composition, based on succession
planning, skill set and quahfication requirements

Reviewing our terms of reference and our remit of
responsibilittes in light of ongoing developments within
the Company's business and operating environment

Reviewing ABG s EHS&S and CSR strategies and prnonties,
perfarmance, metnes, trends and incident reports

Reviewing key nsks in ABG s operating enviconment as
regards EHS&S and CSR

Reviewing ABG management systems and processes as
regards EHS&S and CSR

Reviewing key regulatory and other developments relevant to
the EHS&S and CSR operating environment

Rewviewing and monitoring the status of occupational, health
and safety targets and systems

Identifying and reviewing specific focus areas in the context
of performance and strategic reviews, Including ABGs
communmity relations and community investment strategy
and approach, ABG’s envirohmental and perrmit rmanagement
approach, ABG's secunty sirategy and management systems
and controls, ABG’s strategy as regards artisanal and
smallscale miners and the development of alternative
livelihoods, ABG s government relations and public relations
approach, and stakeholder engagement strategies

We also recelved regular updates and reports on progress
made as regards ABG Maendeleo Fund tnitiatives and we
reviewed management s plans to address certain operational
requrements having a CSR nexus, such as land acquisstion
and resettlement and the Tulawaka closure In 2014, the
committee will continue to focus on the majority of the above
matters, these being core to its remit of responsibilities




Nomination and Governance committee

Kelvin Dushnisky,
Committee chairman

Membership
Percentage of
Meetings Meetings
attended attended
Kehin Dushnisky (Chair) 3 100%
Ambassador Mwapachu 3 100%
Peter Tomsett” 1 33%
Introductlon

| assumed the role of chairman of the committee this year,
following the departure of Derek Pannell Ambassador
Mwapachu and Peter Tomsett act as the other members of the
committee Details of members’ expenence and qualifications
are provided on pages 40 and 41 of the Governance report
Our terms of reference require us to meet at least twice a year,
and 1n 2013 we met three imes The Chief Executive Officer
and external advisers also attend committee meetings to
discuss matters within our remit of responsibilities

*  MrTomsett was appointad micyear therefore his attendance reflects
hig time of appointment

Further details regarding the commuttee and 1ts terms
of reference are available for inspection on ABGs website

Key responsibilities

We play a leading role In reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and in revtewing prospective

new Board appointments and succession planming
requirements We also have pnmary responsibility for making
recommendations to the Board on the composition of Board
committees and we manage recommendations for the
retirement and replacement of Directors As mentioned in my
introduction to the Govermnance report, the Board has recently
taken the decision to expand our remit of responsibilities to
include the delegation of authority for the oversight and
determination of ABG's corporate governance policies and
procedures This requires not only a review of ABG's
compliance with applicable corporate governance standards
but also includes delegated authonty to monitor and review
independence requirements and the Cormpany's practices and
procedures as regards the management of actual and/or
potential conflicts of interest

Activities In 2013 and plans for 2014
Qur activities dunng the year were wide ranging, and compnsed
the following in particular

Reviewing committee composition based on succession
planning, skill set and qualification requirements

Reviewing our terms of reference and our remit of
responsibilities in hght of ongoing developments within the
Company's busingss and operating environment and
developments within a corporate governance context

Reviewing the Board's structure, size and composition in the
context of the Company's strategic and business objectives
and dentrfying candidates and making recommendations as
regards new independent Non-Executive Director appointments

Assisting in the recruitment process for the Company s
new CEQ

Monitonng and reviewing the Company's procedures for
Board appointments and the reappointment of Directors in
accordance with the Board assessment and skills matnx

.

Reviewing key regulatory and other developments relevant to
the commitiee s role and responsibilities
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COMMITTEE REPORTS CONTINUED

NOMINATION AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE CONTINUED

The committee also provided oversight and review of the Board and
Board committees annual performance and effectiveness evaluations,
an overview of which 1s provided on page 48 In 2014, the committee
will continue to focus on the majonty of the above matters, these being
core to 1ts remit of responsibilities In addition to this, the committee
will monitor the executton of action items from all performance and
effectiveness evaluationg, and we will also conduct appropnate
corporate governance policy and procedure reviews throughout the year

Generally, we assess all Board appointments on ment and against
objective cnteria As regards diversity whilst the Company has not
adopted a formal policy, we base all recruitment on the premise that we
strive to attract a broad mix of indseduals from both the tradiional and
non-tradstional miming labour markets in order to create a diverse
workgroup and maintain a unique comparny culture Above all, we aim to
hire all individuals on the basis of the best candidate for all positions,
at all lavels, including Board and semor management positions,
irrespective of gender

Save for appointments made by Barrick under nomination nghts
contained in the Relationship Agreement, Board appointments are
made on the basis of pre-determined job descnptions which include,

as regards independent Non-Executive Directors, estimates of time
commitment requirements From a recruitment and candidate search
perspective, our existing Directors provide access to a wide network of
potential Board appaintment candidates, particularly within the extractive
industry, as a result of thewr collective expenence and standing within
the extractive sector In addition to this, we look to retain external
search consultants to assist us in iWdentifiing potential candidates

for Board positions, when appropriate to do so This year we retained
Egon Zehnder to provide assistance as regards the recruitment process
used for Brad Gordon, and Russell Reynolds Associates to provide
assistance in the identification and recruitment of new independent
Non-Executive Directors Nerther firm has any other cennection with the
Company As previously explained in earlier sections of the Governance
report, in light of my existing knowledge and expenence with the
Company and s operations the Board did not feel it appropnate to
use an external search agency in connection with my appointment

as Chairman
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Technical committee

David Hodgson,
Commuttee chairman

Membership
Percantage of
Meetings Meetings
Dawvid Hodgson (Chair) 2 100%
Rick McCreary 2 100%
Michael Kenyon 2 100%
Graham Clow 2 100%
Introduction

| act as the chairman of the committee, with Rick McCreary,
Michae! Kenyon and Graham Clow acting as the other
members Details of members' experience and qualifications
are provided on pages 40 and 41 of the Governance report
Our terms of reference require us to meet at least twice a
year, and in 2013 we met twice The Chlef Executive Officer
and individuals involved in the Company’s technical,
operatlonal and geology functions also attend committee
meetings on a regular basis to discuss matters within our
remit of responsibilities

Further detaus regarding the commattee and its terms
of reference are available for inspection on ABG's website
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Key responsibilities

The Board took the decision to form the committee during the
latter half of 2012 1n order to provide further assistance and
oversight for the review of the Company s planning and capital
allocation procedures, reserves and resources estimates and
matters relating to ABG's exploration programmes

Actlvities in 2013 and plans for 2014
Our activities dunng the year compnsed the following
In particular

Reviewing the Group’s mine planning processes

Reviewing life of mine plans in particular the new life of
mine plans adopted for Buzwagl and North Mara

Reviewing existing capial applications for the Group s
ongoing capital projects

Reviewing the Group's reserves and resources estimates
and, in particular, the annual reserves and resources
estimate published as part of this Annual Report

in collaboration with the Audit committee and the Board
as a whole, reviewing relevant assumptions and technical
considerations for Group Impairment tests and
impairment calgulauons

Reviewing ABG s exploration programme and making
recommendations as regards the pnonty of projects
and programmes

Conducting a stte review of all of ABG's operations

Where relevant and appropriate the committee has made
recommendations to the Board in respect of the above As
noted above, all members of the committee participated in a
site visit of ABG's operations durlng the year as part of the
committee’s activities In 2014, the committee will continue
to focus on the above matters, these being core to its remit
of responsibilities, under the guidance of Graham Clow who
will act as chairman of the committee following my departure
from the Board at the forthcoming AGM
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REMUNERATION REPORT

Enhancing compensation structures

Michael Kenyon,
Committee chairman

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board I am pleased to present the Directors’ Remuneration
Report for the financial year ending 31 December 2013

Company performance in 2013 has been strong overall,

in terms of the progressicn of the business and the
achievement of a number of key aperational and financial
performance targets Key performance highlights include
achreving annual attributable gold production of 641,931
ounces of gold, 7% higher than the upper end of ABG's
2013 production gwdance range, at annual cash cost per
ounce sofd of US$827, being 10% lower than the lower
end of our cash cost guidance range set for the year, and
ach:eving a year on year AISC reduction of 14% whilst
achieving a total reportable inury frequency rate of O 68 for
the year, an 18% reduction on 2012 We also continued to
see good progress \n wider areas relaung to responsible
mning initiatives

As part of our ongoing review of compensation practices,
dunng the year we decided to adopt the following to better
align the interests of Executive Directors with shareholder
Interests and expectations
Executive Director Shareholding guldelines — we have
adopted shareholding guidelines that require iIndividuals
to build up a shareholding equal to two imes base salary
over a fiveyear penod
Changes to the assessment of TSR performance condition
for Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”) awands - this year we
have taken the decision to discontinue the practice of
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assessing the Company's TSR performance, applicable to
the vesting of Executve Director LTIP awards, against the
wetghted mean TSR of our comparator group Geing
forward, we have decided that vesting will be based on
outperformance of the unweighted median TSR in order
1o simplify current practices, enhance transparency and
better align our approach with UK market practice This
change also requires TSR performance to be at least
equal to that of the applicable comparator group i order
to receive any payment under LTIP awards

Changing the TSR comparator group for operation
of the LTIP - in addition to enhancing the operation
of the TSR performance condition during the year we
decided to change the comparator group relevant for
the assessment of the TSR performance condition
Going forward, vesting of Executive Director LTIP awards
will be determined by reference to the constituents of
the Euromoney Global Gold Index This decision was
taken to provide further objectmity to the TSR
assessment and to address wider considerations
applicable to the performance of parucipants in the
gold mining industry

Change of control - change of control provisions
have been removed from Executive Director service
contracts and, going forward, will not be used for such
service agreements




In addition to conducting a general review of compensation
practices during the year, the committee also considered
the recruitment arrangements for Brad Gordon, the
Company's new CEO, the appropriate package for Andrew
Wray s assumption of the role of CFQO, and the remuneration
package for Michelle Ash, who was recruited dunng the year
to act as ABG s Executive General Manager for Planning and
Business Improvement The committee also reviewed the
exit arangements for Greg Hawkins following his stepping
down as CEOQ, detaits of which have been provided as part
of the 2013 Annual Report on Remuneraton

As regards significant decisions for 2014, in hght of the
ongoing implementation and deepening of the Operational
Review, and in particular the ongoing efforts to streamhne
our organisational structure and the impact that this will
Itkely continue to have on the wider ABG workforce, we have
taken the view that it would be inappropriate for the CEQ
and all other members of the Sentor Leadership Team to
recewve salary increases for 2014 We have also decided
to maintain the current level of maximum opportunites
avallable 10 members of the Sentor Leadership Team
{*5LT") under performancerelated incentive plans
{Short-Term Incentive plan, LongTerm Incentrve Plan and
Stock Option Plan), whilst enhancing the targets used to
assess applicable perforrmance metncs, particularly the
targets used to assess performance metrics applied to the
assessment of awards under the Short Term Incentive plan
These efforts and decisions reflect the Board's increasing
expectations of management and our continued development
of practices which promote pay for performance In this
regard, it ts important to note that ali of the decisions we
have taken regarding plans for the structure of senior
management remuneration in 2014 have received the full
support of the SLT as a whole, reflecting their ongoing
dedication 1o business improvement and therr commitment
and focus on dnving existing operational and cost control
intiatives further

As required under the Large and Medium-sized Companies
and Groups {Accounts and Reports) {Amendment)
Regulations 2013, the remaining content of this
Remuneration Report 1s divided into the Directors
Remuneration Policy (pages 57 to 64) and the Annual
Report on Remuneration for 2013 {pages 65 to 75) The
Directors Remuneration Policy will be put to shareholders
for approval In a binding vote at the forthcoming AGM and
will come into effect immediately following such approval
Save for the developments referred to above, the proposed
policy remains largely consistent with that operated for
2013 and approved at the 2012 AGM

FONVYNHIAO0YD

Directors’
Remuneration
Policy

ABG's approach te Directors’ remuneration

ABG’s approach to Directors remuneration aims to attract, motivate and
retan individuals of the calibre and with the talent necessary to manage
our strategic and busingss objectives, 1o kead our workforce and
operations and drive our Company and business forward in a challenging
and complex operating emaronment and industry. in order to deliver
sustainable shareholder returns We aim to achieve this by offenng
competitive packages benchmarked against general market practice
within the global mining industry, based on an ethos of pay for
performance and without rewarding for fallure

To achieve this we have formulated our Directors Remuneration Policy
{*Remuneration Policy”) on the basis of the following objectives

Remaining competitive with intemational gold mining, general mming
and FTSE hsted companies of a similar size and complexity

Aligning the interests of Directors, and in particular Executive
Directors, with the short and long-term interests of shareholders

Linking executive remuneration to the performance of the Company
and, where appropnate, the indmwdual

Achieving an appropriate balance between fixed and performance-
related pay

Incorporating performance metrics that support and promote the
progression of the key performance indicators used to monitor
performance across the wider business

Setting challenging performance targets that reward delivery
and success

Reinforcing key business imperatives and strategy
Reflecting developments affecting the ABG Group's wider workforce

In defining our Remuneration Policy we have taken into account advice
received from external consultants and external legal counsel, best
practice guidelines on executive remuneration 1ssued by institutional
bodies, such as the Association of Bnush Insurers, and have also taken
into account feedback from our shareholders, notably in the context of
their voting at AGMs In addition, whilst we do not consult employees on
the formutation of the Remuneration Policy, we do take into account
wider developments as regards our compensation practices for our wider
employee base This 1s particularly the case when determining satary
increases for the CEO and the Senior Leadership Team as part of overall
anhual salary reviews For example, in 2013 the average salary increase
across the Group was 8% compared to 3% for the CEQ
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Implementing our Remuneration Pollcy

We structure remuneration packages using a mixture of fixed and
performance-related components We have also adopted shareholding
guidelines to ensure alignment between Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and shareholders

Fixed components of remuneration packages for Executive Directors
compnse base salary, pension and taxable benefits Performancerelated
components are defivered via the following performance-ncentive plans

Short-Term Incentlve {“5TI"} — a cash-based annual bonus incentive
designed to focus executives on the delivery of key shortterm
operational objectives In order to reinforce business prionties for
each financial year This incentive scheme 1s measured on the basis
of Company-wide performance and, where appropriate, individual
performance Performance metrics are set on an annual basis,
reflecting wider key perfarmance indicators used across our business
and strategic objectives set for the Company The targets for the
performance metncs vary from year to year and take Into account
ohgoing business needs and prionties when setting appropriate base,
target and stretch thresholds

Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP"} - a long term incentive plan that
provides for the award of conditional shares, share optrons and
restncted stock units, but that 1s primanly used to grant restricted
stock units {“RSUs™) Awards made to Executive Directors vest on the
basis of TSR performance condition{s) (share price and dwvidends),
assessed over a threeyear performance period Histongcally, the TSR
performance condition was assessed on the basis of the Company's
relative TSR performance against the weighted mean TSR of a
comparator group of companies consisting of international gold
miners Going forward, the Company will assess TSR performance on
outperformance of the unweighted medan TSR aganst the
constituents of the Euromoney Global Gold Index The LTIP ams to
reward longterm decision making and performance that delivers
long-term shareholder value and returns The Compensation
committee considers that relative TSR 1s an appropnate performance
measure for the LTIP because 1t captures objectively the shareholder
retumn delvered over the long term and 1s less sensitive to short term
changes In the gold pnice than many alternative measures commonly
used in LTIPs

Stock Optlon Plan {(“SOP™) - a stock option plan pursuant to which
options are granted over Company shares on a nikcost basis and with
an exercise pnee equal to the fair market value at the date of grant
Grants vest in equal parts over four years and expire seven years from
the date of grant The application of a performance condition to SOP
awards I1s diseretionary in order to ensure that SOP awards can be
used for retention and recruitment purposes, in addition to incentive
purposes This incentive arrangement aims to reward long term
decision making and performance that delivers shareholder value and
returns over the long term and also prowides a basis on which
executives can bulld a stake in the Compary, further aligning interests
between management and shareholders

The proportion of Executive Direclor total remuneration that is
performancevelated 1s significant for target performance in erder to drive
a culture of pay for performance The performance targets set for any
given year are set at such a level as to be stretching but achievable,
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with regard to the particular strategic pnorities and economic and
Industry developments for the year in question Further detalls of fixed
and performance-elated components of our Remuneration Policy are
provided in the Summary Table of Executive Directors’ Remuneration
Policy In addition to the above elements of remuneraticn, the
Compensation committee may constder It appropriate to grant incentive
awards under a different structure in order to facilitate the recrutment of
an individual, exercising the discretion avallable under Listing Rule

94 2 R The Compensation committee also retains various discretions
in order to assess Executive Director exit and severance arrangements
when necessary, In order to ensure that any severance and exit
arrangements entered into by the Company with exiting indmaduals are
fair and reasonable in the circumstances Further information regarding
our approach 1o Executive Director recruitment 1s provided at pages 61
to 62 and further information as regards our approach to determining
Executive Director exit arrangements Is provided at pages 62 to 63

Our Remuneration Policy as regards NonrExecutive Directors 1s based on
the payment of appointment fees, comprised of a base fee and
additional fees for the role of Senior Independent Director, Board
committee chair and committee membership fees Independent
Non-Executive Directors may also make elections to receive deferred
share units (“*DSUs") under the Company's Deferred Share Unit Plan
(“DSU Ptan”™)n lieu of all or part of the annual fees, details of which are
provided on pages 63 and 64 Non-Executive Directors are not eligible to
partictpate in the ST, LTIP or SOP

Use of Remuneration Policy across the ABG workforce

In general, we apply our Remuneration Policy to Executwve Directors and
all members of the Senior Leadership Team alike to ensure that all key
individuals tnvolved in the day to day management and oversight of the
Company are appropnately awarded and motivated to drive the Company
forward All members of the SLT are eligible for awards under the STI,
LTIP and SOP and therr performance targets are the same as, or
cascaded from, the targets set for the Executive Directors In addition,
certain LTIP awards may be made to members of the SLT on a time-only
vesting basis to assist with retention The Compensation committee
reviews and approves the indrvidual remuneration packages for all
members of the SLT to ensure they are appropriate in the
circumstances The committee also reviews and approves all annual
base salary increases and annual incentive awards made for these
indmviduals for the same purpose The reward framework at other senior
executiva levels also focuses heavily on performancerelated
remuneration In addition to the SLT key senior employees participate in
the LTIR including mine General Managers and members of therr
respective mine management teams, departmental and functionat
heads, and indwiduals who are otherwise identified as high potentral/
performing employees for business performance and succession
planning purposes By adopting this approach, the Company seeks to
promote the alignment of indwvidual interests with those of shareholders
In order to drive the business forward

Withuin the wider workforce, there 1s alignment on overall ABG Group
targets under the annual bonus plan this is then supported by relevant
team and individual targets to focus colleagues on key deliverables in
their area of the business The specific bonus framework varies by job
level and scope, as appropriate




SUMMARY TABLE FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATICON POLICY

Fixed remuneration

Base salary Pension Benefits
Purpose To provide an appropriately cornpetitive level of  To help provide for an To provide benefits which are
base salary with due regard to the size and appropriate retirement benefit  competitive in the market tn which the
nature of the responsibdities of each role, as indnadual 1s employed
well as an indmwdual executive’s experience
Operation Reviewed annually, with any adiustments Executive Directors receive Executive Directors receive benefits,
effective 1 January and made at the discretion  contributions into a personal which usually include the provision of a
of the Compensation committee pension scheme of their choice, company ¢ar or cash altemative, health
or a cash supplement of and life Insurance, lrability insurance,
Salanes are benchmarked against international commensurate value fithess clut membership and
gold miring, general mining and FTSE listed
companies of similar size and complexity The Group does nat operate any professional membership, however, the
defined benefit schemes Compensation committee retains
The Compensation committee also takes into discretion to approve any other form of
account corporate and mndividual performance benefit that 1t deems approprate to
and expenence, general market conditions, and award depending on tndividual
salary increases applied within the Company circumstances For example, relocation
as a whole allowances and intemational transfer
related benefits are often provided for,
when required, In line with general
industry practices for the recruitment of
international employees
Opportunity To avoid setting expectations of Executive Executive Directors receive The value of benefits will generally be
Directors and other employees, no maximum contributions or an equivalent assessed on the basis of market norms
salary 1s set under the Remuneration Policy It cash supplement equal to a at the relevant point in tme
1S not anticipated that salary increases for percentage of gross base salary

The Compensation commitiee retains
the discretion to approve a higher total
cost of benefits in exceptional
circumstances (e g relocation) or in
cireumstances where factors outside
the Company's control have changed
matenally {e g Increases in medical
coverage mflation)

Executive Directors will exceed those of the in line with market norms at the
wider workforce over the penod dunng which relevant pount in time

this Remuneratton Policy 1s effectve Where

increases are awarded In excess of the wider

employee population, the Committee will

provide the rationale in the relevant year's

Annual Report on Remuneration

Performance measures

Mot applicable Not applicable Not appltcable

Short-Term Incentive (STI)

Purpose

To reinforce the delivery of key short-term operational objectives on an annual basis In order to promote performance as
regards business pnonties for each financial year in the context of individual and Company performance

Operation

Performance measure weightings and targets are set at the start of the year and weighted to reflect business priorties At
the end of the year, the Compensation committee determines the extent to which targets have been achieved, taking into
account Company-wide performance and the ndividual performance of each Executive Director

STl payments are delivered in cash, clawback provtisions apply to any STl payment made to an Executive Director in the
event of Individual misconduct or financial misstatement/misreporting

Opportunity

The STI provides Executive Directors with an annual bonus opportunity in the range of 0% to 150% of base salary, with
target bornws opportunity of 75% of base salary

Performance measures

Bonus outcomes are assessed by the Compensation committee on a scorecard assessment, based on the achievement of the
targets set for each performance measure and the committee’s broad assessment of Company performance

Performance measures are based on challenging budget and streteh targets for Company-wide financial and operational
performance and, where appropriate, indvidual performance Performance measures may include financial, operational,
growth production, cost and capital expendtture control and sustainability metrics Performance measures are selected
annually to reflect key strategic Intiatives and matters underpinning the key financial and nonfinancial performance
indicators used to manage performance across the ABG Group Performance measures will be weighted appropriately each
year according to the business plan Weightings of performance measures may vary, typically up to 10% and 50%, with the
range of performance required under each measure calibrated to reflect the Company s annual published gutdance range,
particularly as regards production, cash costs and capital expenditure For threshold performance, the ST) 1s anticipated to
be 75% of Executive Director base salary, unless otherwise determined by the Compensation committee

Whilst performance measures, weightings and targets for any given year will not be disclosed on a prospective basis due to
commercial sensitivities, the Compensation committee aims to provide such details retrospectively as part of the Annual
Report on Remuneration, unless ongoing commercial sensitivities discourage such disclosures
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Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

Purpose

To reinforce an enterprise cultture that promotes and protects shareholders’ longterm interests so as to reward longterm
decision making and performance that support the defivery of shareholder returns and dnve shareholder value over the long term

Operation

Awards of conditional shares, options or restnicted stock units ("RSUs™) may be granted annually, with the maximum value
that may be awarded 1o each Executive Director defined as a percentage of base szlary at the date of grant

Vesting is based on ABG's corporate performance over a three-year period There 1s no retest provision

Clawback provisions are included in the LTIP for Executive Directors, whereby an award 1s subject to clawback for one year
from the vesting date {or exercise date, if relevant) in the event of exceptional circumstances of indmdual misconduct or
financial misstatement/misreportng

Opportunity

The LTIP permits a maximum award with a value equal to 200% of base salary at the time of grant to be made each year
under normal crcumstances The Committee may exceed this imit in exceptional circumstances only Such circumstances
would include, for example, specific recruitment or retention scenarnos The exercise of this discretion would be assessed in
each case on the cicumstances in question

LTIP awards granted for annual incentve purposes are ordinanly granted at a target level equal to 150% of base salary at
the time of grant Maximum performance, which will be assessed as 35% outperformance of the unweighted median TSR
over the performance penocd going forward, can deliver vesting of up to 2x the target value of the award, 1 e an award with a
value of 150% of base salary at the time of grant would, If maximum performance were achieved, vest at a value equal to
300% at the time of vesting

Additional RSUs are credited to reflect dividends paid on ABG Ordinary Shares pnor 1o the vesting date Such RSUs are
subject to the same vesting provisions as the underiying awards

Performance measures

Subject to continued employment and ABG's relative TSR performance over a three-year performance penod when compared
to the constriuents of the Euromoney Global Gold Index TSR performance must be at least equal to that of the TSR
comparator group in order to receive any payment under LTIP awards, at which level 50% of the target award will vest If no
entitlement has been eamed at the end of a threeyear performance penod, awards will lapse

The Compensation committee reviews the comparator group of intermational gold miners agasnst which TSR performance 1s
measured from time to time to ensure it remains appropriate The Compensation committee has the discretion to determme
the treatment of comparators in the event of ther delisting or otherwise In any event which, in the opiron of the committee
compromises the suitability of a company as a comparator for ABG Additionally, the committee may, at its discretion, reduce
the number of awards vesting in the event that the achievement against the performance conditton 1s not a genuine refiection
of the underlying performance of the Company More generally, the performance measures applied to LTIP awards are
reviewed periodically to ensure they remain aligned with shareholder interests and, in this regard the commuttee retains
discretion 10 employ performance measures other than TSR to the LTIP i order to allow for performance assessments to
evolve over time

Share Option Plan {SOP}

Purpose

To reinforce an enterpnse culture that promotes and protects shareholders' long term interests, so as to reward long-term
decision making and performance that support the delivery of shareholder returns and dnve shareholder vatue over
the long term

Operation

Whilst the LTIP 1s expected to be used as the main long-term incentive for Executive Directors goung forward, the committee
retains the ability to grant stock options under the SOP where appropnate, such as In recrutment or retention sCenarnos

The Compensation committee will set a vesting penod for SOP awards appropnate to the circumstances at the time of
grant Histoncally, this has included vesting in equal parts over four years or vesting after three years All awards expire
seven years from the date of grant There are no clawback provisions included under the SQP

Opportunity

The S0P permits a maximum share option award with a value equal to 200% of base salary at the time of grant to be made
each year under normal circumstances The committee may exceed this imit in exceptional circumstances only Such
cireumstances would include, for example, specific recruitment or retention scenanos The exercise of this discretion

would he assessed in each case on the circumstances in question

In the event that a stock option award was used for annual incentive purposes, such awards would ordinanly be granted

at a target level equal to 150% of base salary at the time of grant In this regard, the committee would look to use an
appropnate valuation model for example, the Black-Scholes model, for purposes of ascertaining the fair vaiue of any award
made

Performance measures

The Compensation committee determines the performance metrics applying to share option awards as appropnate to the
circumstances at the time of grant, based on the purpose of making such award, ) @ whether for recruitment, retention or as
a matter of annual performance incentive Generally, in the event that the committee were to grant an SOP award as an
incentive, it would lock to apply an appropnate periormance condition
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Shareholding guldelines

Purpase To align the interests of Executive Directors with shareholders through the buiiding up of a sigrificant shareholding in
the Company
Operation Executive Directors are required to establish a mimimum shareholding holding equivalent 1o two times base salary over a

penod of five years Shareholding requirements may be satisfied by interests under LTIP awards

Performance measures  Not applicable

Pay-for-performance scenarlo analysis

The chart below provides an estimate of the potential future reward
opporturity for the Chief Executive Officer, and the potential spiit
between the different elements of remuneration under three different
performance scenanos Minimum, Ontarget and Maximum

Potential reward opportunities are based on the Remuneration Policy
apphed to the latest base salary The STl and LTIP are based on the
level of maximum opportunities applied in 2014 Note that the LTIP
awards granted In a year do not normally vest until the third annwversary
of the date of grant and the projected value excludes the impact of
share price movement

The minimum scenarnio reflects base salary, pension and benefits
{1 e fixed remuneration) which are the only elements of the Chief
Executive Officer s remuneration package not linked to performance

The on-target scenano reflects fixed remuneration as above, plus target
ST (75% of salary) and target vesting of the LTIP (150% of salary)

The maximum scenario reflects fixed remuneratton, plus maximum
payout under all incentives {150% of salary under the STl and full
vesting of an LTIP award at maximum performance, which would be
equal to 300% for an award granted at target of 150% of base salary)

Use of Compensation committee discretions

Generally, it is not possible for any remuneration policy to pre-empt every
possible scenano and for this reason the Compensation comnuttee has
been provided with the ability to apply various discretions and
Judgements in order to ensure the achievement of fair cutcomes and to
maintain the flexibility required to balance the interests of individuals
and those of the Company For example, the Compensation committee
may be required to exercise discretion when determiming whether or not
the outcomes of performance measures and targets applicable to
incentive ptans are fair in context, or if realiies encourage the use of

upward or downward adjustments By means of Illustration, this may be
the case as a result of the impact of wider socic-economic or political
factors or marketwide developments that were generally unforeseeable
or remote at the time of setting performance measures, but nonetheless
occur dunng a performance period It 1s for such reasons that the
Compensation committee retains a number of discretions for the
operation of all incentive schemes (5T1, LTIP and SOP) including, but

not imited to, the ability to determine the following

Scheme participants
The timing of grant and size of awards

Appropnate treatment of vesting of awards in the context of
restructurings and/or takeovers

Appropriate adjustments to awards in the event of variations to the
Company s share capital

Absent specific bad leaver scenanos, the ability to determine and
designate leavers as good leavers in order to determine appropnate
treatment of awards in exit scenarnos

Treatment, size and grant of awards In a recruitment context

The application, scope, weighting and targets for applicable
performance measures and performance conditions from urme to time,
including any amendments to existing performance measures/
conditions and related targets

Whilst it may not be possible to give an exhaustive list of Compensation
committee discretions, the exercise of discretions and the raticnale
underpinming their use, If any, will generally be provided in context, as
part of the Annual Report on Remuneration

Approach to recrultment of Executive Directors

When determining the remuneration package for a new Executive
Director the Compensation committee aims to offer a package that 1s
sufficiently competitive, to attract motivate and retain candidates of the
calibre and experience required to run our business This will generally
be determined in each case not only in the context of the skills required
for a position and those of each candidate, but will alsc be determined
on the basis of recruitment trends withun the global mining industry and
any additional considerations relevant to the recruitment of executives in
the FTSE, and other markets outside of London In additton our
approach to recrutment will also depend on whether we use external
recruitment or internal prometion routes

External recruitment

In determuning appropnate remuneration for an extemal candidate, the
Compensation committee will take into consideration all relevant factors
{Including guantum, the nature of remuneration and the jurnsdiction the
candidate was recruited from) to ensure that arrangements are in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders For such purposes,
the Compensation committee may make use of all of the existing
components of the Remuneration Policy as follows
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Component Approach Maximum annual grant value
Fixed Base salary The base salanes of new appointees will be determined by reference to relevant N/A
remuneration market data, expenence and skills of the indmvidual, internal relativities and their

current basic salary Where new appointees have inimal basic salanes set below
market, any shortfall may be managed with phased increases over a perod of
two to three years subject to thewr development in the role

Pension New appointees will receive pension contnbutions or an equivalent cash
supplement, which 1s equivalent to that received by existing executwves and in

line with market norms

Benefits New appointees will be elgible tc recewve benefits whsch may include (but are not
limited to) the provision of a company car or cash alternative, private medical
insurance and any necessary relocation expenses

Vanable STl

The STl described in the Summary Table of Executive Directors Remuneration

150% of salary

remuneration Poticy will apply to new appontees with the relevant maximum being protated to
reflect the proportion of employment over the year Targets for the indvidual
element will be tallored towards the executive

LTiP New appointees will be granted awards under the LTIP on the same terms as

200% of salary

other executives, as descnbed In the Summary Table of Executive Directors’

Remuneration Policy

S0P New appointees may be granted awards under the SOP, as descnbed in the

200% of salary

Summary Table of Executive Directors’ Remuneration Policy

*  Based on target level award can be higher in circumstances deemed by the Committee to be exceptional, | € where it 1s necessary to buy out incentive arrangements

ar make offers equivalent to sign-on bonuses

The Compensation committee may also make an award under one

of the Company s incentive plan outhined above in respect of a new
appointent to buy out incentive arrangements forfeted on leaving a
previous employer In doing so, the committee will consider relevant
factors including any performance conditions attached to these awards,
the likelihood of those conditions being met and the term remaining to
their vesting In addition, where candwdates are recruited from overseas,
the Committee may be required to consider additional benefits receved
in the home Jjunsdiction or arrange for a form of substitution of such
benefits in addition to the payment of suitable relocation allowances
The Compensation committee may also consider 1t appropnate to grant
an award under a structure not included in the Remuneration Policy,
exercising the discretion available under Listing Rule 9 4 2 R where
necessary Such an award would include, for example, a sign-on
payment The recruitment package used to appoint Brad Gordon i1s
outlined in the Annual Report on Remuneration

tnternal promotion

In cases of appointing a new Executive Director by way of internal
promation, the Committee will be consistent with the policy used for
external appointees detaled above Where an individual has contractual
commitments made prior to his or her promotion to Executive Director
level, the Company will continue to honour these arrangements even in
instances where they would not otherwise be consistent with the
prevalling Remuneration Policy at the time of appointment

Approach to Executive Director exft arrangements

Executive Director service contracts, including arrangements for early
termination, are carefully considered by the Compensation committee
and are designed to recruit, retain and motivate directors of the quality
required to manage the Company The committee considers that
appointments of an indefinite term and with a notice penod of one year
1o be appropriate The service contract used for the Company’s current
CEQ being the sole Executive Director at present, provides for
compensation of 12 months' salary in the event of early termination
The Company has the discretion to pay such compensation In
instalments, requinng the Executive Director to mitigate loss (1 e by
gaming new employment) over the relevant penod, or in a lump sum

If notice to terminate 1s served by erther the Executive Director or the
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Company, the Executive Director can continue to receive basic salary,
benefits and pension for the duration of his/her notice penod during
which the Company may require the indmdual to continue to fulfit s/
her current duties or may assign a penod of garden leave, depending on
the circumstances in question The service contract used for any hew
hire would be based on similar terms The CEC's service contract 1s
availlable for mspection at the Company's registered office

Generally, in an exit scenang the Company will honour all contractual
entitlements. this being a matter required by the operation of law, and
for individuals who relocated from overseas, reasonable relocation costs
will be considered as appropnate in the circumstances

The treatment of incentive amangements in exit scenarios are
considered on a case-by-case basis, taking into account the relevant
contractual terms of the indwidual, the circumstances of the exit and any
applicable duty to mitigate Generally, the payment of incentives as part
of exit arrangements 15 determined on the basis of good leaver/bad
leaver and change of control scenanos Summary termination,
termination for gross misconduct or gross negligence or termination in
circumstances which would justify summary termination are all examples
of bad leaver scenanos Good leavers Include individuals who have left
the Company as a result of retirement, injury, disability or death In
addition, the Compensation committee retains the discretion to
determtne any leaver that 1s not a bad leaver as a good leaver This
discretion 1s viewed as necessary by the Company given the vast range
of scenanos tn which an indwidual may leave the Company where
conduct 1s not atissue The availability of this discretion Is particularly
key n exrt scenanos in which an indwvidual’s performance per se 1S not
at 1ssue Whilst 1t 1s not possible to provide an exhaustive Iist of such
scenarios, examples would include circumstances in which the Board
determines a need to change the Company's strategic direction or focus,
or 1S required to review Board and management composition generally,
as a result of operational or market developments, or other
developments in the business, such as entry into new markets or a
restructunng of the business In any event, when exercising such
discretion the Compensation committee would always recognise and
take into account the balance of shareholder interests and those of the
departing individual




The table below summarises how the variable incentives are typically treated in specific circumstances, subject 1o the exercise of the discretions

generally described above g
3
Event Timemg of vesting Calculatron of vesting/payment ;z;
z
Short-Term Incentive a8
Any event No automatic eligibility for payment The committee may exercise discretion to award a bonus for

the performance year Such discretion would generally only be
used in good leaver scenarios If an award 1s made, the award
will be made on a pro-rata basis for the penod of time served
1o the agreed termination date Any STI payment would be
subject to applicable STl performance measure and target ———
assessments for the year in question

RSUs and Stock Optlons
Resignation Awards lapse

Not applicable

Retirement, injury, disability, death or any other As set out In the vesting schedule

leaver determined by the committee to be a determined at grant
good leaver

Vesting of RSUs s calculated based on performance to the
end of the relevant performance penod with awards pro-rated
to reflect tume employed Note the committee may exercise
discretion to waive time prorating of award

Stock Options vest in full subject to the vesting schedule
determined at grant Any Stock Options which rermain
unexercised six months from the vesting date will lapse

Change of control
{not including intermal reorganisations)

Date of change of control

The commuttee determines whether and to what extent
outstanding R5Us and Stock Options vest based on all relevant
facts and matters icluding performance, time elapsed since
grant and the interests of ABG s shareholders Alternatively
ABG awards may be exchanged for new equivalent awards in
the acgquirer where appropnate

Any Stock Options which remain unexercised six months from
the vesting date will lapse

The treatment of exit arrangements for Greg Hawians 1s outlined in the Annual Report on Remuneration on page 73

Executlve Director external appointments

It 1s the Board s policy to allow Executive Directors to accept non-
executive directorships of other quoted companies for which they
would normally be allowed to retain fees Any such directorships must
be formally approved by the Charrman of the Board Currently, no such
positions are held by the Company s sole Executive Director

Approach to Non-Executive Director remuneration

The Board aims to recruit Non-Executive Directors of a high calibre with
broad commercial, international and other experience relevant to mining
operations Non-Executive Directors are appointed by the Board on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Governance committee Their
appointment 15 for an initial term of three years, subject to annual
re-election by shareholders at each AGM in accordance with the
requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code Upon the
recommendation of the Nomination and Governance committee, they
may be re-appointed for two additional terms of three years, subject to
their continuing to satisfy requirements for continuing appointment and,
again, subject to annual re-election by shareholders The terms of
engagement of the Non-Executive Directors are set out in a letter of
appointment These letters do not contain any proviston for
compensation for early termination of office, nor do they contain any
notice penods All letters of appointment for Non-Executive Directars
are available for inspection at the Company's registered office

Non-Executive Director remuneration primarily focuses on the payment
of fees As noted above Nor-Executive Directors are not entitled to
participate in any of the incentive plans available to Executive Directors
However Non-Executive Directors may participate 1n the Companys DSU
Plan This plan, which was established in 2012 provides Non-Executive
Directors with the option to elect to waive some or all of ther annual
fees in retumn for a deferred right to a cash payment, payable only after
a participant ceases to hold office with the Company Broadly, cash
payments under this plan are calculated by reference to the farr market
value of the Company s shares at the ume of payment and remain
subject to market fluctuations in the context of the Company's share
price until the time of payment This plan was adopted by the Company
to address certain practices and trends of North American mining
companies, which provide for similar elechions to be made n order to
ensure that our practices for Non-Executive Director compensation
structures remain flexible and competitive against our global peers
Elections under the plan are made annually usually in Apn! of each year
In addition, to align Non Executive Director interests with shareholders,
the Company has adopted Non-Executive Director shareholding
guidelines for its independent Non-Executive Directors, which reguire
relevant individuals o acguire a mintrmum shareholding equivalent to
their annual base fee within two years from etectlon to the Board which
may be satsfied thraugh the purchase of ABG Ordinary Shares or by
electing to wave base fees for DSUs Detalls as regards current
outstanding awards under the DSU Plan and ABG Ordinary Shares
currently held by Non-Executive Directors are provided in the Annual
Report on Remuneration on page 74
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REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

Further details of the Remuneration Policy for NonExecutive Directors are set out in the table below

Fees

Purpose To attract and retain candidates with the required skill and experience to form part of the Board and to ensure fees paid to
the Non-Executive Directors are competrtive and comparable with other companies of equivalent size and complesty
operating within the global mining industry

Operation The base fee for Non-Executive Directors is reviewed annually, with any adjustments effective 1 April each year Fees payable
to the Chairman are determined by the Compensation committee, while the base fee and any other fee payable to the other
Non-Executive Directors are determined by the Board

In addition to the base fee, additional fees are payable for acting as Semor Independent Director and as charr of any of the
Board s committees (Audit, Compensation, EHS&S, Nomination and Governance and Techrical) and for indmadual
membership of such committees These additional fees are also reviewed annually, with any adjustment effective 1 Apni
each year n the event that the Board requires the formation of an additiona! Board committee, as with the Transaction
committee tn 2012, fees for the chair and membership of such commrttee will be determined by the Board at the tme

No base fee or fee for membership of Board committees is payable to NonExecutive Directors appomnted by Barnck
pursuant to the nomination nghts contained in the Relationship Agreement

NonExecutive Director fee levels are benchmarked aganst intemational gold mining, general mining and FTSE listed
companies of similar size and complexity Time commitment, responsibility, and technical skilis reguired to make a valuable
contnbution to an effective Board are taken into account when reviewing fee levels

Opportunity Non-Executive Director fee increases are set in response to the outcome of the annual fee review Fees for the year ending
31 December 2013 are set out In the Annual Report on Remuneration The maximum aggregate annual fee for all Directors
provided In the Company’s Articles of Association 1s £3,000,000

Performance measures Not applicable

Deferred Share Unit Pian (DSU Plan)

Purpose To ensure ABG nan-executive compensation structures remain flexible and competitive aganst global peers

Operation Non-Executive Directors can elect to waive some or all of their annual fees In return for a deferred nght to a cash payment
under the DSU Plan The value of addittonal DSUS 1s credited to reflect dividends paid on ABG Ordinary Shares over the
penod of participation

Cash payments become payable only after a participant ceases to hold office wath the Company

Opportunity Non Executive Directors can wave up to 100% of their annual fee

Performance measures  Cash payments are calculated by reference to the fair market value of ABG s Ordinary Shares at the time of payment and
remain subject to market fluctuations in ABG's share pnce until payment

Awards lapse in the event that an indvidual is summarily terminated for (1) breach of contract, (i) breach of Directors duties,
or {m) misconduct, or If an indmdual resigns In circumstances Justifying summary termination

Approach to recruitment of Non-Executive Directors

In the case of hinng or appointing a new Non-Executive Director, the Board will utilise the Remuneration Policy as set out above A base fee which 1s
aligned with the prevailing fee schedule would be payable for Board membership, with additional fees payable for acting as Senior Independent
Drrector or as chair of any of the Board's committees and for individual membership of such committees Non Executive Directors would also be
elhgible to waive some or all of their annual fees tn return for a deferred right to a cash payment under the DSU Plan, further details of which can be
found below

Approach to Non-Executive Director exit arrangements
As regards Non Executive Director resignation, retirement or termination, base fee and any additional fees would be payable to the resignation/
retirement/termination date and treatment of any awards under the DSU Plan would be as follows

DSU Plan

Event Timing of vesting Calcutation of vestng/payment

Retirement, injury, disability, death On leawng office Save In the case of certain crcumstances , DSU awards vest 1n full on
Change of corttrol On leaving office leaving office, whereby the relevant cash payrment made In respect of
{not Including Intemal reorganisations) awards is determined by reference to the fair market value of an ABG

Ordinary Share at the ume of payment

*  Summary termination or termination for gross misconduct or termination in circumstances which would Justfy summary termination
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Annual Report on

Remuneration for 2013

Compensation committee membership in 2013
As of 31 December 2013, the Compensation committee compnsed four
Non Executive Directors of whom three are independent

Michael Kenyon (chairman)
Kelvin Dushnisky

Peter Tomsett

Steve Lucas

Davtd Hodgson and Andre Falzon stepped down from the committee
during the year In addition, the following individuals attended meetings
by invitation dunng the year and provided advice to the committee to
enable 1t to make informed decisions

Brad Gordon, Chief Executive Officer
Peter Geleta, Executive General Manager Organisational Effectiveness
Katnna White, General Counsel and Company Secretary

Greg Hawkins also attended meetings of the committee prior to stepping
down as CEO in August 2013 No Director 1s present when his or her
own remuneration 1S being determined The Compensation committee
met five imes durng the year and details of members’ attendance at
meetings are provided 1n the Governance report on page 45 An
overview of committee activities during the year 1s provided as part of
the committee chairman’s introduction to this report

Details of Directors’ service contracts and letters of appolntment
As at 31 December 2013, Directors’ current appointments are as follows

Advisers

Kepler Associates (“Kepler”™ was appointed by the Compensation
committee in 2010 and retained dunng the year The Compensation
committee evaluates the support provided by its adwisers annually

and 1s comfortable that the Kepler team provides independent
remuneration advice to the committee and does not have any
connections with the Company that may impair its independence
Kepler 1s a founding member and signatory of the Code of Conduct

for Remuneration Consultants, detalls of which can be found at

www temunerationconsultantsgroup com In 2013, Kepler provided
independent advice on trends and developments, reporting regulations,
revisions to the LTIP TSR performance condition, the recruitment package
for Brad Gordon, the exit package for Greg Hawkins and benchmarking
data for selected senior executives Kepler does not advise the Company
on any 1ssues outside of compensation and governance thereof Kepler's
total fees for the provision of remuneratton services in 2013 were
£115,135 on the basis of time and matenals The committee also
recewved legal advice from Travers Smith LLP as regards certain
remuneration practices duning the year and the legal aspects to

the structure of the Remuneration Policy, the total fees for which
equalled £17,564

Date of current service contract

or letter of appointment Unexpired term as at 31 December 2013

Executlve Director

Brad Gordon 21 Aug-13 -
Non-Executlve Directors

HKetvin Dushnisky 6Jun-12 1 year 8 months
Peter Tomsett 26-Apr-13 2 years 4 months
Ambassador Juma V Mwapachu 14-Ju11 7 months
Andre Falzon 26-Apr13 2 years 4 months
Dawid Hodgson 190ct-11 10 months
Michael Kenyon 26-Apr-13 2 years 4 months
Graham Clow 26-Apr13 2 years 4 months
Steve Lucas 240ct-13 2 years 10 months
Rachel Enghish 24-0ct-13 2 years 10 months
Rick McCreary 19-Juk12 1 year 7 months
Stephen Galbraith 26-Apr-13 2 years 4 months
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REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

Single total figure of remuneration for Directors {(audited)
The table below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration receved by each Director for the year ending 31 December 2013

Salary/fees® Taxable benefits™ STI@
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£ £ £ £ £ £

Current Directors
Executive
Brad Gordon® 154,744 - 189,770 - 113,170 -
Non-Executive
Kelvin Dushnisky - - - - - -
Peter Tomsett®™ 115,000 - - - - -
Ambassador Juma V Mwapachu 87,500 65,000 - ~ - -
Andre Falzon 96,250 85,000 - - - -
Dawvid Hodgson 94,500 96,000 - - - -
Michael Kenyon 109,350 116,600 - - - -
Graham Clow® 74,375 - - - - -
Steve Lucas® 15487 - - - - -
Rachel English® 16,455 - - - - -
Rick McCreary - - - - - -
Stephen Galbrath - - - - - -
Former Directors
Derek Pannell™ 47,753 165,890 - -~ - -
Greg Hawkins® 490,000 475,000 57,012 385,790 444,675 302,813
Kevin Jennings'® 146,770 359,700 17,831 127,710 - 256,286

Notes

{a) Greg Hawkins stepped down from the position of CEC and Brad Gorden assumed the rale of CEO and sole Executive Director on 21 August 2013 Further details
regarding Brad Gardon s appointment arrangements are provided on pages 70 and 71 Further detaits regarding Greg Hawkins exit arrangements are provided on
page 73 As regards payments to Greg Hawkins £446 725 of the total figure presented was pad in respect of salary, taxable benefits and pension for the penod
1 January 2013 to 31 August 2013 £725 504 of the total figure presented was paid i respect of salary taxable benefits and pension for the period
1 September 2013 to 31 December 2013

(b} Peter Tomsett and Graham Clow were appointed to the Board on 26 Apnl 2013

{c} Steve Lucas and Rachet English were appointed to the Board on 24 October 2013

(d) Derek Pannell and Kevin Jennings retired from their position as Directors at the Company s 2013 AGM held on 18 Apnl 2013

(e) Non-Executive Director fees payable include all base fees pard in respect of the appointment as a Non-Executive Director and addiicnal fees payable in respect of
appointments as $I0 chair and/or members of Board committees An overview of fees payable for 2013 15 provided on page 88 In addition Nor-Executive Directors can
elect to waive all or some of their annual fees in retum for a deferred nght to recerve a cash payment on leaving the Company pursuant to the terms of the Company s
DSU Plan Further detaits of this plan are prowided on pages 63 and 64 Details as regards DSU elections made dunng the year are explained in note (1) below
Non-Executve Directors appointed pursuant to Barnck s nomination nghts under the Relationship Agreement {Kelvin Dushnisky, Rick McCreary and Stephen Galbraith)
do not receive any fees In respect of thetr appointment
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2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 =)
£ £ £ I3 £ £
- _ 34212 - 491,896 -
- Z - — 115,000 -
- - - - 87,500 65,000
- - N - 96,250 85,000
- Z - - 94,500 96 000
- - - - 109,350 116600
N _ N Z 74375 -
R _ - - 15487 -
- - - - 16455 -
- - - - 47,753 165,890
58,042 - 1225500 118,750 1172229 1280353
- - 64,421 89,925 229,002 833621

Taxable benefits include car allowance, private medical insurance RSU-elated payments and certain relocation expenses A further breakdown of taxable benefits

recetved for 2013 15 provided below

Car allowance Relocauon Medical Other Total
Brad Gordon 11,362 174,822 3,586 - 188,770
Greg Hawkins 19,600 - 3,896 33,516 57,012
Kevin Jennings 13,239 - 4,592 - 17 831

{) This represents the shortterm incentive payable in cash for annwal performance Detalls as regards the performance assessment apphicable to 2013 ST awards are

provided on page 69

{h} This represents LTIP awards and SOP awards vested dunng the year Further detadls as regards LTIP vesting and SOP vesung dunng the year are prowded on page 73

{1y Certain independent Non-Executive Directors elected 1o covert a proportion of their annual fee for 2013 w0 DSUs, pursuant to the terms of the Company s DSU Plan
as follows Michael Kenyon elected to convert an amount of approximately £43,750 of the total of his fee for 2013 into DSUs Peter Tomsett elected to comvert an
amount of approxmately £115,000 of the totat of his fee for 2013 Into DSUs, Andre Falzon elected to convert an amount of approximately £10,047 of the total of his
fee for 2013 into DSUs, David Hodgsen elected to convert an amount of approximately £47,500 of the total of his fee for 2013 inte DSUs, Graham Clow elected 1o

convert an amount of approxmately £42,500 of the total of his fee for 201.3 into DSUs
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REMUNERATICN REPORT CONTINUED

Executlve Director salaries
The following table shows Executive Director salanes for 2013 and 2012 and those payable for 2014

2014 salary 2013 salary 2012 satary
Brad Gordon® £425,000 - -
Greg Hawkins'® - £490,000 £475,000
Kevin Jennings® - £370,000 £359,700

{a) Greg Hawkins stepped down from the positien of CEQ ang Brad Gordon assumed the role of CEQ and sole Executive Director on 21 August 2013
{b) Kewin Jennings retired from his position as CFO and as a Director at the Company s 2013 AGM held on 18 Apnl 2013

As mentioned 10 the committee chairman'’s introduction to this report, the committee has decided not to ncrease salanes payable to the CEQ
and other members of the SLT for 2014

Non-Executive Director fees
For year ending 31 December 2013, no fees were paid to Non-Executive Directors, including the Chairman, appointed by Barnck pursuant to its
nomination nghts under the Relationship Agreement Fees paid to independent Non-Executive Directors were paid as follows

Fee Component Amount (per annum}
Base fee £75,000
Senior Independent Director fee £25,000
Chair of Auchit committee fee £20,000
Char of Compensation committee, EHS&S committee, Technical committee

and Nomination and Governance committee fee £15,000
Board committee membership fee £5,000

Non Executive Director fees for 2014 will be reviewed prior to the 2014 AGM and will apply as of 1 Apnl 2014
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Executive Directors’ Short-Term Incentlve awards

For the year ending 31 December 2013, Executive Director awards were earned on the basis of Company-wide performance, this being representative
of the overall leadership, management and performance of an indvidual holding this position Company-wide performance measures for 2013 were
set on the basis of performance measures underpinning the key performance indicators that are used to chart the progress of Company
performance aganst our strategy and objectives For the 2013 STI, the committee decided to focus on four broad performance areas production,
costs, safety and specific strategic initiatives, each of which was allocated specific weightings The performance areas were further subdvided into
spectfic performance measures, assessed on the basis of indivrdual weightings and in line with a range of performance targets to provide for
threshold, target and maximum performance, as outhned in the table below

2013 STI Scorecard assessment

Perfarmance
Threshold Target Max
Overall
Relevance to Weighting scorecard
Measure Company strategy (indradual) 0% 75% 100% 150% 200% Actual rating
Production Qunces of gold Expand/grow 250% 540,000 560,000 580,000 600,000 615000 641,931 50%
(25% produced {0z)
welghting
overall)
Costs Cash costs Optmise 12 5% 962 944 926 a10 B77 872 25%
(25% (US$/0z}
welghting 515 Optimise 12 5% 1,650 1,600 1,557 1,428 1,393 1,361 25%
overatl) (US$/02)
Safety TRIFR Responsible 50% 091 083 075 067 061 068 5%
(10% mining
WEIENUNE ool Standards  Responsible 50% B0% 70% 80% 90% 100% 80% 5%
overall) Rating mining
(% implemented)
Strategic  Operational review  Optimise 10 0% 0% B% 10% 15% 20% 10% 10%
initiatives (% cost saving
(40% on 2012)
Weighting  oruanisational Optimise 10 0% 5 4 3 2 1 4 7 5%
overall) redesign
Government Responsible 10 0% 5 4 3 2 1 4 7 5%
Relations mining
& SLTO
Rating delivery of Expand 10 0% 85% 90% 100% 105% 110% 85% 0%
Bulyanhulu projects  and grow
(%)
Total vesting (% of salary) Sum product of weightings and vesting percentages 135%

x target bonus (75% salary)

Overall, the Company performed well against performance targets in 2013, achieving annual attnibutable gold production of 6§41 931 ounces, being
7% higher than the upper end of the Company’s 2013 preduction guidance range, at annual cash cost per ounce sold of US$827 per ounce, being
10% lower than the lower end of the cash cost guidance range set for the year, whilst achieving a year on year AISC reduction of 14% We were also
successful in progressing the Operational Review, achieving overall savings of US$129 million against a target of over U$$100 million by the end of
2013 We also saw strong results in our safety performance, achieving a total reportable injury frequency rate (*TRIFR") of O 68, representing an
18% improvement on 2012 In addition, we continued 1o see the progression of key matters in the context of other responsible mining intiatives
On this basis, the Company achieved over target performance for the year assessed as 135%, which has been reflected in STl awards for the year
Brad Gordon received an award of £113,170, equal to 135% of base salary, assessed on a prorata basis since his appointment as CEQ in

August 2013 In addition, an amount of £444,675 was awarded to Greg Hawkins given his contribution to 2013 performance as part of overall exit
arrangements Further details as regards these payments are provided on page 73 For 2014 the CEQ s STl opportumity will remain at 75% of base
salary for target performance with a maximum opportunity of 150% of base salary for maxmum performance Broadly, perfformance measures for
2014 will continue to focus on production, costs, safety and specific strategic intatives Further detadls of 2014 performance measures, weightings
and targets will be provided as part of the 2014 Annual Report on Remuneration
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REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

Executlve Directors’ interests under the LTIP (audited)
As at 31 December 2013 the following awards were outstanding under the LTIP

Shares over which  Shares over which End of Shares over which
awards held as of awards granted Market pnce performance awards held on
Award date 01 Jan13 dunng the year at date of award penod Vesting date 31-Dec13
Brad Gordon
21-Aug-13 - 795,036 £1 60 20-Aug-16 20-Aug-16 795036
Greg Hawkins
30-Nov11 93,105 - £4 97 29-Now-14 23-Nov-14 97,587
13Feb13 - 235099 £302 12-Feb16 12-Feb-16 248,513

As explaned in the Remuneration Policy, RSU incentive awards are generally granted at target level (150% of salary) at the date of grant If maximum
performance 15 achieved over the performance period. the TSR perforrance condition operates so as to deliver up to two times the value of the
iniial award at the date of vesting For all awards, additionat RSUs are granted to reflect dividends paid on ABG Ordinary Shares prior to the vesting
date As part of his recruitment package Brad Gordon receved an RSU award equal to 795,036 ABG Ordinary Shares on 21 August 2013, with a fair
value equal to 300% of his base salary at the time of grant The market pnce of ABG Ordinary Shares at the time of this award was £1 60, assessed
on the basis of the average of middle market quotatons from the Daily Official List of the LSE for the day of grant and the following 2 dealing days
The end of the applicable performance pencd and the vesting date of the award 1s 20 August 2016 This award s subject to the satisfaction of the
TSR performance condition applicable at the time of makung the award, this being the assessment of the Company's TSR on a weighted mean

average agamnst the comparator group

The comparator group for awards made to Brad Gordon in 2013 1s compnsed of the following

Agnico-Eagle Mines Ltd IAMGOLD Corp
AngtoGold Ashanti L.td Kinross Gold Corporation
Buenaventura Mining Company New Gold Inc

Centamin plc Petropaviovsk PLC
Centerra Gold Inc Randgold Resources Ltd
Eidorado Golid Corp Semafo Inc

Gold Fields Ltd Yamana Gold Inc

Harmony Gold Mywng Co Ltd

*  Transtation into English

For purposes of assessing performance against the comparator group, TSR will be assessed over the performance period on a weighted median

basis, as follows

ABG s TSR % outperformance of comparator group weighted mean over three years % of target level of award

+20% 200%
0% 100%
-12 5% 50%
Below 12 5% 0%

Where performance 1s between the above levels, the percentage of target level of award 15 determined on a proportionate basis

The ongoing treatment of RSU awards made to Greg Hawkins following his departure as CEO in August 2013 1s outhned below on page 73

Kevin Jennings the Company s former CFO, previously held awards under the LTIP, however, all awards lapsed at the time of his departure from the

Company (Apnil 2013) and no amounts in respect of these awards remain payable
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Executive Directors’ interests under the SOP {audited)
As at 31 December 2013 the following awards were outstanding under the SOP

Shares over Shares over Shares over

which awards  which awards Exercised/ Market pnce which awards

helo as of granted dunng Exercise  lapsed dunng at the date Earliest Final held on

Award date 01 Jan13 the year phce the year of exercise Expiry date vesting date vesting date 31-Dec13

Brad Gordon

21-Aug13 - 841,308 £1 60 - N/A 20-Aug-20 20-Aug-14 20-Aug-17 841,308
Greg Hawkins

27-Apr 10 125,000 - 568 - N/A 26Apr 17 27-Apr-11 27-Apr14 125,000

25Now10 142,501 - £512 - N/A 24-Now17 25Nov-11 25-Now14 142,501

29-Nov-11 135,202 - £4 97 - N/A 28-Now-18 29-Now12 29-Nov-15 135,202

As part of his recruitment package Brad Gordon recerved a stock option award equal to 841,308 ABG Ordinary Shares on 21 August 2013,
representing an award with a fair market value equal to 1 year of base salary (£425,000) The fair market value of the award was ascertained using
the Monte Carlo Simulation valuation (31 5% of the market value of an ABG Ordinary Share at the time of grant) The market prnice of ABG Ordinary
Shares at the time of this award was £1 60, assessed on the basis of the average of middle market quotations from the Dally Official List of the
LSE for the day of grant and the following 2 dealing days The award vests in equal parts over 4 years and expires 7 years from the date of grant

Vesting I1s subject to the satsfaction of the TSR performance condmion outlined above for the RSU awards made to Mr Gordon n 2013

Subsequent to year end, stock option held by Greg Hawkins have been waived and cancelled as part of exit arrangements

Kevin Jennings, the Company's former CFQ, previously held awards under the SOP However, all awards lapsed at the time of his departure from the
Company (Apnl 2013) and are no longer exercisable

Directors’ interests In options under the Barrick Share Option Plan {audited)

Shares over ~ Shares over Shares over
which awards  which awards Exercised/  Market prce which awards
held as at  granted dunng (lapsed) during at date of Earhest Final held as at
Award date 01 Jar-13 the year Exercise price the year exercise Expiry date  vesting date  vesting date 31-Dec13
Rick McCreary
26-Apr-11 88,595 - US$5186 N/A N/A 25-Apr18 26-Apr-12 26-Apr-15 88,595
14-Feb12 33,276 . uS$4845 N/A N/A 13-Feb-19 14-Feb13 14-Feb-16 33,276
12Feb13 54,193 _  uUss$3230 N/A N/A 11 Feb-20 12-Feb-14 12-Feb17 54,193
Kelvin Dushnisky
04-DecQ7 84,515 - Us$4108 N/A N/A 03Dec-14 04-Dec08  04Dec11 84,515
09-Dec-08 86,169 - Us$2725 N/A N/A  08Dec-15  09Dec09  09-Dec-12 86 169
08Dec-09 68,494 - US$42 44 N/A N/A 07Dec16 08Dec10 08Dec13 68,494
07-Dec-10Q 74,758 - US$5483 N/A N/A  06Dec-17 07Dec11l O7Decl4d 74,758
i4-Feb-12 102,414 _  Us$4845 N/A N/A 13Feb19 14-Feb-13 14-Febr16 102,414
07 Aug12 56,408 _ Us$3338 N/A N/A  06Aug-19  O7-Aug13 07-Aug-16 56,408
12 Feb13 113,685 _  Us$3230 N/A N/A 11 Feb-20 12-Feb-14 12-Feb17 113,685
Stephen Galbralth
30Julo8 7.500 - US342 58 N/A N/A 29-4u15 30-Jut09 30-Jut12 7 500
070ec 10 5.000 ~ US$54 83 N/A N/A 06Dec1l7 07-Dec11  07-Dec14 5,000

Barnck stock option awards vest (in equal parts over 4 years and expire 7 years from the date of grant subject to continued employment,

commensurate with competitive practice in North America

Kevin Jennings, the Company's former CFQ, previously held awards under Barnck's Share Option Plan However, these awards expired or otherwise

lapsed in connection with his departure from ABG (Apnl 2013) and are no longer exercisable
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REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

Percentage change In CEO remuneration

The table below shows the percentage change in CEQ remuneration from the prior year compared to the average percentage change in remuneration
for SLT members Given that the Company operates across a number of diverse economies with pay levels and structures reflecting local market
conditions the Compensation committee beheves that using the SLT as a subset for purposes of comparing CEQ pay against wider employee pay

provides a more meantngful comparison than using pay data for all employees

The CEQ's remuneration Includes base salary, taxable benefit and STl payments and for 2012 includes the sum of payments made to Brad Gordon
and Greg Hawkins SLT data is based on a consistent set of employees 1e the same individuals appear in the 2012 and 2013 populations

CEC SLT members
2013 2012 % change 2013 2012 % change
£ i 20122013 £ £ 20122013
Base salary 425,000 475.000 (11%) 259,314 250,133 4%
Taxable benefits 189,770 385,790 {51%) 90,773 90,148 1%
Annual bonus 339,510+ 302.813 12% 144717 152 293 (5%)
Total 943,898 1,163,603 (18%) 494 B03 492 574 0%

*  Annualised bonus

Relative Importance of spend on pay

The table below shows shareholder distributions {1 e dwidends) and total employee pay expendsture for the financial years ended 31 December
2012 and 31 December 2013, along with the percentage change in both Further details of the Company’s economic contnbution including the
economic value we add by paying our employees, govemments, suppliers, shareholders, contractors and communities, 1s Included in the corporate

responsibility review of this Annual Report

2013 2012 % change

{£ 000} (£ 00O) 2012-2013

Shareholder distnbutions 36,360 48,750 -22%
Total employee expenditure 144,121 159,475 -10%

Comparison of Company performance

The following graph shows ABG's TSR performance for the pened from the IPQ to 31 December 2013 (calculated in accordance with the regulations})
against the FTSE 350 and ABG s LTIP comparator group The FTSE 350 was chosen on the basis of it being a recognised broad equity market
index of which ABG was a member for the reporting peniod The table below details the Chief Executive’s “single figure™ remuneration over the

same perod

CEOQ remuneration

indnidual 2010 2011 2012 2013
CEO single figure Grag yawkins ~ £774  £936 £1,282 £1,171
of remuneration
{£°000) Brad Gordon N/A N/A N/A  E317
STl payoutas  Greg Hawkins 90%  75%  64%  135%
% of maximum
opportunity Brad Gorden N/A N/A N/A  135%
RSU vestingas  greg Hawkins NFA N/A N/A  88%
% of maximum
opportunity BErad Gordon N/A N/A N/A N/A
Option vesting  Gres Hawkins N/A  100%  100% N/A
as % of maximum
opportunity Brad Gordon N/A N/A N/A N/A
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Executive Director exit arrangements {audited)

In August 2013 1t was decided that Greg Hawkins would step down from his position as CEQ as part of ongoing operattonal reviews and refocusing
of strategic plans for the Company’s operations Due to a number of commercial sensitmties the Board took the decision to place Greg on garden
leave for hus notice penod, in accordance with the flexibtities provided to address exit arrangements under Executive Director service contracts
Given the restrictions placed on individuals in garden leave scenarios Mr Hawkins will continue to receive a monthly salary and the benefits
afforded under his service contract as regards permanent health insurance, life assurance, and either the use of a company car or the payment

of a car allowance, until such time as his period of garden leave 1s discontinued In addition to this, the exit arrangements for Mr Hawkins also
provide for the following

In recognition of Mr Hawkins contnibution to the Company since 1ts listing and Mr Hawkins  contribution to 2013 performance, exit arrangements
provide for a payment of £444 675, representative of the STl payable for 2013 in light of Company-wide performance, the assessment of which is
further explained on page 69

Outstanding LTIP awards have been determined on a good leaver basis to allow for vesting in accordance with existing vesting schedutes, subject
to sausfaction of applicable performance condittons at the end of each performance perod

Relocation arrangements up to a maximum amount of £100,000, given his status as an international employee and country of origin and the
payment of certain legal fees in relation to the execution of exit arrangements

As part of the agreement reached with Mr Hawhins, all of his outstanding stock options have been waived and cancelled following year end and are
no longer exercisable As regards the STlequivalent payment this amount will remain subject to clawback in the event of the exceptional
circumstances of indwidual misconduct or financial misstatement/misreporting

As regards Mr Hawking' outstanding LTIP awards, these will continue to subsist, subject to being prorated to reflect ttime of employment dunng the
relevant performance periods Vesting will be assessed against the TSR performance condition in place at the time the awards were granted The
applicable TSR performance condition provides for the assessment of the Company's TSR performance on a weighted mean average agamst a
comparator group of international gotd mining companes The comparator group and basis of assessment under the structure of this performance
condwon 15 as follows

Comparators

Agnico-Eagle Mines Ltd IAMGOLD Corp

AngloGold Ashanti Ltd Kinross Gold Corporation
Buenaventura Miming Company Petropaviovsk PLC

Centamun plc Polyus Gold Intemational Limited
Centerra Gold Inc Randgold Resources Ltd
Eldorado Gold Corp Semafo Inc

Gold Feelds Ltd Yamana Gold Inc

Harmony Gold Miming Co Ltd Zyin Gold Mining Group Co Ltd

*  For the February 2013 RSU award the comparator group also includes New Gold Inc , and excludes Zyin Gold Mining Group Co Ltd and Polyus Gold
Intemational Limited

ABG s TSR % outperformance of comparator group weighted

mean over three years % of interests transferred
+20% 200%

0% 100%

-12 5% 50%

Below -12 5% 0%

*  Where performance 1S between the above levels the percentage of RSUs to be transferred 1s determined on a praportionate basis

To date, one RSU award granted to Greg Hawkins in November 2010 has vested Over the relevant three-year performance penod, the Company's
TSR was 59 9% which was 4% below the weighted mean of the 2010 comparator group As a result 88% of the original interests awarded were due
1o vest based on performance, further details of which are provided below

Market price
RSUs held RSUs cancelled RSUs vesting  Interests vesting Date vested on vesting Value
Greg Hawkens 75,014 39901 35113 88% 24-Now2013 £1 65 £58,042
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REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

Directors’ interests in ABG Ordinary Shares and shareholding requirements (audited)

As noted in the Remuneration Policy, Executive Directors are required to acquire a minimum holding in ABG Ordinary Shares equivalent to two times
base salary over a penod of five years For these purposes, LTIP awards are taken into account but stock options awards made under the SOP are not
taken into account when assessing whether or not shareholding requirements have been satisfied Independent NonExecutive Directors are required o
acquire a minimum halding egurvalent to their annual base fee within two years of election to the Board, which may be satisfied wia the acquisition of
ABG Ordinary Shares or by electing 1o waive base fees for DSUs under the ABG DSU Plan The table below shows the shareholding of each Director
against thelr respective shareholding requirement as at 31 December 2013 along with the form of therr interests in ABG Ordinary Shares

Shares held Optons helg RSUs helg DSUs held
Unvested and  Unvested and Current
subgect to subject to Shareholding  sharehoiding
Owned outright Vested but  performance  performance requirement % salary Requirement
orvested not exercised condruon™® condsion™ Urwested™ % salary/fee fee rret?e

Executive Director
Brad Gerdon - - 841,3089  795,03649 - 200% >200% Yes
Non-Executive Directors
Kebvin Dushnisky - - - - - N/A N/A N/A
Peter Tomsett - - - - 73,577 100% 159% Yes
Ambassador Juma V Mwapachu - - - - - 100% 0% No
Andre Falzon 9,000 - - - 11 427 100% 104% Yes
Dawid Hodgson 13,000 - - - 48,798 100% 198% Yes
Michael Kenyon - - - - 36,056 100% 167% Yes
Graham Clow - - - - 27 607 100% B0% No
Steve Lucas - - - - - 100% 0% No
Rachel English - - - - - 100% 0% No
Rick McCreary - - - - - N/A N/A N/A
Stephen Gatbraith - - - - - N/A N/A N/A
Notes

(a) RSUs and stock option awards vest subject to a relative TSR performance condition

{b) The Companys DSU Plan for Nen-Executive Directors provides Non-Executive Directors with the option to elect to wave some or all of their annual fees in return for a
deferred nght to a cash payment payable only after a participant ceases to hold office with the Company Broadly cash payments under this plan are calculated by
reference to the fair market value of ABG s Ordinary Shares at the time of payment and remain subject to market fuctuations n the context of ABG 5 share prce untl
the time of payment

(c) Based on ABG s share pnce at the time of acquinng shares and/or electing to recerve DSUs and/or receming RSU awards
{d) Consists of options awarded and RSUs awanded on recruitment which vest subject to a relative TSR performance condition
{e) Graham Clow Steve Lucas and Rachel English were appeinted dunng the year and therefore have approximately 18 to 24 months 1o sausfy

shareholding requirements
Greg Hawkins Kevin Jennings and Derek Pannell held interests in 20 000 44,000 and 20,000 ABG Ordinary Shares respectively pnor to ther
respective departures from the Board Mr Pannell also held DSUs which vested subsequent to his departure There have been no other changes in
Directors’ shareholdings between 31 December 2013 and 11 March 2014
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Summary of shareholder voting at the 2013 AGM
The following table shows the results of the advisory vote on the 2012 Remuneration Report at the 2013 AGM

Total number
of votes % of votes cast
For 306,288,212 82 9%
Against 62,956,279 17 1%
Total votes cast (excluding withheld votes) 369,244,491 100 0%
Votes withheld 48,939 001%
Total votes cast (including withheld votes) 369,293,430

Whilst the level of support remains broadly unchanged from the 2012 AGM, the Compensation committee recognises that there were two key areas
of concern for shareholders the dewviation of ABG's long-term ncentive structures from typical UK practice, and changes made to Executive Director
service contracts In 2012 As explained ahove, and as part of the committee chairman's introduction to this report on page 56, both of these areas
of concern have been addressed as a result of changes made to the structure of the TSR performance condition applicable to the vesting of RSU
awards going forward, and the removal of ¢change of contr! provisions from Executive Director service contracts

Approval of Directors’ Remuneration report
The Directors’ Remuneration report has been approved by the Beard and signed on its behalf by

ol g

Michael Kenyon,
Compensation committee chairman
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Responsible risk management

Effective risk management requires collective responsibility and engagement across our organisation For this
reason, our risk management practices are structured across our governance framework to ensure that the
Board, certain Board committees, the Senior Leadership Team, General Managers and Functional Heads are
accountable for identifying, mitigating and managing risk in accordance with the responsibilities of their
function and role within our organisation
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Risk management

The successful delivery of ABG s strategy depends on our abihity to
tolerate and manage nsks appropriately In a manner that does not
Jeopardise the interests of our stakeholders

For this reason, we conduct nsk assessments throughout the year as
part of business performance and operational reviews, including

Quarterly business reviews

Group-level nsk workshops to consider overall strategic nsks to
the business

Operational nsk workshops focused on specific operational nsks in
the context of each of our operations

Functional risk workshops to assess key matters which could affect
underlying support functions, such as treasury, tax and technical
services, required far our long-term business plans

Monthly operational and financial perfermance reporting

Our annual business plan and budgeting process incorporate nsks
wdentified through the above rewiews Residual nsks are then identified
based on the effectiveness of existing controls and mutigating action
plans prepared for al! highampact areas When compiled, all nsk
assessments are assessed by the Senigr Leadership Team in the first
Instance, the Audrt and EHS&S committees, where relevant and
appropriate, and ulumately form the basis of a detailed Board review
Further details as regards the outcome of the Board’s internal control
and risk management review for the year 1s provided on page 46

2013 risk review

Generally, the overall makeup of our principal nsks has not significantly
changed from 2012 However, duning the year there have been changes
in certain nsk profiles as a result of developments in our operating
envirohment and continuing uncertainties and trends within the wider
global economy and/or the mining industry Where appropriate, rnsk
ratings have been reviewed against nsk management controls and other
mitigating factors in this regard, we have removed nsks relating to
changes affecting the majority shareholding and varnations to production
and cost estimates from the 2013 pnncipal nsks table as these nisks
are no longer viewed as pnneipal risks to our business By the same
token, we have maintained a medium nisk rating for health and safety
nsks this year, comparable to that of 2012, gven our controls and
procedures tn this area In addition

Risks relating to reserves and resources estlmates whilst it will
never be possible to give assurances or certainty as regards reserves
and resources estimates due to the varying nature and vanous factors
which can impact such estimates, as a resukt of the improvements

we have Introduced, and will continue to implement as regards mine
planning and cost controls this year, we believe that we have reduced
certain exposures In this context when compared to our position at
the end of 2012, particularly as regards exposure to variations to
production and cost estimates

Risks relating to Increases In operating costs and capHal
expenditure whilst cost control pressures remain a key focus for our
Industry and for ABG as a company, as a result of progress made In
the implementation of the Operational Review in the context of cost
controls and increased enhancements to capital discipline, and our
continuing focus on identifying further measures within core mimng
areas to deepen the eifects of this review we believe that we have
reduced our exposure to this nsk when compared 1o our position at
the end of 2012

Risks relating to commodity prices whilst we centinue to take a range
of actions to mrtigate our exposure to commodity pricing risks, and in
particular our exposure to fluctuations in the price of copper, silver

and ciesel given the ongoing uncertainty and global trends affecting
the gold price and the impact that this may have on our financial
performance, we have taken the view that our exposure to this nsk

has increased when compared to our position at the end of 2012

Risks relating to political, legal and regulatory developments whilst
we maintain an active dialogue with the Tanzanian government on
matters relating to our business, and are committed to furthenng
and deepening our engagement (n this regard, we are mipdful of
overall political developments affecting the mining industry in Africa
and the potential impact that the forthcoming Tanzamian 2015
elections may have on our operating environment, such that we have
taken a cautionary view on this risk and assessed our exposure as
having increased when compared to our position at the end of 2012

Risks relating to taxation revlews again, whilst we maintain an active
dialogue with the Tanzanian Revenue Authonty and the Ministry of
Finance on outstanding tax assessments and unresolved tax disputes,
particularly in the context of VAT relief and have made good progress
this year in reaching an agreement on the treatment of VAT payments
made In the context of ABG Group imports, we are mindful of the
effects that delays In recovenng outstanding VAT refunds may have

on ABG s financial condiion, such that we have taken a cautionary
view on this nsk and assessed our exposure to taxation nsks as
having increased when compared to our positioh at the end of 2012

Risk relating to utllitles supply whilst electnicity supply continues to
be an 1s5ue across Tanzania, we have made a number of investments
In power generation capabilities, such that we have capacity for the
self generation of power to maintain critical systems across all ABG
mine sites Therefore, we believe that we have reduced our exposure
to this nsk when compared to our position at the end of 2012

Risks relating to security, trespass and vandallsm we have
continued 1o strengthen our security systems throughout the year and
refine our secunty plans, whilst also making progress with community
relations nitiatives to enhance relationships with local communities
Coupled with the commencement of a strategic review of our security
management procedures, which aims to enhance alignment between
our security model and operational requirements, we believe we are
taking steps to reduce our exposure to this risk when compared to our
position at the end of 2012

We have also added a new principal nisk this year relating to the
potenttal impact that our organisational restructunng may have on the
delivery of key operational support services and certain elements of our
internal controls environment, something we will seek to mitigate
through the development of ongoing change control procedures and by
maintaining the existing management structures for key functions within
our intemal controls framework

The following table sets out the pnncipal nisks affecung the ABG Group
in more detail In addition to those risks stated, there may be additional
nsks unknown to ABG and other nsks currently believed to be
immatenal, that could turn out to be matenat to the ABG Group In
addition ABG could also be affected by risks relating to the gold mining
industry generally and the nsks and hazards involved in the business
of miming metals, which are largely outside 1ts control Lastly due to
the very nature of nsks, mitigating factors stated should not be viewed
as assurances that actions taken or planned wilt be wholly effective
Additional discussions of certain trends and uncertainties that may
affect our operations are provided as part of our Strategic report
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RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Risk

Key management responsibility

STRATEGIC RISKS
Single country risk

All of the ABG Group's revenue is denved from production at its three operations in Tanzama In
order to ensure continued growth, the Group needs to identify new resources and development
opportunities through exploration and acquisition targets This IS particularly the case In the context
of the idenyfication of potential growth opportunities in other terntones, something which 1s required
to strengthen the business through geographic diversification in order 10 mitigate the effects that
significant incountry developments could have on our operations and business

Vice President, Exploration

Reserves and resources estimates

The ABG Group's stated mineral reserves and resources are estimates based on a range of
assumptions, imncluding geological, metallurgical and technical factors, such that no assurances
can be given that the anticipated tonnages or grades will be achieved

Chief Executive Officer, Executive General
Manager Planning and Business
Improvement and General Managers

FINANCIAL RISKS
Commodity prices

ABG s financial performance i1s highly dependent on the prce of gold and. to a lesser extent,

the price of copper and stiver Fluctuations in the pricing of these commodities, which are largely
attributable to factors beyond ABG s control, will ikely have a corresponding impact on ABG's
financial condition, particularly in the centext of rapid pricing fluctuations

Chief Financia) Officer and
Vice President Finance

Costs and capital expenditure

ABG operates a cyclical business where fluctuations in operating cash flow and capital expenditure
may adversely affect ABG s financial condition in addition, industry cost pressures, particularly as
regards labour, capital equipment and energy, affect ABG’s ability 10 manage operating costs and
capital expenditure

Chief Financial Officer and
Vice President, Finance

78  wwwafricanbarrickgold com




Mitigation/comment

Progress made in 2013

Potental Change

Further

impact from 2012 nformation
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ABG assesses a wide range of potential growth opportunities Contnuing evaluation of High A review of exploration
to build on s existing portfoho particularly acquisition and corporate development activities I1s set out In
development opportunities outside Tanzania to maximise opportunities across Afnca the Exploration review
growth potenval and to help mitigate the effects that significant Progression of exploration
developments in Tanzania could have on our busmess programimes across the West
Kenya Joint Venture Project
ABG seeks to manage the varying nature of reserve and resource Rewview of life of mine plans High Details of the ABG
estimates through our life of mine planning procedures, penodic for all operations and Group's reserves and
reviews of such estimates and production targets and by ensunng Introduction of new life of resources are set out
that our reserves and resources estimates are calculated and mine plans for Buzwag) and in the reserves and
reported in accordance with the requirements of NI 43-101 of North Mara resources statermnent
the Canadian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy and Petroleum Completion of review of for 2013
mining methods used at our
operations and opportunities Details of enhancements
to enhance these methods, made to Iife of mine
particularly at Bulyanhulu planning during the year
are provided as part of
the Chief Executive
Officer s report
ABG s strategic objective 1s to provide maximum exposure to the Entry into hedging facilities High Further Information
pnce of gold and as such, a nogold-hedging policy has been for copper, silver and dtesel 15 set out in the
adopted ABG has entered into hedging arrangements for certain Ongoing review of market overview
operating cost exposures (coppet, silver and diesel) to mitigate commodity price fluctuations provided as part of
the impact of pncing fluctuations for such commodities We also as part of financial the Financial review
monitor our exposure 1o commodity price fluctuations as part of management controls
financial and treasury planning and controls procedures
ABG management conttnuously monitors factors which could Implementation of High Further information 1s

impact operational costs and capital expenditure and we seek to
manage such factors through the ongoing implementaton of cost
controls, particularly in the context of the Operational Review
ABG maintains a conservative balance sheet and strict cash flow
planming processes to mitigate liguidity nisks It also has a
commercial credit facility to support general working capital
purposes, which remains undrawn

Operational Review
Avaltability of revoiving
credit facility for worlung
capral purposes

set out in the Financial
review generally and
information as regards
progress made under
the Operational Review I1s
set out in the Chief
Executive Officer s report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Risk

Key management responsibility

EXTERNAL RISKS
Pollitical, legal and regulatory developments

The ABG Group s exploration, development and operational activities are subject to extensive laws
and regulations governing vangus matters in the junsdictions in which it operates ABG's ability to
conduct its business 1s dependent on stable and consistent interpretation and apphcation of laws
and regulations applicable to mining activities and its operations, particularly in Tanzania Changes
1o existing apphicable laws and regulations a more stringent application or interpretation of
applicable law and regulation of Inconsistencies and irregulanties in the interpretation of applicable
law and regulation by relevant government authorities could adversely affect the progresston of
ABG's operations and development projects ABG's operations and financial condition will also

be adversely affected If existing Mineral Development Agreements are not henoured by the
Tanzanian Government

The Group may also be adversely affected by changes in global economic conditions, and political
and/or economig instability in Tanzamia or any of its surrounding countries

Vice President, Corporate Affairs
agnd General Counsel

Taxation reviews

The ABG Group s financial position may be adversely affected in the event of the introduction of
revised royalty or corporate tax regimes in Tanzania that go beyond the fiscal stability agreements
contained n the Mineral Development Agreements applicable to the ABG Group s operations

In addition, ABG has a number of ongoing discussions with the Tanzaman Revenue Authonty and
Mintstry of Finance as regards certain outstanding tax assessments and unresolved tax disputes,
particularly in the context of VAT rehief ABG's financial condition continues to be impacted as a
result of the ongoing nature of these discussions and may be further adversely affected if we

do not achieve a successful resolution to these discussions

Chief Financial Otficer and
Vice President, Finance

Utliities supply

Power stoppages flucuauons and disruptions in electncal power supply or other ublities impact the
ABG Group s ability 1o gperate continuously and can alse result in increased costs, particularly as
regards power supply costs, due to the need to use afternative power sources in order to mitigate
the impact of electricity shortages In addition, alternative power sources may not be available
something which may also impact production at ABG's operations

Chief Executtve Officer, Executive General
Manager Planning and Business
Improvement and General Managers

Community relations

A failure to adequately engage or manage retations with local communities and stakeholders affects
ABG s soctal icence 10 operate and can have a direct and negative impact on ABG's ability to
operate at Its existing operations

Chief Executive Officer, Exegutive General
Manager Organisational Effectiveness,
General Counsel, Vice President,
Corporate Affairs and General Managers

Land acquisiticns

Progression of mining activities at certain ABG operations 1s dependent upon the ABG Group's ability
to complete additional land acquisitions required to support life of mine plans successfully and in a
umely manner Increases in the cost of land acquisitions required to support the expansion and
continuation of gur current mining actvities and/or delays in completing such acquisiions could
have a matenal adverse effect on operating conditions, particularly at North Mara

Chief Executive Qfficer Executive General
Manager Planning and Business
Improvement, Vice President Corporate
Affairs and General Counsel
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Potential  Change Further

Mitigauon/comment Progress made in 2013 tmpact from 2012 information

Further information 1s
prowided as part of the

ABG management assesses legal and political risks as part of its
evaluation of potential projects It actively monitors legal and

Enhancement of High
Governmental and regulatory

political develepments in countries in which its existing operations
are located

ABG management actively engages In dialogue with the Tanzaman
government and legal policy makers to discuss all key legai and
regulatory developments applicable to its operations, in particular
developments in connection with the Tanzanian Mining Act and
applicable environmental legislation

engagement and dialogue
Lifting of Environmental
Protection Order at

North Mara

Establishment of escrow
arrangements to safeguard
VAT refunds on tmports

Strategic report
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The ABG Group has entered into a series of ongoing discussions Establishment of an escrow  High Further information 1s

with the Tanzaman government with the goal of resotving arrangement to safeguard provided as part of the

outstanding tax disputes and recovering amounts owed and VAT refunds due on Financial review

continues to review taxation matters generally on an ongoing imports and the receipt

basis To date, we have negotiated and agreed a memorandum of of refunds pursuant o

understanding for the treatment of certain outstanding indirect tax ~ such arrangements

refunds In respect of fuel lewes and VAT and, more recently, we

have agreed to the use of an escrow arrangement in order to

safeguard the recoverability of VAT refunds on imports

ABG has made a number of investments in power generation Ongoing discussions with High Further information on

capabilities, such that we have capacity for the self generation of TANESCO as regards power the status of power

power to maintain critical systems across sites We also seek to supply Intiatves supply is provided as

employ practices for alternative power use in order to provide for Ongoing review of alternate part of this Risk

cost saving efficiencies whenever possible power supplies management review

ABG looks 1o progress a range of community retations initiatives Progression of social High Details of the ABG

notably through the investments made by the ABG Maendeleo management plans for Group s community

Fund, in order to progress and maintain relationships with ABG operations relations actvities

local communities Progression of funding and community
initiatves under the ABG Investments are set
Maendelec Fund out In the Corporate

responsibility review
ABG seeks 1o address issues relating to land acquisition in Progression of land High A discussion of land

collaboration with the Tanzaman Government and relevant legal
authonties The assessment of langd footpnnt reguirements alsc
forms part of life of mine planning actmties

acquisitions at North Mara
and Bulyanhulu

acquisition actvities 1s
provided as part of the
Strategic report
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RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Risk

Key management responsibility

OPERATIONAL RISKS

Less of critical processes

The ABG Group's miming, processing, development and exploration activibies depend on the continuous
availability of 1ts operationa! infrastructure, in addrtion to reliable utilities and water supplies and access
to roads Any fallure or unavailability of operational infrastructure, for example, through equipment
failure or disruption, could adversely affect production output and/or impact exploration and
development actmvittes  Deficiencies in core supply chain availability could also adversely affect

the ABG Group's operations

Chief Executive Officer, Executive General
Manager Planning and Business
Improvement and General Managers

Environmental hazards and rehablliitation

The ABG Group's operations are subject to environmental hazards as a result of the processes and
chemicals used in its extraction and production methods ABG may be liable for losses and costs
assoctated with environmental hazards at its operations, have its licences and permits withdrawn
or suspended as a result of such hazards, or may be forced to undertake extensive clean-up and
remediation action in respect of environmental hazards and incidents relating to 1ts operations,
should they occur

Chief Executive Officer, Executive General
Manager Organisational Effectiveness,
General Counsel and General Managers

Employee, contractor and industrial relations
ABG s business significantfy depends upon its ability to attract and retain skifled employees and to

Executive General Manager

maintain good relations generally with 1ts employees and employee representative groups, such as trade
unions A loss in skilled employees and/or a breakdown in employee relations could result in a decrease
n production levels and/or increased costs and/ or general disruptions to operations, which ¢ould have a

Organisational Effectiveness

matenal adverse effect on ABG s business, operations and financial condrtion

In addition to employees, ABG depends on certain key contractors Interrupttons in contracted
services could result in production slowdowns and/or stoppages

Securlty, trespass and vandalism

ABG faces certain risks in dealing with fraud and cerruption and wider secunty related matters
relating to trespass, theft and vandalism and unauthonsed small scale mining in proximity 1o its
operations and on specific areas covered by ABG's exploration and mining licences, all of which
may have an adverse effect upon ABG's operations and financial condition

Chief Executive Officer, Executive General
Manager Orgamisational Effectiveness
and General Counsel

Organisational restructuring

ABG's organisational restructuring (including the transfer of certain support functions from
South Africa to Tanzania) and related transrtional penods, may negatively impact the delivery
of key operattonal support services and could also result in detencrations in certain financsal
and operational controls

Chief Financial Officer Executive General
Manager Planming and Business
Improvement and Executive General
Manager Organisational Effectiveness
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Mitigation/comment

Progress made in 2013

Potential
impact

Change
from 2012

Further
information

Management assesses the cnticat components of ABG s
operational infrastructure on a continuous basis In addition,
part of the Operational Review has examined cpportunities to
enhance existing supply chain management practices in the
context of improving overall management of inventory levels,
including appropriate critical supply levels

« Further upgrades to

Inventory management
procedures

as part of the
Operational Review

High

Further discussion
regarding inventory
management
Improvements s
provided as part of
the Strategic report

ABG uses a number of environmental management systems and
controls across its business and operations to provide for
appropnate environmental practices, including the adoption of
specitic environmental management plans for each of our
operations and the use of environmental and social impact
assessments for potential projects ABG also monitors mining
and operational activities against key international standards,
such as the International Cyanide Code and assesses
remediation and rehabilitation costs on an annual basis

Initial certification of
Buzwagh under the

International Cyanide Code
Liftng of the Environmental

Protecton Order at
North Mara

High

Details of the ABG
Group's environmental
performance for the
year are set out In
the Corpaorate
responsibtity review

ABG regularly assesses its staff recruitment and retention policies
to assist with labour stability, and maintains approprate
investment in traning and development to safeguard the skills of
its workforce It is also focused on furthenng the nationalisation of
s workforce in Tanzania and participates in a number of traiming
programmes to help develop local industry expertise
Assessments of employee and key contractor relationships are
undertaken on a regular basis to ensure that the relevant support
balances business requirements and wider expectatons

Continued progression
of programmes for
workforce localisation

Further progresslon of
industrial relations
and employee
consultation inuatives

High

Further details on
employment practices
and related initiatives
are provided in

the Corporate
responsibility review

ABG's existing secunty management system provides for a number of
measures that protect employees assets and operations Measures
Include the ongoing development of secunty personnel, and the
implementation and, where appropnate, upgrading of secunty
infrastructure, such as penmeter fencing, survelllance equipment
and security checks and procedures As part of ongoing operational
remews ABG will review opportunities to enhance and progress s
secunty management procedures for improved alignment with
operational requirements Where appropnate, ABG also works in
collaboration with local law enforcement to address secuntyrelated
threats and concemns

Further upgrades to
security infrastructure

Increased training of

security personnel across

all operations

Commencement of strategic

review of security
management procedures

High

Further information on
security developments
and initiatives can be
found in the Corporate
responsibiity review

ABG 15 in the process of establishing specific change management
procedures for use in Impiementing the organisational restructunng
and will also maintain is current management structures for financial
reporting, treasury, planming and internal audit these being key
elements of ABG's internal controls and nsk management framework

Ongoing development of
procedures and controls
to support the

implementation of ongoing
organisational restructuring

High

Further information
as regards this nsk
15 provided as part
of this Risk
management review
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

The information contained 1n this section of the Annual
Report is required to be produced by law, the Listing Rules
and the Disclosure and Transparency Rules |n addition,
disclosures elsewhere in this Annual Report, notably in the
Strategic report, the Governance report and the Directors’
Report are cross-referenced and incorporated by reference,
where approprnate. Together, they fulfil the combined
requirements of applicable company law and regulation

Legal form of the Company

ABG 15 a public isted company incorporated in England and Wales with
the registered number 7123187 It conducts imited business actvities
iself and trades principally through its subsidianes and subsidiary
undertakings in vanous junsdictions Further information as regards
ABG s subsidianes 1s provided on page 103 in Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements

Strateglc report

The requirements of sections 414A to E of the Companies Act 2006 as
regards the production of a strategic report are satisfied in the Strategic
report contained at pages 1 to 37 which 1s incorporated by reference

In this section The Strategic report provides an overview of the
development and performance of ABG s business for the financial year
ending 31 December 2013 and alse provides information relevant to
future developments in the business

In addition, for purposes of complance with the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules, the required content for the Management report
can be found in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report

Directors
The names and blographies of the Directors serving as at
31 December 2013 are provided on pages 40 and 41

An overview of Directors’ appointments for the duration of the year under
review 15 provided below

Date of appointment  Date of termination

Kelvin Dushnisky 6 June 2012 N/A
Brad Gordon 21 August 2013 N/A
Peter Tomsett 26 Apnl 2013 N/A
Ambassador Juma V Mwapachu 14 July 2011 N/A
Andre Falzon 15 February 2010 N/A
Dawvid Hodgson 19 October 2011 N/A
Michael Kenyon 15 February 2010 N/A
Graham Clow 26 April 2013 N/A
Steve Lucas 24 Qctober 2013 N/A
Rachel English 24 October 2013 N/A
Rick McCreary 19 July 2012 N/A
Stephen Galbraith 19 January 2010 N/A
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Save for David Hodgson, who has recently decided to step down from
the Board all remaining Directors above will put themselves forward

for re-election at the forthcoming AGM Details of Director re-election
requirements are provided on page 44 As noted as part of the Strategic
and the Govemnance reports, Derek Pannell {appointed 15 February
2010) and Kevin Jennings appointed (12 January 2010), retired from
their posiion as Directars at the Company's 2013 AGM held on

18 Apnl 2013 Greg Hawking (appointed 15 February 2010) stepped
down from his position as a Director effective 21 August 2013

Directors’ Indemnity insurance

In accordance with ABG’s Articles of Assoctation and to the extent
permitted by the Companies Act 2006, ABG may indemnify its Directors
out of its own funds to cover habilities incurred as a result of therr office
The relevant provision contained in the Articles can be categonsed as a
“qualifying third-party indemnity provision” under the Companies Act
2006 ABG has adopted Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance,
which provides insurance cover for any claim brought against Directors
or officers for wrongful acts in connection with their positions The
insurance provided does not extend to claims ansing from fraud or
dishonesty and 1t does nst provide cover for el or criminal fines or
penalties imposed by law

Global GHG emissions data for period 1 January 2013

to 31 December 2013

According to the GHG Protocol developed by the World Business Council
for Sustainable Development and the World Resources Institute

GHG emissions are classified as either direct or indrect, and from there
are drvided further into Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope 3 emissions Direct
GHG emissions are emissions from sources that are owned or controlled
by the reporting entity Indirect GHG emissions are emissions that are a
consequence of the activities of the reporting entity but that ocour at
sources owned or controlled by another entity Each scope 1s classified
as follows

Scope 1 emussions direct emissions from sources owned or operated
by our Company

Scope 2 emissions indirect emissions attnbutable to our Company
due to its consumption of purchased electricity, notably our
consumpticn of electrnicity from TANESCO

Scope 3 emissions all other indirect emissions associated with
actvities that support or supply our Company s operations

For 2013, we have calculated ABG's Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions
footpnnt on the basis of carbon dioxide emissions only and will look to
measure and report on other greenhouse gases In future reporting
years Going forward, we witl also 0ok at opportunities to monitor and
calculate Scope 3 emIssIons

Total tonnes Percentage of

of CO, total emissions

Scope 1 emissions 258,096 70%
Scope 2 emissions 111,223 30%
Total 369,319 100%




Directors’ Interests

Details of the interests of Directors and their connected persons in
ABG's Ordinary Shares or in related dervatives or financial instruments
are outhined in the Directors’ Remuneration report

Employee share schemes
Details of ABG s employee share ptans and long-term incentve plans are
provided in the Directors Remuneration report

Employees

Information relating to employees 1s contained on page 121 in Note 9 to
the consolidated financial statements and the Corporate responsibility
review ABG abides by ant-discnimmation tegisiation in all junsdictions in
which 1t operates These principles are also set out In ABG 5 Business
Management Framework and Code of Conduct, which set out the
framework In which ABG expects all staff to operate This s supported
by antrdiscimination standards and trainng in offices and mine sites
which identify the required standards and provide mechamisms to raise
any concerns with management

Dividends

An intenm dividend of US1 O cent per share was paid to shareholders
on 23 September 2013 The Directors recommend the payment of a
final dvidend of US2 () cents per Ordinary Share This represents a total
dmvidend of US3 O cents for 2013 Subject to the shareholders approving
this recommendation at the AGM, the final dvidend will be paid on

23 May 2014 to shareholders on the register at 2 May 2014 The
ex-dividend date 1s 30 April 2014 ABG will deglare the final dwvidend

in US dollars Unless a shareholder has elected or elects to recewe
dividends in U5 dollars, dividends will be paid in pounds sterling with
the US dollar amount being converted into pounds sterling at exchange
rates prevailing on or around 9 May 2014 Currency elections must be
made by return of currency election forms The deadline for the return
of currency efection forms 1s 6 May 2014

Annual Genreral Meeting

ABG's AGM will be held on 24 Apnl 2014 at 2 00 pm (UK time) The notice
of AGM and all accompanying details of business to be conducted there
are included in a separate document accompanying this Annual Report,
they are also avallable on ABG's website www africanbamckgold com

The nght of a sharehotder to participate In the business of the AGM shall
include, without imitation the right to speak, vote on a show of hands,
vole on a poll and be represented by a proxy Access to all documents
which are required to be made available by the Companies Act 2006 or
the Articles of Association will be made avatlable to the meeting

Share capital

As at 31 December 2013, ABG s 1ssued share capital compnsed
410,085,499 Ordinary Shares of 10 pence each The voung nghts of
all ABG Ordinary Shares are dentical, with each share carmyng the nght
to one vote ABG holds no Ordinary Shares in Treasury and does not
have any class of share other than its Ordinary Shares Further details
on votung nghts and rights relating to the transfer of shares are
provided below

ABG's Articles of Association provide the authonty for ABG to purchase
1its own shares {including any redeemable preference shares), provided
that it compligs with any applicable requirements contained in the
Companies Act 2006 the CREST regulations or any other applicable law
As part of resolutions passed at the 2013 AGM, ABG obtained
shareholder approval to make market purchases of up to 41,008,550
of its Ordinary Shares, equivalent to 10%, of the 1ssued share capital at
the tme of approval The authorty was granted subject 10 stated upper
and lower imits in accordance with Listing Rule requirements and expires
at the forthcoming AGM The authornty was not exercised during the year
under review An equivalent shareholder resolution will be sought as a
matter of ordinary business at the forthcoming AGM

Details of ABG's issued share capital and any movements dunng the
year are included on page 131 in Note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements

Major shareholdings
The following persons as at 11 March 2014 are interested in the
following percentages of ABG's 1ssued ordinary share capital

Percentage of

Number of  1ssued share

Name shares caprtal
Barnck International (Barbados) Corp * 179,609,530 43 80
PDG Sona (Cayman} Lid 45,258,970 1104
PDG Bank Limited 37.378,450 911
M&G Irvestment Management 22,847,043 557
Total 285,093,993 6952

* Members of the Barnck Group

Relatlonship with major shareholder

An overview of ABG 5 relationship with Barrick and the Relationship
Agreement that has been executed in respect of their ongoing
relaticnship 1s provided on page 46

Political and charitable donations

ABG does not make political donations Information as regards ABG's
soctal and community contributions for the year 1s provided as part of
our Corporate responsibility and Financial reviews

Suppliers

It is ABG s policy that, subject to comphance with trading terms by the
supplier, payments are made n accordance with terms and conditions
agreed in advance with the supplier

As at 31 December 2013 the ABG Group had an average of 54 creditor
days compared to 59 creditor days in 2012

Policy on denvatives, financial instruments and financial

risk management

ABG s policies on financial nsk management, derivatives, financial
instruments and information on its exposures to foreign currency,
commodity prices, credit, equity, lquidity and interest rates can be found
in Notes 2, 31 and 33 to the conschidated financial statements
contained on pages 94 to 144 of this Annual Report
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION CONTINUED

Material agreements containing change of control provisions
The Directors consider the following as matenal agreements and
arrangements for ABG's business and operations which contain
provisions which alter or terminate on a change of control of ABG

Services Agreement ABG entered into a Services Agreement with
Barnck in February 2010, under which Barrick provides certain
services to ABG and the other members of the ABG Group for the
ongoing operation of the business These services include support
for nformation technology, techrical services, secunty and other
admimstrative and corporate functions The Services Agreement
provides that the services were to be provided to the ABG Group

for an inihial penod of 12 months and will continue in forge unless
terminated The agreement'’s termmnation events include a basis for
erther party to terminate the agreement with immediate effect In the
event of specified breaches of the agreement, insolvency, anatogous
events or a change of control

Relationship Agreement see page 46 of this report for an overview
of the Relationship Agreement

Credit Agreement an overview of the Credit Agreement between,
among others, ABG and Citibank International plc as admiristrative
agent, 1s provided on pages 33 and 136 and Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements A change of control of ABG 1S a

mandatory prepayment event under the Credit Agreement and, subject

to certain exceptions, a termination event

ABG's mining concessions are held by its operating companies in
Tanzania Under applicable law, a change of control of the operating
companies requires the consent of the Minister of Energy and Minerals
In Tanzania

Certain employment contracts for members of the Company s Semor
Leadership Team, excluding the current CEQ, contain change of control
provisions, which provide entitiements to severance payments in the
event of being dismissed without cause or resigning for good reason In
the 12 months following a change of control Any payment made under
these arrangements would replace the entitlement to receve payment
under applicable contractual notice penods in each case Special
provisions also allow the early exercise of awards made under ABG s
Stock Option Plan (“SOP") and early vesting of awards made under
ABG s Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP"}, in the event of a takeover,
reconstruction or winding up In such circumstances, the Compensation
committee determines whether and to what extent opttons of awards
become exercisable, by taking into account alt relevant facts and
circumstances including, but not imited to, satisfaction of any
applicable performance condition

When determining the vesting of LTIP awards or options, the
Compensation committee may proportionately reduce the award
depending on the time which has elapsed between the first day of the
performance penod and the date of change of control Alternatively,
awards may be exchanged for new equivalent awards where appropriate

Significant relationships

ABG s relationship with Barrick as its majonity shareholder is
summarnised on page 46 of this report In addition to this relationship,
the Directors consider the following contractual relationships and
arrangements as essential for the conduct of ABG's business
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Tulawaka Agreement although the Tulawaka mine was 100% owned
and operated by Pangea Minerals Limited, the economic interest in
the mine was divided between Pangea Goldfields Inc, an ABG Group
company, (“PGI") and MDN Inc (“MDN"} under a joint venture
agreement oh a 70 30 basts In addition, the agreement required PGI
to pay MDN an amount equal to 30% of the net cash generated by the
Tulawaka mine, less any applicable withholding The obligations under
this agreement remain outstanding pending completion of certain
postcompletion matters relating to the sale of Tulawaka

Mineral Development Agreements each ABG Group operating ming
has a Mineral Development Agreement (“MDA"™) with the Tanzanian
Government The material terms and conditions of each MDA are
substantially similar and include provisions governing royalty
payments, taxes and other charges, banking arrangements, local
procurement obligations, and import nghts The MDAs also provide
for no expropniation or nationalisation nghts Broadly these rights
provide that the Tanzanian Government witl not nationalise or
compulsorily acquire the whole or any part of ABG s interest in

the applicable special mining licences or any of its property or its
contractors’ or subcontractors’ property used for the purpose of
mining operations or In relation to the applicable special miming
lieenceas, without adequate compensation Each MDA 1s governed
by Tanzaman law Adherence 10 the terms and condiions of the
MDAs 1s of significant iImportance to ABG s business, given the
agreements’ overall importance to our operations

TANESCO relationship the North Mara, Buzwag: and Bulyanhulu
mines rely upon electrical power genarated by the state power utility
company, TANESCO ABG has entered into a number of agreements
and arrangements with TANESCO in respect of power supply and
purchase prices These agreements are reviewed on a regular basis
As national electricity generation and transmission systems In
Tanzansa are mited, ABG's ongoing relationship with TANESCO

1s of significant Importance to its operations and business Any
adverse change or development in this relationship could produce

a matenal adverse effect on ABG's operations, performance and
financial condition

Tulawaka sale and purchase agreement the terms of the sale of
Tulawaka to STAMICO are provided for under a sale and purchase
agreement between certain ABG subsidianes and STAMICO The
agreement provides for the disposal of Tulawaka for consideration
of US$4 5 million and the grant of a 2% net smelter royalty on future
production In excess of 500 000 ounces, capped at US$500,000
As part of the agreement, STAMICO has taken ownership and
management of the rehabilitation fund established as part of the
closure plan for the mine, in return for the assumption of alt
remaining past and future closure and rehabilitation liabilities for
Tulawaka, and has indemnified the other parties to the agreement
In relation to these liabilities Thes has resulted in a one-off cash
payment by ABG to STAMICO of the balance of the rehabilitation
fund, less the transaction consideration on completion, equal to
US$11 6 millon The agreement also contains customary provisions
as regards seller representations and warranties and tax indemnities
Given the matenality of the Tulawaka disposa! to the Group, the
Directors view this agreement as material to ABG s business

All other matenal contracts and arrangements are summansed above,
under “Material agreements containing change of control provisions”



Golng concemn
The Directors statement on going concern Is contained on page 33 of
this Annual Report

Corporate governance compliance
The statement on compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
for the reporting penod 1s contained on page 47 of this Annual Report

Articles of Assoclation
The Company s Articles of Association may be armended by special
resolution of the shareholders

Shareholder rights
The nights and obligations attaching to the Ordinary Shares contained 1n
ABG s Articles of Association are as follows

Voting rights

Subject to any special nghts or voting restnctions contained in the Articles
of Association for any class of share at any general meeting every
member who Is present in person or by proxy shall, on a show of hands,
have one vote and every member present in person or by proxy shall, on

a poll, have one vote for each share of which he or she 1s the holder

A resolution put to a vote of the meeung shall be decided on a show of
hands, unless a poll Is duly demanded Subject to the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006, a poll may be demanded by the Chairman, by at
least five members who have the nght 1o vote at the meeting, by a
member or members representing not less than one tenth of the total
voting nghts of all the members having the nght to vote at the meeting,
or by a member or members holding shares conferring a right to vote at
the meeting being shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up
equal to not tess than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the
shares confernng that nght

Unless the Directors otherwise determing, a shareholder 1s not entitled
to vote at a shareholders meeting, either in person or by proxy or to
exercise any other nght conferred by membership in relation to a
shareholders meeting, unless and until all calls or other sums
presently payable by him or her in respect of that share with interest
and expenses (if any) have been paid to ABG or if (s)he or any other
person appearing 1o be interested in shares has been 1ssued with a
notice pursuant to Section 793 of the Companies Act 2006 (requiring
disclosure of interest in shares) and has falled to provide the required
information within 14 days from the senice of the notice

Dividend rights

The Board may declare and pay dvidends on any class of shares
carrying a fixed divwdend expressed 1o be payable on fixed dates and may
from bime to time pay interim dividends as 1t thinks fit Final dwidends
shall be declared by ordinary shareholder resolutlon in accordance with
Board recommendations No dvidend dectared by shareholders shall
exceed the amount recommended by the Board

Provided that the Board acts in good farth, it shall not incur any hability
to shareholders for any loss that they may suffer by the lawfu! payment
of any fixed or intenm dmdend on any shares rankung after or par passu
with those shares

Except as otherwise provided by the nghts attached to shares, all dvidends
shall be apportioned and paid properticnately to the amounts paid up on
the shares dunng any portion or portions of the period In respect of which
the dividend 15 paud, but iIf any share 15 1Issued on terms providing that it
shall rank for dmdend as from a particular date, t shall rank for dmdend

accordingly No amount paid up on a share in advance of the date on which
a call 1s payable shall be treated as paid up on the share

Payment of any dividend declared may be satisfied wholly or partly by
the distribution of specific assets, and in particular of paid up shares or
debentures of ABG, with shareholder approval

The Dwectors may retam any dwidend or other money payable on or
in respect of a share on which ABG has a lien and may apply the same
towards satisfaction of the monies payable to ABG in respect of that share

Unless the Directors otherwise determine, the payment of any dvidend or
other money that would otherwise be payable in respect of shares will be
withheld, and ABG shail have no obligation to pay interest on It, If such
shares represent at least 0 25% of the nominal value of the 1ssued
share capital of therr class and the holder, or any other person appearng
to be interested (n those shares, has been 1ssued with a Section 793
notice and has failled to supply the information required by such notice
within 14 days Furthermore, such a holder shall not be entitied to elect
to recelve shares instead of a dmidend

The payment by the Board of any unclasmed dividend or other monies on
or In respect of a share into a separate account shall not constitute ABG
a trustee In respect thereof All dvidends unclaimed for a period of
twelve years after having been declared or become due for payment
shall be forfeited and shall revert to ABG

Transfer of shares

Subject to any applicable restrictions, each member may transfer all or
any of s or her shares, which are in certificated form, by instrument of
transfer in writing in any usual form or i any other form acceptable to
the Board and may be under hand only Such instrument shall be
executed by or on behalf of the transferor and {in the case of a transfer
of a share which is not fully paid up) by or on behalf of the transferee
The transferor shall be deemed to remain the holder of such share until
the name of the transferee 1s entered In the register in respect of it

All transfers of shares which are in uncertificated form shall, unless the
CREST regulations otherwise provide, be effected on a relevant systern

The Directors may, in their absolute discretion and without giving any
reason, refuse to register any transfer of a share in ceruficated form
{or renunctation of a renounceable ietter of allotment) unless

(1 1t1sn respect of a share which 15 fully paid up

() t1s n respect of only one class of shares,

() 1t 1s 10 favour of not more than four joint transferees,

(v) 1t1s lodged duly stamped (if so required) at the transfer office

(v} 1t 1s accompanied by the relevant certificate for the shares to which
it relates and such other evidence as the Directors may reasonably
reqjuire to prove the title of the transferor and the due execution of
the transfer or, If the transfer 1s executed by some other persen on
his behalf, the authenty of that person to do so, and

{v1) in the case of partly paid shares listed on the London Stock
Exchange, such refusal would prevent dealings in such shares from
taking place on an open and proper basis

Unless the Board otherwise determines, a transfer of shares will not be
registered If the transferor or any other person appearing to be
interested in the transferor s shares has been 1ssued with Section 793
shares In respect of shares representing at teast 0 25% of therr class
and the relevant information has not been supplied within 14 days This
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION CONTINUED

restnction on transfer will not automatically apply if the member 1s not
personally in default as regards supplying the information required and
the proposed transfer 1s only part of the member’s holding, provided that
certain requirements are satisfied at the time of presenting the transfer
for registration

Division of ABG assets on a winding up

If ABG 1s wound up the higuidator may, with the sanction of a shareholder
special resolution, divide the whole or any part of ABG'’s assets between
shareholders In such circumstances the liquidator may value any assets
and determine how the dwvision shall be carned out as between the
shareholders or different classes of shareholder Subject to certan
requirements, the hquidator may also vest any part of the assets in trustees
on such trusts for the benefit of the shareholders, but no shareholder shall
be compelled to accept any assets on which there 15 a labibity

Varlatlon of rights

if at any time the share capital of ABG 15 divtded into shares of different
classes, nghts attached to a class may only be vaned i such manner (If
any) as may be provided by prescnbed rights or, in the absence of any
such provision, ether with the consent in writing of the holders of not less
than three-quarters in nominal value of the 1ssued shares of the class or
with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate general
meeting of the halders of shares of the class duly convened and held

Powers of Directors

Managing the business

ABG's business 1s managed by the Board, and the Articles of Association
permit the Board to exercise all of ABG s powers n this regard These
powers may be exercised by any meeting of the Board at which a
quorum of two Directors is present The power of the Board to manage
the business 1s subject to any lmitations Imposed by the Companies
Act, the Articles of Association or any directions given by spectal
resolution of the shareholders applicable at a relevant time

The Articles contain an express authonty for the appointment of
Executive Directors and provide the Directors with the authonty to
delegate or confer upon such Directors ary of the powers exercisable by
them upon such terms and conditions and with such restrictions as they
see fit The Articles contain addiional authonties to delegate powers
and discretions 1o Board committees and subcommittees

Borrowing powers

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, the CREST
regulations and any other applicable law, the Directors may exercise all
the powers of ABG to borrow money, guarantee, indemnify, mortgage or
charge its undertaking, property (present and future) and uncalled capital
or any part or parts thereof and 1ssue debentures and other securties
whether outnght or as collateral securty for any debt hability or obligation
of ABG or of any third party up to a maximum amount of two times the
aggregate of the ABG Group's adjusted total equity, calculated In
accordance with the procedure contained In the Articles of Association
Borrowings In excess of this amount require pnor shareholder approval

New issues of shares

Subject to the provisions of the Compamies Act 2008, the CREST
regulations and every other enactment for the time being in force
retating to the Directors’ authornity to allot shares and/or the
disapplication of pre-emption nghts and to any resolution of the
Company in general meeung regarding the same, the Directors may allot
{with or withowt confernng a right of renunciation), grant options over or
otherwise dispose of them to such persons, at such times and on such
terms as they think proper
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ABG’s shareholders passed the following resolutions relating to the
allotment and pre-emption nght disapplications at the 2013 AGM

() The Directors were granted authority to allot new shares {or grant
nghts to subscnbe for or convert secunties into shares) up to a
nominal value of £13,532 821 equivalent to approximately 33% of
the total 1ssued ordinary share capital of ABG, exclusive of treasury
shares, at the sme of passing the resolution In addition te this, the
Directors were also granted authonty to allot additional new shares
(or grant nghts to subscribe for or convert any secunty into shares)
up to a further nominal amount of £13,532,821, but only in
connection with a rights issue

(1) Pre-emption rights were disapplied over new shares allotted for cash
pursuant to the authority granted at (1) above but only (a) in
connection with a pre-emptive offer or nghts 1ssue, or (b) otherwmse
up to a nominal value of £2,050,427 (equivalent to approximately
5% of the total issued ordinary share capital of ABG at the time of
passing tha resolution)

These authorities have not been exerised dunng the reporting penod and
will expire on the date of the forthcoming AGM Equivalent resolutions
for a renewal of these authonities will be put to the shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM

Appointment and replacement of Directors

Shareholders may appoint any person who is willing to act as a Director
by ordinary resolution and may remove any Director by ordinary resolution
The Board may anpoint any person to fill any vacancy or as an additional
Director, provided that they are submitted for re-election by the
shareholders at the AGM following their appointment

Spectfic conditions apply to the vacation of office, including cases where
a Director becomes prohibited by law or regulation from holding office,
or 1S persistently absent from Directors meetmgs, or if three-quarters
of appointed Directors request his or her resignation or in the case of
mental incapacity or bankruptcy

Barnck s rights to appoint Directors are summansed on page 46

Related party transactions
Details of related party transactions undertaken during the year are
contained in Note 36 on page 143 of the consolidated financial statements

Post-balance sheet events

Particulars of any important events affecting the Company or the ABG
Group since the year end are contained in Note 38 on page 144 of the
consolidated financial statements

Audit informatlion

Having made the requisite enquines, so far as the Directers are aware
there 15 no relevant audit informaticn (as defined by Section 418(3) of
the Companies Act 2006) of which the auditors are unaware and each
Director has taken all steps that he or she ought to have taken as a
Director to make him or herself aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information

Auditors

ABG s audttors are PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) A resolution to
reappoint PwC as auditors will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM
Refer to page 95 as part of the consolidated financial statements for
the Independent Auditors report




DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

Under applicable UK law, the Directors are responsible for
prepanng the Annual Report, the consolidated financial
statements and parent company financial statements in
accordance with applhicable law and regulation

Responsibility for financial statements

The Companies Act 2006 requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have
prepared the Group and parent company financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™)

as adopted by the European Union Under company law the Directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the ABG Group and
the Company and of the profit or loss of the ABG Group for that period

In prepanng these financial statements, the Directors are required to

Select sutable accounting pelicies and then apply them consistently

Make judgements and accounting estmates that are reasonable
and prudent

State whether applicable IFRS as adopted by the European Union
have been followed, subject 10 any matenal departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements

Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless It 1s inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue tn business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financtal positron of
the Company and the ABG Group and enable them to ensure that the
financtal statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as
regards the ABG Group's consolidated financial statements, Article 4 of
the IAS Regulations They are also responsible for taking such steps as
are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company
and the ABG Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
Company s website and legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemmation of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions

Responsibility statement required by Disclosure and
Transparency Rules
The Directors confirm to the best of their knowledge that

The financial statements, prepared in accordance with applicable
accounting standards give a true and fair iew of the assets,
habilities, financial poasition and profit or loss of ABG and the
undertakings included in the consolidation as a whole

The management report, which 1s incorporated into the Directors®
report, includes a farr review of the development or performance of
the business and the position of ABG and the undertakings included
In the consolidation as a whole, together with a descnption of the
principal nsks and uncertainties that they face

Approval of Strateglc report, and the Directors’ report

The Strategic report and the Directors report have been approved by the
Board and signed on its behalf by

Katrina White,
Company Secretary
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RESERVES AND RESOURCES

Mineral reserves and mineral resources estimates contained in this
Annual Report have been calculated as at 31 December 2013 in
accordance with National Instrument 43-101 as required by Canadian
securities regulatory authonties, unless otherwise stated Canadian
Institute of Mining Metallurgy and Petroleum {“CIM") defimtions were
followed for mmneral reserves and resources Calculations have been
reviewed, verified (Including estimation methadology, sampling, analytical
and test data) and compiled by ABG personnel under the supenasion of
ABG Qualified Persons Nic Schoeman, General Manager Technical
Services, Ray Swanson, Mineral Resource Manager, and Samuel Eshun,
Chief Mine Planning Engineer However, the figures stated are estimates
and no assurances can be given that the indicated quantities of metal will
be produced In addition, totals stated may not add up due ta rounding

Mineral reserves have been calculated using an assumed long-term
average gold pnce of US$1 300 00 per ounce a silver price of US$21 00
per ounce and a copper price of US$3 00 per pound Reserve calculations
incorporate current and/or expected mine plans and cost levels at

each property

Mineral resources at ABG mines have been calculated using an assumed
long term average gold price of US$1,500 00 per ounce, a silver price

of US$24 00 per ounce and a copper price of US$3 50 per pound
Resources have been estimated using varying cut-off grades, depending
on the type of mine or project, ts maturity and ore types at each property
Raserve estimates are dynamic and are influenced by changing economic
conditions, technical 1ssues, environmental regulations and any other
relevant new information and therefore these can vary from year to year
Resource esttmates can also change and tend to be influenced mostly

by new information pertaining to the understanding of the deposit and
secondly the conversion 1o ore reserves In addilton, estimates of inferred
mingeral resources may not form the basis of an economic analysis and it
cannot be assumed that all or any part of an inferred mineral resource wilt
ever be upgraded to a lmgher category Therefore, investors are cautioned
ngt to assume that all or any part of an inferred mineral resource exists,
that It can be economically or legally mined, or that it will ever be
upgraded to a higher category Likewise, investors are cautioned not to
assume that all or any part of measured or indicated mineral resources
will ever be upgraded to mineral reserves Tulawaka mineral reserves
and resources are stated as ABG s 70% attributable portion

Definitions

A mineral resource 15 & concentralion or occurrence of diamonds,
natural solid inorganic matenial, or natural solid fossihsed orgame
matenal including base and precious metals, ceal, and industrial
minetals in or on the Earth's ¢rust in such form and quantity and of
such a grade or quality that 1t has reasonable prospects for economic
extraction The location, quantity grade, geological characteristics
and continuity of a mineral resource are known, estimated or
interpreted from specific geological evidence and knowledge
Mineral resources are sub-divided In order of increasing geological
confidence, into inferred, indwated and measured categories
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An inferred mineral resource 1s that part of a mineral resource for which
guantity and grade or quality can be esuimated on the basis of geological
ewdence and hmited sampling and reasonably assumed but not verified,
geological and grade continuity The estmate 1S based on hmsted
information and samphng gathered through appropriate techmgues from
locations such as oulcrops, trenches, s, workings and drill holes

An indicated mineral resource 1s that part of a mwmeral resource

for which quantity, grade or quality, densities, shape and physical
charactenstics, can he estimated with a level of confidence sufficient
to allow the appropriate application of technical and econormc
parameters, t0 support mine planning and evaluation of the economic
viability of the deposit The estimate 1s based on detalled and rehiable
exploration and testing information gathered through appropriate
techniques from locations such as outcrops, trenches, pits, workings
and dnll holes that are spaced closely enough for geclogical and
grade continuity to be reasonably assumed

A measured mineral resource I1s that part of a mineral resource for which
quantity, grade or guablity, densities, shape and physical charactenstics
are 50 well established that they can be estimated with confidence
sufficient to allow the appropnate application of technical and economic
parameters, to suppart production planning and evaluation of the
economic viabilty of the deposit The estimate 1s based on detailed and
reliable exploraton samplhing and testing information gathered through
appropriate techruques from locations such as outcrops, trenches, pits,
workings and doll holes that are spaced closely enough to confirm both
geological and grade continuity Mineral resources which are not mineral
reserves do not have demonstrated economic viability

A mineral reserve 1s the economically mineable part of a measured or
indicated mineral resource demonstrated by at least a prelminary
feasibility study This study must include adequate information on mining,
processing, metallurgical, economic and other relevant factors that
demonstrate, at the time of reporting, that economic extraction can be
Justified A mineral reserve includes diluting materials and allowances for
losses that may eccur when the materat is mined Mineral reserves are
subdivided in arder of ncreasing confidence into probable mineral
reserves and proven mineral reservas

A probable mineral reserve 1S the economically nuneable part of an
Indicated and, In some circumstances a measured mineral resource
demonstrated by at least a preliminary feastbility study This study

must include adequate information on mining, processtng, metallurgical,
economic and other relevant factors that demonstrate, at the time of
reporung, that economic extraction can be justified

A proven mineral reserve 1s the economically mineable part of a measured
mineral resource demonstrated by at least a preliminary feasibility study
This study must include adequate Information on mining, processing,
metallurgical, economic and other relevant factors that demonstrate, at
the time of reporting, that economic extraction 1s justified




Mine gold reserves and resources

2013 2012
Ming Tonnes {('000s) Grade Au(g/t) Qunce ('000s) Tonnes(000s} Grade Au(g/t)  Ounoce {"000s}
Bulyanhulu - Underground  Proven and probable 29610 9 530 9,072 28,990 11 335 10,564
Mineral Resource 10,225 10 663 3,502 10,672 39675 3,320
Inferred 6,632 12 877 2,745 8,465 11949 3,252
Bulyanhulu - Taihngs Proven and probable 7,974 1229 315 7974 1229 315
Mineral Resource - - - - - -
Inferred - - - ~ - -
Buzwag Proven and probable 24,105 1445 1,120 63,333 1325 2,697
Mineral Resource 49,109 1291 2,038 14,875 1019 487
Inferred 7,473 1183 273 7,211 1101 255
North Mara Proven and probable 21,710 3169 2,212 34,207 2739 3,012
Mineral Resource 25,266 3316 2,694 19,117 3921 2,410
Inferred 735 2730 65 1,077 3663 127
Tutawaka (70%) Proven and probable - - - 29 16 814 16
Mineral Resgurce - - - 663 6580 140
Inferred - - - 129 4671 19
Total Proven and probable 83,399 4743 12,719 134,533 3839 16,604
Minera! Resource 84,600 3027 8,233 45 327 4 362 6 357
Inferred 14,540 6 595 3,083 16,882 6731 3,654
Exploration property gold reserves and rescurces
2013 2012
Mine Tonnes ('C00s) Grade Au (g/t) Ounce ('000s) Tonnes{000s) GradeAu(grt) Qunce(000s)
Tusker {Nyanzaga) Proven and probable - - - - - -
Mineral Resource 95,054 1320 4,034 78,163 1443 3.627
Inferred 2,214 0952 68 13,003 1912 799
Kilimam {Nyanzaga) Proven and probahle - - - - - _
Mineral Resource 2,298 0929 69 3,753 0998 120
Inferred 828 0 858 23 1,661 0992 53
Golden Ridge Proven and probable - - - - - -
Minera! Resource 7,944 2779 710 7417 2837 677
Inferred 1,414 2 268 103 1,221 2371 93
Total Exploration Proven and probable - - - - -
Mineral Resource 106,296 1422 4,812 89,333 1540 4,424
Inferred 4,456 1362 194 15,885 1851 945
Total ABG Proven and probable 83,399 4 743 12,719 134,533 3839 16,604
Mineral Resource 189,895 2137 13,046 134 660 2490 10 782
Inferred 18,995 5 365 3,276 32,767 4 365 4,599
Contalned copper reported within gold reserves and resources
2013 2012
Mine Tonnes { 000s) Grade Cu (%) Pounds (000s) Tonnes{ 000s) Grade Cu {%) Pounds { 000s)
Bulyanhulu - Underground  Proven and probable 29610 0566 369,616 28,990 0 655 418,703
Mineral Resource 10.225 0671 151,237 10,672 0614 144,480
Inferred 6,632 0774 113,174 8,465 D716 133,681
Bulyanhulu - Tailings Proven and probable 7974 0036 6,329 7.974 0036 6,329
Mtneral Resource - - - - - -
Inferred - - - - - -
Buzwagi Proven and probable 24,105 0100 53,263 63,333 0104 144,752
Mineral Resource 49,109 0109 118,283 14,875 0083 27,172
Inferred 7473 0084 13,323 7,211 0075 11979
Total Proven and probable 61,689 0 316 429,207 100,297 0258 569,784
Mineral Resource 59,333 0 206 269,520 25,547 0305 171652
Inferred 13,805 0416 126,497 15,676 0421 145,660
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RESERVES AND RESQURCES CONTINUED

Contalned sliver reported within gold reserves and resources

2013 2012
Ming Tonnes ('000s) Grade Ag (g/t) Ounce (000s) Tonnes(0Q0s) Grade Ag(g/t}  Ounce { 000s)
Bulyanhulu - Underground  Proven and probable 29,610 8 0686 7.679 28,990 9159 8.537
Mineral Resource 10.225 8437 2,773 10,672 8149 2,796
Inferred 6,632 12 877 2,745 8,465 9 837 2677
Butyanhulu - Talings Proven and probable 7974 3848 987 7,974 3848 987
Mineral Resource - - - - - -
Inferred - - - - - -
Total Proven and probable 37,584 7171 8,665 36,964 8013 8,623
Mineral Resource 10,225 8 437 2,773 10,672 8 149 2,796
Inferred 6,632 12877 2,745 8,465 9 B37 2,677
Mine gold reserves
Mine Classification Tonnes Grade Au (g/t)  Contained Au (Oz)
Bulyanhulu - Underground Proven 406,786 11397 149 054
Probable 29,203,615 9 504 8,923,060
Totat (P+P) 29,610,401 9 630 9,072,114
Bulyanhulu - Taihngs Proven - - -
Probable 7,974,020 1229 315,080
Total (P+P) 7,974,020 1229 315,080
Buzwagi Proven 5,518,912 10386 183,742
Probable 18,586,132 1567 936,086
Total (P+P) 24,105,044 1445 1,119,828
North Mara Proven 6,983,021 2600 583,639
Probable 14,726,720 3439 1,628,179
Total (P+P) 21,709,741 3169 2,211,818
Total mine gold reserves Proven 12 908,719 2208 916,435
Probable 70,490 487 5208 11,802,405
Total (P+P) 83,399,206 4743 12,718,840
Contalned copper reported within gold reserves
Mine Classification Tonnes Grade Cu (%)  Contained Cu {Ibs}
Bulyanhulu - Underground Proven 406,786 0444 3,978,089
Probable 29,203,615 0 568 365,637,529
Total 29,610,401 0 566 369,615,618
Bulyanhulu - Talings Proven - - -
Probable 7,874,020 0036 6 328 629
Total 7,974,020 0036 6,328,629
Buzwag) Proven 5518,912 0068 8,284,153
Probable 18,586,132 0110 44,978,892
Total 24,105,044 0100 53,263,045
Total copper reported within gold reserves Proven 5,925,698 0094 12,262,242
Probable 55,763,767 0339 416,945,050
Total 61,689,465 0 316 429,207,292
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Contalned silver reported within gold reserves

Mine Clazsification Tonnes Grade Ag(g/t)  Contaned Ag (Qz) %
Bulyanhulu - Underground Proven 406,786 9458 123,697 E
Probable 29,203,615 8047 7,555,133 g
Total 29,610,401 8 066 7,678,830 2
Bulyanhulu - Tallings Proven - - - Q
Probable 7.974.020 3848 986,514 2
Total 7,974,020 3848 986.514 -
Total silver reported within gold reserves Proven 406,786 9458 123,697
Probable 37,177,635 7 146 8,541,647
Total 37,584,421 7171 8,665,344
Mine gold resource (Measured and Indlcated, exclusive of reserves)
Mg Classification Tonnes Grade Au (g/t)  Contained Au {Oz}
Bulyanhulu - Underground Measured - - -
Indicated 10,224,573 10 653 3,601,819
Total (M+l} 10,224,573 10653 3,501,819
Bulyanhulu - Tailings Measured - - -
Indicated - - -
Total (M+1) - - -
Buzwag| Measured 206,116 1571 10,411
Indicated 48,902,642 1290 2,027,649
Total (M+1) 49,108,758 1291 2,038,060
North Mara Measured 3,248,720 3323 347,132
Indicated 22 017,500 3 315 2,346,451
Total {M+1) 25,266,220 3316 2,693,583
Total mine resource (M+) Measured 3,454,836 3219 357,643
Indicated 81,144,715 3019 7 875,919
Total (M+1) 84,599,651 3027 8,233,462
Contalned copper reported within gold resources
Mine Classification Tonnes Grade Qu (%)  Contained Cu (Ibs)
Bulyanhulu - Underground Measured - - -
Indicated 10,224,573 0671 151,236,892
Total (M+1) 10,224,573 0671 151,236,892
Bulyanhulu - Taithngs Measured - - -
Indicated - - -
Total (M+1) - - -
Buzwag) Measured 206,116 0115 522,759
Indicated 48,902,642 0109 117,760,545
Total (M+1]) 49,108,758 0109 118,283,304
Total copper reported within gold resources Measured 206,116 0115 522,759
Indicated 59,127,215 0 206 268,997,437
Total (M+1} 59,333,331 0206 269,520,196
Contained sliver reported within gold resources
Ming Classification Tonnes Grade Ag{g/t}  Contained Ag{Cz)
Bulyanhulu - Underground Measured - - -
Indicated 10,224,573 8437 2,773,362
Total (M+1) 10,224 573 B8 437 2,773,362
Total silver reported within gold resources Measured - - -
Indicated 10,224,573 8437 2,773,362
Total (M+1) 10,224,573 8 437 2,773,362
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AFRICAN BARRICK GOLD PLC

REPORT ON THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our opinion
In our opinion the Group financial statements, defined below

give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at
31 December 2013 and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the
year then ended,

have been properly prepared in accordance with Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Urion, and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

This opinion 1s to be read in the context of what we say In the remainder
of thls report

What we have audlited
The Group financial statements, which are prepared by Afncan Barrck
Gold Plc, compnse

the Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2013,

the Consolidated income statement and statement of comprehensive
Income for the year then ended,

the Consolidated statement of changes n equity and cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and

the notes to the Group financial statements, which include a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

The financial reporting framework that has been apphed in therr
preparatipn compnses applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the
European Umion

Certain disclosures required by the financtal reporting framework have
been presented elsewhere In the Annual Repgrt and Accounts {the
“Annual Report™), rather than tn the notes to the financial siatements
These are cross-referenced from the financial statements and are
entfied as audited

What an audit of financiaf statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Audrting (UK and Ireland) (ISAs (UK & Irefand)) An audit involves
obtaining evidence about the amotints and disclosures n the financial
statements sufficient 1o gwe reasonahle assurance that the financial
statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of

whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's
circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed,

the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
directors, and

the overall presentation of the financial statements

In addition, we read all the financial and nonfinancial information In
the Annua! Report to identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited
Group financial statements and to identify any information that 1s
apparently maternally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent
with, the knowledge acquired by us In the course of performing the
audit If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements

or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Overview of our audit approach

Materlality

We set certain thresholds for matenalty These helped us to determing
the nature, iming and extent of our audst procedures and to evaluate the
effect of misstatements both indmidually and on the financial
statements as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the
Group financial statements as a whole to be US$11 milion based on
approximately 5% of the three year average profit before tax adjusted
for nonrecurring Impaiment charges

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them
mtsstatements identified dunng our audit above US$1 million as well as
misstaternents below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting
for qualitative reasons

Overview of the scope of our audit

The Group s assets and operations are primarnly located at four mine
sites in Tanzanma Finangal reporting processes related to the activities
of these mune sites are undertaken at shared business centres {'SBCs )
located in Dar es Salaam and Johannesburg

In establishing the overall approach to the Group audit, we determined
the type of work that needed to be performed at each of the four mine
sites and the SBCs by us, as the group engagement tearn and by other
PwC network firms operating under our instruction Where the work
was performed by component auditors, we determined the level of
mvolvement we needed to have in the audit work at those reporting
units to be able to conclude whether sufficient appropnate audit
evidence had been obtained as a basis for our opinion on the Group
financial statements as a whole

Accordingly, of the Group s four mine sites, of which one ceased
operations dunng the year, we 1dentified three which, In our view,
required an audit of their complete financial infformation due to ther
size and thew nsk charactenstics Specific audit procedures on certain
balances and transactions were performed at the other reporting units
including the SBC's This together with additional procedures performed
at the Group level, specifically in relation to the imparment assessment,
gave us the evidence we needed for gur opimion on the Group financial
statements as a whole

Areas of particular audit focus

In preparing the financial statements, the directors made a number of
subjective jJudgements, for example in respect of significant accounting
estimates that involved making assumptions and considenng future
events that are inherently uncertain We primarily focused our work In
these areas by assessing the directors Judgements against available
evidence, forming our own judgements and evaluating the disclosures
in the financial statements

In our audit, we tested and examined information, using sampling and
other audiing techruques, to the extent we considered necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions ‘We obtained
audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls substantive
procedures or a combination of both

We considered the following areas to be those that required particular
focus n the current year This 1s not a complete list of all nsks or areas
of focus identified by our audit We discussed these areas of focus with
the Audit Committee Their report on those matters that they considered
1o be significant 1ssues 1n relation to the financial statements 1s set out
on pages 49 to 51
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TC THE MEMBERS OF AFRICAN BARRICK GOLD PLC CONTINUED

Area of Focus

How the scope of our audit addressed the area of focus

Impairment assessment

We focused on this area because the determination of whether or not
to book an impairment charge 15 based on judgements about the future
results of each mine and project

A pre-tax impairment charge of $907m has been recorded on PP&E at
Buzwag) and North Mara, along with $25m of capitalised acquisition
and exploration costs at the Nyanzaga Goodwill relating to North Mara
and Nyanzaga of $43m was also impaired Long term stock piles and
consumables at Buzwag:, North Mara and Tulawaka of $86m were
further impaired This gives a total gross iImpairment charge for the
year of $1,061m

{Refer also to note 8 to the financial statements )

We evaluated the directors’ future cash flow forecasts, and the process
by which they were drawn up, including comparing them to the latest
Board approved budgets and testing the undertying calculations

We challenged

the directors’ key assumptions for the long-term gold price, and

the discount rate by assessing the cost of capital for the company
and comparable organisations

We also performed sensitivity analysis around these key drivers of the
cash flow forecasts Having ascertained the extent of change in those
assumptions that either indvidually or collectively would be required
for the asset to be impaired, we considered the hkelthood of such
movemnent 1n those key assumptions ansing and the overall impact

on the recoverabilty of the remaining unimpaired assets

Fraud in revenue recognhtion
15As (UK & Ireland) presume there 1s a rnisk of fraud in
revenue recognitvon

We focused on this area because the timing of revenue recognition

and its presentation in the income statement has inherent complexities,
including the point when the nisks and rewards of ownership transfer

to customers

(Refer to note 6 to the financial statements )

We evaluated the relevant IT systems and tested the internal controls
over the tcompleteness, accuracy and timing of revenue recognised in
the financial statements We also tested journal entries posted 1o
revenue accounts to identify unusual or wrregular items

We also tested the timing of revenue recognition with regard to
contractuyal obligations and in particular the transfer of the risks and
rewards of ownership

Risk of management override of internal controls
ISAs (UK & Ireland) require that we consider this

We assessed the overall contro! environment of the Group, including
the arrangements for staff to “whistle-blow” inappropriate actions, and
interviewed senior management and the Group s internal audit function
We examined the significant accounting estimates and judgements
relevant to the financial statements for evidence of bias by the diractors
that may represent a risk of material misstatement due to fraud In
particular, we focused on estimates affecting all-in sustaining costs

We also tested Journal entries

Deferred and indirect taxes

The Group has material recognised deferred tax balances which
include prior year tax l0ss assessments that remain in dispute with
the Tanzanian Revenue Authority

in addition, the Group has recorded sigrificant indirect tax recewvables,
of which a matenal amount has not been refunded (n a timely manner

{Refer also 10 notes 19 and 23 10 the financial statements )

We have reviewed correspondence between management and the
Tanzanian Revenue Authority and assessed management's position in
relation to the specific matters disputed

In relation to deferred tax, we have also assessed the avallability of
future taxable income to utilise recognised carry forward losses and the
reversal of temportary deferred tax differences

We also assessed management’'s assumptions with regard to whether
the Indirect tax recelvable was ultimately recoverable, and whether 1t
should be classified as current or non<current
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Going Concern

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the directors’
statement set out on page 89, in relation to going concermn We have
nothing to report having performed our review

As noted in the directors’ statement, the directors have concluded that
It I1s appropnate to prepare the Group's financial statements using the
going concern basis of accounting The going concern basis presumes
that the Group has adequate resources to remamn in operation, and that
the directors intend 1t to do so, for at least one year from the date the
financial statements were signed As part of our audit we have concluded
that the directors’ use of the going concern basis 1S appropriate

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted,
these statements are not a guarantee as 1o the Group s ability to
continue as a going concern

OPINIONS ON MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY
THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our optnion

the information given 1n the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report
for the financial year for which the Group financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the Group financial statements, and

the information given in the Corporate Governance Statement set out
on pages 43 to 47 In the Annual Report with respect to internal
control and sk management systems and about share capital
structures 15 consistent with the financial statements

OTHER MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED
TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Adequacy of informatlon and explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, in our
opinion we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit We have no exceptions to report ansing from this
responsibility

Directors’ remuneration

Under tha Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, in our
opinion, certain disclesures of directors’ remuneration specified by law
have not been made, and under the Listing Rulés we are required to
review certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on
directors remuneration We have no exceptions to report ansing from
these responsibilities

Corporate Governance Statement

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you If, In
our opnion a corporate governance statement has not been prepared
by the Parent Company We have no exceptions o report arnsing from
this responsibility

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of the
Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company's compliance
with nine provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code ( the Code’)
We have nothing to report having performed our review

On page 8% of the Annual Report as required by the Code Provision

C 1 1, the directors state that they consider the Annual Report taken as
a whole to be far, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for members to assess the Group s performance,
business model and strategy On page 50, as required by C 3 8 of the
Code, the Audit Committee has set out the significant issues that it
considered In relation to the financial statements, and how they were

addressed Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you (f,
N OUr opINIon

the statement given by the directors 1s matenally inconsistent with
our knowledge of the Group acquired in the course of performing
our audit, or

the section of the Annual Report describing the work of the Audit
Committee does not appropriately address matters communicated
by us to the Audt Committee

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

Other informatlon in the Annuai Report
Under ISAs (UK and Ireland), we are required to report to you If, in our
omnion, information in the Annual Report is

matenally inconsistent with the information in the audited Group
financial statements, or

apparently matenally incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent
with, our knowledge of the Group acquired in the course of performing
our audit, or

15 atherwise misleading
We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responstbility

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND THE AUDIT

Our responsibllities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement
on page 89, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
Group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the Group
financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and 1SAs (UK
and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for
the Company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do
not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or
into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our
prior consent in wnting

OTHER MATTER

We have reported separately on the parent company financial
statements of African Barnck Gold Plc for the year ended

31 December 2013 and on the information in the Remuneration
Report that 1s described as having been audited

A

Jason Burkitt,

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCaopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

11 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the
Ferthe year ended
year ended 31 December
31 December 2012
(in thousands of United States doltars except per shase amounts) Naotes 2013 (restated)
Continuing operatlons
Revenue 6 929,004 1,011,738
Cost of sales 7 (713,806) (720,036}
Gross profit 215198 291,702
Corporate admintstration (32,157) (47,640)
Exploration and evaluation costs 10 (16,927) (26,752)
Corporate social responsibility expenses (12,237) (13,051)
Impairment charges 8 (1,044310) -
Other charges 11 (30,424} (17.071)
(Loss)/profit before net finance expense and taxation {920,857) 187,188
Finance mncome 13 1,670 2,056
Finance expense 13 (9,552) {10,079)
(7,882) {8,203)
(Loss)/profit before taxation (928,739) 173,165
Tax credit/(expense) 14 187,959 {78,603)
Net (loss)/profit from contlnuing operations {740,780) 100,472
Discontinued operations
Net loss from discontinued operations 4 (57,653) (48,979)
Net (loss)/ profit for the year {798,433) 51,493
Net {loss)/profit attributable to
Owners of the parent (net {loss)/earnings)
- Continuing operations (740,780} 100,472
- Discontinued operations (40,321) (37,692)
Non-controlling interests
- Discontinued operations (17,332) (11,287)
{Loss)/earnings per share
- Basic and diluted (Joss)/earmngs per share {cents) from continuing operations 15 (180 6) 245
- Basic and diluted {loss)/earmngs per share (cents) from discontinued operations 15 98) (92)

The notes on pages 103 to 144 are an mtegral part of these consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREMENSIVE INCOME

For the
For the year ended
vearended 31 December
31 December 2012
{(in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 {restated)
Net (loss)/profit for the year (798,433) 51,493
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be subsequently rectassified to profit or loss
Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 1,570 363
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (796,863) 51,856
Attrnibuted to
- Owners of the parent (779,531) 63,143
= Non-controliing interests (17,332) (11,287)

The notes on pages 103 to 144 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at
Asat 31 December
31 December 2012
{tn thousands of United States dollars) Notes 2013 {restated)
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill and intangtble assets 22 211,190 278,221
Property, plant and equipment 21 1,280,671 1,975,040
Deferred tax assets 23 50,787 2,399
Non-current portion of inventory 18 72,689 115,553
Derwative financial instruments 32 3.2563 467
Other assets 24 137,191 137,565
1,755,781 2,509,245
Current assets
Inventories 18 253,676 332232
Trade and other receivables 19 24,210 44,227
Dervative financgial snstruments 32 1.366 2,207
Other current assets 19 113,945 44,314
Cash and cash equivalents 20 282,409 401,348
675,606 824,328
Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale 4 596 -
Total assets 2,431,983 3,333,573
Equity and liabllities
Share capital and share premicm 25 929,199 929,199
Other reserves 992,915 1,826,511
Total awners equity 1,922,114 2,755,710
Non-controlling interests 5,248 22 580
Total equity 1,927,362 2,778,290
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 28 142,000 -
Deferred tax abilities 23 35,862 175,115
Dervative financial instruments 32 1,207 294
Provisions 29 132,237 180,548
Other non-current habtlities 30 10,101 21,064
321,407 377,021
Current liabiiities
Trade and other payables 27 147,896 169,904
Dervative financial instruments 32 5,074 429
Provisions 29 1,028 1,040
Other current liabilities 30 12,456 6,889
166,454 178,262
Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale 4 16,760 -
Total llabilities 504,621 555,283
Total equity and llabilities 2,431,983 3,333,573

The notes on pages 103 to 144 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

The consohdated finangial statements on pages 98 to 144 were authonsed for ssue by the Board of Directors on 11 March 2014 and were signed on Its behalf

-

Bradley Gordon,
Chief Executive Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Contnibuted Retained Total
surplus/ Cash flow Stock eamings/ Total non-
Share Share Other hedging option  (accumulated owners controlling Totat
(in thousands of United States dollars)  Notes capital premium reserve resena reserve losses) equity Interests equity
Balance at 1 January 2012 62,097 867,102 1,368,713 - 2,041 461,278 2,761,231 37,473 2,798,704
Tota! comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year 3 - - - 363 - 62,780 63,143 {11,287) 51,856
Stock option grants - - - - 1,461 - 1,461 - 1461
Dividends to equity holders of the
Company 16 - - - - - (70,125} (70,125) - {70,125)
Distributions to non-controling
Interests - - - - - - - (3.6086) {3,6086)
Balance at 31 December 2012 62,097 867,102 1,368,713 363 3,502 453,933 2,755,710 22,580 2,778,290
Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year - - - 1,570 - {781,101} (779,531 (17,332) (796,863}
Stock option grants - - - - 476 - 476 - 476
Dividends to equity holders of the
Company 16 - - - - - {54,541) (54,541) - (54,541)
Balance at 31 December 2013 62,097 867,102 1,368,713 1,933 3,978 (381,709) 1922114 5,248 1,927,362

The notes on pages 103 to 144 are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FILOW STATEMENT

Fer the
For the year ended
yearended 31 December
21 Decemnber 2012
{in thousands of United States dollars) Notes 2013 {restated)
Cash flows from operating activities
Net (loss)/profit for the year (798,433) 51,493
Adjustments for
Taxation {credit)/expense {187,959) 72,604
Deprectation and amortisation 141,159 168,228
Finance items 7,968 8,203
Imparment charges 1,061,011 44,536
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (175) {616)
Working capital adjustments 17 (41,165) (74,070)
Other non-cash items 17 8,181 3,088
Cash generated from operations before interest and tax 190,587 273,466
Finance income 1,700 2,102
Finance expenses (5172) (6,284)
Income tax paid - (551)
Net cash generated by operating activities 187,116 268,733
Cash flows from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {373,101) (323,505)
Investments in other assets (8,289) (24,473)
Acquisition of subsichary, net of cash acquired (588) (22,039)
Other investing activities 17 (4,872) (1,468)
Net ¢cash used tn investing activities {386,250) (371,485)
Cash flows from financing activities
Loans received 142,000 -
Dividends paid (54,541) (70,125)
Distributions to non-controfling interest holders - (3.606)
Finance lease instalments (5,137) (5,708)
Net cash generated by/{used in} financing activities 82,322 (79,439)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {117,413) [182,191)
Net foreign exchange difference {1,526) (615)
Cash and ¢ash equivalents at 1 January 401,348 584,154
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 282,409 401,348

The notes on pages 103 to 144 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General Information

African Barrnck Gold ple (the “Company™,"ABG" or collectively with its subsidiaries the “Group”) was incorporated on 12 January 2010 and re-registered
as a public imited company on 12 March 2010 under the Companies Act 2006 It 1s registered in England and Wales with registered number 7123187

On 24 March 2010 the Company's shares were admitted to the Official List of the United Kingdom Listing Authority (“UKLA") and to trading on the
Masn Market of the London Stock Exchange, hereafter referred 1o as the inwtial Public Cffening (“IPO”) The address of 115 registered office 1s 5% Floor,

1 Cavendish Place, London, WIGOQF, United Kingdom

Barrick Gold Corporation {*BGC") currently owns approximately 63 9% of the shares of the Company and 1s the ultimate parent and controlling party

of the Group The financial statements of BGC can be obtained from www barnick com BGC 15 incorporated in Canada

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 were approved for 1ssue by the Board of Directors of the Company on

11 March 2014

The Group’s primary business 1s the miming, processing and sale of gold The Group has three operating mines located 1n Tanzania The Group also
has a portfolio of exploration projects located across Africa

The principal activities of the subsidianies and joint ventures included in the consolidated financial statements are as follows

Equuty nterest st Equity mterest at

Country of December 31 December 31

Company Principal actwity Incorporation Relationship 2013 2012
African Barnck Gold ple Holding Company UK 100% 100%
BUK HoldCo Limited Helding Company UK Subsidiary 100% 100%
BUK East Africa Limited Holding Company UK Subsidiary 100% 100%
1816962 Ontario Ing Holding Company Canada Subsidiary 100% 100%
African Barrick {Barbados) Corp Ltd Group Finance Company  Barbados Subsidiary 100% 100%
BAPL Holding Ltd Hotding Company Mauritius Subsidiary 100% 100%
ABG Exploration (Kenya) Ltd** Exploration Kenya Subsidiary 100% 100%
CayCo Tz Ltd Holding Company Cayman Istands Subsidiary 100% 100%
ABG Exploration Africa Limited Exploration Tanzama Subswdiary 1005% 100%
Matinye Exploration Ltd Exploration Tanzama Subsidiary 75% 75%
Itobo Exploration Ltd Exploration Tanzania Substdiary 75% 75%
Mkuri Exploration Ltd Exploration Tanzama Subsidiary B0% 80%
Nyanzaga Exploration Company Ltd Exploration Tanzania Subsidiary 100% 100%
Barrick Tanzanian Holdings Lid Expioration Cayman Islands Subsidiary 100% 100%
Prime Gold Exploration Ltd Exploration Tanzana Subsidiary 75% 75%
Kasubuya Exploration Company Ltd Exploration Tanzama Subsidiary 60% 60%
KMCL Holdings Ltd Exploration Cayman Islands Subsidiary 100% 100%
Bulyanhulu Gold Mine Ltd Operating Gold Mine Tanzama Subsidiary 100% 100%
North Mara Gold Mine Ltd QOperating Gold Mine Tanzania Subsidiary 100% 100%
Pangea Goldfields Inc Holding Company Canada Subsidiary 100% 100%
Pangea Minerals Ltd Operating Gold Mine Tanzanta Subsidiary 100% 100%
1051694 Ontario Inc Holding Company Canada Subsidrary 100% 100%
African Barnick Gold (SA} (Pty) Ltd*** Shared Services South Africa Subsidiary 100% 100%
East Africa Gold Mines Ltd Helding Company Australia Subsidary 100% 100%
Tusker Gold Limited Helding Company Australia Subsidiary 100% 100%
Indago Autan (Proprietary) Ltd* Holding Company Australia Subsidiary 100% 100%
IDG Aurum Tanzania Ltd* Holding Company Tanzana Subsidiary 100% 100%
IDG Aurum Holdings Ltd* Holding Company Tanzania Subsidary 100% 100%
DG Kitongo Tanzama Ltd” Dormant Company Tanzania Subsidiary 100% 100%
Vulean Resources Tanzanta Ltd* Dormant Company Tanzama Subsdiary 100% 100%
Aptian Resources Tanzania Ltd* Dormant Company Tanzania Subsidiary 100% 100%
Sub-Sahara Resources Tanzama Ltd* Exploration Tanzania Subsidiary 100% 100%
Kahama Project Joint Venture Exploration Tanzania Joint Venture 49% 49%
Nyakafuru Project Joint Venture Exploration Tanzanma Joint Venture 51% 51%

*  June year end

**  The company changed its name duning the year from Aviva Mining {Kenya) Ltd to ABG Exploratron (Kenya) Ltd
*** The company changed its name dunng the year from Barrick Africa {Pty) Ltd to Afncan Barnck Gold (SA) (Pty) Ltd

There are no restrictions on the ability of subsidianes to transfer funds to the parent tn the form of cash dividends or to repay loans or advances
The Jjoint ventures included in the table above are currently immatenal to the Group
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2. Signlficant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below These policies
have been consistently apphed to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated

a) Basis of preparation

The Group s consohdated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Finanoial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union (“IFRS"), Internationa!l Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC™) interpretations and those parts of
the Companies Act 2006 apphcable to companies reporting under IFRS
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention basis, as modified by the revatuation of
financial assets and financial iabiliies {including derivative instruments)
at fair value through profit or 10ss

The consolidated financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (US$) and all values are rounded t¢ the nearest thousand
US dollars except when otherwise indicated

Where a change in the presentational format between the pnor year and
current year financial statements has been made during the period,
comparative figures have been restated accordingly The following
presentational changes were made duning the current year

« Application of IFRIC 20 'Stnpping costs in the production phase of
a surface mine Refer to Note 3 for a distussion of the change in
accounting policy

+ Presentation of the results of discontinued operattons due to the
agreement to transfer Tulawaka mine to STAMICO, the Tanzantan State
Mining Corporation Refer to Note 4 for a discussion of the transaction

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 1FRS requires the
use of certan critical accounting esbmates It also requires management to
exercise Its judgement In the process of applying the Group s accounting
policies The areas involving a higher degree of jJudgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estirmates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 2d

b} New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The following new standards and amendments to standards are
apphicable and were adopted by the Group for the first ume for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2013

* IAS 1, Financial statement presentation’ regarding other
comprehensive income The main change resulting from these
amendments IS a requirement for entities to group tems presented
in other comprehensive inceme’ {*0CI"} on the basis of whether
they are potentially subsequently reclassifiable to profit or loss
Refer to the statement of comprehensive income for disclosure
of the required classification

s The accounting policy for stnpping costs has been updated to
reflect the impact of IFRIC 20, Stripping costs In the production
phase of a surface mine  Refer to Note 3 for details of the change
In accounting policy

s |FRS 13, Far value measurement , aims 10 improve consistency and
reduce complexity by providing a precise definilion of farr value and a
single source of far value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across IFRS

Annual improvements 2011 effective for penods beginning on or after
1 January 2013
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= Amendment to IFRS 7, Financial nstruments Disclosures' effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

« Amendment to 1AS 12, Income tax” effective for periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013

¢) New and amended standards and interpretations not

yet adopted
The following standargls and amendments to existing standards have been
published and are mandatory for the Group s accounting pencds beginning
on or after 1 January 2014 but are currently not relevant to the Group

= IFRS 9, Financial instruments , addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial
llabilties IFRS 9 was issued in November 2008 and October 2010
and replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate to the classification and
measurement of financial instruments IFRS 9 requires financial assets
to be classified nto two measurement categories those measured at
fair value and those measured at amortised ¢ost The determination
15 made at initial recognition The classification depends on the entity s
business model for managing its financial instruments and the
contractual cash flow charactenstics of the instrument For financial
liabilities, the standard retains most of the t1AS 39 requirements The
main change I1s that in cases where the fair value oplion 1s taken for
financial habilities, the comprehensive income rather than the income
statement 15 affected unless this creates an accounting mismatch The
Impact of IFRS 915 not expected to be matenal to the Group IFR5 915
not yet endorsed by the European union

s [FRIC 21, ‘Levies, sets out the accounting for an obligation to pay a
levy that 15 not incormne tax The interpretation addresses the obligating
event that gives rise to pay a levy and when a hability should be
recognised The impact s not expected to be matenal to the Group
IFRIC 21 15 not yet endorsed by the European union and its effective
date 15 for penods beginmung after 1 January 2014

s IFRS 10, 'Consolidated financsal statements builds on existing
principles by wdentifying the concept of control as the determining
factor in whether an entity should be inciuded within the consolidated
financial statements of the parent company The standard provides
additional gudance to asstst in the determination of control where this
1S difficult to assess The standard ts not mandatory for the Group until
1 January 2014, and the impact 1s not expected to be material

» |FRS 11, Joint arrangements focuses on rights and obligations of
the parties to the arrangement rather than its legal form Proportional
consohidation of joint arrangements 1s no longer permitted The
standard 1s not mandgatory for the Group until 1 January 2014 angd
15 not expected to have an impact on the Group

+ IFRS 12, Disclosures of intarests in other entities’ includes the
disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other entities,
including jont arrangements, associates, structured entiies and other
off balance sheet vehicles The standard is not mandatory for the Group
untl] 1 January 2014 The standard i1s expected to impact the Group
with regards to disclosure of restrictions on its ability to access assets

d) Significant judgements in applying accounting policies and
key sources of estimation uncertainty
Many of the amounts included in the consolidated finaneal statements
require management to make judgements and/or estimates These
tudgements and estimates are continuously evaluated and are based on
management s experience ary best knowledge of the retevant facts and
circumstances, but actual resulits may differ from the amounts included in the
consolidated financsal statements The bfe of mine plans are central to a
number of key estimates. Information about such judgements and




estimations s included in the accounting poliies and/or notes to the
consolidated financial statements, and the key areas are summarnsed below

Areas of judgement and key sources of estimation uncertainty that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financal statements wnclude

+ Esumates of the quantities of proven and probable gold
reserves - Note 2h)

The capitalisation of production stripping costs - Note 2t)

» The capitalisation of exploration and evaluation expenditures - Notes 21)
and 10

Rewview of goodwill, property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets carrying value, the determination of whether these assets
are impared and the measurement of impairment charges or
reversals - Notes 20), 2p}, 2q), 2r), 21 and 22

« The estimated fair values of cash generating units for impairment tests,
including estimates of future costs to produce proven and probable
reserves, future commodity prices foreign exchange rates and discount
rates - Notes 2r) and 22

« The estimated useful iives of property, plant and equipment and the
measurement of depreciation expense - Notes 2o} and 21

« Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases - Notes 20)
and 21

s Recognition of a provision for environmental rehabilitation and the
estimation of the rehabilitation costs and timing of expenditure -
Notes 2u) and 29

= Whether to recogmise a liabihity for loss contingencies and the amount
of any such provision - Notes 2u), 29 and 35

whether to recognise a provision for accounts receivable - Notes 2w),
19 and 24

Recognition of deferred tncome tax assets, amounts recorded for
uncertain tax positions, the measurement of income tax expense and
indirect taxes - Notes 2y}, 14 and 23

= Determination of the cost incurred in the productive process of ore
stockpiles, gold in process, gold doré/bulhion and concentrate, as
well as the associated net realisable value and the split between the
long-term and short-term portions - Note 18

*

Determunation of fair value of derivative instruments - Note 32

Determunation of fair value of stock optrons and cash-settled share
based payments - Note 26

€) Basls of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements set out the Group’s financial
position as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, and operating
results and cash flows for the years then ended The consolidated
financiail statements of the Group incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and companies controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries)

Subsidianes are entities over which the Company has the control, directly
or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies In order

to obtain benefits from their activities Control 15 presumed 10 exist where
the Company has more than one half of the voung nghts unless it can

be demonstrated that ownership does not constitute control Control does
not exist where other parties hold veto nghts over significant operating
and financial decisions In assessing control, potential voting nights that
are currently exercisable or convertible as well as other contractual
arrangements that enable the Company to exercise control are taken into
account The consclhidated financial staternents include all of the assets,
labiities, revenues, expenses and cash flows of the Company and its

subsidianes after eliminating mtercompany transactions as noted above
Accounting policies of subsidianes have been changed where necessary
t0 ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group
Subsidianies are included in the consohdated financial statements from
the date on which control passed to the Group and have been excluded
fromn the date on which control transferred oul of the Group For
partiy-owned subsidiaries, the net assets and net earnings attributable
to non-controlling interests are presented as “Equity attributable to
non-gentrolling interests” in the consolidated balance sheet and

“Net profit attributable to non-controlling interests™ in the consolidated
income statement, respectively

f) Business combinations

On acquiring a business, the acquisition method of accounting 1s used,
whereby the purchase consideration 1s allocated to the wenufiable net
assets on the basis of fair value at the date of acquisition Provisionai fair
values allocated at a reporting date are finalised within 12 months of the
acquisition date Acquisition costs are expensed

when purchase consideration 1S contingent on future events, the intal
cost of the acquisition recorded includes an estimate of the fair value

of the contingent amounts expected to be payable wn the future The cost
of the acguisition 15 adjusted when revised estimates are made, with
correspanding adjustments made to goodwll

when the cost of acquisiion exceeds the fair values of the identifiable
net assets, the difference Is treated as purchased goodwill, which 1S
reviewed for impairment annually or when there 1s an indication of
impairment If the fair value attnbutable to the Group's share of the
identiftable net assets exceeds the cost of acguisition, the difference
15 recognised in the ingome statement

g) Foreign currency translation

The Group's transactions are denominated in a number of different
currencies (primarlly US doltars, Tanzanian shilbings (“shillings™),

South African rands (“rands”), UK pounds sterling {“pounds”) and
Australian doliars The Group has habiities that are primarily denominated
n US dollars The US dollar is the Company s (and its main subsidiaries )
funchional currency, as well as the Group s presentation currency
Transactians in currencies other than the US dollar are translated at

the exchange rates as at the date of transaction Monetary assets and
hatlities dengminated in gurrencies other than the US dollar are
translated to US doltars at year-end exchange rates All differences

that anse are recorded in the income statement. Non-monetary assets
measured at historical cost in a currency other than US dollars are
translated using the exchange rates at the date of the initial transactions
Where non-monetary assets are measured at fair value in a currency other
than US dollars they are franslated into US dellars using the exchange
rates on the date when the fair value was determined
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2 Significant accounting policies continued
The following exchange rates to the US dollar have been applied

Averpge
As at ‘Year ended
31 December 31 December

2013 2013

South African rand {US$ ZAR) 1060 963
Tanzaman shiling (US$ TZS) 1,590 1,598
Australian doltar {US$ AUD) 112 103
UK pound (US$ GBP} 060 064
Average

As at Year ended
3% December 31 December

2012 2012
South African rand (US$ ZAR) 850 820
Tanzanian shilling (US$ TZS) 1572 1,572
Australian dollar (US$ AUD) 096 097
UK pound (US$ GBP) 062 063

h} Determination of ore reserves

The Group estimates its ore reserves and mineral resources based on
information compiled by Competent Persons as defined in accordance
with the Canadian Securities Administrators National Instrument 43-101
~Standards of Disclosure for Mineral Projects” requirements Reports to
support these estimates are prepared each year Proven and probable
{"2P") reserves, and for certain mines other mineral reésources,
determined in this way are used in the calcutation of depreciation,
amortisation and impairment charges, the assessment of ife of mine
strnpping rattos and for forecasting the timing of the payments related
to the environmental rehabtiitation provision

In assessing the life of a mine for accounting purposes, mineral resources
are only taken into account where there 1s a high degree of confidence of
economic extraction

There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating ore reserves
and assumptions that are valid at the time of esumation may change
significantly when new information becomes avaitable Changes in the
forecast prices of commodities exchange rates, production ¢osts or
recovery rates may change the economic status of reserves and may,
ulumately, result in the reserves being revised

iy Stripping costs

In open pit mining operations, it 1s necessary to remove overburden and
other waste matenais to access ore from which minerals can be extracted
ecanomically The process of mining overburden and waste matenals 1s
referred to as stripping Stripping costs incurred In order to provide initial
access to the ore body (referred to as pre-production stnpping) are
capitalised as mine development costs

Stripping costs incurred during the production stage of a pit are accounted
for as the ¢osts of the nwentory preduced dunng the penod that the
stripping costs were incurred, unless these costs provide a future
economic benefit to an identifiable component of the ore body Production
phase stnpping costs generate a future economic benefit when the
related stnpping activity' (1) Improves access to a component of the ore
bedy to be mined in the future (i) increase the fair value of the mine {or
pit} as access to future mineral reserves becomes less costly, (111}
increases the productive capacity or extends the productive life of the
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mine (or pit) For production phase stripping costs that generate a future
economic benefit, the current peniod stupping costs are capitalised as
open pit mine development costs

Capitalised open mine development costs are depreciated on a units

of production basis whereby the denominator 1s the estimated ounces
of gold in proven and probable reserves and the portron of resources
considered probable of economic extraction based on the current life of
mine plan in the components of the ore body that have been made more
accessible through the stripping activity Capitalised open pit mine
development costs are depreciated once the open pit has entered
production and the future economic benefit i1s being denved

J) Revenue recognition
Revenue 1s recognised when persuasive evidence exisis that all of the
following cntena are met

s the significant nsks and rewards of ownership of the product have
been transferred to the buyer,

« neither continuing manageriat involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control gver the goods sold
has been retained

+ the amount of revenue can be measured relably;

# (L 15 probable that the economic benefits associated with the sale will
flow to the Group, and

= the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the sale can be
measured rehably

Gold doré sales

Gold doré i1s unrefined gold bullion bars usually consisting of 90% gold
that Is refined 1o purg gold bullion prior to sale to our customers Revenue
from gold doré sales 15 recognised etther at the ume of sale to a third
party or, In relation to quarter-end seftlements, at the time of shipment
should the Group have received confirmation of sale to the third party
The sales price 15 based con the gold spot price at the time of sale

Concentrate sales

Concentrate 1s a processing product containing the valuable cre mineral
gokd, copper and silver from which most of the waste mineral has been
eliminated that undergoes a smelting process to convert it into gold
bullion, copper and silver concentrate Under the terms of concentrate
sales contracts with independent smelting companies, gold, copper and
sitver in concentrate 1s sold at traiing monthty average spot prices based
on contract quotational perods

Revenue Is recorded at the shipped on board date, which (s also when
risks and rewards pass to the smelting companies, using market prices on
the expected date that final sales prices will be fixed Vanations between
the price recorded at the shipment date and the actual final price set
under the smelting contracts are caused by changes in market prices, and
result in an embedded denvative in accounts recewvable The embedded
dernivative 15 recorded at fair value each period until final settlement
occurs, with changes in far value classified as provisional price
adjustments and included as a component of revenue Co-product
revenues from the sale of other products, such as copper and silver
contained in the concentrate are recognised tn revenue

Co-products
Revenue from the sale of co-products, such as copper and silver,
contained in concentrates are recognised In revenue




k} Cost of sales

Cost of sales consists of direct mining costs (which include personng!
costs, general and administrative costs, energy costs (principally diesel
fuel and electricity), maintenance and repair costs, operating supplies
external senvices, third-party smetting, refining and transport fees),

and depreciation related to sales as well as production taxes and royalty
expenses for the period Cost of sales 15 based on average costing for
contained or recoverable ounces sold as well as production taxes and
royalty expense for the penod All costs are net of any impairment to
reduce inventory to its net realsable value

1) Exploration and evaluation

Exploration expenditures

Exploration expenditures relate to the imibial search for mineral deposits
with economic potential as well as expenditures incurred for the purposes
of obtaining more information about existing mineral deposits Exploration
expenditures typically comprise costs that are directly attnbutable to

s researching and analysing exssting exploration data,
» conducting geological studies,

= gxploratory dnilling and samphng for the purposes of obtaining core
samples and the related metalturgical assay of these cores, and

dnliing to determine the velume and grade of deposits in an area
known 1o contain mineral resources or for the purposes of converting
mineral resources Into proven and probable reserves

Exploration expenditures incurred at greenfield sites (sites where the
Group does not have any mineral deposits that are already being mined
or developed) are typically expensed as incurred, unless it can be
demonstrated that the related evaluation expenditures will generate a
future economic benefit Exploration expenditures incurred at brownfield
sites {sites that are adjacent to a mineral deposit that 1s classified within
proven and probable reserves and are already being mined or developed)
are capitahised If the following criteria are met

= the dnlling 1s being donen an inferred or measured and indicated
resource, and

-

there is an existing proven and probable reserve that 15 contiguous
or adjacent to where the dnlling 1s being done, and

it 1s probable that the resource will be converted to a proven and
probable reserve

The assessment of probability 1s based on the following factors tesults
from previous dnll programmes, resuits from a geological study, results
from a mine scoping study confirming economic viability of the resource,
and prefiminary estimates of the volume and grade of the deposit, and the
net cash flows expected to be generated from its development Costs
incurred at brownfield sites that meet the above critena are capitalised as
a component of property plant and equipment (*mine development
costs”) pursuant to 1AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment’ All other
dnlling and related exploration costs incurred at these sites are expensed
as mine site exploration Exploration expenditures sncurred for the
purposes of determining additional information on a mineral deposit that
1s classified within proven and probable reserves or for the purposes of
extending an existing mineral deposit that 1s classified within proven and
probable reserves and I1s already being mined or developed are also
capitalised as mine development costs

Evaluation expenditures

Evaluation expenditures anse from a detalled assessment of deposits or
other projects that have been identified as having economic potential in
order to determine their technical feasibility and commercal viability They
typically include costs directly attributable to

» detailed engineenng studies,

* examunation and testing of extraction methods and
metallurgical/treatment processes,

surveying transportation and infrastructure requirements
= permitting activities, and

* detalled economic evaluations to determine whether development
of the reserves 1s commercially justified, including the preparation
of scoping, pre-feasitnlity and final feasibility studies

Evaluation expenditures incusred at greenfield and brownfield sites are
expensed as incurred, unless 1t ¢an be demonstrated that the related
evaluation expenditures will generate a future economic benefit.

Evaluation expenditures incurred at operating mings/development
projects are capitalised as a component of property, plant and equipment,
“Mining properties and development costs”, respectively

Acquired exploration and evaluation properties

Exptoration and evaluation stage properties acquired either as an
acquisition of ndmidual assets or as part of a business combination are
capitahsed as an intangible asset, “Acquired exploration and evaluation
properties™ Exploration and evaluation stage properties represent
interests In properties that do not have mineralised material classified
within proven and probable reserves The value of such properties 1s
primarily driven by the nature and amount of mineralised matenal
contained in such properties, including value attributable to the rights to
explore or develop 1) a property containing mineralised matenal classified
as a measured, indicated or inferred resource, or 1) a prospective
greenfield property with significant exploration patential Exploration and
evaluation expenditures incurred on such properties subsequent to their
acquisition are expensed as incurred untit the technical and commercial
viahility of developing the property has been demonstrated under the
same criternia described above for exploratien and evaluation
expenditures

m) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 1s computed by dividing net profit for the penod
attnbutable to the owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of Ordinary Shares outstanding for the pertod Diluted earnings
per share reflect the patential dilution that could occur if additional
Ordinary Shares are assumed to be 1ssued under secunties that entitle
their holders to obtain Ordinary Shares in the future For stock optiens,
the number of addiional shares for inclusion in diluted earnings per share
calculations 1s determined using the treasury stock method Under this
method, stock options, whose exercise price 1s less than the average
market price of our Ordinary Shares, are assumed to be exercised and the
proceeds are used to repurchase Ordinary Shares at the average market
price for the pergd The incremental number of Qrdinary Shares 1issued
under stock options and repurchased from proceeds 15 Included in the
calculatign of diluted earnings per share
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2 Significant accounting policies continued

n) Inventories

Matenal extracted from the Group s mines is classified as either

ore or waste Qre represents material that, at the time of extraction,

1s expected {0 be processed into a saleable form and sold at a profit
waste represents material that 1s reguired to be removed to access ore
bodies Ore s recorded as an asset that 1s classified within inventory as
material 1s extracted from the open pit or underground mine Ore 1s
accumulated in stockpiles that are subsequently processed into gold

In a saleable form under a mine plan that takes into consideration
optimal scheduling of production of our reserves, present plant capacity,
and the market pnice of gold and copper Work in process inventory
represents gold, copper and sitver In the processtng circuit that has

not completed the production process, and 1s not yet in a saleable form
Finished goods inventory represents gold in saleable form that has not
yet been shipped Mine operating supphes represent commodrties and
other raw materials consumed In the production proecess, as well as spare
parts and other maintenance supplies that are not classified as capital
tems Inventores are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value, with cost being determined on a weighted average cost basis
Average costs are calculated by reference to the cost of mventory at
the beginning of the pericd together with the cost of inventory produced
In & period

Gold copper and silver ore contained in stockpiles IS measured by
estimating the number of tonnes added and removed from the stockpile,
and the associated estimate of gold contained therein (based on assay
data) and applying estimated metallurgical recovery rates (based on the
expected processing method) Stockpile ore tonnages are verified by
periodic surveys Costs are allocated to ore stockpiles based on guantities
of matenal stockpiled using current mining costs incurred up to the point
of stockpiling the ore and include direct labour costs, materals and
contractor expenses which are directly attributable to the extraction of
ore, inctuding an allocation of stripping costs attributable to current penod
production, an allocation of mine site overhead costs, and depreciation

of mining properties and property, plant and equipment used In the
extraction of are, reduced by an allocation of capitalised stripping costs
As ore 15 processed, costs are removed based on recoverable quantities
of gold and the stockpile s average cost per unit Ore that s not expected
to be processed In the 12 months foltowing the balance sheet date 1s
classified as non-current

Costs capitaiised in process and finished goods mventory include the
cost of stockpiles processed, the cost of commodities and raw matenals
consumed In the production process, direct labour, repair and
maintenance costs, energy costs, depreciation of property, plant and
equipment used tn the production process, and an allocation of mine site
overhead cests Costs are removed from finished goods inventory and
recorded In cost of sales based on the average cost per ounce of gold,
copper and silver sald 1n the period

Cost of mine operating supplies 1s the purchase cost, inctuding allocated
freight costs where applicable

Provisicns are recorded to reduce ore stockpiies, work In process and
finished goods snventory to net realisable value where the net realisable
value of the inventory 15 lower than its cost at each balance sheet date
Net realisable value 1s determined with reference to relevant market
pnces less applicable vanable selhing expenses Provisions recorded also
reflect an estimate of the remaining costs of completion to brning the
inventory into its sateable form Provisions are recorded to reduce mine
operating supplies to net realisable value, which 1s generally calculated
by reference to Its salvage or scrap value, when It 1s determined that the
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supplies are slow moving and/or obsolete Provisions are reversed to
reflect subsequent recovenies in net realisable value where the inventory
1s still on hand at the balance sheet date

o} Property, plant and equipment

Mineral properties and mine development costs

Mineral properties and ming development costs are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and applicable accumulated impairment
losses The acquisition cost of a mineral property 1s the estimated fair
value of proven and probable reserves and measured, indicated and
inferred resources acquired as a result of a business combination or asset
acqusiuon Cepitalised mine development costs include pre-production
stripping costs, productton stripping costs that result in a future economic
benefit (refer 1o Note 21)) for capitalisauon critena for stripping costs),
costs incurred 10 access reserves at underground mining operations, and
exploration and evaluation expenditures that resuit in a probable future
economi; benefit {refer to Note 21)) for capitalisation ¢ritena for
exploration and evaluation expenditures)

Development costs incurred at underground mines to build new shafts,
drifts and ramps that provide physical access to the underground ore are
capitahsed as ncurred These costs can be incurred throughout the ife of
the underground mine

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment 1S recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation
and applicable impairment losses Cost includes all expenditures incurred
to prepare an asset for its intended use including the purchase price,
brokers' commissions and installation costs inctuding architectural,
design and engineering fees, legal fees, survey costs, site preparation
costs, freight charges, transportation insurance costs, duties and
borrowing cost

Costs that extend the productive capacity or useful econemic ife of an
asset are capitalised Costs incurred that do not extend the productive
capacity or useful economic life of an asset are considered repairs and
maintenance and expensead as incurred

The Group enters Into leasing arrangements and arrangements that

are in substance leasing arrangements The determmation of whether

an arrangement 1S, Or containg, a lease 1s based on the substance of

the arrangement at inception date including whether the fulfiiment

of the arrangement 1S dependent on the use of a specific asset or

assets or whether the arrangement conveys a nght to use the asset.

A reassessment after inception 1s only made in specific circumstances
Leasing arrangements that transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to the Group are classified as finance leases

Finance leases are recorded as an asset with a corresponding liability
at an amount equal to the lower of the fair value of the leased property
and the present value at the beginning of the lease term of the mimmum
lease payments over the term of the lease Each lease payment 1s
allocated between the habiity and finance costs using the effective
Interest method, whereby 8 constant rate of interest expense is
recognised on the balance of the liability outstanding The interest
element of the jease 15 charged to the income statement as a finance
expense The property, plant and equipment assets acquired under
finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of

the asset and the lease term

All other leases are classified as operating leases Operating lease
payments are recognised as an expense in the ncome statement on
a straight-line basis over the lease term




Assets under construction

Assets i the course of construction at both our development projects
and operating mines are capitalised in the "assets under construction”
account The cost of assets under constructron comprises its purchase
price and any ¢osts directly attributable to bringing it into working
condition for its intended use at which point it 1s transferred to property,
plant and equpment and depreciation commences Development projects
are recorded at cost, less applicable accumulated imparrment losses
Development projects represent interests in properties that contatn
proven and probable reserves and where development activities are
ongoing The cost of development projects 1s composed of the estimated
fair value of development stage assets acquired as a result of a business
combination or an asset acquisition and costs associated with the
construction of tangible assets, such as processing plants, permanent
housing faciities and other tangible infrastructure associated with the
project Assets under construction also contam deposits on fong lead
items Assets under construction areé not depreciated

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment 15 deprectated, net of residual value,

over its useful life, or aver the remaining life of the mine if shorter on a
straight-hne basis For mineral properties and mine development costs,
the economie benefits of the assets are consumed tn a pattern which 1
hnked to the production level Such assets are depreciated on a unit of
productron basis Depreciation commences when assets are gvaillable
for thew intended use In applying the units of production method,
depreciation 1s normally calculated using the quantity of gold, copper and
silver extracted from the mene (or pit) in the peried as a percentage of the
total quantity of matenal expected to be extracted in current and future
pernods based on esumates of recoverable proven and probable reserves
and, for some mines, mineral resources Such non reserve matenal

may be included in the depreciation calculations where there is a high
degree of confidence in s econormic extraction and the production of
the non reserve material 1s reflected Iin the life of mine plan

Development costs that relate to a diserete section of an ore body and
which only provide benefit over the life of those reserves are depreciated
over the recoverable proven and probable reserves of that discrete
section Discrete sections include capitahsed underground development
costs or production stripping costs incurred for the purposes of providing
access to specific ore blacks or areas of the mine and which only provide
an econamic benefit over the period of mining that cre block or area
Development costs incurred which benefit the entire ore body are
depreciated over the recoverable proven and probable reserves of the
entire ore body

The expected depreciation rates of the major categones of assets are
as follows

Minerai properties and development costs uop
Plant and equipment 4% - 25%
Underground mobile equipment 14 3% - 20%
Light vehicles and other mobile equipment 33 3% -50%
Furniture, computer and office equipment 333%-50%

* UOP indicates assets which are depreciated on the basis of units of production
(*UDP"), in this case ounces of gold copper and silver produced in @ penod
dmided by the total recoverable reserves and resources of gold copper and sitver
expecied to be mined based on the current Iife of ming plans

Each asset s estimated residual value and useful life are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropniate, on an annual basis The estimate of residual value
and useful fe 1s based on the physical condition and life limitations of
buildings, ptant and equipment and the present assessment of

economically recoverable reserves of the mine for the mining property and
development cost asset. Changes to the estmated resrduat values or
useful lives are accounted for prospectively

P Goodwill

Goodwlll represents the excess of the cost of acqursition gver the fairr
value of the idenufiable assets, labilities and conuingent habilities
acquired at the date of acquisibgn Goodwill 15 initially determined based
on provisional fair values Fair values are finalised within 12 months of
the acquisition date For non-wholly-owned subsidianes, non-controling
interests are mitizlly recorded based on the minornties proportion of the
fair vatues for the assets and liabilittes recognised at acquisiion

Goodwill that 1s acquired through business combinations is allocated
to cash generating units {“CGUSs"}, or groups of CGUs that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the business combination Each of the
Group’s CGUs that has an allocation of goodwilt 1$ also an operating
segment as defined by IFRS 8 Consequently, goodwill 1s tested for
impairment at the individual CGLU level

Goodwill 1s not amortised, rather 1t 1s tested annually for impairment in
accordance with accounting palicy (Note 2r)} Goodwill impairments are
not reversible

q) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired by way of an asset acquisition or business
combination are recognised If the asset 1s separabie or anses from
contractual or Jegal nghts and the fair value can be measured reliably on
mbal recognition On acquisition of a mineral property In the exploration
stage, we prepare an estimate of the fair value attributable to the
exploration potential, including mineral resources, if any, of that property
The fair value of the exploration potential i1s recorded as an intangtble
asset (acquired exploration potentlal) as at the date of acquisition When
an exploration stage property moves into development, any acquired
exploration intangible asset balance attributable to that property 1s
transferred to non-depreciable mining interests within property, plant
and equipment.

Impairment testing and the reversal of impairments are conducted
0 accordance with accounting pohcy (Note 2r))

r) Impairment of non-current assets
Goodwill 15 reviewed for impairment annually or at any time dunng the
year If an indicator of impairment is considered 1o exist

We review and test the carrying amounts of intangble assets when
events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable

Property, plant and equipment I1s reviewed for imparrment If there 1s any
indication that the carnang amount may not be recoverable

An impairment loss shall be recognised for a CGU if, and only if, the
recoverable amount of the unit 1s less than the carrying amount of the
unit. The impairment loss shall first be allocated to the CGU and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit

An impairment ioss recognised In prior years for non-financial assets other
than goodwill shall be reversed If, and only if, there has been change in
the estimates used to determine the asset s recoverable amount since
the last imparrment loss was recognsed This reversal ts recognised in the
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consohdated statement of income and 15 bmited to the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of any depreciation, had no
impairment been recogmised in pnor years After such a reversal, any
depreciation charge I1s adjusted prospectively

The recoverable amount of an asset 1s assessed by reference to the
higher of value in use (*ViU™) betng the net present value (“NPVY™) of future
cash flows expected to be generated by the asset, and far value less
costs to dispose (*FVLCD™) Impairment assessments are conducted at
the level of CGUs, which is the lowest leve! for which wdentifiable cash
flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets Each
operating mine and development project represents a CGU for impairment
testing purposes An impairment loss 1S recogrused for any excess of
carrying amount of a CGU over its recoverable amount

The FVLCD of a CGU 15 based on an estimate of the amount that the
Group may obtain 1n a sale transaction on an arm s length basis There s
no active market for the Group 5 CGUs Consequently, FYLCD 1s denved
using discounted cash flow techmiques (NPV of expected future cash flows
of a CGU}, which incorporate market partcipant assumptions Cost to sell
15 based on management s best estimates of future selling costs at the
tme of calculating FVL.CD Costs attributable to the sale of a CGU are not
considered significant

The expected future cash flows utilised in the NPV model are derived from
estimates of projected future revenues, future cash costs of production
and capital expenditures contained in the ife of ming (“LOM”™) plan for
each CGU, which are updated on an annual basis The Group s LOM plans
reflect proven and probable reserves and convertible resources and are
based on detailed research, analysis and modelling to optimise the
Iinternal rate of return for each CGU As such, these plans consider the
optimal level of investment, overall production levels and sequénce of
extraction taking into account all relevant characternstics of the ore body,
including waste-to-cre tonnes, ore grades, hau! distances, cherical and
metallurgical properbies impacting process recovernes and capacities of
avaitabie extraction, haulage and processing equipment

Projected future revenues reflect the forecasted future production levels
at each CGU as detailed in the LOM plans Included in these forecasts

1s the production of mineral rescurces that do not currently guahfy for
in¢lusion in proven and probable ore reserves where there 1s a high
degree of confidence in their economic extraction This 1s consistent
with the approach that a market participant would utiise 1n preparing a
forecast of expected production levels Projected future revenues also
reflect the Group's estimate of long-term gold prices which is determined
based on current prices, an analysis of the expected total production
costs of producers and forward pricing curves and forecasts of expected
long-term prices prepared by research analysts These esumates often
differ from gurrent price levels, but this methodelogy 15 consistent with
how a market participant would assess long-term gold prices

The estimates of future cash costs of production and capital expenditures are
derved from the LOM plans for each CGU Costs mcurred in currencies other
than the US dollar are transiated to US dollars using expected long-term
exchange rates based on the relevant forward pneing curve for that currency
01l prices are a significant component, both directly and indirectly, of the
expected cash costs of production Estimates for long-term oil prices used in
the LOM plans are based on the current spot price, the forward pricing curve
and longterm ol price forecasts prepared by analysts
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The discount rate applted to present value 15 based upon the real weighted
average cost of capital applicable to the CGU The discount rate reflects
equity nsk premiums gver the nsk-free rate the impact of the rematning
economic life of the CGU and the risks associated with the relevant cash
flows based on the country in which the CGU 1s located These nisk
adjustments are based on observed equity sk premiums, historica!l country
nsk premiems and average credit default swap spreads for the penod

In determining FVLCD, a market multiple 1s applied to the NPV of each
CGU Gold companies typically trade at a market capitahsation that 1s
based on a multiple of their underlying NPV Consequently, & market
participant would generally apply an NPY muluple when estimating the fair
value of & gold property The NPV multiples utilised in the determination of
the FYLCD of a CGU considers the NPV multiples observed on comparable
campanies These observed multiples are primarnly denved from research
analyst reports and take Into consideration the following. 1) estimate of
underlying NPV prepared by the analyst, 1) estimate of target market
capitahisation prepared by the analyst, 1) market capitalisation on the
date of the analyst report, and v} market capitalisation on the date of the
impairment test The NPV muitiple applied atsc takes into consideration
the remaining economic life of the CGU For CGUs with a remaining
economic life of five years or less, an NPV multipte on the lower end of the
observed multiple range 1s utiised For gther CGUs, the median observed
NPV multiple s utihsed

The VIU of a CGU 1s generally lower than its FYLCD due primanty to the
application of a market multiple to the undertying NPV of a CGU when
determining its FVLCD Consequently the recoverable amount of a CGU
for impairment testing purposes 1s determined based on s FVLCD

s} Contributed surplus

The Company dd not exist until 12 January 2010, and did not hecome the
parent company for the Group until 22 February 2010 when the transfer

of the members of the Group pursuant to the PredP0 Reorganisation was
completed Contributed surplus represents the difference between the
cumuiative investment in the enttbies and businesses which form pan of the
consolidated African Barnick Gold plc Group and non-controliing interests

t) Share capital

Ordinary Shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly
attnbutable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in eguity
as a deduction from the proceeds

uv) Provisions

Provistons are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it 1s probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation If the effect of the
time value of money 1s maternal, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the tme value of money and, where appropnate,
the risks specific to the lability Where discounting 1s used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time 1s recognised as a finance cost

Rehabilitation costs

The mining, extraction and processing actwities of the Group normally give
nse to obligations for environmental rehabilitation Rehabilitation works can
include facility decommussioning and dismanthing, removal or treatment of
waste materials, site and land rehabiltation The extent of work reguired and
the associated ¢osts are dependent on the requirements of relevant
autheriies and the Group s envtronmental policies




Provisions for the cost of each rehatulitation programme are recognised
at the time that environrmental disturbance occurs When the extent

of disturbance increases over the life of an operation, the provision

15 increased accordingly The major parts of the carrying amount of
provisions relate to tailings pond closure/rehabilitation, demolition of
bulldings/mine facilities, ongoing water treatment, and ongoing care and
maintenance of ¢losed mines Costs inctuded in the provision encompass
all closure and rehabilitation activity expected to occur progressively over
the iife of the oparation and at the ttime of closure in connection with
disturbances at the reporting date Estimated costs included in the
determination of the provision reflect the nsks and probabilities of
alternative estimates of cash flows required to settle the obltgation at
each particular operation Routine operating costs that may impact the
ultimate closure and rehabilitation activities, such as waste material
handling conducted as an integral part of a mintng or production

process, are not Included in the provision Costs ansing from unforeseen
circumstances, such as the contamination caused by unplanned
discharges, are recognised as an expense and hiability when the event
occurs that gives nse to an obligation and reliable estimates of the
required rehabilitation costs can be made

The uming of the actual rehabilitation expenditure 1s dependent upon a
number of factors such as the life and nature of the asset, the operating
ligenge gonditions and the environment in which the mine operates
Expenditure may occur before and after ¢losure and can continue for an
extended perod of time depending on rehabilitation requirements The
majonity of the expenditure 15 expected to be paid over perigds of up to
30 years with some payments into perpetuity Rehabilitation provisions
are measured at the expected value of future cash flows, discounted to
their present value using a current, market based estimate of the real
nsk-free pretax discount rates The unwinding of the discount 1S in¢luded
in finance expense and results In an increase in the amount of the
provision Provisions are updated each reporting period for the effect

of a change n the discount rate and the change In estimate 1s added or
deducted from the related asset and depreciated prospectively over the
asset’s useful Iife

Significant Judgements and estimates are involved in forming
expectations of future activities and the amount and timing cf the
associated cash flows Those expectations are formed based on existing
environmental and regulatory requirements or, If more stringent, Group
environmental pohcies which give rise to a constructive obligauon

When provisions for ciosure and rehabilitation are initially recognised,
the corresponding cost 1S capitalised as an asset, representing part of
the cost of acquinng the future economic benefits of the operation The
capitalised cost of closure and rehabilitation actwities Is recognised 1n
property, plant and equipment and depreciated accordingly

It I1s possible that management s estimates of provisions could change

as a result of changes in regulations, the extent of rehatilitation required,
and the means of reclamation or cost estimates Rehabilitation provisions
are adjusted as a result of changes in estimates Those adjustments are
accounted for as a change in the corresponding vatue of the related asset,
except where a reduction in the provision I1s greater than the remaining
net book value of the related assets, in which case the value 1s reduced to
nil and the remaining adjustment I1s recognised in the income statement
In the case of closed sites, changes to estimated costs are recognised
immediately in the income statement Changes to the capitalised cost
result in an adjustment to future depreciation and finance expense Onan
annual basis, the Group reviews for changes in cost estimates, discount
rates o7 life of operations

v) Employee benefits

The Group operates an equity-settled stock based compensation plan
{the “Stock Option Plan”}, a long term incentive plan {the “LTiP"), a legacy
restricted share unit plan (the “Legacy RSU Plan”) and a deferred share
unit plan (the "DSU” Plan)

Share-based payments

Stock options

Stock options can be granted under either the Company LTIP or the

Stock Option Plan The Company receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group The farr value
of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the options
15 recogntsed as an expense The total amount to be expensed 1s
deterrmined by reference to the fair value of the options granted

o including any market performance conditions,

« excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions {for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time pernod), and

« excluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save)

Non market vesting conditions are included 1n assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense IS recognised
over the vesting penocd, which 1s the period over which all of the specified
vestng condiions are to be satisfied At the end of each reporting period,
the Company revises Its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, If any, in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity

When the options are exercised, the Company may 1ssue new shares of
procure the transfer of extsting shares to satisfy the exerctse Where shares
are 1ssued the proceeds recerved net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (norminal value) and share premium when
the options are exercised The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
1s treated as a capital contnbution The fair value of employee services
recewved, measured by reference to the grant date fair value, i1s recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsichary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity

Long-term Incentive plans

The Company has a cash-settled, Restricted Share Unit (*RSU") plan for
select employees Under the terms of the RSU plan, selected employees
are granted RSUs where each RSU has a value equal to one Ordinary
Share of the Company RSU’s granted to Executive Directors and the other
members of the Senior Leadership Team vest based on the Company's
Total Shareholder Return (*“TSR") performance aganst the market
cap-weighted TSR of a comparator group of companies over the vesting
period {referred to as Performance RSU's) RSUs vest over a two-and-a-
haif or three-year period and are settled in cash Additional RSUs are
credited to reflect dividends paid on Ordinary Shares of the Company
dunng the vesting period with a corresponding charge to the
compensation expense A llability for RSUs 1s measured at fair value on
the grant date and 15 recognised on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding charge to the compensation expense At the
grant date the fair vaiue of the awards i1s determined from the market
vaiue of the shares at the date of award and adjusted for any market
based vesting conditions attached to the award e g relative TSR
performance Changes in the fair value of the RSU hiability, due to changes
In the price of Ordinary Shares of the Company, are recorded
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each period, with a corresponding charge to the compensation expense
Compensation expenses recognised for RSUs incorporate an estimate for
expected forfeiture rates The expected forfeiture 1s estimated based on
historical forfeiture rates of the Group pre-IPO and expectations of fututre
forferture rates Adjustments to compensation expense are recognised in
penods where the actual forfeiture rate differs from the expected rate

Legacy RSU plan

Historically, the Barrick Group has maintained a Restrncted Share Unit
{*RSU"} plan for selected employees who now work for the Group This
plan operates in an incidental manner to the Company RSU plan These
existing legacy restricted share units will continue to be administered and
accounted for based on the movement of the fair value of the Barrick
Orchinary Share for recording of habiliies and compensation expense

LTIP deferred share units

Under the Deferred Share Unit (*DSU") plan, the Non Executive Directors
can elect to recetve all or part of their annual director fees in DSUs

Each DSU has the same value as one ABG Ordinary Share DSUs must
be retained untit the Director leaves the Board, at which time the cash
value of the DSU 1s paid out Additicnal DSUs are crednted to reflect
dmidends pard an ABG Ordinary Shares A hability for DSUs 1s measured
at fair value on the grant date and 15 recognised on a straight-line basis
over the vesting penod, with a corresponding charge to the Directors’
compensation expense At the grant date the fair value of the awards 15
determined from the market value of the shares at the date of award
Changes in the far value of the DSU kahity, due ta changes wn the price
of Ordinary Shares of the Company, are recorded each period with a
corresponding charge to the Directors compensation expense

Defined contribution ptan

The Group s Tanzanian employees are members of either the National
Social Security Fund ("NSSF™) or of the Parastatal Pension Fund (“PPF"),
which are defined contribution plans A defined contribution plan Is a plan
under which the Group pays fixed contrnibutions into a separate entity The
Group has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contnbution if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to the employee service in the current and pnor periods The
Group and employees both contribute 10% of the employees gross
salanes to the schemes The contnbutions are charged to the income
statement when they are due

Terrmination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment 1s terminated by
the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits The Group
recogmises termination benefits when it 1s demaonstrably committed to
either terminating the employment of current employees according to

a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal, or providing
termination benefits as a result of an offer made t0 encourage voluntary
redundancy Benefits faling due more than 12 months after the balance
sheet date are discounted to their present value

Bonus plans

The Group recegnises a lability and an expense for bonuses where it I1s
contractually obliged or where there Is a past practice that has created
a constructive obligation

Other entittements

The estimated monetary habiity for employees accrued annual
leave entitiement at the balance sheet date I1s recognised as an
expense accrual
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w) Fmancial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are garned in the balance sheet at fair value
For the purposes of the balance sheet, cash and cash equivalents include
cash, and money market funds For the purposes of the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are nen-derivative financial assets with fixed

or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, do
not qualify as trading assets and have not been designated as either
fair vatue through profit and loss or avallable for sale These are initially
recognised at farr value, and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method They are included in current assets,
except for matunties greater than 12 months after the balance sheet
date These are classified as non-current assets, where the receivables
are discounted and held at their net present value

Loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables other assets
and cash and cash equivalents at the balance sheet date

A provision for impairment of trade recevables i1s established when there
15 objective ewidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of recevables The amount of the
provision 15 the difference between the ¢arrying amount and the expected
cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate The carrying amount
of the asset 1s reduced through use of an allowance account The amount
of the provision 1s recognised in the Income statement

Derivatives

Derwvatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract 1s entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value The methed of recogmsing the resulting gawn ¢r loss depends on
whether the derivative 1s designated as a hedging instrument, and if so,
the nature of the tem being hedged The Group designates certain
denvatives as either

a) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or habilities or a firm
commitment (fair value hedge),

b) hedges of the income/cost of a highly probable forecast transaction
or commitment {cash flow hedge), or

¢} hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation (net investment hedge)

The Group documents at inception of the transaction the relationship
between hedging instruments and hedgad items, as well as its risk
management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging
transactions The Group also documents Its assessment, both at hedge
inceptton and on an ongoing basis, of whether the dervatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
In fair values or cash flows of hedged items

The fair values of vanous dernivative instruments used for hedging
purposes are disclosed in Note 32 Movements in the hedging reserve
are shown in other comprehensive income The full fair value of a
hedging derivative 1s classified as a non-current asset or iabihity when
the remaining maturity of the hedged tem s more than 12 months, and
as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged
item 15 less than 12 months Trading denvatives are classified as a
current asset or habiiity




{a) Fair value hedge

Changes tn the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualfy
as fair value hedges are recorded in the iIncome statement, together with
any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or habilty that are
attributable to the hedged nsk The gain or 10ss relating to the effective
portion 15 recognised In the income statement within “finance costs™ The
gain ot 10ss relating to the ineffective portion 1S recognised In the income
statement within other charges Changes in the fair value of the hedge
attnbutable to interest rate risk are recognised in the income statement
within “finance costs”

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the
effective interest method 1s used 1s amortised to prefit or loss over
the penod to matunty

{b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of dernvatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges 1s recognised in other
comprehensive income The gain or (0ss relating to the effective
portion is recognised immediately i the in¢ome statement within
“ather gains/{losses) - net”

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or l0ss 1n the
penads when the hedged tem affects profit or toss {for example, when
the forecas! sale that 1s hedged takes ptace) The gain or 10s5 relaling wo
the effective portion 1s recognised in the income statement. However
when the forecast transaction that 1s hedged results in the recognition

of a non-financial asset (for example, inventory or fixed assets), the gains
and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and
included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset. The deferred
amounts are ultimately recognised in cost of goods sold in the case of
inventory or in depreciation In the case of property, plant and equipment

when a hedging mstrument expires or 1S sold, or when a hedge no longer
meets the critena for hedge accountng, any cumulative gain or loss
existing In equity at that time remains in equity and 1s recognised when
the forecast transaction 1s uttimately recognised in the income statement.
When a forecast transaction 1S no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was reported In equity 1S iImmediately
transferred to the income statement within other charges

{c) Net investment hedge
Hedges of net investments 1n foreign operations are accounted for
similarly to cash flow hedges

Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective
porticn of the hedge 1s recognised in other comprehensive income
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion 1S recognised in the
Income statement.

Gains and losses accumulated in equity are included in the income
statement when the foreign operation 1s partially disposed of or sold

Embedded derivatives

Contracts are assessed for the existence of embedded derivatives

at the date that the Group first becomes party to the contract, with
reassessment only if there 1s a change to the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows Embedded derwvatives which are not clearly
and closely related to the underlying asset, liability or transaction are
separated and accounted for as stand-alone dervatives

Financial liabilities

Borrowings are recognised mitially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred Borrowings are subsequentily carned at amortised cost, any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redempuon value IS recognised In the income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method Fees pard on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the
loan to the extent that it 1s probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down In this case, the fee 15 deferred until the draw-down occurs
To the extent there 1s no evidence that it 1s probable that some or all of
the facihty will be drawn down, the fee 15 capitalised as a prepayment for
liguidity services and amortised over the pencd of the facility to which it
relates Borrowings are classified as current habilibes unless the Group
has an unconditional nght to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the balance sheet date
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Trade and other payables are inittally recognised at fair value and
subseguently held at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method

x) Finance iIncome and finance expense

Interest income 1s recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method When a recewvable 1s impared, the Group
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective intergst
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income

Interest 1s recognised as a borrowing cost on 8 time proportion basis using
the effective interest method Borrowing costs that relate directly to the
construction of property, plant and equipment duning the time that it s
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset

y} Taxes

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax Tax Is
recogrised in the iIncome statement, except to the extent that it relates to
ems recegnised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity In
this case the tax 1s also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly In equity respectively

Current income tax

Current iIncome tax assets and habilities for the current and prior penods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxatlon authorities Management penodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject o interpretation It establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid 1o the tax authorities The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax s provided using the liability method on temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets
and habilities and thetr carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes
Deferred income tax 15 determined using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the retated deferred income tax liability 1s settled Deferred
Income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2. Signlficant accounting policies continued
Deferred iIncome tax labilities ase recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except

» where the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or of an asset ar hability in a transaction that is not
a busmess combination and, at the time of ransaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit/loss, and

= In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
Investments in subsidianes where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all ceductible temporary
differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax l0sses,

to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be avatable against
which the deducuible temporary differences and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utiised except

= where the deferred income tax asset relating to deductible temporary
differences arises from the mitial recognition of an asset or hability in
a transaction that 1s not a business combination and, at the ume of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss, and

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
Investments in subsidianes deferred income tax assets are recognised
only o the extent that it 1S probabte that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utihsed

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets 15 reviewed at each
halznce shaet date and reduced to the extent that itis no longer probable
that suffictent taxable profit will be availlable to altow all or part of the
deferred income tax asset to be vtilised

Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance
sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset 1o be recovered

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply 1o the year when the asset 1s realised or the
lability 15 settied, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Uncertainties regarding avaitability of tax losses, in respect of enquiries
raised and additonal tax assessments 1Ssyed, have been measured
using the single best estimate of ikely outcome approach

Deferred income tax relating to tems recognised directly In equity 1s
recognised In equity and notin the income statement.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax habilities are offset,
if a legally enforceatle right exists to set off current Income tax assets
aganst current income tax labilities and the deferred income taxes relate
10 the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority

Indirect tax

Indirect tax assets and habiliies for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be regovered from or pawd to the
taxation authonties Management penodically evaluates positions taken
In Indirect tax returns with respect to situations In which applicable tax
regulation 15 subject to interpretation It establishes provisions or
receivables where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to or received from the tax authoriies The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantivety
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enacted by the balance sheet date if the receivable 1s expected to

be received 1n more than 12 months from year end, the recewvable 1s
discounted and held at i1s present value Amounts expected to be payable
or receivable In more than 12 months are classified as non-current assets
or lilabilities in the balance sheet, as appropriate

2) Royalties

Royalty arrangements based on mineral production are in place at each
operating mine The primary type of royalty 1s a net smelter return (*“NSR™)
royaity Under this type of royalty the Group pays the holder an amount
caicutated as the rovalty percentage muitiplied by the value of gold
production at market gold prices less third party smeltting, refiming and
transportation costs

The Nerth Mara mine 1s also subject to a land royalty (land tenements
{“LT™)) based on the net revenue denved from the open pit mines

Royalty axpense is recorded when revenue from the sale of gold, copper
and siiver preduction 15 recognised

The following perceniages apply

Bulyanhulu

Tutawaka

North Mara - Nyabirama and Nyabigena pits
North Mara - Gokona pit

Buzwag)

4% NSR™"

4% NSR**

4% NSR*", 1% LT
4% NSR**, 1 1% LT
4% NSR™, 30% NPI”

* The NPl s calculated as a percentage of profits realised from the Buzwag) mine
after all capital exploration and development costs and interest incurred In
relation to the Buzwag) mina have been recouped and all operating costs relating
to the Buzwag mine have been paid No amaunt 15 cusrently payable

**The Group agreed to a voluntary 1% increase in the NSR royalty rate in 2012

aa) Leases

Leases 1n which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases
Payments made under operating leases (net of any in¢entives recewved
from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the penod of the lease

The Group leases certain property, ptant and equipment Leases of
properly plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the
nsks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases Finance
leases are capitahsed at the lease s commencement at the lower of the
fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments

Each finance lease payment s allocated between the hability and finance
charges The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
Included in other labrities The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the income statement over the lease penod 50 as to produce

a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining batance of the
liabtlity for each penod The property plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases 1s depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the
asset and the lease term

bb) Dividend distribution

Dividend distnbution to the Company s shareholders 1s recognised as a
hability in the consolidated financial statements in the period 1n which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders




3 Change in accounting policy

Durning October 2011, the International Accounting Standards Board issued IFRIC 20, Stnpping ¢osts in the production phase of a surface mine
The interpretation applies to waste removal costs incurred in surface mining activity duning the production phase of a mine and addresses the
recognition of productyon stripping costs as an asset, initial measurement of the stnpping activity asset and the subsequent measurement of
the stripping activity asset

The stripping ¢ost accounting policy has been changed to align with the requirements of IFRIC 20 Stnpping costs are now capitalised if the
stripping activity provides economic benefit to an identfiable component of the ore body Depreciation of capitalised ¢costs for the components

15 calculated over the reserves of the ore body that have been made accessible through the stripping activity The previous accounting policies
required accounting for stnpping costs by reference to ore reserves from each separate pit, where the revised policy requires accounting for each
identifiable component of the ore body

IFRIC 20 1s applicabte for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 The apphcation of IFRIC 20 resulted in the restatement of
2012 results The impact on the consolidated income statement, consolidated balance sheet and consolidated cash flow statement for the
year ended 31 December 2012 1s set out below

Previously
(in thousands of United States dollars) Restated? repaned Vanance
Consolidated Income statement
Net adjustments
Direct mining costs 576,070 581,483 (5,413)
Depreciation and amorlisation? 159,446 158,883 563
Tax expense 72,604 71,063 1,541
Total 808,120 811,429 (3.309)
Consolidated balance sheet
Net adjustments
Mineral properties and mine development costs 819,063 807,947 11,116
Inventory 447,785 454,051 (6,2686)
Deferred tax labilities 175,114 173,574 1,540
Consolldated cash flow statement
Cash flows provided by operating activities 268,733 257,903 10,830
Cash flows used in investing actwities (371,485) (360,655) (10,830)

1 Represents values for the total Group including discontinued operations
2 Depreciation and amaortisation includes the depreciabion component of the cost of inventory sold

4 Discontinued operations and disposal group assets and llabllitles held for sale

On 15 November 2013, ABG announced that an agreement was reached with STAMICO the Tanzanian State Mining Corporation, whereby STAMICO will
acquire the Tulawaka Gold Mine {“Tulawaka”) and certan exploration licenses surrounding Tulawaka for consideration of US$4 5 miltion and the grant
of a 2% net smelter royalty on future production in excess of 500,000 ounces capped at US$500,000

As part of the agreement, STAMICO will take ownership and management of the rehatulitation fund established as part of the closure plan for the mine,
in return for the assumption of all remaining past and future closure and rehabilitation lrabilities for Tulawaka, and will indemnify the other parties to the
agreement in relation to these habilities. This has resulted in a cash payment of US$11 6 million in February 2014 by ABG to STAMICO for the balance
of the rehabitation fund less the transaction consideranon

Tulawaka 15 100% owned by the Tulawaka Jownt Venture, in which ABG holds a 70% economic interest through a wholly owned subsidiary, with MDN Inc
holding the remaining 30% of the Joint venture Production at Tulawaka ceased in (2 2013

The financial resuits of Tulawaka have been presented as discontinued operations in the consolidated financial statements The cornparative results In

the consohdated income statement have been presented as if Tulawaka had been discontinued from the start of the comparative pernod The assets
and habihties that are to be sold to STAMICO have been presented as held for sale
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

4, Discontinued operations and disposal group assets and liabllities held for sale continued
Below 1s a summary of the results of Tulawaka for the year ended 31 December

(in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Results of discontinued operations

Revenue 13,514 75,601
Cost of sales (30,368) (77,823)
Gross loss (16,854) (2,222)
Corporate administration (1,311) (3,928)
Exploration and evaluation costs - (2,208)
Corporate social responsibility expenses?! (3,259) {1,394)
Impatrment charges {16,701) (44,536)
Other charges? (19,442) (600)
Loss before net finance expense and taxation {57.56T) (54,888)
Finance income 30 46
Finance expense (116) (226)
Loss before taxation (57,653) (55.068)
Tax credit - 6,089
Net loss for the year (57,653) (48,979)

Below 1s a summary of cash flows from discontinued operations for year ended 31 December

{in thousands of United States dollars} 2013 2012
Operating cash flows (31,811) 5,104
Investing cash flows (8,702) (22,400)
Financing cash flows - -
Total cash flows (40,513) (17,296)

Below 15 a summary of Tulawa¥a s assets and liabilites at 31 December classified as disposal group held for sale

(in thousands of United States doliars} 2013
Property, plant and equipment 239
Inventones 357
Disposal group assets held for sale 596
Provisions 16,760
Disposal group habilities held for sale 16,760
Net assets and habihties of disposal group held for sale (16,164}

1 Corperate social responsibility expenses relate to projects supported from the ABG Maendeleo Fund
2 Inciuded in other charges are non-operational costs incurred since the cessation of operations of US$18 1 million

5. Segment reporting

The Group has only one prmary product produced 1n a single geographi¢ location, bemng gold produced in Tanzanta In addition the Group produces
copper and sitver as a co-product Reportable operating segments are based on the internal reports provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(“CODMT) to evaluate segment performance, decide how to allocate resources and make other operating decisions After applying the aggregation
cntena and quantitative thresholds contained in IFRS B, the Group s reportable cperating segments were determined to be North Mara gold mine,
Bulyanhulu gold mine, Buzwagl gold mine, a separate Corporate and Exploration segment, which primanly consists of ¢osts related to cther charges
and corporate social responsibility expenses as well as discontinued operations (Tulawaka gold mine)

Segment results and carrying values include items directly attributabte to the segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis
Segment carrying values are disclosed and calculated as shareholders equity after adding back debt and inter-company habilities, and subtracting cash
and inter-company assets Segment liabilities are not reported since they are not considered by the CODM as maternal to segment performance Capital
expenditures compnse additions to property, plant and equipment The Group has also included segment cash costs per ounce sold and all-in
sustaining cost per ounce sold {non-\FRS financial performance measures)
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Segment information for the reportable operaung segments of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 s set out below

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Contmuing Discontinued
{in thousands of United States dollars) North Mara Butyanhulu Buzwagi Cther operations operations? Total
Gold revenue 364,574 262,539 258 B79 - 885,992 13,483 899,475
Co-product revenue 819 16,882 25,311 - 43,012 31 43,043
Total segment revenue 365,393 279,421 284,190 - 929,004 13,514 942,518
Segment cash operating cost! (172,894) (190,647) (202,286) - (565,827) (20,527) (586,354)
Corporate administration and exploration (13,026} (14,661) (20,976) (421) (49,084) {1,311 (50,395)
Other charges and corporate social
responsibility expenses (11,961) {5.827) (4,730) (20,143) (42,661) (22,701} (65,362)
EBITDA? 167,512 68,286 56,198 (20,6564) 271,432 (31,025) 240,407
Impairment charges (307,259) - (690.478) (46,573) (1,044,310) (16,701) (1,061,011)
Depreciation and amortisation® (68,565) (35,867} (39,906) (3,641) (147,979) (9,841) (157,820)
EBIT2 (208,312} 32,419 (674,186) (70,778) (920,857) (57,567) (978,424)
Finance tncome 1,670 30 1700
Finance expense (9,552) {116) {9,668)
Loss before taxation (928,739) (57,653) {986.392)
Tax credit 187,859 - 187,959
Net loss for the year (740,780) (57.653) {798,433)
Capital expenditure
Sustainmng 38,386 25,193 31,588 690 95,858 583 96,441
Expansionary 949 114,912 - 1,608 117,469 - 117,468
Capitalised development 65,594 45,428 60 136 - 171,158 - 171,158
Reclamation asset reduction (11,271) {10,044) {9,230) - (30,545) (195) (30 740)
Total capltal expenditure 93,658 175,489 82495 2,298 363,940 388 354,328
Segmental cash operating cost 172,894 190,647 202,286 - 565,827 20,527 586,354
Deduct co-product revenue (819 {16,882) (25,311) - (43,012) (31) (43,043)
Total cash costs 172,075 173,765 176,975 - 522,815 20,496 543,311
Sokd ounces® 260,945 195,304 187,348 - 643,597 B,778 652,375
Cash cost per ounce sold? 659 890 945 - 812 2,335 833
Attributable to outside interests* (6)
Total attributable cash cost per ounce sold? 827
Cash cost per ounce sold? 659 890 945 - 812 2,335 833
Corporate admintstration ¢harges 38 72 51 {2) 50 149 51
Rehabilitation - accretion and depreciation 29 7 15 - 18 86 19
Mine site exploration costs 12 3 2 - [<] 6 6
Corporate social responsibility expenses 31 6 4 3 19 371 24
Capuahsed stripping/UG development 251 233 321 - 266 - 262
Sustaiing capital expenditure 207 133 168 1 176 66 173
Attnbutable to outside interests* (6)
AlHn sustaining cost per ounce sold? 1,227 1,344 1,506 2 1,246 3,013 1,362
Segment carrying value®? 367,326 1,116,142 253,344 81,005 1,817,817 10,489 1,828,306

[

has reported these costs in this manner

Reflects 100% of ounces sold

@ WA WwN

include outside shareholder s interest.

0o~

Represents Tulawaka which has been discontinued
Depreciation and amortisation includes the depreciauon companent of the cost of inventory sold

Reflects the adjustment for non-controlhng interest at Tulawaka
2012 restated due to the adoption of IFRIC 20
Segment carrying values are calculated as shareholders equity after adding back debt and intercompany liabilities, and subtracung cash and inter-comparny assets and

These are non+FRS financial performance measures with no standard meaming under IFRS Refer to “Non IFRS measures” on page 162 for defimitions

The CODM reviews cash operating costs for the four operating ming sites separately from corporate administration ¢osts and exploration costs Consequently the Group
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

5 Segment reporting continued

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {restated)

Contnuing Disconunued

{in thousands of United States dallars) North Mara Butyanhutu Buzwagi Other operatons operauons? Total
Gold revenue 310,549 303 347 259,954 - 963,850 75,458 1,039,308
Co product revenue 549 24,311 23,028 - 47,888 143 48,031
Total segment revenue 311,098 417,658 282,982 - 1,011,738 75,601 1,087,339
Segment cash operating costt (178,419} {213,35Q) {188,652) - (580 421) {57,992) {638,413)
Carporate admiristration and exploration (20,276) (19,848) (33.906) {361) {74,391} (6,136) {80,527}
Other charges and corporate social {12,920} 40 (4,944) {12,299) {30,123) (1,994) (32,117)
EBITDAZ 99,483 184,500 55,480 {12,660} 326,803 9479 336,282
Impairment charges - - - - - {44,536) (44,536)
Depreciation and amortisation®8 {565,272) (33,064) (47,636) {3,643) {139,615) {19,831) {159,446)
EBIT? 44,211 151,436 7.844 (16,303) 187,188 (54,888) 132,300

Finance income 2,056 48 2,102

Finance expense {10,079) {228) {10,305)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 179,165 (55,068) 124,007

Tax {credrt)/expenses (78,693) 6,089 (72,604)
Net profil/(10ss) for the year 100,472 (48,979) 51,493

Capital expenditure

Sustaming 47,759 35,193 56,441 8,988 148,381 13,157 161,538

Expansionary 10,091 36,814 62 - 46 967 2,922 49,889

Camtahsed development5 28,139 45,605 39,456 - 113,200 T 258 120,458

Reclamation asset addition/(reduction) 7,540 (43) 10,494 - 17,991 1,251 19 242

Total capital expenditure 93,529 117,569 106,453 8,988 326,539 24,588 351,127

Segmental cash operating cost 178,419 213350 188,652 - 580,421 57,992 638,413

Deduct. co-product revenue {549) (24 311) (23,028) - (47,888) (143) (48,031)
Total cash costs 177,870 189 039 165,624 - 532,533 57,849 580,382

Sold ounces? 186,600 235,410 155,322 - 577 332 45,600 622,932

Cash cost per ounce sold? 953 803 1,066 - 922 1,269 948

Attnibutable to outside interests* {7
Total attributable cash cost per ounce sold? 941

Cash cost per ounce sold? 953 803 1,066 - 922 1,269 948

Corporate admimstration charges 78 75 78 [+ 83 86 85

Rehabiltation - accretion and depreciation 48 10 23 - 26 134 34

Mine site exploration costs 31 9 6 - 16 48 18

Corporate social responsibility expenses 39 5 8 6 23 31 24

Capnalised stnpping/UG development 151 194 254 - 196 159 198

Sustaining capltal expenditure 393 149 363 10 295 289 302

Attributable to outside interests® {24)
All-in sustaining cost per ounce sold? 1,693 1,245 1,798 22 1,561 2,016 1,685

Segment carrying value®? 573,980 978,045 721,296 119,086 2,392,407 11,043 2,403,450

1
2
3
4
4]
6

7
8

The CODM reviews cash operating costs for the four operating mine sites separately from corparate ad ministraon costs and exploration costs Consequently the Group

has reported these costs 1n this manner

These are non IFRS financial performance measures with no standard meanmg under IFRS Refer to “Non IFRS measures” on page 162 for definitions

Reflects 100% of ounces sold

Reflects the adjustment for noncontrolling interest at Tulawaka

2012 restated due to the adoption of IFRIC 20

Segment carnying values are calculated as shareholders equity after adding back debt and inter-company habiites and subtracting cash and inter-company assets and

include outside shareholder s interest
Represents Tulawaka which has been discontinued

Depreciation and amortsaton includes the depreciaton component of the cost of inventory sold
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6 Revenue

For the ;
Far the year ended >
yearended 31 December F3
31 December 2012 >
{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 (restated? ;
Gold doré sales 669,760 634,363 E
Gold concentrate sales* 226,231 329,487 E
Copper concentrate sales? 37,539 41,123 g
Silver sales 5,474 6,765 @
Total 929,004 1,011,738
1 Concentrate sales includes provisicnal prce adjustments to the accounts recervable balance due to changes in market gold, Sives and copper pnces prior to final
settlement as follows $12 2 million for the yvear ended 31 December 2013 ($3 7 mullion for the year ended 31 December 2012)
For the
For the year ended
yearended 31 December
31 December 2012
(in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 {restated)®
Revenue by location of customer?
Europe
Switzerland 257,914 492,460
Germany 73,126 114,471
Asia
India 403,956 143,796
China 117,099 162,140
Japan 76,909 98,871
Total revenue 929,004 1,011,738

2 Revenue by location of customer 15 determined based on the country to which the gold 1s delivered
3 Restated due to the ctassification of Tulawaka as a discontinued operation Refer to Note 4

Included in revenues for the year ended 31 December 2013 are revenues of approximately $681 million {2012 $856 million) which arose from sales

to four of the Group s largest customers No other customers individualty account fer mere than 10% of the Group's revenues

7 Costofsales

For the
Forthe year ended
yearended 31 December
31 December 2012

{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 (restated)®
Direct mining costs 608,166 521,338
Third-party smelting costs 16,790 18,005
Depreciation? 147,979 139,615
Royalty expense 40,871 41,078
Total? 713,806 720,036

1 Depreciauon includes the depreciation component relaung to the cost of inventory sold
2 Cost of sales less depreciation equals cash operating costs
3 Restated due to the classificaton of Tulawaka es a discontnued operation and the application of IFRIC 20 Refer to Note 3 and 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

8. Impairment charges

In accordance with I1AS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’ and IAS 38 Intangible Assets a review for imparment of goodwill iIs undertaken annually or at

any ttme an indicator of impairment 1s considered to exist and in accordance with 1AS 16 ‘Property, plant and equipment a review for impairment of
long-lived assets 15 undertaken at any time an indicator of impairment 1s considered to exist. The prevailing gold price fell significantly during the second
quarter of 2013 due to macro-economic factors mamnly as a result of positive economic news from the United States of Amenca This forced a review of
the gold price outlook used for iong-term planmng and reserve estimation Management expect weak investment demand to drive continued volatility
and hold gold prices to an average of US$1,300 per ounce a price that we consider a market participant would use to calculate the carrying value of
our assets Given the impact of the lower gold price outlook and the impact on the reserves, life of mine plans and margins of the operating mines,
operating performance was reassessed in order to ensure optimised returns and cash flows for each cash generating umit. Cash generating units are
determined on the same basis as operating segments Refer to Note 5 for further details

At Bulyanhulu, goodwill and property, plant and equipment was reviewed for imparment due to a reduction in total reserves The iImpairment review
did not indicate a need for impairment because the recoverable amount was calculated as higher than the carrving values

As reported in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012, Buzwag) s cost structure combined with the grade profile
made it most susceptible to changes in the gold price At Buzwag), th June 2013 the mine plan was re-engineered to substantially reduce the amount of
waste movement required and optimise the grade of the mine This resulted in a reduction of reserve life, but drove a significant improvement in all-in
sustaining cost per ounce sold? and set the mene up to deliver positive cash flows for the next five years As a result of the changes a mid year post-tax
imparment was recorded to long-lived assets at Buzwag of US$677 5 million and supplies inventory of US$13 © millign (2012 no impairment charge)

At North Mara, several changes were made to the plan duning the year which will substantially reduce the strip ratio, volume of matenal to be moved
and ulimate footprint of the asset. In June 2013, the mine plan was re-engineered to remove uneconomic cunces from Nyabirama Stage 5 and Gokona
Stage 4 and to improve the overall return from the mine Further 1o this, in O¢tober it was decided to defer Gokona Cut 3, which contains 628koz of
North Mara s reserve base, whilst an underground feasibility study into the alternative of mining of this reserve is finalised ABG Is ¢confident that the
outcome of the underground study will be positive and together with the other changes made will ensure strong free cash flow generation for North
Mara together with an optimised footprint to alleviate some of the other pressures encountered at the mine The reserve base has also been adjusted
in line with the lower gold price assumption at 31 December 2013 The impact of the deferral of Gokona Stage 3 combined with the updated reserve
estimates resulted wn a year end post tax impairment of US$96 3 million in addrtion to the mid year post-tax impartrment to goodwill of US$21 million
and long-lived assets of US$152 9 milion (2012 no impairment charge)

At Tulawaka, a review of the supplies balance on hand at the end of June 2013 prompted a supplies inventory smpaiwrment of US$16 7 milhion

At 30 June 2013, the recoverable amount for Nyanzaga was calculated on a fair value less cost to dispose basis, using a comparable enterprise value
for companies holding similar assets to arnve at a valug per ounce Given the velatility in the market and the lack of comparable transactions in the
current gold price environment, the value of this exploration asset s highly judgemental Due to the valuation being below the carrying value, mid year
impairments was recorded relating to goodwill and acquired exploration potentral intangible asset that arose on the acquisition of Tusker Gold Ltd of
US$22 0 million and subsequent mvestment in the asset of US$24 6 million

The review compared the recoverable amount of assets for the cash generating units ("CGU") to the carming value of the CGU s including goodwill The
recoverable amount of an asset 15 assessed by reference to the higher of value in use {*vIU"), being the net present value {“NPV") of future cash flows
expected to be generated by the asset, and fair value less costs to dispose (“FVLCD™) The FYLCD of a CGU is based on an estimate of the amount that,
the Group may obtamn in a sale transaction on an arm s length basis There 15 no active market for the Group s CGUs Conseguently, FVLCD 1s denwved
using discounted cash flow techniques (NPV of expected future cash flows of a CGU), which incorporate market participant assumptions Cost to
dispose 15 based on management’s best estirmates of future selling costs at the ume of calculating FVLCD Costs attrnibutable to the disposal of 8 CGU
are not considered significant. The expected future cash flows utilised 1n the NPV model are derived from estimates of projected future revenues, future
cash costs of productuon and capital expenditures contained In the life of mine ("LOM”) plan for each CGU The Group’s LOM plans reflect proven and
probable reserves and are based on detacled resgarch, analysis and modelling to optimise the internal rate of return for each CGU FVLCD
measurements are defined as level three fair vatue measurements as they are valued using unobservable inputs

The discount rate applied to calculate the present value I1s based upon the real weighted average cost of capital applicable to the CGU The discount

rate reflects equity risk premiums over the risk-free rate, the impact of the remaning economic life of the CGU and the nisks associated with the relevant
cash flows based on the country in which the CGU 1s located These nsk adjustments are based on observed equity risk premiums, histoncal country risk
premiums and average credit default swap spreads for the penocd

The VIU of a CGU is generally lower than its FVLCD, due pnmarily to the fact that the optimisation of the mine plans has been taken into acgount when
determining its FVLCD Consequently, the recoverable amount of a CGU for impairment testing purposes 1s determined based on its FYLCD

On a gross basis, and before taking into account the impact of deferred tax, the total impawment charge amounted to US$690 5 milion at Buzwag!,
US$307 3 million at North Mara, US$46 6 million relating to Nyanzaga and US$16 7 milion at Tulawaka

1 NondFRS financiat performance measure with no standard mearing under IFRS Refer to “Non-IFRS measures” on page 162 for definitons
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The key economic assumpbions used in the reviews at 30 June and 31 December 2013 were

Forthe For the

year ended year ended

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

Gold price per cunce (applied to all periods) UsS$1,300 Us$1,700
South African Rand (US$ ZAR} 875 800
Tanzanman Shiliing (US$ TZS) 1,600 1,600
Long-term oll price per barrel Us$120 Us$s0
Discount rate 8% 4 16%-5 66%
NPV multiples 100 090-1 30

For purposes of testing for impairment of non-current assets, a reasonably possible change in the key assumptions used to estimate the recoverable
amount for GGU s could result in an additional impairment charge The carrying value of the net assets relating to North Mara are most sensitive

10 changes in key assumptions in respect of gold price and a US$100 per ounce decrease In 1solation, would lead to an addtional impairment at
North Mara of US$99 O million At the same time a similar decrease would not result in an impairment at Buzwagi However, should the gold price

decline further, the mines would agan be reassessed in order to optimise returns and cash flows

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Buzwag) 690,478 -
North Mara 307,259 -
Tulawakal 16,701 44,536
Tusker/Nyanzaga 46,573 -
Gross impairment charge 1,061,011 44,536
Comprising
Impairment of goodwil 43,069 13,805
Imparrment of intangible assets 24,550 -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 906 822 30,731
Imparrment of non-current inventory 47,830 -
Impairment of supplies inventory 38,740 -
Gross impairment charge 1,061,011 44,536
Deferred income tax (238,008) -
Impairment charge, net of tax 823,003 44,536
1 Included in the 105% from discontinued operations
9 Employee benefits
For the Fer the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
(in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Wages and salaries 126,483 142,100
Other employee benefitst 91,076 92,445
Stock based compensation charge2 {1.377) 4,668
Total 216,182 239,213
1 Other employee benefits inciude bonuses, leave pay, pensions medical expenses, severance ¢osts and other benefits
2 Furiher details of the Group s stock options and other stock-based compensation plans are prowided 1n Note 26
Forthe Fer the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
Average number of employees per month 2013 2012
Operations 4,898 5,230
Exploration 49 80
Administration 283 358
Total average headcount 5,230 5,668
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

10 Exploration and evaluation costs

The following represents a summary of exploration and evaluation expenditures Incurred at each mine site and significant exploration targets (if applicable)}

For the
For the year ended
yearended 31 December
31 December 2012
{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 (restated)2
Expensed during the year
North Mara 3,099 5,814
Buzwagi 366 957
Bulyanhulu 656 2,215
Other 12,806 17,756
Total expensed 16,927 26,752
Capitalised dunng the year
North Mara 410 5,259
Bulyanhulu 1,945 5,191
Nyanzags 1,608 3,241
Total capitallsed 3,963 13,691
Total 20,890 40,443

1 Included in “gther” are the exploration activities condugted through ABG Exploration Afrnica Limited and ABG Exploration Kenya Limited All primary greenfield exploration

and evaluatien actvues ara conducted in these compantes

2 Restated due to the classificauon of Tulawaka as a disconunued operation Refer to Note 4 Prewiously total exploration and evaluaton for 2012 amounted to US$45 5 million

11. Other charges

For the
Forthe year ended
yearended 31 December
31 December 2012
{in thousands of United States dollars} 2013 (restatedjt
Other expenses
Operational Review costs (Including retrenchment cost) 13.305 -
Discounting of indirect tax recevabtes 1,375 4,185
Unrealised non-hedge derivative losses 7,203 1,719
Bad debt expense 1,369 €5
Disallowed indirect taxes 1,463 2,952
Legal costs 3,138 1,655
CNG-related costs (residual) 3,246 6,378
Government levies and charges 2,387 -
Other 3,617 4,547
Total 37,103 21,501
Other income
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (99) (660)
Insurance theft claim (2,958) -
Foreign exchange gains (3,622) (3,770)
Total (6,6792) (4,430)
Total other charges 30,424 17,071

1 Restated due to the classification of Tulawaka as a discontinued operation Refer to note 4
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12. Audltors’ remuneration
Durning the yeas the Group {including 1s subsidianes) obtained the following sernices from the Company s auditors

For the For the
year ended year ended
31December 31 December
{in thousands of United States dolars) 2013 2012
Audit fees
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and its associates for the audit of the parent company and consolidated financial
statements 392 206
Fees payable 10 the Company’s auditors and its associates for cther services
Audit of the Company s subswdiaries 442 489
Audit related assurance services 329 360
Other assurance services 125 100
Tax compliance services 128 214
Qther services - 12
Total 1,416 1,671
13. Finance Income and finance expenses
a) Finance income
For the
For the year endad
yearended 31 December
31 December 2012
(1n thousands of United States dollars) 2013 {restated)®
Interest on time deposits 937 1,185
Other 733 871
Total 1670 2,056
b} Finance expense
For the
For the year ended
yearended 31 December
31 December 2012
(in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 (restated)?
Unwinding of discount? 4,468 3,949
Revolving credit facility charges? 3,050 3,014
Interest on CIL facility 2,413 -
Interest on finance leases 658 841
Bank charges 756 1,062
Other 620 1,213
11,965 10,079
Capitalised dunng the year (2,413) -
Total 9,552 10,079

1 The unwinding of discount 15 calculated on the environmental rehabilitation provision

2 Included in credit facility charges are the amortisation of the fees related to the revolving credit facility as well as the monthly interest and facility fees

3 Restated due to the classification of Tulawaka as & disconunued operation Refer to Note 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

14. Tax {credit)/expense

For the
Forthe year ended
yearended 31 Decernber
31 December 2012
{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 (restatad)t
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year - -
Adjustments in respect of prior years 40 120
Total current tax 40 120
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differencest (187,999) 78,573
Tota! deferred tax (187,999) 78,573
Income tax expense (187,959) 78,693

1 2012 restated due to the application of IFRIC 20 Refer to Note 3 for a discussion of the change in accounting policy

of the consolidated entities as follows

The tax on the Group s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would anse using the weighted average tax rate applicable to the profits

For the
Forthe year ended
yearended 31 December
31 December 2012
(in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 {restated)
(Loss)/ profit before tax (928,739) 179,165
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits in the respective countries (292,917) 55,025
Tax effects of
{Non-taxable income)/Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 13,111 1,333
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognised 84,904 18,831
Pnor year atdjustments 5,572 6,691
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions 1,371 (3 187)
Tax charge (187,959) 78,693

1 2012 restated due to the apphicabion of IFRIC 20 Refer to Note 3 for a discussion of the change in accounting policy

Tax periods remain open to review by the Tanzanian Revenue Authonty {“TRA") in respect of income taxes for five years following the date of the filing

of the corporate tax return, during which ume the authorties have the nght to raise additional tax assessments including penalties and interest. Under
certain circumstances the reviews may cover longer penods Because a number of tax penods remain open to review by tax authornties, there 1s a nisk
that transactions that have not been challenged in the past by the authonties may be challenged by them in the future, and this may result in the raising

of additional tax assessments plus penalties and interest.

124 www atricanbarrickgold com




15 {Loss)/earnings per share

Basic earmings per share (“EPS") is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attnbutable 1o owners of the Company by the weighted average

number of Ordinary Shares in 1ssue during the year

Diluted earnings per share 15 calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential Ordinary Shares The Company has dilutive potential Ordinary Shares in the form of stock options The weighted average number of shares 1s

adjusted for the number of shares granted assumung the exercise of stock options

At 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, earnings per share have been calculated as follows

(in thousands of United States dollars, except per share amounts)

Far the

For the year ended

yearended 31 December

31 December 2012
2013 (restated)?

(Loss/earnings
Net (loss)/profit from continuing operations attributabte to owners of the parent
Net (loss)/profit from discontinued operations attributable to owners of the parent

(740,780) 100,472
{40,321) {37,692)

Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares In issue
Adjusted for dilutive effect of stock options

410,085,499 410,085,499

Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares for diluted earnings per share

410,085,499 410,085,499

1 2012 restated dus to the apphcation of IFRIC 20 Refer to Note 3 for a discussion of the change in accounting policy

For the
For the year enced
vearended 31 December

31 December 2012
2013 (restated)

(Loss)/earnings per share
Basic and dilutive {loss)/earnings per share from continuing operations {cents) {180 6) 245
Basic and dilutive (loss)/earmings per share from discontinued operations {cents) (98) (92)

16 Dividend

The final diwdend declared in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012 of US$50 44 milion (US12 3 cents per share) and the 2013 interim
dividend of US$4 1 million (USO 1 cents per share) were paid dunng 2013 and recogmised in the financial statements Refer to Note 39 for detalls

of the final dividend declared subsequent to year end
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

17. Cash flow - other items
a) Operating cash flows - other items
Adjustments for worlung capital items

For the For the
year ended yaar ended
31 December 31 December
(in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Trade receivables 20,017 {14,368)
Inventorest 34,493 {52,815)
Gther current assets? (57.855) (21,259)
Other labilties? (2177) 1,157
Trade and other payables* (32,057) B,257
Other working capital tems® (3,586) 4,958
Total (41,165) (74,070)
1 The inventory adjustment includes the movement in current as well as the non-current paruon of Inventory
2 Dunng 2012 the Tanzamian Government abolished the VAT rehef practice resulting in & build-up in VAT recevabtes from the Government in 2013
3 The other habilities adjustment includes the movement in both other current and other non-current iabiliies
4 The trade and other payables adjustment excludes statutory abidiues in the form of income tax payable
5 Other working capital items include exchange losses associated with working capital as well as cash movements on dervative finangial instruments
Other non-cash items
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 Decemnber 31 December
{in thousands of United States dollars}) 2013 2012
Adjustments for non-cash income statement tems
Foreign exchange gains (5.287) (4,958)
Discounting of indirect tax receivables 1,375 4185
Provision added 524 6
Unrealised losses on derivatives 8,773 1,719
Stock option expense 476 1.461
Other non-cash items 794 60
Exchange loss on revaluation of cash balances 1,526 615
Total 8,181 3,088
b) Investing cash flows - other items
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
(in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Proceeds on sale of property plant and equipment 1758 4,607
Other long-term receivables 802 746
Village housing receivable 6) 70
Rehabilitation expenditure (5,843) {297)
Settiement of long-term habilities - (6.594)
Total (4.872) (1,468)
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18 Inventories
For the
For the year ended
yearended 31 December

31 December 2012
(in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 (restated)?
Raw materials
Ore In stockplles 12,545 19,416
Mine operating supplies 208,289 258,214
Gold In process 12,773 30,031
Finished products
Gold doré/bullion 16,356 19,389
Gold copper and silver concentrate 3,713 5,182
Total current portion of inventery 253,676 332,232
Non-current ore In stockpitest 72,689 115,553
Total 326,365 447,785

1 Dunng 2013 US$T6 7 millien (2012 US$115 5 million) of ore at Buzwag) and North Mara was classified as long-term following management s assessment that these
stock pies will be processed after 2013

2 Restated due tc the application of IFRIC 20 Refer to Note 3

The cost of Inventones recognised as an expense and included In the cost of sales amount 1o US$282 9 million (2012 US$198 5 million) During the year
supplies inventory and ore stockpiles to the value of US$86 mitlion was wnitten down due to impairment reviews that was performed (refer to Note 8)

19 Trade and other recelvables and other current assets

Asat As at
31 December 31 December

(in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012

Trade and other receivables

Amounts due from dore and concentrate sales 16,204 33,103

Other recewables® 10,102 12,079

Due from related parties 37 393

Less Provision for doubtful debt on other recewvables (2,133) (1,348)
Total 24,210 44,227

1 Other receivables relates to employee and supphier backcharge related receivables

Trade receivables other than concentrate receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-90-day terms Concentrate receivables are
generally on 60-120-day terms depending on the terms per contract Trade recevables are amounts due from customers In the ordinary course of
business If collection is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current assets |f not, they are presented as non-current assets The carrying
value of trade receivables recorded in the financial statements represents the maximum exposure to credit sk The Group does not hoid any collateral
as securnity Trade receivables are recogmsed intially at fair vatue and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any provisions for impairment A provision for impairment of trade recevables 1s established when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of the recewables

As at As at

31 December 31 Detember

(in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Current portion of indirect tax receivables? 95,033 26,023
Cther recevables and advance payments? 18,912 18,291
Total 113,945 44,314

2 The total indirect tax recevable 15 US$159 8 milhon of which US$64 7 million 15 included in non-current assets This receivable s due from the Tanzanian Revenue
Authonty and it is anticipated to be offset against future corporation tax payments To reflect the hme value of money the longterm portion of this recevable has been
discounted at a rate of 5% (2012 5%)

3 Gther recewables and advance payments relate to prepayments far insurance income taxes and social secunty fund contnbutiang

20 Cash and cash equivalents

Asat As at

31 December 31 December

{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Cash at bank and on hand 136,714 186,530
Money market funds 145,695 214,818
Total 282,409 401,348
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

21. Property, plant and equipment

Mineral
properues
For the year ended 31 December 2013 Plant and aevzméfﬁ Assets under
{in thousands of United States dollars) equipment costs constructon® Total
At 1 January 2013, net of accumulated depreciation 945,118 819,063 210,859 1,975,040
Additions - - 354 328 354,328
Disposals/write-downs (477) - - 1477)
Impairments? {582,669) (287,276) (36,877) (906,822)
Depreciation (84,350) {56,809) - (141 159)
Transfers between categories 1B,677 121,427 (140,104) -
Reclassification to disposal group assets held for sale - (239) - (239)
At 31 December 2013 296,299 596,166 388,206 1,280,671
At 1 January 2013
Cost 1,475,374 1,250,088 210,859 2,936,321
Accumulated depreciation {5630,256) (431 025) - (961,281)
Net carrylng amount 945,118 819,063 210,859 1,975,040
At 31 December 2013
Cost 1,397,456 1,315 918 425,083 3 138,457
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (1101,157) (719,752} (36,877) (1,857.786)
Net carrying amount 296,299 596,166 388,206 1,280,671
Mineral
properties
For the year ended 31 December 2012 (restated) Plant and dev:'r;:ller:: Assets under
{in thousands of United States dollars) equipment, costs constructiont Total
At 1 January 2012, net of accumulated depreciation 894,869 765519 162,859 1823,247
Additions - - 351,127 351,127
Disposals/write-downs (4,028) - - (4,028)
Impairments?2 (16,714) (14,017) - (30 731)
Depreciation (99.359) (65,216) - (164,575)
Transfers between categorles 170,350 132,777 (303,127) -
At 31 December 2012 945,118 819,063 210,859 1,975,040
At 1 January 2012
Cost 1,316,602 1,117,311 162,859 2,596,772
Accumulated depreciation (421,733) {351,792) - (773525)
Net carrying amount 894,869 765,519 162,859 1,823,247
At 31 December 2012
Cost 1,475,374 1,250,088 210,859 2,936,321
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (530,256) {(431,025) - (961,281)
Net carrying amount 945,118 819,063 210,859 1,975,040

1 Assets upder construction represents (a) sustaining capital expenditures incurred constructing property plant and equipment related to operating mines and advance
deposits made towards the purchase of property, plant and equipment, and {b) expansianary expenditure altocated to a project on a business combination or assat
acquisiion and the subsequent costs incurred to develop the mine Once these assets are ready for their itended use the balance is transferred to plant and equipment,

and/or mineral properties and mmne development costs

2 The impairment relates to long hved assets at Buzwagl North Mara and Tulawaka Refer to Note 8 for further detaits
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Leases

Property, plant and equipment include assets relating to the design and construction costs of power transmisston ines and related wfrastructure At
completion ownership was transferred to TANESCO in exchange for amoruised repayment in the form of reduced electricity supply charges No future
lease payment obligations are payable under these finance leases

Property. plant and equipment also includes emergency back-up generators leased at Buzwagt mine under a three-year lease agreement, with

an option to purchase the equipment at the end of the lease term and spinning power generators leased under a one-year lease agreement, with
an option to extend the lease for 36 months and an option to purchase the equipment at the end of the lease term The leases have been classified
as finance leases

Property. plant and equipment also includes five drill rigs purchased under short term finance leases

The following amounts were included in property, plant and equipment where the Group I1s a lessee under a finance lease

As at As at
31 December 31 December
{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Cost - capitahsed finance leases 70,764 68,846
Accumulated depreciation (16,430) (14,603)
Net carrying amount 54,334 54,243
22 Goodwlll and Intangible assets
Acgquired
For the year ended 31 December 2013 explo;avgﬁfazgg
{in thousands of United States gollars) Geodwll properties Total
At 1 january, net of accumulated rmparment 170,831 107,390 278,221
Additions? 1386 452 588
impairment? (43,069) (24,550} {67,619)
At 31 December 2013 127,898 83,292 211,190
At 31 December 2013
Cost 401,250 107,842 509,092
Accumulated impairment (273,352) (24,550} (297.902)
Net carrylng amount 127,898 83,292 211,180
Acquired
For the year ended 31 December 2012 exploranon and
(in thousands of United States dollars) Goodwll properties Total
At 1 January net of accumulated impairment 178,420 80093 258,513
Additions 6,216 27,297 33,513
Impairment (13,805) - {13.805)
At 31 December 2012 170,831 107,390 278,221
At 31 December 2012
Cost 401,114 107,390 508,504
Accumulated impairment {230,283) - (230,283)
Net carrying amoumt 170,831 107,390 278,221

1 Addibons to acquired exploration and evaluation properties and goodwill refate to addiional costs refated to the final valuauon of the acquisition of African Barnck Gold
Explorauon (Kenya) Ltd

2 The annual impairment review resulted in an impairment of US$21 millian to goodwill 1n North Mara and US$22 million and US$24 6 millon to goodwstl and acquired
exploration and evaluauon properues in Tusher/Nyanzaga respectively (2012 US$13 8 midhon impawment to goodwill in Tulawaka) The key assumptions to which the
ealculation of fair value less costs o dispose for all CGUs are most sensitive ara described in Note 8 Refer 1o Note 8 for further detasls

Annual Report &nd Accounts 2013 |29

SLINIWILVLS TYIONVYNIA




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

22. Goodwlll and intanglble assets continued
Goodwill and accumulated impairment losses by operaung segments

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Discontnued
{in thousands of United States dollars) North Mara Bulyanhulu operations Other Total
At 1 January 2013 21,046 121,546 - 28,239 170,831
Imparments {21 046) - - (22,023) {43,069)
Additions - - - 136 136
At 31 December 2013 - 121,546 - 6,352 127,898
Cost 237,524 121,546 13 805 28,375 401,250
Accumulated impairments (237,524) - (13,8059) (22,023) (273,352)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 Dsconunued
{in thousands of United States dollars) North Mara Bulyanhulu operauens Other Total
At 1 January 2012 21,046 121,546 13.805 22,023 178,420
Additions - - - 6.216 6,216
Impairments - - (13,805) - {13,805}
At 31 December 2012 21,046 121,546 - 28,239 170,831
Cost 237,524 121,546 13,805 28,239 401 114
Accumulated impairments {216,478) - (13,805) - (230,283)
23. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have not been recogmsed in respect of the following items
As at As at
31 December 31 December
(in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Tax losses 254,711 335,677
Total 254,711 335677

The above tax losses which translate into deferred tax assets of approximately US$85milion (2012 US$98 million) have not been recognised In
respect of these items due to uncertainties regarding availabiity of tax losses, or there being uncertainty regarding future taxable income against which

these assets can be uttised

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attnbutable to the following

Balance sheet classification Assets Labiiues Net

{In thousands of United States doliars) 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Property, plant and equipment?® - - 297,421 500,331 297,421 500,331

Provisions (11,756) (11,244} - - (11,756) (11,244)
Interest deferrals (22,950) (19,494) 286 562 (22,674) (18,932)
Tusker acquisition - - 7,340 17,313 7,340 17,313

Aviva acquisition - - 4,565 6,216 4,565 6,216

Tax loss carry-forwards (289,821) (320,968, - - (289,821) (320,968)
Net deferred tax (assets)/liabllities (324,537) (351,708) 309,612 524,422 (14,925) 172,716

Legal entities Assets Labilues Net

{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

North Mara Gold Mine Ltd?! - - 10.098 54,381 10,098 54,381

Bulyanhulu Gold Mine Ltd - {383) 13,594 - 13,594 (383)
Pangea Minerals Ltd! (48,066) - - 98,925 (48.066) 98,925

Other (2,721) (2,016} 12,170 21,809 9,449 19,793

Net deferred tax (assets)/habllities (50,787) (2,399) 35,862 175,115 (14,925) 172,716

1 2012 restated due to the applicauon of IFRIC 20 Refer to Note 3 for a discussion of the change i accountung policy
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Uncertainties regarding avalabtlity of tax losses, i respect of enquines raised and additional tax assessments 1ssued by the TRA, have been measured
using the single best estimate of likely outcome approach resulting tn the recognition of substantially all the related deferred tax assets and liabilities
Aiternative acceptable measurement policies (e g on a weighted average expected outcome basis) could result In a change to deferred tax assets and
fiabilities being recognised and the deferred tax charge in the income statement

No deferred tax has been recogmised in respect of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidianes, where the Group 1S 10 a posttion
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it 1s probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeabls future The

aggregate amount of temporary differences associtated with such investments tn subsidianes is represented by the contribution of those investments

to the Group's retained earnings and amounted to US$327 million (2012 US$134 millton)

24, Other assets

Asat Asat

31 December 31 December

(sn thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Amounts due from government? 19,436 23,425
Operating lease prepayments - TANESCO powerlines 2,648 2,512
Prepayments - Acquisition of rights over leasehold land? 49,389 37,248
Non-current portion of indirect tax receivable? 64,791 72,655
Village housing 257 250
Deferred finance charges 670 1474
Total 137,191 137,565

1 included in this amount are amounts receivable from the Tanzanian Social Security Fund of US$13 7 million (2012 US$7 3 midlion) as well as amounts dus from

TANESCO of US$9 4 mdlion {2012 US$10 6 nullion)
2 Prepayment made to the landowners in respect of acquisiton of the nghts over the use of leasehold land

3 The non-current portion of the indirect tax receivables has been discounted to s current value using an effecuve interest rate of 5% {2012 5%) This resulted in a

discounting charge of US$1 4 milhon {2012 U53%4 2 million} to the iIncome statement

25 Share capltal and share premium

Share capital  Share premium

Number £000 Uss 000 uss$ 000
At 1 January 2012 410,085,499 41,009 62,007 B67 102
At 31 December 2012 410,085,499 41,009 62,097 B67,102
At 31 December 2013 410,085,499 41,008 62,097 867,102

The nominal value of each Ordinary Share 1s 10 pence Mo sharé movements have taken place in the current year

26 Stock based compensation
a) Stock-options

Stock options are granted to Executive Directors and to selected employees The exercise pnce of the granted options i1s determined by the Compensation
committee before the grant of an option provided that this price cannot be less than the average of the middie-market quotation of such shares (as dernved
from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List) for the three dealing days immediately preceding the date of grant. All opuons outstanding at the end of
the year expire between Apnl 2017 and August 2020 718,805 of the options granted were exercisable at 31 December 2013 The vestng period of the

options 15 four years, with an exercise penod of seven years from the date of grant

Movements in the number of options outstanding and therr related weighted average exercise prices are reflected in pence as follows

2013 2012
Average Average
exercise price exercise price
In pence I pence
For the year ended 31 December per share Options per share Optons
At 1 January 524 1,703,128 524 1,710,628
Granted 160 B41,308 - -
Forfeited 518 (275,909) - -
Expired 533 (241,321) 568 {7,500
At 31 December 373 2,027,206 524 1,703,128
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26. Stock based compensation continued
A summary of the awards of the Group s equity-settled stock options at 31 December 2013 15 presented below

Weighted Weighted
average average Weighted
exercise price remaining average far
mnpence contractual iife  value in pence
Number per share inyears per share
Awards made in 2012
None
Awards made in 2013
21 August 841 308 160 66 51

The fair value of each award on the day of grant was estimated using a Monte Carloe simutation The expected future volatility has been determined by
reference ta the historical volatility The key assumptions used in the valuation are noted in the following table

Risk-free Expected
interest rate volatility  Dividend yleld Option ifetime
% % % Years
Awards made in 2013
21 August 168 50 165 7
The options granted are subject to perfermance conditions which are based on the assessment of the Company's Total Shareholder Return on a
weighted mean average against a specified comparator group as descnbed on page 70 of the remuneration report
b) LTIP - Restricted Share Units
Included in other non-current llabilities are RSUs with a fair value of US$0 8 million as at 31 December 2013 (2012 US$2 2 mihon)
Number of Fair valug
(in thousands of United States dollars) RSUs US$ 000
At 1 January 2012 888 002 3477
Settted for cash (49,479) {2 050}
Forfeited (324,766) (236)
Granted 65,857 55
Cradits for dividends 21,803 54
Change i value - 929
At 31 December 2012 601,417 2,229
Settled for cash {128,793) {346)
Forfeited (194,214 (359)
Granted 1,474,902 122
Credits for dividends 43,261 66
Change n value - (888)
At 31 December 2013 1,798,573 824

This table shows both the Legacy RSU and RSU plans The units granted dunng the year were solely as part of the RSU plan based on ABG shares

¢) LTIP - Performance Restricted Share Units (“PRSUs")
Inciuded in other nonr-current iabilities are PRSUs with a fair value of US$1 8 million as at 31 December 2013 (2012 US$2 5 milhon)

Number of Fair value
{(in thousands of United States dollars) PRSUs US$ 000
At 1 January 2012 534,907 402
Credits for dividends 15,217 39
Change in value - 2,105
At 31 December 2012 £50,124 2,546
Forfeited (443,758) (621)
Granted 3,215,067 951
Credits for dividends 61,791 71
Change in value - {1,125)
At 31 December 2013 3,383,224 1,822
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d) LTIP - Deferred Share Units
included in other non-current habilities are DSUs with a fawr value of US$0 2 million as at 31 December 2013 (2012 US$0 3 mullion)

Number of Fair value
{in thousands of Unned States dollars) DSUs US$ 000
At 1 January 2012 - -
Granted 43,283 260
Credits for dividends 272 1
Al 31 December 2012 48,555 261
Granted 153,508 131
Credits for dividends 6,993 8
Change in value - {187)
At 31 December 2013 209,056 213
27 Trade and other payables
As at As at
31 Dacember 31 Decernber
{in thousands of Urited States dollars) 2013 2012
Trade payables 60,811 83,038
Accrued expenses 41,066 43,377
Payroll-refated payables 29,559 26539
Contract retentions 390 414
Royalty payable 1,759 3771
Trade payables to related parties 14,3311 12,765
Total 147,896 169,904

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers Trade payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment 1s due within one year or less If not, they are presented as non-current labiliies

Terms and condrtions of the above payables habilities
« Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day of statement terms
» Accruals and other payables are non-imerest bearing and have an average term of 30-60 days

28 Borrowings

At the beginning of the year, a US$142 million facility was put in place to fund the bulk of the costs of the construction of one of ABG s key growth
projects, the Bulyanhulu CIL Expansion project (“the Project™ The facility 1s collateralised by the Project, and has a term of seven years with a spread
over LIBOR of 250 basis points The interest rate has been fixed at 3 6% through the use of an interest rate swap The seven year facility 1s repayable in
equal instalments over the term of the Facility, after a two-year repayments holiday period The full faciity of US$142 million was drawn at the end of
the year Interest accrued to the value of US$0 7 milhon was included in accounts payable at year end Interest incurred on the borrowings as well as
hedging losses have been capitalised as an asset.

29 Provislons

Rehabilitationt Other? Total
{in thousands of United States dollars} 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
At 1 January 180,548 157,582 1,040 1,034 181,588 158,616
Change In estimate (30,740) 19,242 524 6 (30,216) 19,248
Utitsed dunng the year (5,843} (297) - - {5,843) (2987
Unwinding of discount 4,498 4,021 - - 4,496 4,021
Reclassification to disposal group labilibes held for sale (16,760) - - - (16,760) -
At 31 December 131,701 180,548 1,564 1,040 133,265 181,588
Current portion - - (1,028} (1,040} (1,028) {1,040)
Non-current portion 131,701 180,548 536 - 132,237 180,548

1 Rehahitation provisions relate to the decommissioning costs expected to be incurred for the operaung mines This expenditure anses at different umes over tha hfe of
mine for the different mine sites and s expected to be utiised In terms of cash outflows between years 2014 and 2050 and beyond, varying from ming site to mine site

2 Other prowisions relate to provisions for legal and tax related labilmes where the outcome 1s not yet certain but it 15 expected that it will tead 1o a probable outflow of
economic benefits in future
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29. Provisions continued

Rehabilitation obligations anse from the acquisition, development, construction and normal operation of mining property, plant and equipment,

due to government controts and regulations that protect the environment on the closure and reclamation of miming properties The major parts of the
carrying amount of the obligation relate to tailings and heap leach pad closure/rehablilitation, demohton of buildings/mtne facilities, ongoing water
treatment, and ongoing care and maintenance of closed mines The fair values of rehabilitation provisions are measured by discounting the expected
cash flows using a discount factor that reflects the credit-adjusted nsk-free rate of interest ABG prepares estimates of the timing and amount of
expected cash flows when an obltgation 1s incurred and updates expected cash flows to reflect changes in facts and circumstances The principal
factors that can cause expected cash flows to change are the censtruction of new processing facilities, changes in the quantties of matenal in reserves
and a corresponding change in the life of mine plan, changing ore characternstics that impact required environmental protection measures and related
costs changes In water quality that impact the extent of water treatment required, and changes in laws and regulations goverming the protection of
the environment

Each year ABG assesses cost estimates and other assumptions used In the valuation of the rehabiltation provisien at each mineral property to reflect
events, changes in circumstances and new information avallable Changes in these cost estimates and assumptions are recorded as an adjustment to
the carrying amount of the corresponding asset Rehabilitation provisions are adjusted to reflect the passage of time (accretion) calculated by applying
the discount factor implicit in the inthal far-vatue measurement to the beginning-of-penod carrying amount of the provision Settlement gains/losses
will be recorded in gther (Income) expense

Other environmental remediation costs that are not rehabilitation provisions are expensed as incurred

30 Other llabilities

As at As at

31 December 31 December

{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Finance lease liabilites 10,914 14,133
Employee benefit share-based liabilities 2.859 5,036
Other 8,784 8,784
Total 22,557 27,953
Current portion 12,456 6,889
Non-current portion 10,101 21,064

Finance lease habilities are capitalised at an effective interest rate of 5% per annum The lease terms are three and four years, with purchase options at
the end of the term Instalments are payable weekly Lease labilities are effectively secured as the rnights to the leased asset revert to the lessor in the
event of default.

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2013 2012

Gross finance lease labilities - minimum lease payments
- No later than 1 year 11.307 4,645
- Between 1 and 3 years - 10,487
11,307 15,132
Future finance charges on finance leases (393) (999)
Present value of finance lease liabilities 10,914 14,133
As at As at
31 December 31 December
Present vatue of finance lease habilives 2013 2012
- No later than 1 year 10,914 4,030
- Between 1. and 3 years - 10,103
Present value of finance lease liabilities 10,914 14,133
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31. Financlal assets and liabllities
a) Financial assets

Carrying value Fair value

{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Cash and cash equivalents 282,409 401,348 282,409 401,348
Trade and other receivables 24,210 44,227 24,210 44,227
Dervative financial instruments 4,619 2674 4,619 2,674
Total other assets excluding prepaymentst 182,382 122,290 182,382 122,290
Total financial assets 493,620 570,539 493,620 570,539
Less Current financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 282,409 401,348 282,409 401,348

Trade and other receivables 24,210 44,227 24,210 44,227

Derwative financial instruments 1,366 2,207 1,366 2,207

Other current assets excluding prepayments 106,176 36,772 106,176 36,772
Total other non-current financial assets 79,459 85,985 79,459 85,985

1 Prepayments are excluded from other assets in the analysis as it 1s not a financial Instrument

The fair value of financial assets, excluding other assets, equal their carrying amount as the impact of discounting is not significant. Included in other assets
are indirect tax recenvables from the Tanzanian Revenue Authority, which have been discounted to their present value, refer to Note 19 and Note 24

31 December 2013
Assets at fair Dervatves
Loansand  value through used for
{in thousands of United States daollars) recenvables  prefit and loss hedging Total
Assets as per balance sheet
Cash and cash equivalents 282,409 - - 282,409
Trade and cther recervables 24,210 - - 24,210
Derivative financial instruments - 1,428 3,191 4,619
Total other assets excluding prepayments 182,382 - - 182,382
Total financial assets 489,001 1,428 3,191 493,620
31 December 2012
Assets al far Dervatives
Loansand  wvalue through used for
{in thousands of United States dollars) recevables  profit and loss hedgng Total
Assets as per balance sheet
Cash and cash equivalents 401,348 - - 401,348
Trade and other receivables 44,227 - - 44 227
Derivative financial instruments - 122G 1,454 2674
Total other assets excluding prepayments 122,290 - - 122,290
Total financial assets 567,865 1,220 1,454 570,539
b) Financial habilities
Carrying value Fair value
{in thousands of Unites States dollars} 2013 2012 2013 2012
Derivative financial instruments 6,281 723 6,281 723
Trade ang other payables 147,896 169,904 147,896 169,904
Other habilities 22557 27,953 22,557 27,953
Borrowings 142,000 - 142,000 -
Total 318,734 198,580 318,734 198,580
Less Current financial liabilies
Denvative financial instruments (5,074) {429) (5,074) (429)
Trade and other payables (147,896) (169,904} (147,896) (169,904)
Other current habilities (12,456) (6,889) {12,456) {6,889)
Total non-current portion of financial habilities 153,308 21,358 153,308 21,358
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31. Financial assets and llabilities continued

Gther labulities relate to cash-settled shate-based plans and theur valuation s based an unadiusted quated prices in active markets for weatical
financial instruments Also inctuded in other habilities are the finance lease habihtes and their valuation ts based on observable market data Derivative
financial Instruments are valued based upon inputs that are observable for the financial instruments which includes guoted prices for stmilar
instruments or identical Instruments in markets which are not considered to be active or either directly or indirectly based on observable markets data

31 December 2013
Liabiities at far Dertvatves  Other financial
value through used for liabilites ai
(in thousands of United States dollars) profitand loss hedgng amorused cost Tonat
Liabillties as per balance sheet
Derivative financial instruments 4,311 1,970 - 6,281
Trade and other payables - - 147,896 147,896
Other labilities - - 22,557 22,557
Borrowings - - 142,000 142,000
Total financial liabilities 4,311 1,970 312,453 318,734
31 December 2012
Liabiihes at farr Dervatves  Other financial
value through used for habthties at
{in thousands of United States dollars) profit and loss hedging amortised cost Total
Liabititles as per balance sheet
Derivative financial instruments 723 - - 723
Trade and other payables - - 169 904 169,904
Gther habilities - - 27,953 27,953
Total! financia! liabilities 723 - 197,867 198,580

Revolving credit facility

The Group has a revolving credit facility in place for a maximum aggregate amount of US$150 million which was negotiated on 24 November 2010,
with a syndicate of commercial banks, led by Ciibank The facihity has been provided to service the general corporate needs of the Group and to fund
potential acquisitions All provisions contained In the credit facility documentation have been negotiated on normal commercial and customary terms
for such finance arrangements and when drawn the spread over LIBOR will be 350 basis points Duning 2013, the term of the facility was successfully
extended to 2016 at a maximum aggregate amount of US$150 milon At 31 December 2013, none of the funds were drawn under the facitity The
shares of all significant subsidraries have been pledged as security for the loan Costs associated with the revolving credit facility have been included
in finance expenses

32 Derivatives financial Instruments

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at far value, by valuation method The Group has denvative financial instruments in the form
of economic and cash flow hedgmg contracts which are all defined as level two iInstruments as they are valued using inputs other than quoted prices
that are observable for the assets or habihities The foltlowing tables present the Group s assets and liabilives that are measured at fair value at

31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012

For the year ended 31 December 2013 Assets Liatwlves

{+n thousands of United States dollars) Current Non-urrent Current Non-current
Currency contracts Designated as cash flow hedges - - - 353
Interest contracts Designated as cash flow hedges - 3191 1,168 449
Currency contracts Not designated as hedges 158 3 3,666 387
Commodity contracts Not designated as hedges 1,208 59 240 18
Total 1.366 3,253 5,074 1,207
For the year ended 31 December 2012 Assets Liabilives

{1 thousands of United States dollars) Current Norcurrent Current Moncurrent
Currency contracts Designated as cash flow hedges 1,238 216 - -
Currency contracts Not designated as hedges 368 51 494 145
Commodity contracts Not designated as hedges 601 200 (65} 149
Total 2,207 467 429 294
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33 Financlal risk management
The Group has exposure to the following risks through its cornmercial &nd financial operations

a) market nsk, including commedity price, foreign currency and interest rate risks,
b} credit nsk, and
¢) hquidity risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks and the Group s objectives polscres and processes for assessing
and managing nsk Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout the financial statements

The Board of Diractors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group s nsk management framework

The Group's nsk management polictes are estabhshed to dentfy and analyse the nsks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk imits and controls,
and to monitor risks and adherence to hmits Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market condstions and
the Group s activities The Group, through its raining and management standards and procedures, ams to mantain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations

The Board of Directors has responsibility for overseeing how management monitors compliance with the Group s sk management polictes and
procegures and reviews the adequacy of the nsk management framework in relation to the rnisks faced by the Group The Audit committee is assisted In
its oversight role by internal audit which undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews oOf risk management controls and procedures, the results of which
are reparned to the Audit committee

a) Market nsk, including commodity price, foreign currency and interest rate risks
Market risk 1s the nisk that changes in market factors, such as commodity prices, foreign exchange rates or interest rates will affect the Group's
Income or the value of its financial instruments

Gold price

The market price of gold Is one of the most significant factors in determining the profitabiity of the Group's operations The price of gold 1s subject
to volatile price movements over short periods of ime, especially in the current market environment, and 1s affected by numerous industry and
magro-economic factors that are beyond the Group s control In 2013 the price ranged from US$1,189 to US$1,693 per ounce, with an average
market price of US$1,411 per ounce (2012 US$1,669 per ounce) The Group's policy 1s to sell gold at prevailing market prices

The table below summarises the impact of changes 1n the market price on gold The impact 1s expressed (n terms of the resulting change in the Group's
profit after tax for the year or, where applicable, the change in equity The sensitivities are based on the assumption that the market price changes by
10% with all other vanables held constant The impact of a similar change in copper and silver 1s not material to the Group s profit after tax

Effect on profit after tax

Forthe For the
year ended year ended

Gain associated with 10% Increase from year-end price 31 December 31 December

(in thousands of United States doliars) 2013 2012
Gold 650,445 69,841
Co-product prices

In 2013, the copper price ranged from US$3 01 to US$3 74 per pound, with an average market pnce of US$3 32 per pound (2012 US$3 61 per pound)
and closing at US$3 35 per pound

In 2013, the silver price ranged from US$18 49 to US$32 26 per ounce with an average market price of US$24 per ounce

In 2011, the Group entered 1nto zero-Cost collars to manage the impact of copper and sitver price fluctuations The Group does not use such dernvative
instruments for speculative trading purposes

In January 2013 we changed our hedging strategy to forwards, due to collars having become too expensive combined with the impact of 8 weakening
copper price We took out forwards for 7 million pounds at an average forward rate of US$3 72/pound maturning in 2013 These transactions are
economic hedges and do not qualfy for hedge accounting treatment. Changes in the fair value of these options are recorded as a component of other
Income/expense in the income statement

We entered into new zero-cost collar contracts in H2 of 2013 as a result of improved pnicing to manage the tmpact of the copper pnce fluctuations,
these will mature in 2014 These transactions are economic hedges and do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment. Changes in the fair value
of these options are recorded as a component of other income/expense In the income statement.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had 8,426 thousand pounds of copper collar contracts outstanding containing purchased put and call options

with an average strike price of US$3 12 per pound and US$3 41 per pound respectively (2012 no copper collar contracts outstanding) These will
all mature in 2014
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33 Financlal risk management continued
At 31 December 2013, the Group had no silver coltar contracts outstanding (2012 24 000 ounces of silver collar contracts outstanding containing
purchased put and sold call options with strike prices of US$31 per ounce and US$55 per ounce respectively)

Qil price

Diese fugl 1s refined from crude o and 1s therefore subject to the same price volatility affecting crude ol pnces Dunng 2011 and 2012 the Gioup
entered into Brent o1l option contracts to manage the impact of oil price ftuctuations in 2013, ol prices traded between US$98 and US$119 per barrel
with an average market price of US$109 {2012 US$112 per barrel)

The table below summarises the impact of changes in the market prices of crude ol The impact 1s expressed in terms of the resuling change In
the Group's profit after tax for the year ended 31 December 2013 The sensitivities are based on the assumption that the market price changes by
US$10 per barrel with all other variables held constant The effect on profit after tax (before hedging) 1s calculated based on actual consumption for
the year and does not address the indirect impact of a change tn the oll price on other costs

Effect en profit after tax
For the Fer the
ar ended ended
Gain/loss associated with US$10 decrease/increase from year-end price 31yl§ecumber 31%:-,1,3

(in thousands of Unsted States dollars) 2013 2012
ol 4,239 4,231

During the year, the Group added 250,000 barrels of Brent ol collar contracts for calendar year 2013 consistng of sold put options, bought call options
and sold call options with average strike pnices of US$85 per barrel, US$110 per barrel and US$135 per barrel respectively The designated contracts
act as a hedge aganst variability in market pnices In a pre-defined range, of the cost of future fuel purchases gver the next year At 31 December 2013,
the Group had a total 144,000 barrels of 8rent crude ol rtet purchase options outstanding Al of the contracts mature in 2014 Each contract consists
of sold put options and bought call options with average strike prices of US$88 per barrel and US$105 per barrel respectively

These contracts are treated as accounting hedges in accordance with IAS39 Hedged items are identified as the first stated quantity of forecasted
coONSUMPLon purchased in a future month Hedge effectiveness 1s assessed using inear regression ubihsing ihe concept of the hypothetical denvative
method The effectuve portion of changes in intrinsic value of the commaodity contracts 15 recorded in other comprehensive income until the forecasted
expenditure iImpacts earnings

Risks relating to the use of denvatives

By ustng denvatives, In addition to credit nsk we are affected by market nsk Market risk 1s the risk that the fawr value of a dernvative might be adversely
affected by a change in commodity prices, interest rates, of currency exchange rates, and that this in turn affects our financial condition We manage
market risk by establishing and monrtonng parameters that imit the types and degree of market risk that may be undertaken

Foreign currency risk

The Group s transactions are denominated in a number of different currencies (primarily US dollars, Tanzanian shillings, and South African rands)

The Group has Labilities that are primarily denominated in US dollars The US dollar 1s the Company’s (and its subsidiares ) functional currency, as

well as the Group s presentation currency Therefore, transactions \n currencies other than the US dollar give rise to foreign currency translation risk
The Group s pnimary exposure to this nsk arises from direct mine operating costs and corpoerate administration costs that are transacted in shillings
and rands, respectively Consequently, fluctuations in the US dollar shiltng/rand exchange rates increase the volatility of cost of sales, corporate
admimstration costs and overall net eamings, which are reported in US dollars The vast majority of all direct mining costs and corporate administration
costs are denomenated and settled in US dollars Consequently, the effect of foraign exchange fluctuations on the Group s reported diregt mining and
corporate administration costs 1s not signsficant.

The exchange rates at the end of each finangial year are detailed in Note 2g)

Historically, the relationship between the gold price and the value of the shiling and rand provide a natural hedge agamst fluctuations in the exchange
rate of these currencies against the US dollar Generally, a strengtheming of the shilling/rand, which would cause an increase i reported US dollar
operating costs, corresponds with an increase 1n the US dollar gold price, whish results in anincrease in reported US doltar revenues

During 2013 the Group entered into rand/US dollar collar contracts to manage the impact of currency fluctuations on rand denomtnated operating and
capital expenditures In 2013, the rand raded between RB 46 and R10 53 per US dollar, and averaged R9 63 per US dollar (2012 R8 20 per US dollar)

During 2012 the Group added R475 million of rand collar contracts for 2013 and 2014 with purchased put and sold ¢ail options with average strike
prices of R8 70 and R9 59 respectively In 2013 and R8 80 and RS 80 respectvely in 2014 (up to April 2014) to hedge forecasted rand denominated
capital spend 1n 2013 and partof 2014 1In 2013 no new contracts were entered on forecasted lower rand dengminated capital expenditure The
transactions are economic hedges, and do not gualify for hedge accounting treatment Changes in the falr value of these options have been capitaised
to the cost of the Bulyanhulu CIL Process plant asset in 2013 and will continue to be capitahised until the plant s brought into operation where after
they will be recorded as a component of other ncome/expense 1n the Income statement
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During 2012 as well as dunng the year the Group added US$69 militon of rand collar contracts to hedge forecasted rand denomunated operating
expenditures in 2013 The transactions are ecanomic hedges, and do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment. Changes in the fair value of these
opticns are recorded as a component of other income/expense i the income statement.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had US$114 milion of rand collar contracts outstanding contaiming purchased put and sold call options with average
strike prices of R9 57 and R11 06 respectively in 2014 and R10 43 and R12 80 respectively in 2015 (2012 US$57 million of rand collar contracts with
purchased put and sold call options with average strike prices of RB 31 and R9 26 respectively) These contracts mature in 2014 and 2015 The 2014
transactions are economic hedges and do not gqualify for hedge accounting treatment. Changes in the fair value of these options are recorded as a
component of other iIncome/expenses In the income statement The 2015 contracts were booked with rand nominal values and therefore act as a
hedge against vanabihity in the rand/US dollar exchange range over the penod These contracts are treated as accounting hedges in accordance with
IAS39 Hedged items are dentified as the first stated quantity of rand spent during the month Hedge effectiveness will be assessed using linear
regression utiising the concept of the hypothetical denvative method The effective portion of changes in intrinsic value of the currency contracts

1s recorded in gther comprehensive income until the forecasted expenditure impacts occurs

The Group does have significant financial assets denominated 0 a currerney other than US dollars These financial assets are as follow

As at As at

31 Decernber 31 December

{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Indirect tax recevables (denominated in Tanzanian shillings) 159,824 98,678
Total 159,824 98,678

The following sensitivity analyses give the estimated effect of a reasonably possible change in the full year closing US dollar exchange rate on the value
of the financial assets

Effect on profit after tax

For the For the
Increase/{decrease) asseciated with 10% change of the US dollar 31"3:;::;2‘: 31)'3:;;:?;‘:
{in thousands of United States doltars) 2013 2012
US dollar strengthens by 10% to the Tanzanian shilling
Increase in total indirect tax receivables 17,758 10,964
US dollar weakens by 10% to the Tanzanian shilling
Decrease in total indirect tax receivables (14,529) (8,971)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the instruments will fluctuate due to changes
in market interest rates Borrowings i1ssued at vanable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate sk Borrowings i1ssued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair valug interest rate risk The Group 1s also exposed to interest rate nsk on its cash and cash equivalents

At present, avallable funds are held with financial instriutions at variable rates and primarily denominated 1n US dollars, interest mcome 1s not materialty
affected by changes in short-term interest rates Duning the year, the Group entered into an Export Credit Insurance Company ("ECIC™) backed seven
year term loan facility of US$142 rvihon to fund the construction of the CIL Process plant at Butyanhulu Ag at 31 December 2013 the loan is fully
drawn interest 1s payable on the loan at LIBOR plus 250 basis points The revolving credit facility s spread over LIBOR will be 350 basis points Group
debt levels are impacted by the amount of oparating cash flow generated by its operating mines, as well as capital expenditure requirements related

to existing operations and development projects

In 2013 the Group entered Into interest rate swap contracts to hedge the interest on the ECIC backed loan for the Buly CIL Process plant, The terms
of the interest rate swap contracts fix this at 3 59% versus the floating rate of LIBOR plus 2 50% These contracts are treated as accounting hedges in
accordance with IAS39 Hedged items are identified as the first stated quantity of rand spent dunng the month Hedge effectiveness will be assessed
using hnear regression utibising the concept of the hypothetical dernivative method The effective portion of changes in intrinsic value of the currency
contracts 1s recorded in other comprehensive income until the forecasted expenditure impacts occurs For 2013, these gains or losses have been
capitalised against the Bulyanhulu CIL Process plant asset and will continue to be capitafised untif the plant is brought into operation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

33 Financial risk management continued

b) Credht risk

Credit nsk 1s the nisk that a third party might fail to fulfil its performance obligations under the terms of a financial instrument. For cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other receivables, credit risk represents the carrying amount on the balance sheet, net of any overdraft positions

Credit nsk anses from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks, as well as trade and other receivables The Group s financial assets are
held with counterparties who the Group considers have an appropriate credit rating Location of credit risk 1s determined by physical location of the
bank branch, customer or counterparty The maximum altowable term to matunty for any indmdual secunity 1s threée months Investment counterparties
must have a credit rating of at least “Baal” or better by Moody s Investor Services or “BBB+" by Standard and Poor s No more than 25% of the
aggregate market value of the investment portfolio 1s maintained in any one country, with the exception of the United States of America or the United
Kingdom, or 1n any one industry group Investments are primanly held in United States dollars Cash and cash equivalents tn other foreign currencies
are maintained for operational requirements As at 31 December 2014 the Group has money market investments of US$145 6 mition All of the funds
have at least 8 “BBB+" rating from Standard and Poor s The Group also has US$136 7 million in cash at bank on hand with credit ratings ranging from
“A-1" to “A-2"

With respect to other recevables, the most signsficant debtor i1s the Tanzanian Revenue Authority (“TRA™} Following the abolishment of Government
Notices regarding VAT relief and fuel duty exemption for mening companies in 2009, ABG signed a Memorandum of Settlement durning 2011 with the
TRA to address the treatment of the certain outstanding indirect tax refunds in respect of fuel levies and VAT that allows ABG to offset iIncome tax
payable agamst outstanding VAT and fuel levy refunds as it becomes payable Also, the Minister of Finance remnstated VAT relief and the fuel exemption
followed by an agreement to allow for an escrow facility in respect of fuel and road levies Again through the Finance Act, 2012 1ssued on 19 Qctober
2012, VAT Relief was abolished Throughout the past year, ABG has been actively involved in discussions with the Tanzanian Government and the TRA
1o resolve the 1ssue The amendments conflict with certain provisions contaned in the Group s existing Mine Development Agreements {“MDAs") which
guarantee the fiscal stability of its operations As part of a short-term solution, the Government during the third quarter of 2013, agreed t0 an escrow
arrangement cn VAT In relation to imported goods and services, whereby funds are restrected 1o the repayment of VAT refunds As at 31 December
2013, the discounted amounts due to the Group were approximately US$159 8 million (prior year US$98 7 mullton) We managed to recewe refunds
10 the value of US$34 6 miflion during the year under review

Group policies are aimed at mimmising lesses as a result of a counterparty s faillure to honour its ohligations Individual exposures are monitored
with trade customers subject to credit hmits to ensure that the Group s exposure to bad debts 1s not significant. The Group's exposure to credit risk 1s
influenced manty by the indmidual charactertstics of each of the counterparties The Group s financial assets are with counterparties who the Group
considers have an appropnate credit rating During the year, recetvables to the value of US$71 million were advanced by a financsal institution under
a factoning agreement This agreement reduces the nsk of default of recevables

Maximuem exposure to credit nsk at each reporting date 1s the carrying value of each class of financial assets described in Note 31 The Group does
not hold coliateral as security for any trade recevables The Group does not grade the credit quality of recevables

a) Ligudity risk

Liguidity nisk 1s the nisk of loss from not having access to sufficient funds to meet both expected and unexpected cash demands The Group manages
Its exposure to hiquidity nsk by ensuring that ts operating and strategic hquidity levels are well above minimum internal requirements Prudent ligudity
nsk management includes mamntaining sufficient cash balances, and the availability of funding from an adequate amount of committed credit facilities
At the end of both 2013 and 2012 the Group was in a pasilive net cash position, as disclosed in Note 20 Details of the undrawn revolving credit facihity
are given 1n Note 31

In the ordinary course of business, the Group receives cash proceeds from rts operations and 1s required to fund working capital and capital
expenditure requirements The cash 1s managed to ensure surplus funds are invested to maumise returns while ensuring that capital 1s safeguarded
to the maximum extent possible by nvesting only with financial institutions with a strong credit rating Insignificant uncommitted overdraft facilities are
maintained with several banking counterparties to meet the Group’s normal funding requirements The Group s primary source of iguidity IS operating
cash flow, and over the past two years the Group has generated an average of about US$228 million per year The pnngipal nsk factor affecting
operating cash flow 15 market gold prices

The principal uses of liquidity are sustaining capltal expenditures at existing operating menes, construction activitles at development projects, and
interest payments Sustaiming capital expenditures, including capitalised development costs, have averaged about US$274 mullion per year over the
past two years

The following table outhnes the expected maturity of the Group s significant financial assets into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining

penod from the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date As the amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows,
these balances may not agree with the amounts disclosed in the balance sheet
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
{in thousands of United States dollars) Less than 1 year 11to 3years 3to Syears Over Syears Total E
Cash and cash equivalents 282,409 - - - 282 409 % |
Accounts receivable 24,210 - - - 24,210 2
Derivative financial instruments 1,367 416 2,428 860 5071 @
Other receivables excluding prepayments? 45,191 72 400 64,791 - 182,382 ﬁ
Tota) 353177 72,816 67,219 860 494,072 2

3
For the year ended 31 December 2012
{in thousands of United States dollars) Less than 1 year 1te 3 years 3to5years Over 5 years Total
Cash and cash eguivalents 401,348 - - - 401,348 |
Accounts receivable 44,227 - - - 44,227 !
Derivative financial instruments 2,207 487 - - 2,674 l
Other receivables excluding prepaymentst 30,811 18,824 76,841 - 126,476 i
Total 478,593 19,291 76,841 - 574,725

1 Prepayments are excluged from other assets in the analysis as it s not a finaneral instrument.

The following table outlines the expected maturity of the Group 5 significant financial hiabilities Into relevant matunty groupings based on the remaining
penod from the palance sheel date 10 {he contraciual maturity date As the amounts disciosed 1n the table are the contractual undiscounted casn flows,

these batanges may not agree with the amounts disclosed in the balance sheet

For the year ended 31 December 2013

(in thousands of United States dotlars) Less than 1 year 1to 3 years 310 Syears Qver 5 years Total
Derwative financial instruments 5,079 1519 - - 6,598
Other habilities 12,456 1,317 8,784 - 22,557
Trade and other payables* 147,895 - - - 147,896 !
Borrowings - 42,600 56,800 42,600 142,000
Total 165,431 45,436 65,584 42,600 319,051
For the year ended 31 December 2012

{in thousands of United States dollars) Less than 1 year 1to 3years 310 Syears Over 5 years Total
Denvative financial instruments 429 294 - - 723
Other Labilities 6,889 12,280 8,784 - 27,953
Trade and other payables 169,904 - - - 169,904
Total 177,222 12,574 8,784 - 198,580

1 Trade and other payables exclude statutory iabiliues in the form of income tax payable

Management considers that the Group has adequate current assets and forecast cash flow from operations to manage hquidity rigks arlsing from |

settiement of current iabilties and non-current liabilities

Capital risk management

The primary ghyective of the Group's capital management i to ensure that t mawntains a strang balance sheet and low gearing ratia to support its
business and provide financial flexibity 1n order to maximise shareholder value In order to ensure a strong balance sheet and low gearning ratio,
management thoroughly evaiuates all matenal projects and potential acquisitions and 15 approved by the Senior Leadership Team before submission

to the Board for ultimate approval, where applicable
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

34, Operating lease arrangements
For the Far the
penod ended penod ended
310December 31 December

{In thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised in income for the year 2,893 2,197
Total 2,893 2,197

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future mrrimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which
fall due as follows

As at Asat

31 December 31 December

{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
within one year 1,196 4137
In the second to fifth years inclusive 2,009 7,733
After five years 423 691
Total 3,628 12,561

Operating lease payments relate mainly to rental of office space by regional business units of the Group

35. Commitments and contingencies
The Group 1s subject to vanous laws and regulattons which, If not observed, could give nse to penalties As at 31 December 2013, the Group has the
following commitments and/or contingencies

a) Legal contingencies

As at 31 December 2013, the Group was a defendant in approximately 333 lawsuits The plaintiffs are claiming damages and interest thereon for the
loss caused by the Group due to one or more of the following unlawful ewction, termination of services, wrongful termination of contracts of service,
non-payment for services, defamation, neghgence by act or omission in failing to provide a safe working environment, unpatd overtime and pubhc
holiday compensation

The total amounts claimed from lawsuits in which specific monetary damages are sought amounted to US$142 8 million The Group s Legal Counsel 1s
defending the Group's current position, and the ocutcome of the lawsuits cannot presently be determined However, in the opinion of the Directors and
Group s Legal Counsel, no maternal labilies are expected 1o matenalise from these lawsuits Consequently no provision has been set aside aganst the
claims in the books of account

included n the total amounts claimed 1S an appeal by the TRA intended for a tax assessment of US$21 3 million in respect of the acquisition of Tusker
Gold Limited The case was awarded In favour of ABG however, the TRA has served a notice of appeal The calculated tax assessment s based on the
sales price of the Nyanzaga property of US$71 million muttiphed by the tax rate of 30% Management is of the opinion that the assessment 1s invalid
due to the fact that the acquisition was for Tusker Gold Limited, a company incorporated in Australia The shareholding of the Tanzanian-related entities
dd not change and the Tusker Gotd Limited group structure remains the same as pnor to the acquisition

Atso included in the total amounts claimed 1s TRA claims to the value of $41 25 million for withholding tax on histonc offshore dvidend payments paid
tyy ABG plc to its shareholders In addition to the claim, there ara six other withholding tax claims which have not been quantified These claims are
made on the basts that ABG Is resident on Tanzania for tax purposes Management are of the opinion that the claims do not have substance and that
it would be successfully defended

b) Tax-related contingencies

1 On 26 October 2009, the TRA 1ssued a demand notice against the Group for an amount relating to withholding tax on technical services provided to
Bulyanhulu Gold Mine Ltd The claim amounts to US$5 4 milllon Management s of the opinion that the Group complied with all of the withholding tax
requirements, and that there will be no amount payable, therefore no provision has been raised

# The TRA has issued a number of tax assessments to the Group refating to past taxation years from 2002 onwards The Group believes that these
assessments are incorrect and has filed cbjections to each of them The Group 1s attempting to resclve these matters by means of discussions with
the TRA or through the Tanzaman appeals process During the year under review the Board ruled in favour of BGML in relation to seven of ten 1ssues
raised by the TRA in final assessments for the 2000-2006 years under review The TRA filed a notice of intention to appeal against the ruling of the
Board, while ABG has filed a counter appeal in respect of BGML to the Appeals Tribunal for all three items that were lost The positions that were
ruled against BGML were sufficiently provided for in prior year results and management 1S of the opinion that open tssues will not result In any
matenal llabtlities to the Group
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¢} Exploration and development agreements - Mining licences

Pursuant to agreements with the Government of the United Republic of Tanzania, the Group was 1ssued special mining licences for Bulyanhulu,
Buzwag, North Mara and Tulawaka rmines and mining icences for building matenals at Bulyanhulu and Buzwagi mines The agreement requires
the Group to pay to the Government of Tanzania annual rents of US$5,000 per annum per square kilometre for as long as the Group holds the
special mining licences and US$2,000 per annum per square kilometre for so long as the Group holds the mining licences for bullding materials
The total commitment for 2014 for the remaining special mining licences and mining hcences for bullding matenals amount 10 US$0 65 million

{2012 US$0 8 milion) Subsequent to year end, the transferal of the Tulawaka special mining licence to STAMICO was approved

d} Purchase commitments

At 31 December 2013, the Group had purchase obligations for supplies and consumables of approximately US$48 million (2012 US$65 milhon)

e) Capital commitments

In addion to entenng into vanous operatienal commitments in the normal course of business, the Group entered inte contracts for capital expenditure

of approximately US$6 milion (2012 US$51 million)

36 Related party balances and transactions

The Greup had the following related party balances and transactions during the years ended 31 December 2013, and 31 December 2012 Related

parties are those entities owned or controlled by BGC, which 1s the ultimate controling party of the Group
Transactions with related parties are as follows

a) Transactions

Forthe For the

year ended year ended

31December 31 December

(in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Provision of goods and services 927 273
Purchase of goods and services (7.329) (10,177)
Intenm dividend payments (40,306) (51822)
Total {46,708B) (61,726)

Prowvision and purchase of goods and services to/from related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions Provision of services relates to
cost Incurred by the Group and recharged to related parties Purchase of goods and services relates to cost incurred by related parties and recharged to
the Group Services purchased relate mainly to insurance and software licences Goods purchased relate mainly to consumables and capital equipment

b) Balances due from related parties

As at Asat

31December 31 December
{in thousands of Unite¢ States dollars) 2012 2012
Placer Dome Exploration - 247
Placer Dome Technical Services 37 37
Other - 109
Total 37 393
The receivables are unsecured in nature and bear no interest There are ne provisions held against recelvables from BGC
¢) Balances due to related parties

As at As at

31 December 31 December
(in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Due to holding company
Barnck Gold Corporation 12,606 11,962
Due to fellow subsidlartes
BIBC 83 15
Barrick Gold Australia Ltd 768 293
Barrick Gold North America 374 188
Other 480 307
Total 14,311 12,765

The payables to Barrick arise mainty from purchase transactions noted ahove The payables are unsecured and bear no interest
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NOTES 7O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

36 Related party balances and transactions continued

d) Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel include the membaers of the Board of Directors and the Semor Leadership Team who recerve remuneration Compensation
for key management personnel (Including Directors) was as follows

For the For the
year ended year ended
31December 31 December

{In thousands ef United States Dollars} 2013 2012
Short-term employee benefits 8,034 8,724
Post-employment benefits 1155 746
Other long-term benefits 3,561 -
Share-based payments 64 1,029
Totat 12,814 10,499

37. Prospecting licences

The Group holds exploration mineral nghts in the United Republic of Tanzania These nghts are held in the form of prospecting licences issued by the
Ministry of Energy and Minerals and are held either directly by the Group or indirectly pursuant to third party agreements The licences held by the
Group as at 31 December 2013 are summarnised n the following table The total commitment to exploratien expenditure on these licences for 2014
15 US$0 65 millton

Licenses directly held by ABG

Active prospecting cences Active prospeciing licences
managed by ABG not managed by ABG

Numberof Areain square Number of  Area in square
ABG entrty as registered ttle holder licences kilometres licences lalometres
ABG Exploration Limited 123 1,176 22 177
Mkumi Exploration Limited 2 18 - -
North Mara Gold Mine Limited 14 107 - _
Nyanzaga Mining Company Limited 11 140 - -
Pangea Mineral Limited 91 855 10 109
Prime Gold Exploration Limited 3 43 4 49
Sub-Sahara Resources (TZ) Limited 2 15 - -
Vulcan Resources (Tanzania) Limited 13 217 10 122
Total 259 2571 46 457

Licences indirectly held by ABG
Number of  Area n square

licences kilometres
Managed by ABG 4 31
Not managed by ABG 40 455

38 Post-balance sheet events
A final dwidend of US$2 O cents per share has been proposed, which will result in a total dwidend of US$2 O cents per share for 2013 The final
dwidend 15 to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting on 24 April 2014 These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AFRICAN BARRICK GOLD PLC

REPORT ON THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our opinion
In cur opinion the parent company financial statements, defined below

= give a true and fair view of the state of the parent company’s affairs
as at 31 December 2013 and of the parent company's loss and cash
flows for the year then ended,

= have been propetly prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as adoptad by the Eurcpean Union, and

= have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the
Compames Act 2006

This opinion 1s to be read in the context of what we say In the remainder
of this report

What we have audited

The parent company financtal statements, which are prepared by
African Barnck Gold Ple, comprise

« the balance sheet as at 31 December 2013

« the Income statement and statement of comprehensive ingome
for the year then ended

» the statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and

the notes 1o the parent company financial statements which
nclude a surmmary of significant accounting pelicies and other
explanatory information

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in therr
preparation compnses applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union

Certain disclosures required by the financial reperting framework have
been presented elsewhere in the Annual Report and Accounts (the
“Annual Report™), rather than in the notes to the financlal statements
These are cross-referenced from the financial statements and are
identified as audited

What an audit of flnanclal statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Audsting (UK and Irefand) (ISAs (UK & Ireland)) An audit involves obtaining
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are
free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This
includes an assessment of

s whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the parent
company 5 circumstances and have been consistently apphied and
adequately disclosed,

» the reasonableness of significant accounting esumates made by
the Durectors, and

+ the overall presentation of the financial statements

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the
Annual Report to identfy matenal inconsistencies with the audited parent
company financial statements and to identify any information that is
apparently materially incorrect based on, or materally inconsistent with,
the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we
become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies
we consider the implications for our report

OPINIONS ON MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES
ACT 2006

In our apinion:

« the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors Report
for the financial year for which the parent company financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the parent company
financial statements, and

» The part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been
property prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

OTHER MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT
BY EXCEPTION

Adequacy of accounting records and information and
explanations recelved

Under the Companies Act 2006 wea are required to repoert to you if, in
our opinion

» we have not received ail the information and explanations we require
for our audit, or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or

= the parent company financial statements and the part of the
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and retumns

We have no exceptions to report ansing frem this responsibitity

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report if, In our
opinton, certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by
law have not been made We have no exceptions to report ansing from
this responsibility

Other information in the Annual Report
Under ISAs (UK & Ireland), we are required to report to you If, In our
opinion, information inthe Annual Report 1s

« materially inconsistent with the information in the audited parent
company financial statements, or

« apparently matenally incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent
with, our knowledge of the Parant Company acquired in the course
of performing our audit, or

» 15 otherwise misleading

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibity
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AFRICAN BARRICK GOLD PLC CONTINUED

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND THE AUDIT

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully In the Directors Responsibilities Statement on
page 89, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the parent
company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view

Qur responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the parent
company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and ISAs
(UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Audiors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the
Company s members as a body 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in gIving
these opintons, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or
to any other person to whom this réport 15 shown or inte whose hands 1t
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Other matter
We have reported separatety on the Group financial statements of African
Barrick Gold Pic for the year ended 31 December 2013

OO.WLAA

Jason Burklitt {Senior Statutory Auditor),
for and on behalf of PrncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audnors
London

11 March 2014
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PARENT COMPANY INCOME STATEMENT

Forthe For the
year ended year ended
31December 31 December

{in thousands of United States dellars) Notes 2013 2012
Corporate administration 3 (9,758} (12,923)
Project evaluation costs - (454)
Other charges (6,316} (5,.674)
Finance income 4 4 162
Finance expense 4 (8) (8)

Loss before taxation
Income tax

(16,076) (18,895)
5 - -

Net loss for the year

(16,076) (18,895)

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

{in thousands of Urited States dollars)

For the For the

year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012

Net loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

(16,076) (18,895)

Total comprehensive loss for the year

(16,076) (18,895)

The notes on pages 151 to 161 are an integral part of these financial statements
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PARENT CCMPANY BALANCE SHEET

As at Asat
31 December 31 December
(i thousands of United States dollars} Notes 2013 2012
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 7 257 373
Investment in subsidianes 8 1,324,568 1,346,608
Non-current receivables 18 795,191 772,694
2,120,016 2,119,675
Current assets
Qther recewables 9 9,936 3,444
Cash and cash equivalents 10 1,771 36,525
11,707 39,969
Total assets 2,131,723 2,159,644
Equity and [labllitles
Share capital and share premium 11 929,199 929,199
Other reserves 1,161,754 1,221,897
Total equity 2,080,953 2,151,096
Non-current liabllities
Other nen-current labilities 1,541 2,230
1,541 2,230
Current liabilities
Other current katilities 14 49,229 6 318
49,229 6.318
Total liabilittes 5Q,770 8,548
Total equity and liabilities 2,131,723 2,159,644

The notes on pages 151 to 161 are an integral part of these financial statements

The firancial statements on pages 147 1 161 were authonsed for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on 11 March 2014 and were signed on its behatf

-

Bradley Gordon,
Chief Executive Officer
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PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Contnbuted
surplus/Other Stock Retained
(in thousands of United States dollars) Notes Share ¢aprial - Share premium feserves  oplon reserve eamings Total equsty
Balance at 1 January 2012 62,097 867,102 1,368,774 1977 (61,360) 2,238,590
MNet loss for the year - - - - (18,895) {18,895}
Dividends to shareholders 13 - - - - (70,125) {70,125}
Stock options - - - 1,526 - 1,526
Balance at 31 December 2012 62,097 867,102 1,368,774 3,603 {150,380} 2,151,096
Net loss for the year - - - - (16,0786) (16,0786}
Dmidends to shareholders 13 - - - - {54,541) {54,541)
Stock options - - - 474 - 474
Balance at 31 December 2013 62,097 867,102 1,368,774 3,977 (220,997} 2,080,953

The notes on pages 151 to 161 are an integral part of these financal statements
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PARENT COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Forthe For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
{In thousands of United States dollars) Notes 2013 2012
Cash flows used In operating activities
Net loss for the year (16,076) (18 895}
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation 7 144 146
Finance tems 4 2 (156}
Working capital adjustments 6 35,612 408
Other & 171 1,277
Cash generated/{used) by operations before interest and tax 19 853 (17,220)
Finance mecome 4 162
Finance expense {8} (6)
Net cash generated/{used) by operating activities 19,851 (17,064)
Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and egquipment 7 (28) (149)
Investment in subsidiary 8 - {22,039)
Net cash used in investing activitles (28) (22,188)
Cash flows used in financing activities
Davidends paid 13 {54,541) (70,125)
Net cash used in financing activities {54,541} (70,125)
Net decrease in cash and equivalents {34,718) (109,377
Net foretgn exchange difference (36) 32
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 36,525 145,870
Cash and cash equivatents at 31 December 1,771 36,525

The notes on pages 151 to 161 are an integrat part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate information

African Barrnick Godd plc {the *Company”) was ncorporated on 12 January
2010 and re-registered as a pubhc limited company on 12 March 2010
under the Compantes Act 2006 It s registered in England and Wales with
registered number 7123187

On 24 March 2010 the Company s shares were admitted to the Officia! List
of the United Kingdom Lisung Authority (*UKLA™) and to trading on the mamn
market of the London Stock Exchange, hereafter referred to as the Iniuial
Public Gffering ("IPO™) The address of its registered office 1s 5* Floor,

1 Cavendish Place, London, WIGOQF, United Kingdom

Barrick Gold Corporation (“BGC") currently owns approximately

63 9% of the shares of the Company and 15 the ultimate controllng
party of the Group The financial statements of BGC can be obtained
from www barrck com

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
were approved for issue by the Board of Diregtors of the Company
on 11 March 2014

The pnmary activity of the Company 15 as halding company for the
Afnican Barrick Gold Group of comparnies

2 Significant accounting policles
The principal accounting polictes applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below

a) Baslis of preparation

The Company s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Internatwonal Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union {“IFRS"s), IFRIC interpretations and those parts of the Companies
Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on
a historical cost basis

The Company s forecasts and projections taking account of reasonably
possible changes in trading performance, show that the Company should
he able to operate within the leve! of its current financing

After making enguiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectauon that
the Company has adequate resources to continue in gperational existence
for the foreseeable future The Company therefore adopts the going
concern basis in preparing its financial statements

The financial statements are presented n U5 dollars (US$} and all
values are rounded 1o the nearest thousand (US$'000) except when
otherwise indicated

Where a change in the presentational format between the pnor year
and current year financial statements has been made during the penod,
comparative figures are restated accordingly No changes were made
to presentational format in the current year

The basis of preparation and accounting policies used in preparing
the financial statements are set out below

b) New and amended standards adopted by the Company
The following new standards and amendments to standards are
applicable and were adopted by the Company for the first ume for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2013

« JAS 1, ‘Financial statement presentation’ regarding other
comprehensive inceme The main change resulting from these
amendments 15 a requirement for entities to group items presented in
other comprehensive income’ (OCI) on the basis of whether they are
potentially subsequently reclassifiable to profit or loss The adoption
had no impact on the Company as it had no other comprehensive
income’ for the period ended 31 December 2013

+ |IFRS 13, Fair value measurement’, aims to improve consistency and
reduce complexity by providing a precise definttion of fair value and a
single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across {IFRS

+ Annual improvements 2011 - effective for periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013

= Amendment to IFRS 7, Financral instruments Disclosures - effective
for penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

+« Amendment to IAS 12, Income tax - effective for penods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013

¢} New and amended standards, and interpretations not

yet adopted
The following standards and amendments to existing standards have
been published and are mandatory far the Company s accounting penods
begmming on or after 1 January 2014, but are currently not relevant to
the Company

+ IFRS 9, Financial instruments , addresses the ¢lassification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial
llabimues IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and October 2010
and replaces the parts of [AS 39 that relate to the classification and
measurement of financiat instruments IFRS 9 requires financial assets
to be classified into two measurement categories those measured at
fair value and those measured at amortised cost The determination 1s
made at intial recognition The classification depends on the entity's
business model for managing its financial instruments and the
contractual cash flow charactenistics of the instrument For financial
habilities, the standard retains most of the IAS 39 requirements. The
main change 1s that in cases where the fair value option 15 taken for
financial habilities, the comprehensive income rather than the income
statement 1s affected unless this creates an accounting mismatch The
impact of IFRS 915 not expected to be materal to the Company IFRS 9
15 not yet endorsed by the European union

IFRIC 21, Levies sets out the accounting for an obligation to pay a
levy that 1s not income tax The interpretation addresses the obligating
evant 1s that gives rise to pay a levy and when a lability should be
recogmised The impact 1s not expected to be maternal to the Company
IFRIC 21 15 not yet endorsed by the European union and its effective
date 1s for periods beginning after 1 January 2014

+ |IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements builds on existing
principles by wentfying the concept of control as the determining
factor in whether an entity should be included within the consolidated
financial statements of the parent company The standard provides
additional guidance t0 assistin the detarmination of control where this
1s difficult to assess The standard 1S not mandatory for the Company
until 1 January 2014, and the impact s not expected to be material

s IFRS 11, Joint arrangements focuses on nghts and obligations of
the parties to the arrangement rather than its legal form  Proportional
censolidation of jount arrangements 1s no longer permitted The
standard 15 not mandatory for the Company untl 1 January 2014
and 15 not expected to have an impact on the Company
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2 Significant accounting policles continued

» |FRS 12, Disclosures of interests in other enttbies includes the
disclosure requirements for ali forms of interests in other entibies,
including joint arrangements associates structured entities and other
off balance sheet veticles The standard 1s not mandatory for the
Company until 1 January 2014 The standard 1s expected to iImpact
the Company with regard to disclosure of restrictions on its ability
to access assets

d) Significant judgements in applying accounting policies

and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Many of the amounts included in the parent company financial statements
require management to make judgements and/or estmates These
Judgements and estimates are contimugusty evaluated and are based
on management s expenence and best knowledge of the relevant facts and
circumstances, but actual results may differ from the amounts included
n the parent company financial statements tnformation about such
Judgements and estimation s included in the accounting poticies and/or
nates to the financial statements, and the key areas are summarised betow

Areas of Judgement and key sources of estimation uncertainty that have
the most sigmificant effect on the amounts recognised n the parent
company financial statements include

+ Whether to recognise a provision for accounts receivable - Notes 2h)
and 9,

Recognition of deferred income tax assets, amounts recorded for
uncertan tax posikions, the measurement of iIncome tax expense and
indirect taxes - Notes 2)) and 5, and

Review aof property, plant and equipment and investments In
subsidianes, the determination of whether these assets are impalred
and the measurement of iImpairment charges or reversals — Notes 2f),
7 and 8

e) Foreign currency translation

The Company's transactions are denominated in a number of different
currencies {pamarily US dollars and UK pounds sterling) The Company
has habilities that are pnmarity deneominated in US dollars The US doltar
15 the Company s functional currency, as well as the Company’s
presentation currency Transactions in currencies other than the US dollar
are transiated at the exchange rates as at the date of transacton Monetary
assets and liabities denomiated m currencles other than the US dollar are
translated to US dollars at year-end exchange rates All differences that
arise are fecorded in the iIncome statement Non-monetary assets
measured at histoncal ¢ost In a currency other than US dollars are
translated using the exchange rates at the date of the inittal transactions
Where non monetary assets are measured at far value in a currency other
than US dollars they are transtated into US dollars using the exchange
rates on the date when the fair value was determined

The following exchange rates to the US dollar have been applied

Average Average

Asat  Year ended Asat  Yearended

31 Decernber 31 December 31 December 31 December

2013 2013 2012 2012

UK pound (US$ GBF) 060 064 062 063
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f) Investment in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Company has the power, directly
or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies 1n order to
obtain benefits from thesr actvities Control 1S presumed to exist where
the Company has more than one half of the voting rights unless it can be
demonstrated that ownership does not constitute control Control does
not exist where other parties hold veto nights over significant operating
and financial decisions In assessing control, potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible as well as other contractual
arrangements that enable the Company 10 exercise control are taken
Into account

At each reporting date, an assessment is made to determine whether
there are any indicators of imparment Where an indicator of impairment
exists, a formal estimate of the recoverable amount of the investment in
subsidiary 15 made, which is considered to be the higher of the fair value
less costs to dispose and the value in use Fair value 1s determined as
the amount that would be obtained from the sale of the investment in an
arm s length transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties If
the carrying amount of an investment exceeds the recoverable amount,

a provision 18 recorded in the income statement to reflect the investment
at the recoverable amount.

Where an impairment charge has previously been recognised, an
assessment 15 made at the end of each reparting percd whether there is
any indication that the impairment Joss may no longer exist or may have
decreased If any such mdication exists, an estimate of the recoverable
amount s made An impairment l0ss 1s reversed to the income statement
to the extent that the Increased carrying value of the mvestment In
subsidiary does not exceed the original carrying vatue

g) Share capital

Ordinary Shares are classified as eguity Incremental costs directly
attributable to the 1ssue of new shares or options are shown In equity
as a deduction from the proceeds

h) Financial instruments

Cash and cash equivatents

Cash and cash equivalents are carrted in the balance sheet at far value

For the purposes of the balance sheet, ¢cash and cash equivalents include
cash, and money market funds For the purposes of the cash flow
statement cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above

Loans and receivables

Loans and recevables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted In an active market, do not
qualify as trading assets and have not been designated as either fair
value through profit and loss or available for sale These are initially
recognised at fair value, and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method They are included 10 current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet
date, which are classified as non-current assets

Loans and receivables compnse other recevables and cash and cash
equivalents at the balance sheet date




A provision for imparment of trade receivables is established when there
1S objective evidence that the Company wili not be able to collect all
amounts d¢ue according to the original terms of receivables The carrying
amount of the asset 15 reduced through use of an allowance account.
The amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement.

Financial liabilities
Other payables are recognised Inibially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

1} Finance income and finance expense

Interest tncome 1s recogrused on a time-proportion basis using the
effective Interest method When a recevable 1S impaired, the Company
reduces the carrying amount to its recaverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income

) Taxes

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax Tax 1s
recognised In the income statement except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in eguity In
this case the tax 1S also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively

Current income tax

Current Income tax assets and habilities for the current period are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authonties Management penodicatly evaluates posiions taken in
tax returns with respect 1o situabons in which applicable tax regulation 1s
subject to interpretation It establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authonties The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are thase that are
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred income tax

Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance
sheet date and are recognised 1o the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profit will aliow the deferred tax asset to be recovered

indirect tax

Indirect tax assets and liabilitres for the current and pnor periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or pad 1o the
taxation authonties Management perodically evaluates positions taken
In Indirect tax returns with respect to situations 1n which applicabie

tax regulation is subject to interpretation It establishes provisions or
recelvables where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to or receved from the tax authornties The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date If the recewvable 1s expected to be recewved in
more than 12 months from year-end, the recewable is discounted and held
at ts present value Amounts expected to be payable or recevable in more
than 12 months are classified as non-current assets or habilities in the
balance sheet, as appropnate

K) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders 1s regognised as a
liability i the Company's financial statements in the penod in which the
dividends are approved by the Company s shareholders
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

3 Corporate administration
Included in corporate administration costs are the following.

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
(in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Salanes 3,023 4,061
Other employee benefits 2,922 2,651
Stock-based compensation (126) 2,923
Directors fees 466 685
Professional and consultancy fees 2,612 2,936
Foreign exchange gain (339) (249)
Travel and administration 1,106 2,012
et management fees (2,229) {3.454)
Depreciation 144 146
Audit fees 392 396
Other 1,787 816
9,758 12,923
Detalls of Directors remuneration can be found in the Remuneration report on pages 56 to 75 Detals of the auditors remuneration can be found in
Note 12 of the Group financial statements
Average number of employees
Forthe For the
year ended year ended
31December 31 December
2013 2012
Administration 11 9
Total average headcount 11 9
4 Finance income and finance expense
a) Finance income
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 Dacember 31 December
{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Interest on time deposits 4 162
Total 4 162
b} Finance expense
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Bank charges 6 6
Total 6 6
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5 [Income tax

{(in thousands of United States dollars)

Forthe

year ended
31 Dacember
2013

For the

year ended
31 December
2012

Corporation taxes

Total

The statutory income tax rate in the United Kingdom 1s 20% for 2013 The tax on the Company's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount

that would anse using the statutory tax rate as follows

Forthe For the

year ended year ended

31 December 31 December

(in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2013
Loss before tax (16,076) (18,895)
Tax calculated at statutory tax rates 3,245 4,535

Tax effects of

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes - -
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recogmsed (3,215) (4,535)

Tax charge

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the tax losses amounting to US$56 8 rullion as at 31 December 2013 {2012 US$40 5 mullion),

as there 1s not sufficient certainty over future profits

6 Cash flow - other items
a) Operating cash flows - other items

Forthe For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
{in thousands of United $tates dollars) 2013 2012
Adjustments for non-cash income statement items
Foreign exchange gamns (339) {217)
Exchange (gain)/loss on revaluation of cash balances 36 (32)
Other expenses 474 1,526
Total 171 1,277
Adjustments for working capital items
For the For the
year ended vear ended
31 Docember 31 December
(in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Other recewvables (6,949) (2,794)
Other current llabalties 43,250 2,169
Other non-current liabilities (689) 1,033
Total 35,612 408
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

7  Property, plant and equlpment
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Furniture and
{in thousands of United States dollars) equipment Total
At 1 January 2013, net of accumulated depreciation 373 373
Additions 28 28
Depraciation (144) (144)
At 31 December 2013 257 257
At 1 January 2013
Cost 694 694
Accumulated depreciation (321} (321)
Net carrying amount 373 373
At 31 December 2013, net of accumutated depreciation
Cost 721 721
Accumulated depreciation (464) (464)
Net carrying amount 257 257
For the year ended 31 December 2012 Fumture and
{in thousands of United Siates dollass) equipment Total
At 1 January 2012, net of accumutated depreciation 370 370
Additions 149 149
Depreciation (146) (146)
At 31 December 2012 373 373
At 1 January 2012
Cost 545 545
Accumulated depreciation {175) (175)
Net carrying amount 370 370
At 31 December 2012, net of accumulated depreciation
Cost 694 694
Accumulated depreciation (321) (321)
Net carrying amount 373 373
8 Investment In subsidiaries
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Opening balance 1,346,608 1,324,568
Additions - 22,040
Transfer to non-current receivables? (22,040) -
Closing balance 1,324,568 1,346,608
The subsidiaries in which investments are held as at 31 December 2013 are as follows
Equity interest  Equrty interest
Company Principal actvity Country of incorporation 2013 2012
BUK Holdco Ltd! Holding Company UK 100% 100%
1816962 Ontario tng Holding Company Canada 100% 100%
ABG Exploration (Kenya) Ltd2 Exploration Kenya 1% 1%

1 BUK Holdeo Ltd and BUK East Afnca Ltd are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act relating 1o the audit of indnvidual accounts by virtue of S| 2012/2301
2 The company ¢changed Its name during the year from Aviva Mining (Kenya) Ltd to ABG Exploration {Kenya) Lid
3 The investment in ABG Exploration {Kenya) Ltd has been transferred to the related party BUK East Africa Limited {Refer to Note 18d))
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9. Other recelvables

As at As at

31 December 3t December

(i thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Indirect tax recevables 509 348
Advance payments 343 271
Other recevables 201 169
Due from related parties (Note 18) 8,883 2,656
Total 9,936 3,444

At 31 December 2013, no other recevables were either past due orimpaired In determining the recoverability of a recewable, the Company performs a

risk analysis

10 Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at

31 Decernber 31 December

{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Cash at bank and on hand 1,771 14.864
Money market funds - 21661
Total 1,771 36,525

Shont-term geposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the

Company and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates

11. Share capital and share premium

Share capnal Share capital  Share premum

Number £ 000 US$ 000 Us$ 000

Al 1l January 2012 410,085,499 41,009 62,097 867 102
At 31 December 2012 410,085,499 41,009 62,097 867,102
At 31 December 2013 410,085,499 41,009 62,097 B67,102

12 Stock-based compensation

Stock optrons are granted to Executive Directors and to selected employees The exercise pnce of the granted options 1S determined by the
Remuneration committee before the grant of an option provided that this price cannot be less than the average of the middle-market quotation of
such shares (as derived from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List) for the three dealing days immediately preceding the date of grant. All
options putstanding at the end of the year expire between 2017 and 2020 425,785 of the options granted were exercisable at 31 December 2013

The vesting penod of the opuons Is four years, with an exercise pertod of three years

Movements in the number of options outstanding and therr related weighted average exercise prices In pence are as follows

Average Average

exercise price exertise price

n pence in pence
per share Options per share Optons
For the period ended 31 December 2013 2013 2012 2012
At 1 January 522 943,006 522 943,006
Granted 160 841,308 - -
Forferted 835 (200,793) - -
At 31 Decemnber 328 1,583,521 522 943,006

There were no oplions granted during the current year

13 Dividends paid

The final dwvidend declared in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012 of US$50 44 milhon (US12 3 cents per share) and the 2013 intenm
dividend of US$4 1 million (USO 1 cents per share) were paid durtng 2013 and recogrused in the financial statements Refer to Note 19 for details

of the final dividend declared subsequent to year-end
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

14 Other current liabilities

As at As at
31 December 31 December
{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Trade and other payables 1,922 2,882
Accrued expenses and 1axes 1,888 1647
Payables to related parties {Note 18) 45,419 1,789
Total 49,229 5,318
15. Financlal assets and ilabllities
a) Financial assets
Camying value Fairvalue  Camyingvatue Fair vatue
{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2013 2012 2012
Cash and cash equivalents 1,771 1,771 36,525 36,525
Other recevables 9,936 9,936 3,444 3,444
Non-current recewvables? 795,191 795,191 772,694 772,694
Total financial assets 806,898 806,898 812,663 812,663
Less Current financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (1,771) 1,771 (36,525) (36,525)
Other recevables {9,936) {9,936) (3.444) (3.444)
Total non-current portion of receivables 795,191 795,191 772,694 772,694

1 Related party loans are interest free and have no fixed repayment terms

The fair value of financial assets equal their carrying amount as they were repayable on demand

b) Financial liabilities
Revolving credit facility

The Group has a revolving credit facility i place for a maximum aggregate amount of US$150 million which was negotiated on 24 November 2010,
with a syndicate of commercial banks, led by Citibank The facility has been provided to service the general corporate needs of the Group and to fund
potential acquisitions All provisions contained in the credit facility documentation have been negotiated on normal commercial and customary terms
for such finance arrangements and when drawn the spread over Libor will be 350 basis points During 2013, the term of the facility was successfully
extenged to 2016 at a maximum aggregate amount of US150 million whereby existing lenders opted to take up US$25 mulion from lenders who opted
not to extend At 31 December 2013, none of the funds were drawn under the facility The shares of all significant subsidianes have been pledged as

securnity for the loan

16 Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following nsks through its commeraial and financial operations

a} credit sk, and
b}  liquidity risk

This note presents information about the Company s exposure to each of the above nsks and the Company's obyectives, policies and processes
for assessing and managmg nsk Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout the financial statements

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the estabhishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework

The Company s nsk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company. to set appropnate nisk mits and
controls, and to monitor nsks and adherence to limits Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
condrtions and the Company s activities The Company through its traiming and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined
and constructive control environment i which all employees understand therr roles and obligations

a) Credit risk

Credit nsk 15 the risk that a third party might fail to fulfil its performance obligations under the terms of a financial instrument. For cash and cash
equivalents and other recewables credit nisk represents the carrying amount on the balance sheet.
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Credit nsk arises from lcans to two subsidianes, recelvables, cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks The Company's financial assets are
with counterparties whom the Company considers to have an appropriate credit rating. Location of credit nsk 1s determined by physical location of the bank
branch, customer or counterparty The maximum allowable term of maturity for any individual security 1 12 months investment counterparties must
have a crednt rating of at least Baa2 or better by Moody s Investor Services or BBB by Standard and Poer s No more than 25% of the aggregate market
value of the Investment portfolio is maintained in any one country, with the exception of the United States of America, United Kingdom and Barbados,
or In any one Industry group Investrnents are held mainly in United States dollars and cash and cash eguivalents in other foretgn currencies are
maintained for operational requirements

Company policies are aimed at minimising losses as a result of a counterpanty s failure to honour its obligations The Company's exposure to credit risk
15 Influenced mainly by the individual charactenstics of each counterparty The Company’s flnancial assets are with counterparties whom the Company
considers to have an appropriate credit rating

Maximum exposure to credit nsk at each reporting date 1s the carrying value of each class of financial assets in Note 15 The Company does not hold
collateral as secunty for any recevables The Company does not grade the gredit quality of recevables

b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk 1s the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obhigations as they fall due The Company monitors its risk of a shortage
of funds using projected cash flows and by moenitoring the matunty of both its financial assets and liabilities

The following table outhnes the expected maturity of the Company s significant financial habilities into relevant matunty groupings based on the
remaining period from the balance sheet date to the contractual matunity date As the amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows, these balances may not agree with the amounts disclosed in the balance sheet.

For the perlod ended 31 December 2013 Less than

(in thousands of United States dollars) 1year 1to 3years 3to & vears Over 5 years Total
Other non-current lilabilities - 1541 - - 1541
Other current hatuhiies 49,229 - - - 49,229
Total 49,229 1,641 - - 50,770
For the pericd ended 31 December 2012 Less than

(in thousands of United States doflars) 1vyear 110 3years 3to 5 years Over 5 years Total
Other non-current abilities - 2,230 - - 2,230
Other current llabilities 6,318 - - - 6,318
Total 6,318 2,230 - - 8,548

Management considers that the Company has adequate current assets and forecast cash flow from operations to manage hquidity nsks arising from
settlement of current habiliies and non-gurrent habilities

Capntal risk management

The primary otyective of the Company s capital management Is to ensure that It maintains a strong balance sheet and low gearing ratio to support
its business and provide financial flexibility in order to maximise shareholder value In order to ensure a strong batance sheet and low gearnng ratio,
management thoroughly evaluates all matenal projects and potential acquisitions and approves them at its Executive committee before submission
to the Board for ultmate approval, where applicable
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

17 Operating lease arrangements

For the year For the year

onded ended

31December 31 December

{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised in mcome for the penod 324 276
Total 324 276

At the balance sheet date, the Company had outstanding commitments for future mimmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,

which fall due as follows

As at Asat

31 0ecember 31 December

{in thousands of United States dollass) 2013 2012
Within one year 282 276
In the second to fifth years inclusive 1,127 1,106
After five years 423 691
Total 1,832 2,073

18 Related party balances and transactions

The Company had the following related party balances and transactions during the year ended 31 December 2012 Related parties are those entities

owned or controlled by Barrick, which 1S the ultimate controlling party of the Company

Transactions with related parties are as follows
a) Transactions

For the year For the year

ended ended

31December 31 December

{in thousands of United States dollars} 2013 2012

Management fees 2,229 3,454

Provision of goods and services 1,857 1,005

Purchase of goods and services (2,092) {2,085)

Dividends paid (40,3086) {51,822)
Total (38,312) {49,448) I

Management fees relate to an allocation of cost Incurred based on time spent by management for the benefit of the related party, a 5% mark-up 15
applied to these costs Provision and purchase of poods and services to/from related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions Provision
of services relates to costs Incurred by the Company and recharged to related parties with no mark-up Purchase of goods and services relates to costs
incurred by related parties and recharged to the Company with no mark-up Services purchased relate mainly to insurance, scftware licences and

professional services

b) Balances due from related parties

Agat As at
31 December 31 December
{in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Due from subsidiaries
Bulyanhulu Gold Mine Ltd 256 363
Pangea Minerals Ltd 725 391
North Mara Gold Mine Ltd 100 260
Barrick Africa (Pty) Ltd 2,860 772
ABG Exploration Africa Limited 11 -
ABG Exploration {Kenya) Ltd 4,922 815
African Barrnick (Barbados) Corp Ltd - 33
Other 9 22
Total 8,883 2,656

The receivables from related parties arnise mainly from the provision of goods and services
nterest There are no provisions hetd against recevables from related parties
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c) Balances due to related parties

Asat As at
31 December 31 December
(in thousands of United States dollars) 2013 2012
Due to Holding Company
Bamck Gold Corporation 1.210 1,789
Dure to feflow subsidianies
African Barnck (Barbados) Corp Ltd 44,209 -
Total 45,419 1,789

The payables to Barrck arnse mainly from purchase transactions noted above The payables are unsecured and bear no interest. Payables to African

Barrick (Barbados) Corp Lid are interest free and have no fixed repayment terms

d) Balances due from related parties (funding in nature)

As at As at

31 December 31 December

(i thousands of United $tates dollars) 213 2012

BUX Holdco Ltd 772,698 772694
BUK East Africa Limuted 22,493

Total 795191 772,694

Amounts due from BUK Holdco Ltd and BUK East Africa Limited are interest free and have no fixed repayment terms but are treated as long-term lcans

as there 1s no intention to recall the loan within 12 months

19 Post balance sheet events

A final dvidend of US$2 O cents per share has been proposed, which will result in a total dividend of US$2 O cents per share for 2013 The final

dividend 15 to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting on 24 Apnl 2014 These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

The following definitions and terms are used throughout this Annual Report In addition,
specific terms and definitions relating to mineral reserves and resources can be found on page 90.

ABG or the Afncan Bamck Gold plc, a company Concentrate a fine, powdery product of the milling process
Company incorporated under the Companies Act 2006 containing a high percentage of valuable metal
and registered in England and Wales with
registered number 7123187 Contalned ounces  represents total ounces in a mineral reserve before
reduction 1o account for ounces not able to be
ABG Group the Company and its subsidiary undertakings recovered by the applicable metallurgical process
ot the Group
Co-product a secondary metal or mineral product recovered In
AGM annual general meeting, the milling process such as copper and siver
Articles the articles of association of the Company CREST the computerised settlement system operated by
Euroclear UK & Ilreland Limited to faciltate the
AIsC has the meaning given to it under non-IFRS transfer of title to shares n uncertficated form
measures below
Crushing breaking of ore from the size delivered from the
Assay a chemical test perfarmed on a sample of mine into smatler and more uniform fragments to
ores or merals to determung the amount be then fed to gnnding mills of to a leach pad
of valuable metals contained
C5R corporate social responsibility
Au gold
Cu copper
Average head average ore grade fed into the mill, exp dn
grade grammes per metnc tonne Cut-andill a method of stoping in which ore 1S removed In
slices, or lifts, and then the excavation s filled with
Average realised has the meaning gven to it under non-IFRS rock or other waste matenal (backfill), before the
gold price per measures below subsequertt slice 1s extracted
ounce sotd
Cut-off grade the mintmum metal grade at which materal can
Barrick Barnck Gold Corporation, a company exisiing under g &

the laws of the Province of Ontano, Canada

Barrick Group

Barnck and its subsidiary undertakings

Board

the board of directors of ABG

Cash cost per
ounce sold

has the meaning given to It under nonHIFRS
measures below

Cash cost per
tonne milled

has the meaning given 1o it under non-IFRS
measures below

China Natlonal

means China National Gold Group Corporation

be economically mined and processed (used in the
calculation of ore reserves), expressed in grammes
per metric tonne

Development

work camed out for the purpose of opening up a
mineral deposit It an underground rmine this
includes shaft sinking. crosscutting, drifting and
raising In an open pit mine, development includes
the remaval of overburden

Directors

the directors of ABG for the reporting pericd,
details of whom are set out on pages 40 and 41
of this Annual Report

Gold or CNG
Discl d the disciosure and transparency rules made by the
CIL carbon in [gach, a method of recovenng gold and sclosure an parency by
Transparency FSA under Part V1 of FSMA
silver, in which a slurry of gold/sitver beanng ore, Rules
carbon and cyanide are mixed together The
cyanide dissolves the gold, which 1s subseguently DollarorUS$ or $  United States dollars
absorbed by the activated carbon whose base is .
usuatly ground coconut shells Doré doré bullion 1s an impure alloy of gold and silver
and 1s generally the final product of mining and
(o] ] the Canadian Institute of Mining, Metalturgy processing, the doré bullion will be transported to
and Petroleum be refined to high punty metal
Code of Conduct ABGs Code of Business Conduct and Ethics Drift a honzontal underground opening that follows
along the length of a vein or rock formation as
Companles Act the Companies Act 2006 of England and Wales, opposed o a crosscut which crosses the
2006 as amended
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Drift-and-fll a method of underground mining used for flatdying 150 International Standards Orgamsation
mineralisation or where ground conditions are
less competent Koz thousand ounces
Drilling core a dnlling method that uses & rotating barrel and an HPls key performance indicators
annular shaped diamoncimpregnated rock-cutting Kt thousand metnc tonnes
bit to produce cylindrical rock cores and lIft such
cores to the surface, where they may be collected, LIBOR The British Bankers' Association Interest
examined and assayed Settlement Rate for the relevant currency and
Drilling In-fill any method of dnlling intervals between existing gz:':gr:.'ﬂaef: on the appropnate page of the
holes, used to prowide greater geological detall and
to help establish reserve estimates Listing Rules the rules relating to admission to the Official List
made in accordance with section 73A(2) of FSMA
Drilling. reverse dniling method that uses a rotating cutting bit
circulation within a double-walled dnll pipe and produces rock London Stock London Stock Exchange plc
chips rather than core Air or water 13 circulated Exchange or LSE
down to the bit between the inner and outer wall of
the dnill pipe The chips are forced to the surface Long-hole stoping & methed of underground mining iInvolving the
through the centre of the dril pipe and are dniling of holes up to 30 meters or longer into an
coltected, examined and assayed ore beanng zone and then blasting a slice of rock
which falls into an open space The broken rock is
EBITDA has the meaning given to it under non-IFRS extracted and the resutting open chamber may or
measures below may not be filled with supportng matenal
EPO Environmental Protection Order Majority Barnck
Sharehotder
Executive as at year end, the executive director of the
Director(s} Company, Brad Gordon MDA a mineral development agreement
Exploration prospecting, sampling, mapping, diamond drilling MDN MON Inc , a company existng under the laws of the
and other work involved in searching for ore Province of Québec
Flnanclal Services  the Financial Services Authonty of the Mill a plant in which ore 1s treated and metals are
Authority or FSA United Kingdom recovered or prepared for smefting, also a revolving
drum used for the gnnding of ores In preparation
Flotation a milling process in which valuable mineral for treatment
particles are induced to become attached to
bubbles and float as others sink Moz million ounces
FSMA the UK Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 Mt rillion metnc tonnes
(as amended)
NGOs non-govemmental organisations
Grade the amount of metal In each tonne of ore,
expressed as troy ounces per tonne or grams per NI 43101 Canadian National Instrument 43-101
tonne for precious metals and as a percentage Non-Executive the Non-Executive Directors of the Company being
for most other metals Dlrectors s at year end Kein Dushnisky, Peter Tomsett,
it gram per metric tonne Ambassador Juma V Mwapachu Andre Falzon,
Dawid Hodgson, Michael Kenyon, Graham Clow,
IAS International Accounting Standards Steve Lucas, Rache! English, Rick McCreary,
Stephen Galbraith
IFRS International Financia! Reporting Standards,
as adopted for use in the European Union Official List the Official List of the Financial
Services Authonty
IPO ABG's tnitial public offenng on the Mam Market of
the London Stock Exchange Open pht a mine where the minerals are mined entirely from

the surface Also referred to as opencut or
open-cast mine
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS CONTINUED

Operational cash
flow per share

has the meaning given to it under non-IFRS
measures below

SLT or Senior
Leadership Team

Operational
Review

the operalional review underiaken by ABG 1o
enhance operational perforrmance and cost
controls

Ordinary Shares

QOrdinary Shares of 10 pence each i the capital
of the Company

Ore

rock, generally containing metallic or normetallic
minerals, which ¢an be mined and processed
at a profit

Ore body

a sufficiently large amaount of ore that ¢can be
mined economically

Overburden

1$ the matenal that lies above the area of
economic Interest, such as soil and anciltary
maternal, that I1s removed dunng surface mining

Oxlde ore

mineralised rock in which some of the orginal
minerals have been oxidised Oxidation tends
1o make the ore more amenable to cyanide
solutions so that minute particles of gold

will be readily dissolved

Qz

troy ounce (31 1035g)

PGI

Pangea Goldfields Inc , a Canadian subsidiary
of ABG

Pre-lIPO
Reorganisation

the reorganisation of the companies compnsing
the ABG Group into @ separate corporate group
pnior to the IPO

Reclamation

the process by which lands disturbed as a resuit
of mining actwity are modified to support beneficial
land use Reclamation activity may Include the
removal of bulldings, equipment, machinery and
other physical remnants of mining, closure of
talings storage faciities, leach pads and other
mine features and contounng covenng and
re-vegetation of waste rock and other

disturbed areas

Recovery rate

aterm used in process metaliurgy 1o indicate the
proportion of valuable matenal physically recovered
In the processing of ore It 1s generally stated as a
percentage of the material recovered compared to
the total matenal originally present

Refining

the final stage of metal production in which
impunties are removed from the molten metal

Relatlonship
Agreement

the relationship agreement between Bamck
and ABG

ROM

runof-mine, a term used lposely to descnbe ore of
average grade

Services
Agreement

the services agreement between Barnck and ABG
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orS

the indvduals listed on page 42

Management

Shaft a verucal or inclined excavation in rock for the
purpose of providing access to an ore body
Usually equipped with a hosst at the top, which
lowers and raises a conveyance for handiing
workers and maternals

Shareholders holders of Ordinary Shares

Spot or the purchase price of a commaodity at the current

spot price pnce nonmally at a discount to the longterm
contract pnce

Stripping removal of overburden or waste rock overtying
an ore body n preparation for mining by
openpit methods

Tailings the matenal that remains after all economically

and technically recoverable precious metals have
been removed from the ore dunng processing

Tailings storage
facility

a natural or man-made confined area suitable for
depositing the matenal that remains after the
treatment of ore

TANESCO Tanzanian Electnc Supply Compary Limited

TRA Tanzanian Revenue Authonty

TRIFR total reportable injury frequency rate

Tulawaka the joint venture agreement dated 15 September

Agreement 1988 (as amended from time to time) between
PGl and MDN

8 Tanzanlan shiling

UK Corporate the UK Corporate Governance Code dated

Governance Code

September 2012 1ssued by the UK Financial
Reporting Counctl

United Hingdom
or UK

the United Kingdom of Great Britain and
Northern Ireland

Unlted States or
us

the United States of America, its terntones and
possessions any state of the United States of
Amenca and the District of Columbia

VAT value-added tax

VBIAS village benefit implementation agreerments
VBAs village benefit agreements

Voluntary means the Voluntary Pnnciples on Secunty
Principles and Human Rights




Non-IFRS measures

ABG has identified certain measures Iin this report that are not
measures defined under IFRS Non-IFRS financial measures disclosed by
management are provided as additional information to Investors in order
to provide them with an alternative method for assessing ABG s financial
conditton and operating results These measures are not In accordance
with, or a substrtute for IFRS, and may be different from or inconsistent
with nor-IFRS financial measures used by other companies These
measures are explained further below

Avarage realised gold price per ounce sold 1s a non-IFRS financial
measure which excludes from gold revenue

Unrealised gams and losses on non-hedge denvative contracts,

Unrealised mark-to-market gains and losses on provisional pricing
from copper and gold sales contracts, and

Export duties

Cash cost per ounce sold 1s a non-IFRS financial measure Cash costs
include all costs absorbed into inventory, as well as royalties, by-product
credits and production taxes, and exclude capitalised production
stnpping costs, Inventory purchase accounting adjustments, unrealised
gains/losses from nonhedge currency and commeodity contracts,
depreciation and amortisation and corporate social responsibility
charges Cash cost 1s calculated net of co-product revenue

The presentation of these statistics in this manner allows ABG to
monitor and manage those factors that impact production costs on a
monthly basis ABG calculates cash costs based on ts equity interest

in production from its mines Cash cost per ounce sold are calculated
by dwiding the aggregate of these costs by gold ounces sold Cash costs
and cash cost per ounce sold are calculated on a consistent basis for
the perods presented

The table below provides a reconciliation between cost of sales and total
cash cost to calculate the cash ¢ost per ounce soid

Year ended
31 December

(US$ 000) 2013 2012

Total cost of sales 713,806 720,036

Deduct depreciaton and amortisation {147.979) (139,615)
{43,014) (47,888)

522,813 532,533

Deduct co-product revenue
Total cash cost

AlHn sustalning cost (AISC) 1s 8 norHFRS financral measure The
measure 15 in accordance with the World Gold Councll's guidance
issued in June 2013 Itis calkculated by taking the aggregate of cash
costs, carporate administration costs, reclamation and remediation
costs for operating mines, corporate soctal responsibility expenses,
mine exploration and study costs, capitahised stripping and underground
development costs and sustaining capital expenditure This 1s then
dvided by the total ounces sold A reconciliation between cash cost

per ounce sold and AISC is presented below

Year ended 31 December 2013

ABG Group

North ongong

{US$/0z sold) Butyanhuiu Mara  Buzwag operations
Cash cost per ounce sold 890 659 945 812
Corporate adrmirustration 72 3a 51 50
Rehabilitation 7 29 15 18
Mine exploration 3 12 2 6
CSR expenses 5] 31 4 19
Capitalised development 233 251 321 266
Sustaining capital 133 207 168 175
Total continuing operations 1344 1277 1,506 1,345
Discontinued operations 16
Total 1,362

Year ended 31 December 2012

ABG Group

North ongoing

{US$/0z sold) Bulyanhulu Mara  Buzwag) operations
Cash cost per ounce sold 803 953 1066 922
Corporate administration 75 78 78 83
Rehabiltation 10 48 23 26
Mine exploration 9 31 6 16
CSR expenses 5 39 8 23
Capitalised development 194 151 254 186
Sustaining caprtal 149 393 363 296
Total continuing operations 1,245 1,693 1,798 1,561
Discontinued operations 24
Total 1,585

(US$/0z)

Total ounces sold? 643,697 577,332

Cash cost per gunce B12 92
Additional contnbution from discontinued operations 15 19
Attributable cash cost per ounce 827 Q41

1 Restated for the impact of capitalised stnpping due to the adopuen of IFRIC 20
and the classification of Tulawaka as a discontinued operation

2 Reflects 1200% of ounces sokd from continuing operations

AISC 15 intended to provide additional information for what the total
sustaining cost for each ounce sold 1s, taking into account expenditure
incurred in addrtion to direct mining costs, depreciation and selling costs

EBITDA 15 2 norHFRS financial measure ABG calculates EBITDA as net
profit or loss for the peried excluding

Income tax expense,
Finance expense,
+ Finance income
Depreciation and amortisation, and
Impairment charges of goodwill and other long lived assets
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS CONTINUED

EBITDA 15 intended to prowide additional information to investors and
analysts It does not have any standardised meaning prescnbed by
IFRS and should not be considered in 1solation or as a substitute for
measures of performance prepared in accordance with IFRS EBITDA
exctudes the impact of cash costs of financing activities and taxes, and
the effects of changes in operating working capital balances, and
therefare I1s not necessarly indicatwe of operating profit or cash flow
from operations as deternmined under IFRS Other companies may
calculate EBITDA differently

A reconciliation between net profit for the penod and EBITDA 15
presented below

Year ended
31 December
{US$ 000) (Unaudited} 2013 2012t
Net(loss)/profit for the period (798,433) 51,493
Plus income tax (credit)/expense {187,959y 72,604

Plus depreciation and amortisation 167,820 159,446
1,061,011 44,536
9,668 10,305

(1,700) (2,102)

Ptus Impairment charges/write-offs
Plus finance expense
Less finance income

EBITDA 240,407 336,282

1 Restated for the impact of capitalised stnpping due to the adoption of IFRIC 20

EBIT 1s a non-IFRS financial measure and reflects EBITDA adjusted for
depreciation and amortisation and goodwill impairment charges

Ad]usted net eamings Is a non-IFRS financial measure K 1s calculated by
excluding one-off costs or credits refating to nonroutine transactions from
net profit attnbuted to owners of the parent It includes other credit and
charges that, individually or in ageregate, if of a similar type, are of a nature
or size that requires explanation in order to provide additional insight into
the underiyng business performance

Adjusted net earnings and adjusted eamings per share have been
caleulated by excluding the fellowing

Year ended

31 December
{US$ 000} (Unaudited) 2013 2012
Net (loss)/earnings (781,101) 62,780
Adusted for
Impairment charges 1,061,011 44536
Operational review charges 13,251 -
Tulawaka non-operational costs, including
derecognition of deferred tax 35,418 -
CNG related costs 4,145 6,676
Discounting of indirect taxes 1,375 4,185
Prior year Bulyanhulu tax positions recognised - 8,855

Tax )impact of the above (227,822) (18,239)

Adjusted net earnings 106,277 108,793

1 Restated for the iImpact of copralised stnpping due to the adoption of IFRIC 20
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Adjusted net eamings per share 1s 2 nonIfRS financial measure and 1s
calculated by dimiding adjusted net earnings by the weighted average
number of Ordinary Shares I1n 1ssue

Cash cost per tonne milled 1s a non-IFRS financial measure Cash costs
include all costs absorbed into inventory, as well as royalttes, by-product
credits and production taxes, and exclude capitalised production
stripping costs, (nventory purchase accounting adjustments, unrealised
gains/losses from non-hedge currency and commodity contracts,
depreciation and amortisation and corporate social responsibility
charges Cash cost 1s calculated net of co-product revenue ABG
calculates cash costs based on its equity interest in production from

its mines Cash costs per tonne mifled are calculated by dviding the
aggregate of these costs by total tonnes milled Cash cost Is calculated
net of co-product revenue ABG calculates cash costs based on its
equity interest in production from its mines Cash cost per tonne milled 1s
calculated by dmiding the aggregate of these costs by total tonnes milled

Operating cash flow per share 15 a non-IFRS financial measure and is
calculated by dwviding Net cash generated by operating activities by the
welghted average number of Ordinary Shares in 1ssug

Mining statistical information
The following describes certain line ttems used in the ABG Groups
discussion of key performance indicators

Open pit matertal mined ~ measures In tonnes the total amount
of open pit ore and waste mined

Underground ore tonnes hoisted — measures in tonnes the total
amount of underground ore mined and hoisted

Total tonnes mined includes open pit matenal plus underground
ore tonnes horsted

Strip ratic — measures the ratio waste to ore for open pit
maternal mined

Ore milled — measures in tonnes the amount of ore materal
processed through the mill

Head grade — measures the metal content of mmed ore going into
a mill for processing

Milled recovery — measures the proportion of valuable metal
physically recovered In the processing of ore It 1s generally stated
as a percentage of the metal recovered compared to the total metat
onginally present

Total production costs — measures the total cost of production and
1S an aggregate of total cash costs as well as production specific
depreciation and amortisation

Basis of preparation for the reporting of tax data

This basis of preparation supports the reporting of tax data contained
on page 34 of this Annual Report Generally the references to “Tax™ in
this context mean any amount of money required to be pard to, or repaid
by, a government




In overview, the key information presented as regards Tax 1s as follows

Taxes borne - these are taxes that the ABG Group 15 obliged to pay to a
government on its own behalf, or taxes that it 1s obliged to pay to a third
party and that can/cannot be recovered from a govemment The main
taxes that we have included in this category are

Government royaities —these compnse payments made to governments
in the form of royalties Typically these tend to become payable, and
are paid, in the year 1o which they relate These taxes form part of our
operating costs

Corporate mcome tax — this compnses any tax on the business
calculated on the basis of its profits, income or capital gains Typically,
these taxes would be reflected in corporate (ncome tax retums made
1o governmems

Customs duties —these compnse all customs/excise/import and export
duties Typically, these taxes tend to become payable and are paid to
governments at the point where goods are imported and exported

from terntones These taxes form part of our operating and capual
incurred costs

Empioyer payroll taxes -these comprise payroll and employer taxes
payable as a result of a company’s capacity as an employer Typically,
these taxes would be reflected in payroll tax returns made to
governments and tend to be payable and are paid, on a regular basis
{often maonthly) throughout the year shortly after the submission of the
return  These taxes form part of our operating costs

Environmental taxes — these comprise levies or other payments

to governments relating to environmental policy Typically, these taxes
tend to be payable on an annual basis These taxes are also included
in our operating costs

Indirect taxes - these compnise VAT and other fuel levies that arise on
the purchase of goods and services and are paid to third parties, to be
refunded by governments Typically, these taxes would form part of a
sales tax return made to governments Refunds recewed are included
in the taxes refunded category

Stamp duty —this compnses taxes that anse on transfers of assets or
capital Typically, these taxes would be reflected in stamp duty returns
made to governments and tend to become payable, and are paid,

to governments shortly after capital or assets are transferred

Taxes collected — these are taxes that a company 1s obliged to collect
from others and pay 1o government The matn taxes that we have
included n this category are

Empiloyee payroll laxes —these compnse payroll and employee taxes
withheld from employee remuneration and pard to governments

i e taxes collected by ABG and remitted to govemments on behalf of
employees under arrangements such as PAYE schemes Typically, these
taxes would be reflected in payroll tax returns made to governments
and tend to be payable, and are paid on a regular basis (often monthly)
throughout the year, shortly after submission of the return

Withholding taxes collected from supptiers —these compnse taxes that
are required to be withheld in advance on payments made to suppliers
Typically, these taxes would be reflected 1n income tax returms made
to governments and tend to be payable, and are paid, on a regular
basis {often monthly) throughout the year shortly after the submission
of the return

Taxes refunded — these are taxes that are refunded by governments
to ABG These mostly compnise the following

Indirect taxes (mamnly VAT and fue! levies) — typically, Indirect taxes
would tend to become repayable and are repaid by governments
regularly {often quarterly) throughout the year, shortly after the
submission of relevant sales tax returns Also included are other
refunds recenved
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SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES

All enguiries concering shareholdings including notification of
change of address or dividend payments should be made to ABG's
registrars, Computershare Investor Services PLC, whose contact
detalls are as follows

Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions

Bndgwater Road

Bnstol

BS99 672

Helpline number +44 {0) 870 707 1895

Computershare online enquiry service

Computershare provides a range of services through its online
portal, Investor Centre, which can be accessed free of charge at
www investorcentre co uk This service enables shareholders to check
details of therr shareholdings or dvidends, download forms to notify
changes n personal details and access other relevant information

Payment of dividends

Details of dwidends proposed in relation to the year are contanad

in the Directors Report on page 85 Shareholders may elect to receve
payment of the 2013 final dvidend and any future dividend in pounds
sterling directly to a Bank or Buillding Society account Payments of
amounts tn US dollars shall be made by cheque and sent by post to
shareholders registered addresses on 22 May 2014 Any shareholders
who elect to receve a dvidend in pounds sterling but who do not prowide
a direct credit mandate will recerve their dvidend by cheque, which will
be sent to shareholders registered addresses on 22 May 2014

If you wish 1o receve the 2013 final dvidend and any future dividend
by direct credit and have not already made a payment election, please
request a dividend mandate form from the shareholder helpline and
return it to Computershare at the address above by no later than

12 May 2014 Alternatively, direct credit mandate instructions can

be updated online at www investorcentre co Ukt

Currency Election forms can be retumed using the pre-paid envelope
provided with the matenals accomparyng this report Elections made
after 6 May 2014 will be applied 1o subsequent dvidends only

Should you have any quenes relating to the payment of

dmdends, please call Computershare s shareholder helpline
on +44 (0) 870 707 1895

168 www atricanbarrickgold com

Electronlc communicatlons

ABG has obtained shareholders consent to send and supply documents
and information to sharehoiders in electrome form and via ABG's
website, In accordance with provisions contained 1n ABG s Articles

of Association

Increased use of electronic communications will deliver additional
savings to ABG n terms of administration, printing and postage costs,
as well as speeding up the provision of iInformation to shareholders
The reduced use of paper will also have environmental benefits

Shareholder securlty

Shareholders should be cautious of any unsolicited financial advice
offers to buy shares at a discount or any other unsolicited acvice
regarding investment matters More detalled information can be
provided at www moneymadeclear fsa gov uk

Financal calendar

Financial year end 31 December 2013

Prelimsnary results for 2013 12 February 2014

Annual General Meeting 24 Apnl 2014
Quarterly results Q1 2014 24 Apnl 2014
Payment date for 2013 final dwdend 23 May 2014
Half year report 2014 July 2014
Quarterly results Q3 2014 October 2014
Quarterly results Q4 2014 January 2015
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CONTACT DETAILS

African Barrick Gold ple
5th Floor

No 1 Cavendish Place
London W1G OQF

United Kingdom

Registered number 7123187

Investor Relations

Giles Blackham

Investor Relations Manager

Phone +44 (0) 207 129 7150

E-mall gblackham@africanbarnckgold com
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Registrars

Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions

Bndgwater Road

Bnstol BS99 6ZZ

United Kingdom

Corporate Brokers

J P Morgan Secunties Ltd
25 Bank Street

Canary Wharf

London E14 5JP

United Kingdom

RBC Capital Markets
Thames Court

One Queenhithe
London EC4V 4DE
United Kingdom

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
1 Embankment Place
London WC2N 6RH

United Kinggomn

Legal Advisers
Shearman & Sterhng LLP
Broadgate West

9 Appold Street

London EC2A 2AP

United Kingdom

Additional Information

Addmional information regarding
ABG can be found on the website

WWW.AFRICANBARRICKGOLD.COM




